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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises to order.

          5  Joining me are our Committee Members Mike McMahon,

          6  Maria Baez, Larry Seabrook and Melinda Katz.

          7                 We will have an extremely long agenda

          8  today and because of that, we have broken it up into

          9  two sessions.  So the first items this morning will

         10  be the Bayside and Springfield Gardens rezoning,

         11  followed by the public hearing on Intro 430.

         12                 Assuming we have time to break, and I

         13  hope we do, well, we will then reconvene at 1:00 for

         14  the rezoning on Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  So if

         15  you are here for Greenpoint and Williamsburg, you

         16  can take a break for about several hours.

         17                 First items are Land Use Number

         18  372N050148AZRY and pre-considered C050149ZMQ,

         19  commonly referred to as the Bayside Rezoning, which

         20  also includes the City-wide New Designation R2A. And

         21  at the same time, Land Use Number 419C050194ZMQ,

         22  which is commonly referred to as The Springfield

         23  Gardens Rezoning.

         24                 And we have Commissioner Amanda

         25  Burden from the Department of City Planning.
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          2                 Good morning, Commissioner.

          3                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN: Good morning,

          4  Chair Avella, Land Use Chair, Katz, who I do not see

          5  quite yet, and members of the Subcommittee on Zoning

          6  and Franchises.

          7                 I am delighted to be here today to

          8  talk about two of the Department of City Planning's

          9  critical initiatives to protect the traditional low

         10  density character, into very appealing communities

         11  in Queens, Bayside and Springfield Gardens.

         12                 Now I would like to take this

         13  opportunity to introduce the Director of the Queens

         14  office, John Young, and Seth Myers who has been the

         15  Director of the Bayside Rezoning Project. Would you

         16  like me to do anything else?  Okay.

         17                 Let me begin with Bayside.  The

         18  Department's Bayside Rezoning Proposal is a

         19  comprehensive initiative to preserve the suburban,

         20  residential ambiance, that is intrinsic to the

         21  quality of life in this community.  It is the

         22  largest lower density rezoning in Queens to be

         23  adopted by the commission, updating the zoning on

         24  nearly 350 blocks.

         25                 Recent development trends in the
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          2  Bayside area have increasingly featured the

          3  replacement of single family detached houses with

          4  out of character buildings, as well as the

          5  construction of new one family houses, that are

          6  overwhelmingly larger than the homes they replaced,

          7  or neighboring homes.  In order to ensure that new

          8  development closely matches the scale of houses in

          9  the lowest density areas of Bayside, a new single

         10  family contextual zoning district has been created

         11  for the first time since the 1961 Zoning Resolution

         12  was adopted.  This new zoning tool, the R2A

         13  District, will have the tightest floor area

         14  regulations of any residential zoning category.

         15  This new zone is intended to curb the building of

         16  McMansions (sic.) That are oversized for their

         17  building lots, and overwhelmingly larger than the

         18  homes they replaced your neighboring houses.

         19                 Overall, we believe that the Bayside

         20  Rezoning Proposal and the creation of the R2A zone,

         21  are carefully balanced efforts that will protect

         22  neighborhood character, and enhance the quality of

         23  life, and continue to allow individual home owners,

         24  opportunities to improve their property.

         25                 We are proud to have worked with this
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          2  remarkably involved community, and its elected

          3  officials, in particular, Council Member Tony

          4  Avella, to update the zoning designations and create

          5  new zoning tools, that address the challenges of out

          6  of character development in Bayside.  And we look

          7  forward to your support.

          8                 I am going to take the opportunity to

          9  give my introduction for Springfield Gardens at this

         10  time.  Our rezoning initiative for Springfield

         11  Gardens entails zoning changes for nearly 70 blocks

         12  in the western portion of this Queens' neighborhood,

         13  situated at the edge of Baisley Pond Park, and just

         14  north of the Belt Parkway.

         15                 This proposal responds to recent

         16  building trends that threatened to alter the

         17  neighborhood's one and two family character, with

         18  new construction of multi family structures,

         19  permitted by the existing 1961 zoning.

         20                 The Springfield Gardens rezoning was

         21  initiated at the request of a local group, The

         22  United Neighbors Civic Association, after new

         23  attached department buildings were constructed on

         24  Baisley Boulevard and Guy R. Brewer Boulevard, where

         25  single family homes once stood.  This rezoning will
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          2  maintain the prevailing one and two family character

          3  of the neighborhood, and insure that new residential

          4  development, fits the context and scale of the

          5  area's existing housing mix.

          6                 This rezoning proposal has enjoyed

          7  support by Community Board 12 and Queens Borough

          8  President, Helen Marshall, and her zoning task

          9  force.  The Springfield Gardens rezoning area

         10  encompasses portions of the Council District's of

         11  Leroy Comrie, Allan Jennings, and James Sanders, Jr.

         12    And we are very grateful to have had the support

         13  of each of them, in working on this proposal.

         14                 We hope that you, too, will support

         15  this well considered re- zoning initiative.

         16                 And now I will turn the presentation

         17  over to John Young and Seth Myers, who will present

         18  the Bayside Proposal.  Thank you.

         19                 MR. YOUNG: Good morning, Chair

         20  Avella, Land Use Chair Katz, and Subcommittee

         21  members.  I am John Young, and I am Director of the

         22  Queens Office of City Planning.  I am very pleased

         23  to be here today with Seth Myers, to present our

         24  Bayside Rezoning Proposal, as well as the

         25  opportunity to actually create a new zoning tool,
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          2  the Lower Density Contextual Zoning District, known

          3  as R2A.

          4                 The Department has proposed zoning

          5  map amendments for 346 blocks located in

          6  northeastern Queens in the Bayside neighborhood. The

          7  rezoning area is boarded by the Cross Island Parkway

          8  to the east, the Long Island Expressway to the

          9  south, Francis Lewis Boulevard and the Clearview

         10  Expressway to the west and 24th and 26th Avenues to

         11  the north.

         12                 We are handing out some materials

         13  which will be part of the presentation that we are

         14  going to be showing on the screen.           Currently

         15  the Bayside rezoning area consists of two types of

         16  residential zoning, single family and general

         17  residence districts.  The majority of the areas

         18  zoned R2 permitting only single family detached

         19  houses.  These lower density areas are located at

         20  the edge of the rezoning area and then in the

         21  center, are located general residence districts R3

         22  and R4.

         23                 As Chair Burden outlined, the

         24  Department proposes to comprehensively update zoning

         25  in Bayside to prevent inappropriate increases in
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          2  density, to reenforce established building types,

          3  and to guide development to more closely match

          4  existing houses.

          5                 And now as you can see here, in

          6  particular, the two issues in Bayside that this

          7  rezoning seeks to address, relate to inappropriate

          8  development.  And this is inappropriate development

          9  that can alter the density of the existing

         10  neighborhood through out of context residential

         11  development, where single family houses can be

         12  replaced by multiple family houses, and also by

         13  restricting new housing that is substantially out of

         14  scale with the traditional built environment.  In

         15  particular, what we are talking about is the area

         16  where the R2 zoning is, where currently the zoning

         17  guidelines provide no exact maximums for wall or

         18  building heights, and where the maximum floor space

         19  can increase dramatically through exemptions.

         20                 So what we have undertaken is an

         21  area- wide analysis of existing development

         22  patterns, where we have looked at the building

         23  types, the residential density and lot

         24  characteristics, and through this initiative, we

         25  hope to provide zoning designations that more
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          2  closely match existing development, and we are

          3  providing a new zoning tool to curb out of scale

          4  buildings, in the areas currently zoned R2.

          5                 So of the proposed actions before

          6  you, there is a rezoning initiative for contextual

          7  or lower density zoning, where it is appropriate,

          8  establishing the new R2A residential zoning

          9  designation, and applying that where appropriate.

         10  And lastly, we are also going to modify some of the

         11  commercial overlay districts, again to more closely

         12  match those areas where that development occurs.

         13                 The proposed R2A will implement new

         14  reforms to establish new floor area allowances that

         15  are tighter, and revise height and set back

         16  regulations that are more exact.  So we are going to

         17  put new limits on floor exemptions, and absolute

         18  maximum wall and building heights, and revised lot

         19  coverage.

         20                 But the proposed R2A will continue to

         21  uphold the basic criteria that have worked well in

         22  guiding single family residential developments in

         23  the R2 districts.  Those include maintaining the

         24  minimum lot area and lot width requirements, minimum

         25  lot size of 3800 square feet, minimum lot width of
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          2  40 feet. The use and type of buildings will remain

          3  the same, one family, detached development, housing

          4  development.  And the maximum floor ratio remains

          5  the same at a .5 FAR.  Yard requirements are

          6  maintained, or in some instances, slightly

          7  increased.

          8                 So on the board we have a comparison

          9  of development that can occur under the existing R2

         10  on the left, and on the right, development under the

         11  reforms proposed through the R2A.

         12                 So under the R2, there are, as I

         13  said, a broad range of floor area allowances,

         14  including generally, the entire lowest story that

         15  has a garage.  Those areas are shaded more darkly.

         16  And in addition, attic space that is below the

         17  height of eight feet, again shown here on the upper

         18  floor in the darker tone.  So that on an existing

         19  4,000 square foot lot, one can genuinely develop a

         20  house, not at the .5 FAR or 2,000 square feet, but

         21  nearly double that, almost 4,000 square feet using

         22  the exemptions.

         23                 In addition, the heights of the walls

         24  of the buildings are currently unregulated, and the

         25  current height of the front wall as we are shown
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          2  here, can be at 25 feet, or depending on its

          3  position on the lot, can actually be taller.

          4                 With the floor area changes proposed

          5  for the R2A, the floor area allowances will be only

          6  permitted for a 300 square foot maximum for the one

          7  car required accessory garage, either in the

          8  residence or in a separate structure.  That is this

          9  portion shown here in the structure.  And only attic

         10  space below five feet would be exempted.

         11                 In addition, where the lot coverage

         12  today can extend up to nearly 37 percent, the lot

         13  coverage maximum will be capped at 30 percent.

         14                 And lastly, the building wall height

         15  here will be on all walls, a maximum of 21 feet.

         16                 So these examples show how recent

         17  developments would be affected, had they had to

         18  abide by these proposed changes.  This recent

         19  development shows that the current, at the red line

         20  here, the current height of this building wall is 26

         21  1/2 feet.  Under the R2A Proposal, again it would

         22  have to be five and half feet lower, at 21 feet.

         23                 In addition, the total floor area in

         24  the development through the lowest story rules that

         25  exist today, is 2800 square feet.  Under the
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          2  proposal, the maximum here would be 2300 square

          3  feet.

          4                 Similarly, a building that would not

          5  have to change its height since the front wall and

          6  side walls here is 21 feet, this is a building that

          7  has a lot coverage of 37 percent.  And so under the

          8  proposed changes, this development would be limited

          9  in the amount of floor space that it would cover on

         10  the lot, and would have to actually have to, again,

         11  through its lowest story exemption, reduce the

         12  amount of interior floor space, and thus the lot

         13  coverage.

         14                 And also, just to insure that there

         15  is enough flexibility with the types of buildings

         16  that are allowed under the R2A, we are showing that

         17  a variety of configurations can occur, including,

         18  again a single structure with a garage located on

         19  the property, in the building, and then a low

         20  profile roof, or separately, instead of a two story

         21  structure, a two and a half story structure, with

         22  the garage located separately on the property.

         23                 Okay, and now then for the Bayside

         24  Rezoning itself, the R2A Proposal obviously will be

         25  an essential tool for City plans that we are using
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          2  here, but we are also using a variety of other

          3  zoning changes, contextual zoning tools, to limit

          4  density, and to insure a better fit with this

          5  existing development patterns.  In the other lower

          6  density areas of the study area zoned R2, the

          7  Department aims to prevent the sub- division of

          8  large zoning lots. In these areas currently, lots

          9  that are 80 feet or more in width, are able to be

         10  divided into two building lots.  Often the sub

         11  division is accomplished by the demolition of an

         12  older home, and the replacement of two large houses

         13  on lots half the size as the original.  The sub-

         14  divisions threaten to increase the density and

         15  undermine the character of these very low density

         16  sections of Bayside, therefore in response, the

         17  Department has proposed the designation of three R12

         18  sections.  These areas are in the north, above 26th

         19  Avenue, then just north of Crocheron Park, and then

         20  in the far eastern side of Bayside along the Cross

         21  Island Expressway. With the R12 designation, this

         22  will better reflect the larger lots sizes in these

         23  areas, insure the traditional environment and

         24  characters preserved, and these areas total about 26

         25  blocks, or about eight percent of the study area.
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          2                 In the center of Bayside in the areas

          3  shaded more darkly, we are going to replace the

          4  existing R3 and R4 General Residence Districts that

          5  increasingly allow buildings that do not match the

          6  built environment, replacing single family homes

          7  with semi- detached or attached buildings.  The

          8  changes that we are proposing here are series of

          9  contextual districts, which would guide development

         10  to better reflect the existing character and density

         11  of these areas.  We are going to designate a series

         12  of zones, R31, R3A, R3X, R4B, and a small R for one

         13  section in these areas, these are contextual zonings

         14  that will better match the existing low density

         15  context, and insure that future development also

         16  will match and reflect this character.

         17                 The R3A and R3X zones are shown here

         18  in the darkest tones, the R3A, these zones allow one

         19  and two family developments and detached houses

         20  only.  The R3A permits houses on lots that are

         21  slightly narrower, as narrow as 25 feet, and the R3X

         22  permits houses on lots of widths of 35 feet minimum.

         23    Both designations have a maximum floor ratio of .5

         24  with a .1 attic allowance.

         25                 There are a total of 16 blocks
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          2  proposed to be zoned R3A, and 46 blocks proposed to

          3  be zoned R3X.  In an area south of the Northern

          4  Boulevard area, and just along the Clearview

          5  Expressway, an area of R32 is proposed to be rezoned

          6  to R31.  This zone allows detached and semi-

          7  detached structures for only one and two family

          8  occupancy.  And again, the floor area is not changed

          9  through this zoning designation.  It will be again,

         10  a maximum of .5 with a .1 attic allowance.  This R31

         11  zone will not allow attached or multiple family

         12  buildings that are currently permitted under the R32

         13  designation, about 20 blocks are proposed to be

         14  rezoned to R31. Now, understand that there are some

         15  concerns for the residents in this area if we could

         16  not fine tune the designations, and obviously will

         17  continue to work with you on having meetings with

         18  those residents, and see if there can be any other

         19  changes adopted for this area.

         20                 There are also a number of areas

         21  where the actual housing type is a row house

         22  district.  And for these areas we are proposing an

         23  R4B district.  The R4B district is again proposed

         24  for several blocks south of Northern Boulevard.

         25  This zone allows attached housing but only in one

                                                            27

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  and two family occupancy.  Where generally, where we

          3  propose to map it, it generally reflects the

          4  attached row house conditions, and it is being

          5  mapped on ten blocks in the study area.

          6                 Finally, the Department is proposing

          7  to modify three commercial overlays, reducing their

          8  depths from 150 to 100 feet in order to prevent

          9  commercial uses from encroaching onto residential

         10  side streets.  These overlays are located along the

         11  Long Island Expressway, the Clearview Expressway,

         12  and a portion of 48th Avenue.

         13                 Lastly, I just have to acknowledge

         14  how rewarding it has been to have worked with the

         15  Bayside community on this rezoning, and it certainly

         16  has been impossible to imagine that we would have

         17  been able to achieve this compromise without the

         18  support of Council Member Avella and his Planning

         19  Consultant, Paul Graziano, who did a lot of work,

         20  working on providing us with feedback and addressing

         21  the areas built context.  In fact, most recently, we

         22  have understood that there is a change that is still

         23  going to be a refinement to the existing Art Way

         24  Proposal.  That is a refinement that will actually

         25  require new buildings in the R2A to match the front
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          2  yards of their adjacent housing.  That is a

          3  provision that we certainly support.  It is one that

          4  has been implemented in other contextual zoning

          5  districts, and would be appropriate for this

          6  district, for the R2A district, as well.

          7                 I just want to reiterate that, that

          8  the proposal obviously has been modified through the

          9  course of Kamansetra Wuthseve (phonetic) from

         10  Community Board 11, the Queens Borough President.

         11  And we know that with this last initiative we

         12  certainly believe that we are very close to

         13  providing an important new tool within the zoning

         14  arsenal of the City, and we can certainly well

         15  imagine that it will be used in many other areas,

         16  low density areas, that have been developed in parts

         17  of Queens and other boroughs.

         18                 We actually then would hope to be

         19  coming before you very shortly with the zoning text

         20  amendment for the R2A and other mappings (sic.) Of

         21  the R2A throughout Queens.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Perhaps we should

         23  take some questions from committee members before

         24  you then go on to Springfield and Gardens, and then

         25  we will do the public hearing on both items.
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          2                 First of all I want to thank

          3  Commissioner Burden and John Young and the entire

          4  staff of City Planning.  As the council member whose

          5  district includes Bayside, this has been an

          6  experience, but it is something that certainly is

          7  very needed in the Bayside community to prevent over

          8  development and the quality of life in the

          9  neighborhood.  But it also goes well beyond that in

         10  terms of the new R2A, and as we see that designation

         11  is now being sought by almost every other low

         12  density neighborhood, one family owned

         13  neighborhoods, in the Borough of Queens.  This will

         14  go a long way in eliminating the proliferation of

         15  McMansions (sic.).  I know it has been very, my

         16  favorite expression, McMansions (sic.), and I know

         17  we had a very difficult time getting together

         18  working with the community on the various issues,

         19  and the Architect's Association. There were some

         20  legitimate issues out there from day one,

         21  unfortunately there was a lot os misinformation out

         22  there, as well. But I think in the final analysis,

         23  working with everybody, we have achieved something

         24  that is really extraordinary, and is ground

         25  breaking, in terms of preventing over development.
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          2                 Any questions from committee members

          3  before we move on to Springfield Gardens?  Council

          4  Member Katz.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Good Morning,

          6  John.  Just, I have a lot of questions, I know the

          7  architects are here and they are going to talk about

          8  it as the community, so I thought I would just give

          9  the opportunity to the City Planning Commission to

         10  put on the record about the garage exemptions, about

         11  the 300 feet that are exempted from separate garage,

         12  and anything in excess of that going to the FAR of

         13  the house.  Can you just talk a little bit about

         14  that on the record just to make it clearer?

         15                 MR. YOUNG: Three hundred square feet

         16  is a number that has been worked through the lower

         17  density growth management initiatives that were

         18  actually first implemented in Staten Island. And

         19  when we looked at the ability of creating this new

         20  zone, we felt that, that was the appropriate amount,

         21  because that is also what is equivalent to a one car

         22  garage, which the R2 zone requires. And again, the

         23  exemption can be taken whether the parking structure

         24  is a separate one on the lot or if the parking is

         25  provided within the residence.  Therefore the
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          2  overall amount of floor space that would be allowed

          3  on the lot is the 2,000 square foot, the .5 FAR and

          4  the 4,000 square foot lot, plus this additional 300

          5  square feet, which was then not attributable to

          6  zoning floor area.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: And the purpose

          8  of that, I guess, is to keep the car garage, one car

          9  garages?  Is that the idea, that you only want to

         10  have one car garages in these areas, so that the

         11  floor area ratio remains in the home?

         12                 MR. YOUNG: The purpose is simply to

         13  provide a mechanism that recognizes that one car is

         14  the required amount that the property has to

         15  provide.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So that would be

         17  enough. Alright, thanks.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         19  questions from committee members?  Council Member

         20  McMahon.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Mr. Chairman,

         22  as you said, my name is Michael McMahon.  And I do

         23  not understand why these things that we are trying

         24  to prevent are not called Avellasions (sic.) Or

         25  Katzsions (sic.).  I do not know why they are called
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          2  McMansions (sic>?  Can somebody give me the

          3  etymological root study?  Why are they called

          4  McMansions (sic.) And not Avellasions (sic.)?  Or

          5  Quinnsions (sic.)?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am not sure.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Baezsions

          8  (sic.)?  Or Seabrooksions (sic.)?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I may have

         10  actually been the person who coined that phrase.  I

         11  am not sure, but nobody else has come forward.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: That is what

         13  I am talking about.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: It is actually

         15  because of McDonalds.

         16                 COMMITTEE MEMBER QUINN: Could be

         17  anti- Irish?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Christine Quinn

         19  has got a joke.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay, having

         21  said that, I just want to ask one question.  The new

         22  R2A, that is now a new city- wide adopted zoning

         23  category, is that correct?

         24                 MR. YOUNG:  That is correct.  It will

         25  be available city- wide.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Okay.  Thank

          3  you.  And thank you for mentioning the Staten Island

          4  experience.  You see what I go through here on an

          5  every day basis.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If there are no

          7  other questions or comments, we will go on to

          8  Springfield Gardens.  John?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Just for

         10  everybody's information, it is actually based on

         11  McDonalds because they go up every place like a

         12  McDonalds restaurant and they sort of have that

         13  similar style.  That is why you came up with

         14  McMansions (sic.).

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Michael,

         16  sometimes it is just personal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Does anybody buy

         18  that explanation?  I do not --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: It works for

         20  us.

         21                 MR. YOUNG: I do think that is

         22  correct, I think it is related to Super Sizing and

         23  McMansions (sic.).

         24                 Again, good morning --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You are from
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          2  Queens, you are in cahoots with him, I understand

          3  that.  Do not try to bail him out.

          4                 MR. YOUNG: We are very pleased to be

          5  able to present to you our Springfield Gardens

          6  rezoning.  The Department City Planning is proposing

          7  zoning map amendments for nearly 70 blocks in the

          8  western portion of the Springfield Gardens

          9  neighborhood in southeast Queens and Community

         10  District 12.  There we go.

         11                 This portion of Springfield Gardens

         12  is located just north of the Belt Parkway between

         13  Baisley Pond Park to the west, Guy R. Brewer

         14  Boulevard to the east, this is Baisley Pond Park,

         15  the Belt Parkway, Guy R. Brewer Boulevard.  And this

         16  is one of the Department's important lower density

         17  rezoning initiatives that responds to recent

         18  development trends, that threaten to alter the

         19  neighborhood's one and two family character.

         20                 As Chair Burden mentioned, the

         21  Springfield Gardens rezoning was initiated at the

         22  request of a local civic group, the United Neighbors

         23  Civic Association, after new attached apartment

         24  buildings were constructed on Baisley and Guy R.

         25  Brewer Boulevards, where single family houses had
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          2  previously stood.  This rezoning will maintain the

          3  prevailing one and two family character of the

          4  neighborhood and insure that new residential

          5  development fits the context and scale of the areas

          6  existing housing mix.  Under this rezoning, the

          7  existing R32 District, which is the City's lowest

          8  density zoning district that permits a great variety

          9  of housing, including attached, semi detached

         10  buildings and garden apartments. It will be replaced

         11  with two residential zoning districts that more

         12  closely reflect the areas development patterns.

         13                 An R3X District is proposed for a 30

         14  block area in the northeast part of the

         15  neighborhood, generally bounded by 134th Avenue,

         16  Rockaway Boulevard, Baisley and Guy R. Brewer

         17  Boulevards.

         18                 An R31 District is proposed for the

         19  remainder of the rezoning area.  Both of these zones

         20  would limit development to one and two family

         21  buildings.  The R3X District would reflect the

         22  existing one and two family detached developments in

         23  this portion of the area.  Whereas, the R31 District

         24  would limit the type of development to detached or

         25  semi detached homes for one and two family
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          2  occupancy.

          3                 It has been very rewarding working

          4  with the United Neighbors Civic Association.  Our

          5  rezoning really depended on their assistance to

          6  provide us with land use information and update on

          7  conditions in the area.  The rezoning proposal is

          8  supported by Community Board 12, Queens Borough

          9  President Helen Marshall and her zoning task force,

         10  and all of the local City council members whose

         11  districts encompass portions of the rezoning area,

         12  Leroy Comrie, Allan Jennings and James Sanders, Jr.

         13  We believe that with this rezoning, this portion of

         14  the Springfield Gardens community, which is poised

         15  for change, will be protected, and the proposed

         16  zoning changes will insure that any of these changes

         17  will enhance its appeal for years to come.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

         19  from committee members on the Springfield Gardens

         20  rezoning?  Thank you.  I am sure you will be

         21  available in case we have any questions on both.

         22                 We will now go on to the public

         23  hearing on the Bayside rezoning first, and then we

         24  will do the public hearing on Springfield Gardens.

         25                 Normally what we do, for those people
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          2  who have not been here before, we break speakers up

          3  into panels.  Because of the length of the hearing

          4  today, and the need to move ahead expeditiously,

          5  each speaker will be limited to two minutes.  You

          6  will be timed.  I urge everyone to please stay

          7  within that time limit.  I hate to have to cut

          8  somebody off.  But if you go beyond that, I will.

          9  Because, we will be here probably until six or 7:00

         10  tonight, with the public hearings that we will be

         11  doing all day.

         12                 The first, what I would like to do is

         13  call up Jerry Iannece, Chair of Board 11, first.

         14  And then following him I will call up Paul Graziano.

         15                 MR. IANNECE: Is it on?  Good morning.

         16  Thank you for inviting me and allowing me the

         17  opportunity to speak.  I am Jerry Iannece and I am

         18  Chairman of Community Board 11.  First let me say

         19  and thank everybody for working so hard on this

         20  issue.  Virtually everybody in northeast Queens

         21  believes and feels that something had to be done,

         22  and I have to commend the Councilman for leading

         23  this, as well as the City Planning Commission for

         24  working so hard on this.

         25                 I will say now, as I said a year ago,
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          2  we believe that the best way to deal with this issue

          3  or to have dealt with this issue, was to basically

          4  leave the R2, and take out the lowest story

          5  exemption.  We did not go in that direction, but in

          6  any case we are sort of here now, and what we have

          7  before us now, sort of works.  My concern, and I am

          8  still a little confused with an explanation I was

          9  just recently given, was the fact that we may have a

         10  fair number of homes that would be out of

         11  compliance.  That either they will be over, in

         12  regards to lot coverage, or they will be over, in

         13  regards to the FAR.  Approximately 70- 85 percent of

         14  the homes clearly in Bayside Hills, which I was

         15  previous President of, as well as a good part of

         16  Bayside.  If this plan goes through now, from what

         17  my understanding is, with the lot coverage being 30

         18  percent and FAR being .5, that we will have a

         19  problem that these homeowners will not be able to

         20  develop or expand our houses at all. And to me that

         21  is an issue.  That is a problem.  Although this is

         22  tight, and we want something tight, we do not want

         23  absolutely no development at all.  So my concern is,

         24  is that.  And I believe the explanation that Melinda

         25  Katz had asked for, I really do not believe it was

                                                            39

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  clear.  In my view, it sounds like either we have a

          3  double dip in regards to the garage with the lot

          4  coverage, or we do not.  And my concern is what we

          5  had suggested, or at least the conditions that were

          6  placed by the Community Board was that we have some

          7  more fine tuning.  And that is why the Community

          8  Board gave conditional approval.  Specifically, we

          9  believe that gabled roofs be provided for, and you

         10  did that, and I appreciate that.  We have an entire

         11  community called The Gables, and we had to do that.

         12  The two other positions that we had, was that we

         13  have lots, or at least garages, not being included

         14  for lot coverage and that the attic space under

         15  eight feet, not be included, or at least it be

         16  grandfathered (sic.) In.  Okay?  And that is my

         17  problem.  I am somewhat unclear.  Paul Graziano said

         18  something a minute ago which encourages me in some

         19  regard, but it is not clear to me at this point,

         20  that we may have, if we allow this to go through, a

         21  substantial number of homes in Bayside, that will be

         22  out of compliance and they will not be able to

         23  develop their homes, really, at all.  And I am

         24  concerned with that and I hope, I am going to talk

         25  to John Young about that when I am done, that maybe
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          2  he can clarify this to me.

          3                 In regards to the Community Board, as

          4  well, we had voted conditionally that this should be

          5  approved.  That we should go up with the exterior

          6  wall height to 23 feet and let me just explain very

          7  quickly, why.  If you allow eight feet for each

          8  ceiling height and the lumber between each floor to

          9  support it, that gets you to about 19 feet.  That

         10  would mean that a basement wall, foundation wall,

         11  would stick out of the ground about two feet.  In

         12  our view, that was not sufficient, to allow windows

         13  to be above grade.  That is why we conditionally

         14  approved this, with the idea of it going up to 23

         15  feet.  That would allow for heights of ceilings to

         16  be at least eight feet, maybe a little bit higher,

         17  and foundation walls that came up so that a basement

         18  would have a window, and I am talking fast because I

         19  know I am running out of time, to allow some light

         20  in it.

         21                 And in regards to the R12, the zoning

         22  map, we voted against it because we believed again,

         23  that it needed to be a little tighter.  I know you

         24  went from home to home, and I appreciate that, but

         25  what we intended to do was to poll each individual
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          2  homeowner, get something in writing from them, in

          3  regards to whether or not they wanted it, and

          4  whether or not their lots complied, as well. Because

          5  in our view, from what we were being told, there

          6  were a number of homes that did not have the

          7  requisite 60 x 100 lot coverage, or at least a lot

          8  size, in order to be rezoned from R2 to R12, and

          9  that concerned us.  The Gables clearly complied and

         10  they wanted it, and I think that should go forward.

         11                 But in the other two of your areas,

         12  we believe that we had to redefine what you had

         13  proposed and look at it.  I know you looked at it,

         14  but the Community Board did not go there, because we

         15  did not have the opportunity to do so.

         16                 In any case, again, our approval was

         17  conditioned upon what we had said.  The Community

         18  Board is very encouraged with what is going on.  We

         19  hope that you further look at this, you address our

         20  concerns, and you do not make this too tight where

         21  there is absolutely no development, because we do

         22  not want people to move out, we want people to stay.

         23    Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Jerry, what I

         25  will do, is at the end of the public testimony, I
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          2  will ask City Planning to come back and comment on

          3  some of the issues that have been raised.

          4                 MR. IANNECE: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next I will call

          6  up Paul Graziano.  While Paul is being seated, Paul

          7  is an urban planner by profession.  He is also the

          8  Zoning Chair of the Queen Civic Congress and for

          9  everybody that is here, and I do this at every

         10  opportunity I can, Paul really did, not only my

         11  district, and myself, and the Department of City

         12  Planning, but every single resident of Queens, and

         13  every single resident of low density neighborhood, a

         14  tremendous service in this City.  Because his

         15  expertise and his negotiation skills, and his

         16  knowledge and his work with the community, really,

         17  you could not put a price tag on it.  And Paul, I

         18  want to say that publicly, that really without your

         19  help, we would not be here today in this ground

         20  breaking R2A decision and vote.

         21                 MR. GRAZIANO: Thanks.  And I want to

         22  thank Chair Burden and Director Young and the

         23  Department of City Planning. This is a very big day

         24  for a lot of people, and I just want to quickly read

         25  my testimony, if that is okay.
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          2                 As the author of the Land Use

          3  Recommendations Report for Councilman Avella's 19th

          4  Council District, I wholeheartedly support the

          5  contextual rezoning of Bayside, without any further

          6  map changes.  Under the proposed rezoning, over

          7  7,000 properties that are to be affected will be for

          8  the first time, protected from the rampant, abusive,

          9  over development, that has been plaguing large areas

         10  of our borough for more than a decade.  The forms,

         11  scale and substance of Bayside will be retained and

         12  in many cases reinforced, by the proposed R1- 2,

         13  R2A, R3A, R3X and R3- 1 zones.

         14                 The new R2A zoning text is the first

         15  step in ending the abuses of the lowest story

         16  exemption in single family areas, as well as

         17  creating for the first time, a zone that protects

         18  the scale, height, form and context of older planned

         19  single family neighborhoods.  Arguments made by some

         20  architects and builders recently that they will not

         21  be able to "meet the needs of their clients if the

         22  R2A zone is adopted as is", are the views of a small

         23  minority of the residents in places like Bayside,

         24  Flushing, Douglaston and College Point Queens.  In

         25  fact, most residents of those areas are very
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          2  distressed at the massive buildings being

          3  constructed in their midst, which are undeniably

          4  intrusive and destroy the character of a

          5  neighborhood.

          6                 A recent change to the current R2A

          7  proposal that I do support, is to allow both gable

          8  and hip type roofs which will fairly represent the

          9  different roof styles in existence in Bayside and

         10  the rest of Queens.

         11                 Another important issue was laid to

         12  rest last week with a verbal agreement by the

         13  Department of City Planning, to write a brief

         14  amendment to the R2A to be submitted in the coming

         15  weeks.  The line up clause, which exists in other

         16  contextual zones, such as the R4B and R3A, will

         17  insure that on streets where the prevailing setbacks

         18  of houses are more than 15 foot deep, which is the

         19  minimum for the R2A district, future development

         20  will have to line up with that prevailing setback.

         21  This will protect the street scape from intrusive

         22  additions of buildings, especially in the many

         23  planned communities located in Queens, where uniform

         24  setbacks are essential to the overall look of the

         25  neighborhood.
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          2                 Just briefly, according to Department

          3  of City Planning, and I brought this up at the

          4  Department of City Planning hearing, there about

          5  225,000 single family detached homes in New York

          6  City.  In the Borough of Queens, there are about

          7  120,000 of them or about 54 percent of the city-

          8  wide total.  And of that 225,000 in the City, 57,000

          9  of them are located in R2 Districts. Of those,

         10  47,400 or 83 percent are located in Queens.  So

         11  looking at it another way, the Bronx has 20 blocks

         12  of R2, Brooklyn has 170, Staten Island has 425, and

         13  Queens has over 2,000.  The vast majority of

         14  existing single family detached houses in Queens are

         15  located in northeast and southeast Queens, with

         16  smaller areas in Forest Hills, Kew Gardens, Richmond

         17  Hills, Kew Garden Hills, Howard Beach and The

         18  Rockaways.  And this does not include the Bayside

         19  Caseena Park or Cambria Heights re- zonings that are

         20  in process, nor the large re- zonings in other

         21  areas, such as College Point and other parts of the

         22  borough which will ultimately add additional

         23  detached single family zoning.

         24                 Clearly Queens will be the borough

         25  most impacted by the new R2A zone.  The R2A
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          2  component of the proposed Bayside rezoning makes up

          3  less than ten percent of the current R2 zoning in

          4  Queens.  The next challenge for the City Planning

          5  Commission, elected officials, and civic

          6  organizations, is to help create a streamlined

          7  process that will allow current R2 neighborhoods in

          8  Queens and other boroughs if they wish, to quickly

          9  rezone to the new R2A designation.

         10                 And I just want to add that I also

         11  have testimony from Pat Dolan from the Vice -- oh,

         12  you have it, okay, from the Vice President of Queens

         13  Civic Congress.  Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, Paul.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Excuse me, Mr.

         16  Chairman, I just did not hear the other

         17  neighborhoods that -- I apologize, unless he has the

         18   -- is he handing out the testimony?  I do not need

         19  it then, thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         21                 MR. GRAZIANO: Thanks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Now I will call

         23  one panel in opposition.  John, I am not going to be

         24  able to pronounce the last name, I am sorry, and

         25  Michael Cosentino, two from the Architect's
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          2  Association.

          3                 MR. COSENTINO: Thank you Councilman

          4  and board.  Is the mic on?  Hello?  Okay, I am

          5  sorry.  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The meeting is

          7  being recorded so if you do not speak loud enough

          8  the recording will not pick it up.

          9                 MR. COSENTINO: Okay.  I just want to

         10  say thank you for having us and thank you for being

         11  a part of this.  My name is Michael Cosentino.  I

         12  represent the A.I.A. Of Queens.  Some of the

         13  positions that the R2A has, or represents here, is

         14  something that Community Chair, Iannece brought up,

         15  was that you are going to have many lots that are

         16  non compliant in one way or another, whether they

         17  have height restrictions or lot coverage, mostly in

         18  lot coverage and also in the garage, allowing the

         19  garage to count as lot coverage, which no other

         20  zoning area has.  Because of this, allowing the

         21  garage to count as lot coverage, will inhibit

         22  existing homes, alright, which will already be out

         23  of lot coverage and non comply.  Therefore if they

         24  wanted to square off their building or just add a

         25  small extension in the back, they could not.
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          2       Also, too, about the garage allotment that City

          3  Planning was making saying that you are allowed to

          4  have 300 square feet in addition.  That 300 square

          5  feet according to the new R2A text, can only exist

          6  in the attic.  Therefore bumping up the attic will

          7  create your third story like they showed before, and

          8  that is something that you want to get away from.

          9  But by rite now, you will be allowing it.  There are

         10  certain things that the AIA of Queens that was

         11  brought up by Community Board 11 had us analyze, and

         12  brought to the City Planning attention, was certain

         13  aspects that if the news text would be tweaked in

         14  such a way will allow for new development and then

         15  also allow, not for new development, but curb new

         16  development, but allow existing alterations to still

         17  exist, and it is still, and be curtailed into the

         18  new format. Therefore allowing both sides to win,

         19  not just eliminating one side and just curtailing

         20  the new construction.

         21                 I guess my time is up.  Thank you.

         22                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good morning

         23  Councilman, Melinda Katz and committee.  We were

         24  brought in, like Michael said, to analyze at the

         25  early stages, Community Board 11's hearing.  And we
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          2  came up with about six to eight points which we

          3  still strongly feel should be implemented.  And I

          4  believe time is still available. While we are in

          5  somewhat opposition, we feel that if these points

          6  are brought into the text amendment and change, it

          7  would strongly help the R2A zoning.  And if this

          8  comes to pass, and other communities do pick it, and

          9  choose to implement it in their communities, it will

         10  not have that broad impact, if these changes are not

         11  permitted.

         12                 We strongly feel that, which has

         13  never been done in a zoning text and with my 20

         14  years of practice, where we are taking two buildings

         15  on one lot and bringing them together for lot

         16  coverage.  Garages were always permitted as

         17  obstructions in the rear yard.  This strongly

         18  implements and impacts the footprint of the

         19  building.  And in our analysis, we feel that what

         20  you have strongly tried to do by eliminating the

         21  lowest floor exemption, is going to come back.  And

         22  when you put two buildings together for lot

         23  coverage, you are definitely going to put more

         24  square footage in the attic space, and you are still

         25  going to have a three story building.  So this needs
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          2  to still be looked at.  And we believe that there is

          3  still time for modification.  And with our changes

          4  we believe that would add to the R2A and not hinder

          5  it.  And you would still be giving choices to both

          6  the regular homeowners and the developers, which we

          7  believe still will happen, but on a smaller scale.

          8  And all along, throughout the media attention, one

          9  thing has happened.  The regular homeowners

         10  decliance (sic.) Have been lumped in as unscrupulous

         11  developers.  They are not.  The regular homeowners

         12  of Bayside need to be addressed, and these changes,

         13  we believe, will help them.  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         15  panel, which is in favor, Henry Euler and Brixton

         16  Doyle.

         17                 MR. DOYLE: Okay.  Chair Avella, Chair

         18  Katz, thanks for having us.  My name is Brixton

         19  Doyle.  I am a Bayside resident and I represent many

         20  Bayside and Queens families through the Bayside

         21  Civic Database.  The Bayside contextual rezoning and

         22  the creation of the new R2A zoning designation is

         23  welcome, long sought necessity in curbing

         24  inappropriate and out of scale development, and is

         25  overwhelmingly supported.  The new R2A designation

                                                            51

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  is an excellent tool that importantly may find use

          3  throughout the borough and other re- zonings.

          4                 The Bayside Rezoning is just that.

          5  Dismiss the word down zoning, this rezoning will

          6  make sure single family home neighborhoods evolve

          7  appropriately as single family home neighborhoods.

          8  And higher density areas likewise, evolve as higher

          9  density areas insuring neighborhood character, while

         10  allowing appropriate growth.

         11                 The overdevelopment problem

         12  residential construction, especially in our Queens'

         13  neighborhoods, is unfortunately in large part a

         14  result of abuse of zoning law, now admitted by all.

         15  The epicenter of the problem is abuse of the lowest

         16  story floor area exemption of the zoning resolution.

         17  Intended to preserve homes allowable size, it is

         18  routinely misused by certain developers to drive

         19  buildings 50- 60 percent larger than the law ever

         20  allowed to create what is known as McMansions

         21  (sic.).

         22                 To correct this one so called loop

         23  hole, would quite simply halt much of the abuse

         24  across southeast and northeast Queens.  We ask that

         25  this particular problem be addressed seriously.

                                                            52

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 The great new R2A zone, so areas

          3  lucky enough to get it, like Bayside, would indeed

          4  see proper contextual building. The Bayside rezoning

          5  and the R2A is the biggest and best rezoning

          6  initiative in over 40 years.  It affirms homeowners'

          7  rites and protects the unique part of our City, and

          8  we ask that the City council approve of the plan.

          9  As stated, there is much work to be done combatting

         10  zoning abuse that still plagues our City.  We must

         11  not forget our neighbors.

         12                 There are many of note to thank.

         13  Councilman Tony Avella for bringing zoning issues to

         14  light, and for seeing remedy through to completion.

         15  Ms. Amanda Burden of City Planning, a true decent

         16  and caring planner.  John Young, Director of Queens

         17  City Planning, Paul Graziano, the noted planner and

         18  preservationist through his encyclopedic knowledge

         19  and his tireless work. Community activists,

         20  especially the likes of Pat Dolan of the Queens City

         21  Congress, who has spent literally decades of her

         22  life in advocacy, not just for Queens, but all of

         23  New York.  Senator Frank Padavan, who greatly aided

         24  our efforts, and Jerry Iannece and Community Board

         25  11 and all the residents of Bayside for their own
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          2  heralded work.  Thank you for your time.

          3                 MR. EULER: Good morning.  My name is

          4  Henry Euler. I am a member of New Property Civic

          5  Association, Auburndale Improvement Association, and

          6  the Bayside Civic Data Base.  I am a new member of

          7  Community Board 11, and a lifelong resident of

          8  Bayside.  I have been working with a group of people

          9  for several years, urging zoning reform.  Last Fall,

         10  we sent out over 400 letters, and we asked people in

         11  our community to sign those letters to Chairman

         12  Amanda Burden, urging zoning reform.  To our

         13  surprise we received back over 300 letters from

         14  those people, from the community residents.

         15  Everybody in Bayside wants rezoning reform. We are

         16  in favor of the revised R2A zoning designation and

         17  the zoning map.  We feel that it is an excellent

         18  tool to protect the character of our community, and

         19  to the end the abuses of the lowest story floor

         20  exemption.

         21                 I understand last week the City

         22  Planning Commission met with Councilman Avella and

         23  Paul Graziano regarding the gable roof design, and

         24  an agreement was reached where we would have the

         25  homes, new homes would be lined up with the other
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          2  houses on the block.  And that seems like a very

          3  good compromise to that situation.

          4                 With regards to the zoning map

          5  itself, I am in favor of the map, especially the

          6  three sections that are zoned R12, because that is

          7  exactly what they are contextually, R12.

          8                 I urge the zoning committee to

          9  approve this plan as soon as possible to protect our

         10  neighborhood.  I want to thank Councilman Avella for

         11  all his effort and his staff, Paul Graziano. I want

         12  to thank Amanda Burden and John Young and Chairman

         13  Jerry Iannece of Community Board 11.  I hope this

         14  plan will be passed very soon.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We have one other

         16  speaker who just signed up, Douglaston Civic

         17  Association, Eliott.

         18                 If there is no one else to speak

         19  after him, after Eliott finishes, I will close the

         20  public hearing on this item.  For some of you who

         21  are here from Douglaston, the Douglaston Hill

         22  Historic District Designation will occur hopefully

         23  at the Landmark's Committee at 11:00, after 11:00 in

         24  the 16th floor conference room, at 250 Broadway, I

         25  am sorry.

                                                            55

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MR. SOCCI: My name is Eliott Socci

          3  and I am President of the Douglaston Civic

          4  Association.  I am not a resident of the area being

          5  proposed for rezoning.  However, I recognize the

          6  value of the proposal to protect this community from

          7  the abuses of over development.  The present zoning

          8  code is over 40 years old. One of the main purposes

          9  of the code is to maintain development within

         10  prescribed bounds.  The present code is no longer

         11  capable of performing that purpose.

         12                 The pressure to develop housing is

         13  leading to abuses that threaten stability and the

         14  cohesion of a community.  Over development is ramped

         15  in the R2 areas of Bayside.  Limitations within the

         16  Building Department and existing loop holes in the

         17  code, have given developers license to construct

         18  houses that are not within the contextual zoning of

         19  the community.  Many houses are expensive because of

         20  the large size of the house.  This circumstance puts

         21  financial pressure on an owner to subdivide the

         22  house for the purpose of collecting rent from a

         23  tenant.  This is being done in single family

         24  communities.  Clearly, a violation of the law.

         25                 The imagination of developers is
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          2  leading to practices that had not been envisioned

          3  when the code was developed in 1961.  For example,

          4  no one ever thought that a house would be built with

          5  a huge air conditioning unit on the roof.  As a

          6  consequence of that oversight, there is no code

          7  against the air conditioners on the roof of a single

          8  family home.  However, a house has been constructed

          9  in the area with a huge air conditioning unit on the

         10  roof.  Penalties for overdeveloping and zoning

         11  abuses are practically speaking, non existent.  It

         12  is now time to correct an antiquated zoning code.  I

         13  encourage you to vote in favor of the proposal to

         14  protect this residential community, by retaining the

         15  essential quality of an attractive neighborhood,

         16  thereby contributing to its stability.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         18  Eliott.  I would like to call John Young back to

         19  comment on some of the issues that were raised.  And

         20  while John is taking his seat, I will also mention

         21  that in terms of one of the recommendations of the

         22  community board of going from 21 feet, in terms of

         23  the street wall, to 21 3 feet, after the community

         24  board made that recommendation, there was an

         25  outpouring, an overwhelming outpouring, of the Civic
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          2  Association's in opposition to doing that.  And that

          3  is why we decided not to go ahead with that aspect

          4  of it, but John-

          5                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Chair Avella.

          6  I do want to address several of the points that were

          7  raised.  I want to first state that we recognize the

          8  need for this reform to be tight and clear for the

          9  homeowners, and for obviously the Department of

         10  Buildings to enforce the rules effectively.  We

         11  believe they are tight, but we believe they are

         12  reasonably tight, and we certainly also recognize

         13  the importance of allowing homeowners to be able to

         14  reinvest and improve their properties, so we did

         15  some extensive analysis.  I just want to review some

         16  of that with you.

         17                 There are a total of over 4500 lots

         18  that propose to be rezoned to R2A.  And of these,

         19  about 80 percent have unused floor area available to

         20  them.  In other words, they are built less than the

         21   .5 FAR.  And that percentage of properties is

         22  unchanged by the rezoning.  Because obviously, we

         23  are not changing the total maximum floor ratio here,

         24  it remains the same at .5.  I just want to address

         25  though, the issue about the idea of the 300 square
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          2  feet that is now going to be allowed as an

          3  exemption, if you have a garage on the property.

          4  That 300 square feet can be used anywhere in the new

          5  residential building. It can be used on the first

          6  floor, the second floor, you know, third floor if

          7  you have the height and set back to provide the

          8  third floor.

          9                 But in terms of expansion, we look

         10  closely at this issue, and of those approximately

         11  3400 properties that are under the .5 FAR, there are

         12  a substantial number that have no restrictions

         13  whatsoever between current and proposed changes and

         14  how they can expand.  Over 70 percent will be able

         15  to expand just as they could today.  About 28

         16  percent would be over on lot coverage, but they

         17  could certainly still expand vertically, because

         18  they would have the ability to actually add a full

         19  second story. They would certainly have the ability

         20  under the height and set back to expand.

         21                 So, out of those over 3400

         22  properties, less than two percent, about 60

         23  properties, are over, in terms of lot coverage, and

         24  the height and set back provisions of the R2A.  And

         25  that is again, consistent with the rules that we
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          2  observed today, that there is generally an ability

          3  for many of these homes to not comply with existing

          4  R2 rules, because most of these houses were built

          5  actually before 1961, before even the R2 rules were

          6  promulgated.  So we certainly believe that these

          7  changes are tight, but reasonably tight, and will

          8  continue to allow 99 percent of the property owners

          9  the ability to expand.

         10                 CHAIRMAN AVELLA: Thank you, John.

         11  One person beat in the clock, because I was just

         12  about to close out the public hearing.  We have one

         13  more person, Nick Lapetis (phonetic).  Is he here?

         14  He is not here.  Okay, you have to sit down at the

         15  microphone, and before you start, are you aware that

         16  we are going to do this change, but not now?  We are

         17  going to be doing it in follow up application.

         18                 MR. LAPETIS: Okay, Mr. Avella.  That

         19  what I am here for today.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, we are

         21  going -- you might have missed the opening statement

         22  by John Young.  But there are two areas that we are

         23  going to be taking a follow up look at, your block,

         24  and the area of Clear Springs Community Council,

         25  where --
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          2                 MR. LAPETIS: Okay, can I have one

          3  minute?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sure, absolutely.

          5                 MR. LAPETIS: We feel that four houses

          6  are rezoned from R4 to R3X, why?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You have to start

          8  off with your name, Sir.

          9                 MR. LAPETIS: My name is Nicholas

         10  Lapetis.  I am a resident of Bayside and a homeowner

         11  of Bayside.  I am here today to speak for myself,

         12  also on behalf of my three neighbors.  I am here to

         13  address a point to you, that of this very unique

         14  rezoning proposal that takes only four homes out of

         15  the R4 zone and down zones them to 3X.  Two of these

         16  homes are legal three family.  Why this proposal

         17  does not take other homes from R4 zoning that are

         18  very similar to our homes, but does not pass them?

         19  What about if a fire destroys the two, three family

         20  homes?  We are not allowed them at three family

         21  again.  I pay taxes for 18 years for three family.

         22  I pay insurance for three family and God sakes if a

         23  disaster, I do not have a three family.  Why?  I can

         24  show you have pictures of a lot of houses.  I live

         25  in Bayside for 35 years.  I know the area very, very
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          2  well.  There are a lot of houses that, I said

          3  before, similar to our homes, and they are not

          4  taxed.  I can show you on the map where these houses

          5  are.  I would like this committee to consider our

          6  situation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  As I

          8  mentioned, you came in to my office I think after

          9  the application was actually announced.

         10                 MR.LAPETIS: That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mentioned to

         12  you to go out and get the support of the homeowners

         13  on the block.  Unfortunately, and I am not going to

         14  cast dispersions on anybody, but there was a great

         15  deal of confusion as to what really were --

         16                 MR. LAPETIS: Not, okay --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You spoke, now it

         18  is my opportunity.

         19                 MR. LAPETIS: Okay, okay.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: There was a great

         21  deal of confusion as to what exactly the homeowners

         22  on the block wanted to do.  If there had been a

         23  clear indication at the time, City Planning and I

         24  would have taken that one block out, because you are

         25  very fortunate in the fact that you are at the very
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          2  top, you are at the very edge, of a zoning district.

          3    And it would have been very easy to just change

          4  that line.  It would have been a different story if

          5  you had been in the middle of a rezoning action,

          6  that is obviously much more difficult to do.

          7  However, since City Planning has voted, the other

          8  neighbors, your other neighbors, have reached out to

          9  me, and clearly indicated now, for the first time,

         10  that they want to be kept with the R4 zoning.  City

         11  Planning and I have discussed this.  In the follow

         12  up application, we will make that change.

         13                 MR. LAPETIS: Thank you very much, Mr.

         14  Avella.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With that, I will

         16  now close the public hearing on this item, and we

         17  will move on to the public hearing on Springfield

         18  Gardens.

         19                 I just have three people signed up to

         20  speak on Springfield Gardens.  I will call them up

         21  as one panel, Ruth DuBerry, Judy Garcia and Ruth

         22  Bryan.

         23                 MS. DUBERRY: Press the button in?  Oh

         24  okay, I am ready now.

         25                 Good morning, Chair Avella and Chair
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          2  Katz and members.  I will not waste a lot of time,

          3  because I know it is going fast.  My name is Ruth

          4  DuBerry.  I am a resident of Springfield Gardens,

          5  and representing United Neighbor Civic Association,

          6  who has represented the community for about 50

          7  years. We are proud to say that we did our own

          8  survey.  It was not easy. We did it in the winter of

          9  2003- 2004, but we learned a lot and we did

         10  accomplish it.

         11                 Just to go right ahead, in 2002, the

         12  United Neighbor Civic Association, we call it UNCA,

         13  for short, formed a special committee to investigate

         14  and address the concerns of the residents pertaining

         15  to issues of undesirable building and over

         16  development in our area.  During the winter of 2003-

         17  2204, the committee surveyed the entire area of

         18  UNCA, and found that an abundance of real estate

         19  agents and contractors had invaded our area of

         20  basically one and two family detached and semi-

         21  detached houses and purchased, demolished, and

         22  replaced these houses with multiple family dwellings

         23  and row houses.  Many prior existing one family

         24  detached houses have been expanded, extended or

         25  added on to, yielding these multiple family
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          2  dwellings.  In many instances, the old structure was

          3  covered up, and presented to be sold as a complete

          4  new structure.  Many of these structures have been

          5  built without a contract obtaining and posting the

          6  required building permits, or deviating from that

          7  which is written on the permits.

          8                 We, the residents of this area are

          9  aware of the need for affordable houses, and do not

         10  want to stop progress.  However, we do not want

         11  additional multiple family dwellings and row houses

         12  in our neighborhood.  Some of these houses that are

         13  being built are of poor quality, and are being sold

         14  for prices, not considered affordable.  The over

         15  development in our community has already had a

         16  negative impact, causing a devastating change in the

         17  character and quality of life of our neighborhood.

         18  It has caused extra wear on old infrastructure,

         19  increased parking problems in already limited

         20  parking areas, and additional over crowding of our

         21  schools.

         22                 We are requesting your approval of

         23  the proposed zoning changes, as recommended by the

         24  Department of City Planning. Rezoning of our area,

         25  that we understand from R32 to R3X and R31. R3X only
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          2  allows one and two family detached houses.  R31

          3  allows only one and two family detached and semi

          4  detached houses.  The Department of City Planning

          5  states, together these new zoning districts more

          6  closely reflect the one and two family character of

          7  the neighborhood, and will help to insure that the

          8  future development will be consistent with

          9  prevailing neighborhood character.  And we agree.

         10  This is respectfully sent by Sidney Spruill, who is

         11  the President of United Neighbor Civic Association,

         12  Inc.  And we are representing the neighborhood.

         13  Thank you very much.

         14                 MS. GARCIA: My name is Judy Garcia.

         15  I am a resident of Queens.  And I am a member of the

         16  United Civic Association.  I would like to thank you

         17  all for permitting us to express our thoughts and

         18  our concerns for our neighborhood.

         19                 We are certainly not wanting to stop

         20  progress.  We are aware that the investment in our

         21  neighborhood is encouraging, and it brings great

         22  value to our properties.  However, we are for

         23  preserving the residential neighborhood while we

         24  still can, and give us homeowners some rites and say

         25  in our own community's development.  The
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          2  overcrowding of our community has caused local

          3  residents to experience ongoing traffic congestion,

          4  additional noise, and stress on our public service.

          5                 Okay, we would like to acknowledge

          6  and to thank Yvonne Redick, District Manager of

          7  Community Board 12, Queens, who attended our

          8  meeting, and addressed to our concerns and advise us

          9  to call for an appointment with the City Planning.

         10  We met with Deborah Kearney, Deputy Director City

         11  Planning and former Planner, Andrew Denkins, many

         12  times, as well as with John Young, Director of City

         13  Planning.  We thank them for their advice, guidance

         14  and instructions about zoning, the procedure to the

         15  survey, what to look for, and the forms to be

         16  completed.  It was a tough job to do during the

         17  winter of 203 and 204, but we did it, and learned a

         18  lot. We also like to acknowledge Queens Civic

         19  Congress, which we are members, especially Patricia

         20  Dolan, Queens Civic Congress Executive, Vice

         21  President, for the information, guide and support

         22  and experienced advice.  Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. BRYAN: My name is Ruth Bryan and

         24  I live in the area that is Springfield Gardens, that

         25  Mrs. DuBerry and Miss Felicio (phonetic) has told
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          2  you about.  I am in support of the zoning change as

          3  indicated coming in, because developers are coming

          4  into our community, and they are changing the

          5  characters we have said before, but we already have

          6  many problems in our community, such as high

          7  incidence of asthma, HIV, and AIDS.  We have drug

          8  problems, the infrastructure that is deteriorating,

          9  and overcrowded schools.  The hospitals are also

         10  overcrowded.  And the budgets are constantly being

         11  denied, as far as certain areas of the community. So

         12  that we really feel that to add what is coming now,

         13  we have these, I guess you would call them

         14  contractors, who come into our community and build

         15  inferior kinds of houses.  We have the

         16  overdevelopment of the houses that they are

         17  building, where they cannot sell them because people

         18  cannot afford them, so they are renting them out, so

         19  that the people really do not have a lot of interest

         20  in what is going on in the community.  So therefore,

         21  we really want to have this zoning change go

         22  through, and we hope that it will, because other

         23  than that, you will be destroying our community, if

         24  it does not go through.  And we would not want that

         25  to happen.  Thank you very much.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Madame Chair?

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I think we

          4  have some questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you.  I

          6  actually do not have a question.  I just want to

          7  give my support to these wonderful women that are

          8  here today.  As many of you may know, that I was the

          9  Director of Community Board for Borough President

         10  Claire Schulman for three years, and dealt with the

         11  United Neighbor Civic Association of Jamaica, and

         12  Ruth and Ruth, I have not dealt with you that much,

         13  but I look forward to it, for years and they have

         14  been wonderful, loyal advocates for their district

         15  for as long as I have known them.  When I met them,

         16  I was a lot younger.  Now it is many, many more

         17  years later.  They have been wonderful advocates for

         18  their community.  And I do know their neighborhood

         19  quite well. It is a beautiful wonderful

         20  neighborhood, that is deserving of being kept in the

         21  pristine character that it is.  And the fact that

         22  these civic leaders and board members are coming

         23  here to advocate for this legislation, or for this

         24  application, I know it is the right thing to do.  So

         25  I want to thank them for taking the time to come to
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          2  City Hall today.  Thanks.

          3                 MS. BRYAN: We thank you for those

          4  kind words.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Anybody

          6  have any other questions?  Thank you all very much.

          7  I just want to give the apology that Chairperson

          8  Avella, he, another, it is all about Tony today, and

          9  another item in his district is being heard in our

         10  Landmark's Committee, which is across the street at

         11  250 Broadway. So he had to run over there and just

         12  wanted to make sure that no disrespect was taken

         13  from the fact that he had to step out for a moment.

         14  Ma'am, just move the mic over.

         15                 MS. BRYAN: Okay, we understand.  He

         16  has spoken up for us quite a bit, and we appreciate

         17  that.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank

         19  you all very much.

         20                 That is all the testimony on that

         21  item.  If you give us one second we will be starting

         22  the next item.

         23                 Is there anyone who wanted to speak

         24  on either of the two zoning items that we just

         25  heard, who did not get an opportunity?  Okay, seeing
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          2  none, those two public hearings are closed, and we

          3  are going to start the public hearing on Intro 430.

          4  I am going to call, hang on one second.

          5                 Just while we are getting a little

          6  settled here, I am going to call up the first two

          7  witnesses on Intro 430, Robert Bookman and Richard

          8  Bass.  And prior to hearing the witnesses on this

          9  matter, we are going to hear an opening statement

         10  from Council Person Monserrate, who is the prime

         11  sponsor and author of Intro 430.  Council member?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         13  very much, Madame Chair.  Good morning to all and I

         14  would like to thank all the cosponsors of this bill,

         15  which I think is extremely important. As you know, I

         16  introduced a bill on August 12, 2004, calling upon

         17  the council to repeal Local Law 64, and protect the

         18  private property rites of newsstand owners in New

         19  York.  Local law 64 allows a private franchisee to

         20  assume ownership of the City's privately owned

         21  newsstands, and replace them with uniformed,

         22  advertised, laid in, kiosks.  I was one of only

         23  three council members at the time, who voted against

         24  the Local Law, when it was originally introduced.

         25  However, as facts about how this legislation will
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          2  affect small business owners throughout our City, I

          3  have continued -- and has, excuse me, and as the

          4  evidence has continued to surface, regarding the

          5  support for this legislation, the City came back

          6  with various responses, specifically, the

          7  administration.  But we were not told when Local law

          8  64 was considered, is that the design of the new

          9  structures that will replace our newsstands, will

         10  force as many as 60 to 70 newsstand owners, or

         11  approximately 20 percent of the City's remaining

         12  stands, to shrink, move, or go out of business.  The

         13  City's assumption of ownership of these privately

         14  funded newsstands is not only unjust, but I believe

         15  also unconstitutional, as it deprives these business

         16  owners of their private property rites, and the

         17  years of hard work and investment in their private

         18  businesses.  This is a particular concern to me, as

         19  many of our newsstand owners are operated by

         20  immigrants, and veterans, and disabled

         21  entrepreneurs, who have sacrificed to provide a

         22  service to our community, as well as operating a

         23  small business they can be proud of.  Small

         24  businesses are the backbone of New York City's

         25  economy and character.  In an effort to protect
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          2  these hard working men and women, I introduce this

          3  legislation, and I encourage my colleagues on this

          4  committee to support this legislation.  Thank you.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          6  Now I think since, no disrespect to you Richard,

          7  since Mr. Bookman has props, we should defer to him

          8  as the first witness.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: Ready, thank you.  Thank

         10  you for your indulgence.  My name is Robert Bookman.

         11    I am counsel to the New York City Newsstand

         12  Operators Association.  On behalf of the hundreds of

         13  mom and pop newsstand owners, families, and

         14  employees, I want to thank Council Member Hiram

         15  Monserrate and the other cosponsors of Intro 430.

         16  We also want to thank this committee for its

         17  leadership, and agreeing to hold a hearing on this

         18  bill.  It takes a great deal of integrity to be

         19  willing to take a second look at a law passed by

         20  this council, when new evidence comes to light- he

         21  just missed a thank you, so let me just start all

         22  over.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Let us just

         24  wait and do him over.  Oh, I did not know that, I am

         25  sorry, that was my error.
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          2                 MR. BOOKMAN: She intimidates me, she

          3  said let us get going.  I am scared of her.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I can

          5  interrupt you, Bob.  I apologize, but I had to run

          6  over next door for a hearing on an item in my

          7  district, which has not started yet.  But what I

          8  would like to do, is do the vote of Bayside and

          9  Springfield, and then we will continue with the

         10  public hearing.  Well, we will keep the vote open.

         11  So I will ask Counsel to call the roll on

         12  Springfield and Bayside re- zonings.  Chair

         13  recommends approval.

         14                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Chair

         15  Avella?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         17                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         18  Member Quinn?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         21  Member Katz?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Pass.

         23                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         24  Member Seabrook?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          3  Member Katz?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I vote aye on

          5  all.  I also, I would like to acknowledge the

          6  extremely hard work by the subcommittee Chair on the

          7  Bayside rezoning.  There are a few issues in there

          8  that I have some difficulties with, on a few

          9  different levels.  Understanding the hard work the

         10  Chair has put into it though, and understanding that

         11  the most of his community does want the rezoning, I

         12  would like to abstain on that vote.  Thank you.

         13                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The vote

         14  stands at three in the affirmative, one abstention,

         15  and no in opposition, and remains open.

         16                 I apologize, Council Member Baez?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The votes

         19  stands at four in the affirmative, one abstention

         20  and no in negative.  And it remains open.

         21                 We have been authorized to start by

         22  the Chair, so go ahead.

         23                 MR. BOOKMAN: Good morning, still

         24  Robert Bookman.  On behalf of the hundreds of mom

         25  and pop newsstand owners, families and employees, I
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          2  want to thank --

          3                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          4  Member McMahon.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON: Aye, on all.

          6                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The vote

          7  stands at five in the affirmative, no negative, and

          8  one abstention.  It remains open.

          9                 MR. BOOKMAN: I want to once again

         10  thank Council Member Hiram Monserrate, and the other

         11  cosponsors of Intro 430, and we also want to thank

         12  this committee, its Co- chair, its Chair and its

         13  members for its leadership and agreeing to hold a

         14  hearing on this bill.  It takes a great deal of

         15  integrity to be willing to take a second look at a

         16  law passed by this council, when new evidence comes

         17  to light, which calls into question, the

         18  understandings by which the original law was passed.

         19    Each of you, in explaining your vote in favor of

         20  Local Law 64 in 2003, stated that you were doing so,

         21  because you were assured that it would have a

         22  minimum impact on newsstand businesses, and that if

         23  it turned out not to be true, you would revisit the

         24  law.  Well, as a result of our ongoing litigation

         25  over Local Law 64, and the City's implementation of
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          2  it thus far, new evidence has come to light, and new

          3  facts have been established, which clearly

          4  demonstrate, that the assurances you were given, are

          5  wrong.  That in fact, the law will have a

          6  devastating impact on this industry, forcing dozens

          7  of newsstands between 60 and 70, well over 20

          8  percent of the entire industry, out of business,

          9  some slowly, others right away.  What has become

         10  clear as a result of the ongoing litigation, is that

         11  the administration has artificially and

         12  disingenuously depressed the true number of sidewalk

         13  newsstands that will be negatively impacted by the

         14  Street Furniture Project.

         15                 What we have now learned, is that

         16  they will have to shrink the size of dozens of

         17  existing newsstands to the point where they can no

         18  longer serve effectively as places of businesses,

         19  with a human being inside.  But instead, serve only

         20  as billboards for new street advertising.  This is

         21  true because Local Law 64 repealed existing

         22  grandfathering for dozens of stands, while the new

         23  ADA requirements will require other stands to

         24  increase in size, to accommodate a wheelchair.  The

         25  administration's response is to contort the truth.
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          2  The contortion turns to outrage, when the

          3  administration's advocate for people with

          4  disabilities, in order to justify these dozens of

          5  shrinking, narrower newsstands, stated that a

          6  newsstand operator sitting in a wheelchair does not

          7  need a newsstand large enough to turn around in, so

          8  that he can face the front of the newsstand where

          9  his merchandise and customers are located.  The

         10  advocate argues that the dealer could "sit facing

         11  one of the stand doors" and kind of twist around all

         12  day long.  And this is coming from the advocate for

         13  the disabled?  Shame on them. Let me demonstrate.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Hold on one

         15  second. Chris, what do we do mic- wise?  Okay,

         16  great, perfect.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: What we have constructed

         18  here, if you can use your imagination, is a

         19  sectional, or a cut out of a newsstand that is

         20  exactly 36 inches in width.  What the administration

         21  says, in order to justify the low numbers of

         22  newsstands that are being impacted by the Street

         23  Furniture Project, that they gave you when you

         24  passed Local Law 64, they said a 36 inch newsstand

         25  would be sufficient.  This is a 36 inch wide
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          2  newsstand.  Imagine the door, if you will, on either

          3  side, and it obviously would be longer.  What we

          4  have done is we have constructed the front of the

          5  stand, which holds all the merchandise, and we have

          6  constructed it as narrower that any newsstand that

          7  exists out in the City right now, only 12 inches

          8  from here to here, for merchandise.  Every existing

          9  newsstand out there has shelving of 18 inches to 20

         10  inches, some even as much as 24 inches.  Obviously,

         11  the deeper the shelves, the more merchandise we can

         12  carry.  You will even see that 12 inches does not

         13  even accommodate the standard newspapers, they flop

         14  outside which means on a rainy day, it would not be

         15  functional.

         16                 We also constructed a rear wall for

         17  the newsstand. We constructed it six inches deep,

         18  the current newsstand rear wall is approximately

         19  three inches, it is an outside wall, insulation,

         20  inside plywood.  We made it six inches based on the

         21  current width of bus shelters, because these new

         22  areas as you see, will have some sort of advertising

         23  on the rear of them, that we back lit, so there

         24  needs to be light bulbs, and the electronics, you

         25  know, for that. So there is your six inch rear wall.
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          2    Even if we exaggerated that by an inch or two, as

          3  you see, it will not really matter.

          4                 Also, use your imagination, as you

          5  note in your travels in the City, all newsstands had

          6  attached to its rear wheel, shelving, where we carry

          7  the rest of our merchandise.  So we are kind of like

          8  shown, maybe a four inch shelf, which would be about

          9  standard where there would often be magazines or

         10  cigarettes.

         11                 Mike, if you will.  This is a

         12  standard traveling wheelchair, which is actually

         13  smaller than an ADA news wheelchair. And as you can

         14  see, based on a 36 inch newsstand, the chair is

         15  wider than the pathway, which is being deemed

         16  sufficient.  It simply, physically not possible to

         17  get that person in.  The only way that person will

         18  be able to function in a 36 inch newsstand, is to

         19  stay outside, put some newspapers on their lap and

         20  put an umbrella over their head.

         21                 Now, just to be -- to finish the

         22  example, if you increase the newsstand --

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Robert,

         24  just anything you do not say in the mic, is not

         25  going to be part of the hearing, it is just not
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          2  going to be part of the hearing, that is the only

          3  problem.  Oh look, we are getting assistance here.

          4  We definitely need an Oprah mic, that is very --

          5                 MR. BOOKMAN: What I have now done,

          6  just to give you a further and last example, is I

          7  have increased this newsstand to 48 inches, from 36

          8  inches, 48, a four foot deep newsstand, a foot

          9  bigger than the administration says is necessary.

         10  Now, in this case --

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Look, we

         12  are high tech.

         13                 MR. BOOKMAN: Thank you.  Thank you

         14  very much.  In this case, on a 48 inch newsstand, we

         15  can just, if we struggle, move over a little bit, I

         16  did this at home, if we struggle, we can just

         17  physically squeeze in the wheelchair, on a 48 inch.

         18  But this is how the person will have to stay all

         19  day.  They would literally have to be squeezed in,

         20  and in the front of the stand, they would have to

         21  deal with their customers, and it is kind of a

         22  twisting motion all day long.  And this is what they

         23  consider to be an ADA sufficient newsstand, which is

         24  why we say, shame on them.  Thank you.

         25                 MR. BOOKMAN: The significance of all
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          2  this --

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I am sorry,

          4  the third witness, we will call you up for the next

          5  panel.

          6                 MR. BOOKMAN: He is part, I mean he

          7  just was not here before.  He has a card, George

          8  Freeman from the New York Times.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I know and

         10  we have him as the next witness for the next panel.

         11                 MR. BOOKMAN: Okay, fine.  I just want

         12   -- The significance of this demonstration, is the

         13  difference between the numbers that you will now

         14  hear from Richard Bass, the expert that we retained

         15  to review the City's newsstands' records to

         16  determine how many will be impacted, and the numbers

         17  that he came up with, which in the 60 to 70 range,

         18  and they are number 10, is based on this incredibly

         19  shrinking newsstand that they have hypothesized, of

         20  as little as three feet.  That is the difference.

         21  Once you concede that you cannot have a three foot

         22  newsstand, and I think we have shown that, and that

         23  effectively, you cannot even have a four foot

         24  newsstand and be ADA compliant, and our ADA expert,

         25  and I brought copies of his testimony, says that it
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          2  is a minimum five foot depth newsstand, in order for

          3  there to be some sort of turning radius, and for it

          4  to function effectively as a newsstand.  Once you

          5  concede that, then there is no difference in numbers

          6  anymore.  Our numbers are the only, are the correct

          7  numbers.

          8                 So we must have legislative relief

          9  before it is too late.  Indeed, the number of

         10  newsstands since Local Law 64 was passed, has

         11  already sharply declined.  The RFP spoke of 330

         12  newsstands, although at the time, there were really

         13  only about 300. Department of Consumer Affairs now

         14  says in its court papers, that there are only 281

         15  remaining.  The loss of grandfather rites and the

         16  imposition of new statutory clearances, applied to

         17  no other street furniture, other than newsstands,

         18  that you included in Local Law 64, is already

         19  causing people to be forced out of business.  In

         20  other words, the number of newsstands has already

         21  decreased since Local Law 64 was passed, to 281.

         22  Why should existing mom and pop businesses fully

         23  approved and licensed by multiple City agencies,

         24  many at their current locations for decades, with no

         25  negative safety incidents, be forced to shrink in
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          2  size, relocate to a less desirable location or go

          3  out of business all together, just because an

          4  advertising contractor is going to be awarded to one

          5  of five possible large size corporations?

          6                 Taking away 12 to 24 square feet from

          7  a 60 square foot structure, is not a matter of

          8  inches to us, it is the difference between making a

          9  living, and going out of business.

         10                 We ask each of you on this committee

         11  to stop this tragedy from occurring, and work with

         12  us to amend the law, to guarantee that no matter

         13  what happens in court, no newsstand will have to

         14  shrink, move, or go out of business, because of the

         15  Street Furniture Contract.  Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead.

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: I would like to submit

         18  for your consideration after today's hearing, a copy

         19  of the affidavit of John Salman (phonetic), the

         20  nationally renowned ADA expert, which we retained as

         21  part of the lawsuit.  His affidavit in that lawsuit

         22  which explains a lot of the ADA issues which I

         23  touched upon, as well as a brief summary from our

         24  attorneys, Emory and Chelle (phonetic), concerning

         25  the status of the litigation, the various issues
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          2  that were raised, and where it stands right now.

          3                 I want to read just, I want to make

          4  one point in their letter to me, and that is, if you

          5  will recall, I specifically remember when you were

          6  her, Councilwoman Quinn, at one of the earlier

          7  hearings, the administration made a big deal out of

          8  saying that, once the designs were submitted by the

          9  potential bidders, that they would be sharing those

         10  designs with the operators, getting their input in

         11  them, making sure that, you know, that they were in

         12  fact workable as newsstands.  Well, in the

         13  litigation, we have moved for access of these

         14  proposed designs, I am reading from the Emory Chelle

         15  letter, that had been submitted by bidders.  Our

         16  goal is to determine precisely what these new

         17  newsstands will look like, and how large the bidders

         18  believe such newsstands must be under governing laws

         19  and regulations.  Despite the City's repeated

         20  statements that it will consult with newsstand

         21  operators on the design of the stands, and will

         22  allow news dealers to comment on such designs, the

         23  City has adamantly opposed providing these designs

         24  to us, and has forced us to seek judicial

         25  intervention.  So as we speak today, we are still
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          2  not seeing any of the submitted designs, even though

          3  they have had them since last July.

          4                 You know, there are other issues in

          5  their letters, but I do not want to belabor any of

          6  these points.  That is basically the crux of the

          7  issue, is that there are legislative solutions that

          8  can be made independent of the Street Furniture

          9  Project, to resolve what, in effect, legislatively

         10  created problems concerning the inter play between

         11  the Street Furniture Project and the licensed

         12  newsstands.  I do not think anybody on this

         13  committee would have voted for this bill, had the

         14  administration told you, and shown you, what a three

         15  foot newsstand was like, and that 60 to 70

         16  newsstands were going to be impacted.  I am

         17  confident it would not have gone anywhere.  So just

         18  because it was passed, and we now know the facts, it

         19  is not too late to act.  Thank you.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Richard.

         21                 MR. BASS: Thank you Madame Chair.

         22  Good morning.  I am Richard Bass, a licensed

         23  professional planner with the law firm Herrick

         24  Feinstein.

         25                 In the summer of 2004, I was asked by
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          2  the New York City Association of Newsstand

          3  Operators, to conduct an independent review of the

          4  potential impact to existing newsstands from

          5  compliance with the two key citing requirements,

          6  established in New York City's Local Law 64, and the

          7  related requests for proposals for Coordinated

          8  Street Furniture, issued by the New York City

          9  Department of Transportation on March 26, 2004.

         10  Additionally, I was asked to ascertain how may, if

         11  any, of the newsstands failed the City's two key

         12  citing requirements, and could be subsequently

         13  relocated within five hundred feet of the

         14  newsstand's current location.

         15                 Using DOT and DCA data as a baseline,

         16  we found that 64 newsstands, or 22 percent of

         17  existing newsstands are, or will be, non complying

         18  with the City's citing requirements and will have to

         19  be relocated.  The vast majority of these newsstands

         20  are located in Manhattan, south of 96th Street.

         21  Based on the analysis of available data, we

         22  calculated that 75.5 percent of these newsstands,

         23  will be unable to find alternative space within 500

         24  feet of the existing non compliance site, and thus

         25  would have to be eliminated, and cease operations.
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          2  Additionally, based on anecdotal field testing, we

          3  believe that other newsstands, not initially

          4  identified as non compliant in DOT/DCA data, will

          5  also fail Local Law 64 citing requirements, which

          6  will increase the total number of newsstands that

          7  will be eliminated, due to compliance with Local Law

          8  64.  The net result of implementation of Local Law

          9  64 will be to seriously diminish the number of

         10  existing newsstands in New York City, which will

         11  reduce public access to products sold in newsstands,

         12  will reduce potential revenue from advertising to

         13  the sole franchisee and the City, and will reduce

         14  public safety. Newsstand operators, as you know,

         15  provide eyes on the street, which deters criminal

         16  activity.

         17                 Additionally, and finally, based on

         18  the impact to existing newsstands, we believe it

         19  will be highly unlikely that the franchisee or the

         20  City, will be able to achieve the citing of a

         21  minimum of 330 newsstands by the beginning of the

         22  fourth year of the franchise term.  Thank you,

         23  Madame Chair.

         24                 MR. BOOKMAN: We are submitting his

         25  complete report to you now which details exactly
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          2  where these numbers came from, and how we arrived at

          3  them.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Great.

          5  Thank you.  I am just going to start with questions

          6  to see if the sponsor of the bill has any questions

          7  for either of the witnesses.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Just a

          9  very brief one, Madame Chair, thank you very much.

         10  Mr. Bookman, what is the average width, currently of

         11  a newsstand?

         12                 MR. BOOKMAN: The average size of a

         13  newsstand now is 60 square feet, in terms of width

         14  and length.  Most newsstands, the maximum depth or

         15  width is six feet.  Most newsstands are five or four

         16  feet.  The newsstands that, the three dozen

         17  newsstands that were identified as needing the nine

         18  and a half foot grandfathering law provision, which

         19  was repealed by Local Law 64, most of those are

         20  narrow to begin with, and could not really get much

         21  narrower and stay in business, in order to meet the

         22  nine and a half foot. Consumer Affairs response was,

         23  well yea, while there are three dozen newsstands

         24  that do not have a none and a half foot clearance,

         25  that may be true, but they can all shrink in size
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          2  down to three feet, they are saying, and then they

          3  will not have to be moved.  We are saying you cannot

          4  shrink from four foot to a three foot, or from a

          5  five foot to a three foot.  And if you put the, if

          6  you put that grandfathering back in, which was taken

          7  out frankly at the last minute, you would be saving

          8  a number of newsstands immediately.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So when

         10  the administration presented to this council that

         11  approximately ten newsstands would be impacted by

         12  Local Law 64, you are saying that conveniently they

         13  left out the fact that some of these newsstands

         14  would have to be shrunk, and obviously have a

         15  negative impact on their viability.

         16                 MR. BOOKMAN: That is correct.  Their

         17  definition of impact, apparently, was not made clear

         18  to us, or to the council at the time.  And as it has

         19  turned out now, as a result of the court papers

         20  going back and forth, and we now understand what

         21  their  definitive impact means.  It means you can

         22  have a three foot structure like this, which, I

         23  mean, somebody even, it is even difficult to stand

         24  in one, let alone, obviously you cannot do a

         25  wheelchair, but it is even difficult to stand in
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          2  one, well, it does not even, so -- that is their

          3  definition of impact.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: And he

          5  does not even eat as much as I do, so I do not know

          6   --

          7                 MR. BOOKMAN: You know, we have a

          8  couple of heavier guys who definitely will not fit

          9  in.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: So, Mr.

         11  Bookman, when you, I am assuming, let me not assume,

         12  did you make your concern, did you voice your

         13  concerns to the administration about the shrinking,

         14  the incredible shrinking newsstands?

         15                 MR. BOOKMAN: Well, incredibly Deputy

         16  Mayor Doctoroff's office, who is in charge of this

         17  program, has never felt necessary to meet with us

         18  concerning this, neither before the law was passed,

         19  after the law was passed, before litigation was

         20  filed, or after the litigation was filed.  So we

         21  have been expressing our concerns through the court

         22  papers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Robert, can
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          2  you tell us a little bit more about what transpired

          3  after the hearing to date, as it relates to the

          4  presentation, or lack there of, of the designs that

          5  were under consideration?  I know you said you have

          6  not seen them, but I am a little interested to know,

          7  and what was the back and forth -- how did you ask

          8  for them, what did they say, if they responded in

          9  any way?

         10                 MR. BOOKMAN: Pursuant to the RFP,

         11  they were required prior to the RFP going out, to

         12  consult with the industry, as to what kind of design

         13  issues were important to us.

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And let me

         15  just interrupt for one second.  The RFP has a --

         16  that is stated in the RFP, that, that --

         17                 MR. BOOKMAN: It is stated in the

         18  authorizing resolution that they needed to consult

         19  with us.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         21                 MR. BOOKMAN: They did consult with

         22  us.  We gave them a series of physical type of

         23  design issues, that which were significant.  They

         24  included some of them in the RFP, they did not

         25  include others.  And the RFP then went out.  We
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          2  brought our lawsuit purposely, well before the RFP

          3  deadline for submissions, so that everybody out

          4  there would know that there was going to be

          5  litigation, you know, concerning this.  Giving the

          6  administration, frankly, opportunity to mend the RFP

          7  as it did on other technical reasons as it went

          8  through, to mend the RFP to allow for contingent

          9  bidding, one with newsstands, one without

         10  newsstands.  But, frankly they chose to ignore all

         11  of that.  We think that was an arrogant response.

         12  So now the RFP, all submissions were with

         13  newsstands.

         14                 The designs were ultimately submitted

         15  in September, I believe it was, of 04.  They have

         16  been under wraps by the administration, since then.

         17  We requested immediately when this issue was joined

         18  in the litigation, to see the designs.  It seems to

         19  us, you got five bidders, let us see what they came

         20  up with. Because you know we are talking potentially

         21  years of litigation here.  Not only in this lawsuit,

         22  but if somebody delivers a three foot newsstand,

         23  that the next round of ADA litigation.  So, and

         24  given that the bidders would have a certain amount

         25  of legal responsibility at that point as well, we
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          2  suspected that the bidders were not submitting three

          3  foot newsstands.  You know, that their ADA experts

          4  told them what our ADA experts said, that you cannot

          5  have a functioning newsstand at three feet.  And if

          6  they did submit a three foot newsstand, we cannot

          7  come up, and we have had more experience frankly,

          8  than anybody in the City of New York, perhaps in the

          9  country, in building newsstands, we cannot come up

         10  with a functional three foot depth design, where the

         11  operator is inside the newsstand, where half of the

         12  newsstand is still a newsstand. I mean, you could

         13  take away all your shelves, I suppose, and have a

         14  structure where somebody is sitting in, but then

         15  there is nothing to sell.  So we thought it was

         16  critical, both for our purposes and your purposes,

         17  and the lawsuit purposes, that we be shown these

         18  designs, and they said, no.  They fought it.  We

         19  have had to file motions.  Those motions are pending

         20  before the judge.  They refuse to let us see.  We

         21  swore to secrecy in the camera, on the court, you

         22  know, strip search us before we go in, and after we

         23  go out.  I mean, these are the designs that we are

         24  supposed to see anyway, from what they told you.

         25  And now it is secret but you know, nevertheless,
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          2  they refused.  So, we do not know what has been

          3  submitted.  We only have our suspicions.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: We have

          5  been joined by Council Member Sara Gonzalez.

          6                 Thank you both very much.  And thank

          7  your extras, so to speak, for their participation in

          8  the process.

          9                 Next we are going to call up Mr.

         10  George Freeman, representing the New York Times.

         11                 MR. FREEMAN: Thank you for hearing

         12  me.  I am George Freeman, Assistant General Counsel

         13  of the New York Times.  I apologize for not having

         14  prepared remarks, but I just learned of the hearing

         15  Friday afternoon.

         16                 In that vein, I do not have authority

         17  to speak for the other newspaper publishers in New

         18  York and across the nation that sell newspapers here

         19  in New York, but I think it is a fair guess that

         20  they would agree with the substance of my testimony.

         21

         22                 I would like to say at the outset

         23  that our interests are somewhat different, but in

         24  the end, pretty allied with that of Mr. Bookman and

         25  the newsstand operators.  Our basic concerns, and
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          2  when I say our, I mean the newspaper publishers, are

          3  two- fold.  The most important concern is simply

          4  that the number of newsstands in New York City not

          5  lessen.  Any sort of further diminution of the

          6  number of newsstands, adversely affects not only our

          7  industry, but we think adversely affects the

          8  interest of an informed citizenry, which I think

          9  should be your and our greatest concern.

         10                 New York has already seen an extreme

         11  shrinkage from about 1500 newsstands in the hay- day

         12  when we had seven daily newspapers, to 300 at the

         13  time of Local Law 64, and now I understand from the

         14  papers I saw over the weekend, even less than that,

         15  today.  The newspapers in New York are all having

         16  circulation problems, and the elimination of any

         17  newsstand, much less 20, much less 25 percent of the

         18  300 we are talking about, or the 280 we are talking

         19  about, would have a negative impact, a significant

         20  negative impact, in what already is a very, very

         21  difficult market in which to sell newspapers.

         22                 Secondly, the location of these

         23  newsstands is very important, too.  Because a

         24  newsstand at a corner is very, very different in

         25  terms of accessibility to readers who want the
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          2  newspaper, than having it moved half way up the

          3  block, where really is not as visible, not a

          4  accessible, and not that many people walk by it.

          5  So, what we are really seeking is for the number of

          6  newsstands in New York to remain constant, not to

          7  lessen, and that they remain in the same approximate

          8  locations where they have been, and not get worse

          9  locations.  Now, it was on that basis that the

         10  newspaper publishers agreed to support in the end,

         11  after a bunch of negotiations, agreed to support

         12  Local Law 64.  It was really -- we had sought

         13  grandfathering of all existing newsstands.  The

         14  administration said they could not do that, but

         15  basically they said, that based on the stipulations,

         16  there would be almost no change.  I think they

         17  mentioned either ten or a dozen newsstands would

         18  have to change locations, not be eliminated, but

         19  change locations insignificantly, a few feet.  Now,

         20  based on what I have seen, and I am not an

         21  eyewitness or a party to the litigation, but based

         22  on what I understood has transpired in the

         23  litigation, the documents of the administration have

         24  shown that, that is not the case, and that about 60

         25  to 70 newsstands are threatened, that it is possible
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          2  that they would not move just a few feet down the

          3  street, but half way down the block, if they could

          4  remain at all.  And as Mr. Bass said, 75 percent of

          5  the newsstands south of 96th Street in Manhattan,

          6  would not even be able to comply within the 500 foot

          7  radius agreement that was kind of the last fail safe

          8  in the legislation and therefore really would be

          9  nowhere near their current location at all.  That

         10  sort of diminution and movement of newsstands would

         11  simply be unacceptable for the newspaper industry.

         12                 Again, I believe if these figures are

         13  right, and we were skeptical at the time of the

         14  negotiations, that the new legislation would only

         15  impact 10 or 12 newsstands, but if those figures are

         16  right, the newspaper industry really would have not

         17  supported this legislation in the first place.  To

         18  my mind, it is a lose, lose, lose, lose situation.

         19  As you have seen in demonstrations, the newsstand

         20  operators would clearly lose, they would lose the

         21  viability of their business, they would lose the

         22  opportunity and the space, in which to make sales,

         23  which would allow them to keep in business.  It is a

         24  loss for the newspaper industry and the ability for

         25  the newspapers and the newspaper publisher that they
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          2  continue selling newspapers.  It would be a loss

          3  also for the third party contractor who wins the

          4  contracting process.  Whoever wins the RFP is not

          5  going to be happy that there are going to be less

          6  newsstands for their advertising to support, and

          7  that those newsstands would have worse locations.

          8  Those would all be, I think, losing elements for

          9  whoever wins the RFP process to have to deal with.

         10                 And finally, as I said, it is a loss

         11  for the citizens of New York, because newsstands,

         12  which is the way they get their information from,

         13  about government, about the things they should know

         14  to live their daily lives, newspapers have become

         15  less accessible, the less newsstands there are.

         16                 So, the question to my mind is, why

         17  in the end, does the administration want to go

         18  forward with this, if it means that it is a lose,

         19  lose, lose, for everyone involved?  One thought that

         20  we had at the time of the legislation and these

         21  negotiations, was the zeal to have the Olympics, and

         22  the City wanted to clean up the streets, and so on.

         23  But, by now the IOC has come and gone, the vote is

         24  going to be in June, I mean, I think that is already

         25   -- the inspections of the City have been made, so
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          2  what everyone's feelings are about the viability of

          3  having the Olympics here in 2012, the need to clean

          4  up the streets because of that, no longer exists.

          5                 The stated reason is to clean up the

          6  urban clutter. But I think that really belies a

          7  basic belief about New York, that what makes us

          8  unique and apart from say, Indianapolis, is to have

          9  a City- scape that includes newsstands.  Newsstands

         10  are a valuable part of the mosaic, which is New

         11  York.  They are an extra pair of eyes and ears on

         12  the street, which contributes to public safety.

         13  There is no demonstrable evidence that the

         14  newsstands that have been in place for decades, has

         15  ever caused a safety problem or otherwise.  And so

         16  to say, well, we have to clean up the clutter while

         17  there are all sorts of other things, none of which

         18  have a constitutional basis, as newspapers do, on

         19  the streets of New York, let us say we have got to

         20  get rid of newsstands, just seems, or at least that,

         21  that is an impact that this legislation would have,

         22  just seems totally unacceptable.  Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I would ask that

         25  you not applaud to speakers one way or another,
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          2  because that does slow up the meeting.  Thank you,

          3  sir.

          4                 First of all, again, I apologize for

          5  having to leave, because I had another committee

          6  meeting, which still has not started, by the way.

          7                 We have a number of speakers, and I

          8  noticed that Christine, while she was chairing the

          9  meeting, did not time people. I would appreciate --

         10  I will try to extend that courtesy, but please be

         11  brief, because we are going to have like 300, 400

         12  people here at 1:00, and I need to move this

         13  schedule ahead, and at the same time allow my

         14  committee members to have something to eat.

         15                 Next speaker is Jay Patel.  Okay,

         16  since you are in opposition I will just call you as

         17  a single panel.  What?  He is not in opposition.  He

         18  is in favor.  Okay, Jay sit -- have a seat, Jay.

         19  April Sepanski, Bernard Youthfelder (phonetic).

         20                 Push the button.  When it is red, it

         21  is off.  It is the opposite of normal logic, you

         22  figure that is the City Council.

         23                 MR. YOUTHFELDER: Okay.  My name is

         24  Bernard Youthfelder and I am a newsstand owner.

         25  And, anything else you want to know about me?  I
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          2  will tell you.

          3                 Okay, of course I support the law

          4  from Councilman Monserrate, but I just, I had a

          5  whole bunch of stuff prepared to read here, but I

          6  think that if they just let the owners of the

          7  newsstands keep their ownership, I mean, there is

          8  not even a problem.  I mean, we could build new

          9  newsstands or whatever the City proposes, there are

         10  laws on the books, I do not understand, you know,

         11  this ADA problem would not be around.  Nothing would

         12  be around.  Everybody would be happy.  I mean, the

         13  advertisers could do what they want to do.  The City

         14  has laws in place.  You know, we have spent a lot of

         15  time and money getting the ownership of this

         16  newsstand, and it takes years to do this, to get the

         17  location.  It is the newsstands that really are

         18  licensed, not really the dealers, as much as the

         19  newsstand.  So, for us to go through all the trouble

         20  and get the ownership of this newsstand, plus in my

         21  case as a disabled veteran, and there is a list

         22  still available for disabled veterans to own these

         23  newsstands.  But the word "own" is very important,

         24  because without that, the dignity of what, so I work

         25  at a newsstand?  I do not get the -- what belongs to
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          2  you, if you do not own it?  And if they take the

          3  ownership away from us now, and give it to a

          4  corporation, that has created all these problems,

          5  the moving, the grandfather, all this stuff is just

          6  coming because of the ownership.  I mean, there is

          7  nobody stopping the bus shelters or the telephones.

          8  Everything is going through.  But we are people, 300

          9  people, trying to make a living, and own our own

         10  business.  And you guys are saying, well you know,

         11  that is nice, but we would rather have somebody else

         12  own this business and cause all this problem.  It is

         13  simple.  It is an easy thing.  Just take us out of

         14  the equation, and there goes the -- you can go

         15  forward, they can put advertising, newsstands, I am

         16  sure the newsstand owners would agree to this.  I

         17  mean, it is not a problem.  I do not see a problem,

         18  unless you make it one.

         19                 MS. SEPANSKI: Hi, my name is April

         20  Sepanski and my husband is a licensed newsstand

         21  owner.  Our newsstand, we have had it for 16 years,

         22  so we are called, I guess, new.  I want to thank Mr.

         23  Monserrate, Councilman Monserrate, for giving us an

         24  opportunity to speak and trying to get the rest of

         25  the council people for understanding what is going
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          2  to happen if we do not repeal Intro 430, if we do

          3  not have it come in.

          4                 I just want to say a lot of people

          5  are not here who have newsstands.  A lot of them are

          6  old.  Their history is, we have newsstand license

          7  owners.  One has a nice newsstand.  It is the oldest

          8  newsstand in the City.  From 1922, it belonged to a

          9  World War I veteran.  That is on William and Wall

         10  Street, downtown Manhattan, near the Wall Street

         11  area, right there.  Her newsstand went from her, her

         12  husband's father to her husband, who is a World War

         13  II veteran, and then when he passed away a couple of

         14  years ago, now the widow, who has spinal problems,

         15  and she is not here today because of that, she now

         16  has inherited her husband's newsstand that belonged

         17  to her father, 1922.

         18                 Another newsstand is down on 6th

         19  Avenue near the Waverly Theater.  The owner is here.

         20    He got the newsstand, it belonged to, he got it

         21  from his mother after it was given down from his

         22  father.  So the newsstands have had the history.

         23  This is a history.  And this is something wonderful.

         24                 We have another licensed newsstand

         25  here, owner here, she is not speaking, but her
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          2  newsstand is up near 168th Street near Columbia

          3  Presbyterian Hospital.  She inherited that newsstand

          4  from her grandfather.

          5                 Now when you have a family that stays

          6  in a business, this is what makes our City nice, and

          7  everything is changing.  And this is what I cannot

          8  stand.  It is nice for things to change if it gives

          9  a positive effect on the residents and the

         10  atmosphere and the environment of the people living

         11  in New York City.  This is a great City.  Our City

         12  has always been good to entrepreneurs in keeping the

         13  spirit alive.  When you see the old movies, talking

         14  about Orchard Street, Delancey Street, the Lower

         15  East Side, they show the peddlers out there, you

         16  know, helping other people to have lives, and to

         17  start their businesses.  All the great companies

         18  that have started, Table Talk Pastries and

         19  Entemanns, you know, Mr. Softie, all these, you

         20  know, Thomas' English Muffins, all these start out

         21  with people with pride of ownership of their own

         22  businesses. Who handed them down to their children.

         23  Or to their spouses.

         24                 See, I have a picture here showing

         25  how newsstands started the distribution of
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          2  newspapers.  These happen to be orphans and this may

          3  not be New York City, it might be Chicago.  But

          4  these children were making a living.  Whether they

          5   -- you know, it was not fun that they were orphans

          6  or not, but the idea is laws have changed, and with

          7  every change of law, it is not always good.  With

          8  the newsstands now belonging to the franchisee, they

          9  are taking it from us, because it is not my

         10  husband's newsstand.  We have to now have a

         11  newsstand made for ADA accessibility.  I am not a

         12  wheelchair person.  My husband is not.  If my

         13  husband wants to give the newsstand to our son or

         14  daughter, if they are not in a wheelchair, our

         15  newsstand has to be wheelchair accessible, even

         16  though it is not necessary.  We are doing work for

         17  invisible people that are not yet needing these

         18  newsstands.  They should leave the licensed

         19  newsstand and the construction and the size of the

         20  newsstand for public safety, which is the size of

         21  the sidewalk for pedestrian flow, and not for

         22  shrinking it down to make it accessible for someone

         23  that really is not there yet.

         24                 As Mr. Youthfelder said, we would not

         25  have two thirds of the problems, or a lawsuit, if
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          2  the administration would just use common sense and

          3  work with the owners.  Just like this poor woman,

          4  Miss Schiavo, who was allowed to die.  That is

          5  because bureaucracy took over, and common sense just

          6  went right out the window.  And this is the

          7  situation.  We do not want to die.  We do not want

          8  our businesses to die.  We do not want our shelf

          9  space to shrink, because of a stupid rule.  Please

         10  take another look at what the rules are, and how

         11  they are going to infect every individual licensed

         12  newsstand owner and I am sure if you did, you will

         13  see things will work out a lot better and easier.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 MR. PATEL: It is always good to have

         16  a newsstand. It is always good to put out

         17  advertising, but, these are on? Mathematically, the

         18  figure is not right.  Second thing, if the telephone

         19  get like 60- 40, why cannot we get it?  And second

         20  thing, we are not making a lot of money from the

         21  newsstand, because the market will be very low.

         22  Second thing is, Mr. Mayor, give the news to variate

         23  the single price.  Right now people are getting all

         24  over from internet.  I mean, the business is almost

         25  gone.  It is nothing there.  Forget about if people
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          2  move high bid for out of the business.  I mean, I

          3  put, like Councilwoman Katz know, like a couple of

          4  years ago.  If somebody gives me money, I will give

          5  it to you back, because it is not what we used to

          6  think.  I mean the profit- wide markup is low, and

          7  we soon will be able to have to do something.  Now

          8  the Mayor coming up, move this, move that.  It is

          9  not going to be benefit to anybody.  Instead of

         10  that, like last year we got a commission, called art

         11  commission, denying people, based upon too much

         12  clearance, too little clearance.  Council never act

         13  on it.  They get all kind of grievance from them,

         14  and then they will act on it, because we are the

         15  little people.  We are the people of color.  When

         16  they were measure the people of newsstands would

         17  fight people.  There was no art commission, there

         18  was nobody else.  All of the sudden the majority of

         19  the ownership changed, they put the commission at

         20  trying to stop the people from going to the forward

         21  and really feel the pain.  The pain will speak to

         22  the ballot box, it is a matter of time.  And thank

         23  you.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Mr.

         25  Chairman, I want to thank Jay, Jay is from my
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          2  district over there, and I want to thank him for

          3  coming down.  And he has been a very strong

          4  advocate.  We got letters in the office, and I just

          5  want to thank you for taking the time to come down

          6  here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair?

          8    I was wondering if you would indulge a very brief

          9  question from myself? Thank you.

         10                 To the three panelists, how long have

         11  you owned your newsstand?

         12                 MR. YOUTHFELDER: 32 years.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: 32 years.

         14  How old, how long have you had yours?  You said 17,

         15  I think it was.

         16                 MS. SEPANSKI: My husband, yes, his

         17  newsstand, our family newsstand we have had for

         18  about 17 years.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Sure, Mr.

         20  Patel?

         21                 MR. PATEL: One and a half years.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Okay,

         23  thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

         25  last panel is Steve Stollman and Robert Brill.

                                                            109

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 And while they are being seated, I

          3  have received, the City Council had received a

          4  letter from the administration, which I intended to

          5  read in the record, had I been at the beginning of

          6  the hearing.  And it is addressed to Chuck Meara,

          7  Chief of Staff.

          8                 This letter is being sent to inform

          9  you that the administration will not be testifying

         10  at the City Council Zoning and Franchise

         11  Subcommittee hearing on Intro Number 430 scheduled

         12  for April 4th.  We certainly respect and appreciate

         13  the City Council's oversight, where all it relates

         14  to Local Law 64 of 2003. The Coordinated Street

         15  Furniture Act in light of the pending litigation

         16  challenging the Local Law which was commenced by the

         17  New York City Newsstand Operators Association

         18  against the City of New York and on the advice from

         19  Counsel, we feel it would be inappropriate to

         20  comment publicly, while a litigation is ensuing.

         21                 I certainly understand their reasons,

         22  and I certainly concur with their assessment.  And

         23  with that, Robert. You are on.

         24                 MR. BRILL: Thank you, Mr. Chair.  My

         25  name is Robert Brill.  I testified previously at the
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          2  hearings in opposition to Local Law 64, and the

          3  prior set of hearings that occurred before that.

          4                 Very briefly, as a matter of evidence

          5  and the committee should take notice, and the

          6  subcommittee should take notice, that they should be

          7  able to obtain for their records, the following,

          8  which would give some edification on this issue.

          9                 There was a proceeding held by the

         10  Department of Transportation, prior to the

         11  Coordinated Street Furniture pre- bid. My

         12  recollection it was in the January or February of

         13  2004.  Those proceedings were audio tape recorded,

         14  and there may be a transcript available.  A lot of

         15  newsstand owners came.  A lot of others who were

         16  involved in the industry came, and discussed design

         17  issues, these issues, that have been amplified here,

         18  and similar related ones, to the amenity of the

         19  people working in the newsstands, and how design was

         20  important.  It sounds like that those presentations

         21  that were made to assist in the design process for

         22  the street- scape pre- bid, were ignored.  But the

         23  committee should get that as a record.  It seems to

         24  me it should be available.

         25                 Also, there are transcripts and other
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          2  related materials from the pre- bid process for the

          3  current version of the Coordinated Street Furniture

          4  franchise, that similarly should be made available

          5  and part of the record for the subcommittee and

          6  committee, on this issue.

          7                 I would ask the committee also take

          8  note of the New York Times article in Today, Today's

          9  C Section, which is about how newsstands are

         10  important to measure single volume magazine sales,

         11  and other periodical sales.

         12                 It seems to me that the problems

         13  identified can be, and should be remedied through

         14  legislation.  And finally, although it is not quite

         15  in the same vein, this is just another instance why

         16  Intro 171A is so important, which is, the council

         17  needs to have some type of last chance review of

         18  franchises.  And part of that is because that the

         19  Franchise Concession and Review Committee, is

         20  nothing more than a rubber stamp of the executive

         21  branch.  And so, to determine that there is

         22  consistency between the ultimate contracts that this

         23  council had originally passed an authorizing

         24  resolution, is very important.  So, hopefully you

         25  will have a hearing someday on that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You are the only

          3  one that brings up my bill.  I appreciate that, by

          4  the way.

          5                 MR. BRILL: I think it is a very

          6  important piece of legislation.  I mean the

          7  alternative would be, you know the Mayor is created

          8  a, try to review commission, that is going on, in

          9  fact they are meeting today, maybe there should be

         10  reform of the charter on the Franchise Concession

         11  Review Committee front, to make it more evenly

         12  balanced between the executive branch and the other

         13  aspects of government in the City.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. STOLLMAN: My name is Steve

         15  Stollman.  I am a former news dealer, former

         16  newsstand builder, distributor of publications.

         17  Sidewalk newsstand was for a long time, a symbol of

         18  this City, its uniqueness, its sophistication, its

         19  willingness to give somebody a break in its bustling

         20  human scale sidewalk culture. The news dealer became

         21  a symbol of street smarts and neighborhood

         22  character, appreciated for the touch of humanity

         23  brought to a very noisy and generally, not otherwise

         24  very friendly, street- scape. Appropriating one of

         25  the most important assets possessed by these small
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          2  local businesses, their visibility, in order to

          3  reduce them into frames for hanging giant LED

          4  screens on, in a City that is historically resist of

          5  these developments, is another coo for the billboard

          6  industry.

          7                 It is not just the demolition of this

          8  City's unique character in favoring an artificial

          9  corporate brand saturated and managed future.  It is

         10  the process adapted by the City and its quest to

         11  modernize the street furniture.  Although we have

         12  not seen the new designs, the historically low

         13  quality of bus shelters, their cruel minimalism

         14  (sic.), completely ineffective against the real

         15  harsh weather, encountered in the northeast United

         16  States, is one example of the results to expect.

         17  Twenty toilets to serve a population of eight

         18  million is not just a joke.  It is a taunt to cab

         19  drivers developing kidney disease, and lots of folks

         20  with bladder problems already.

         21                 The new set up for newsstands is just

         22  as bad.  Is there any attempt being made to make

         23  sure the newsstands have enough room left over from

         24  the candy rack and the Snapple machine to sell any

         25  publications?  Hints about raising the price limit
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          2  on what a stand can sell, has been made, but this

          3  change is not yet forthcoming.  What about limits on

          4  what may be sold?  Why not expand that list to

          5  include services as well as products?  To maximize

          6  the advantage that stands have of convenience and

          7  lessen their reliance on goods, they are difficult

          8  to store and display. The Street Furniture Contract

          9  would probably result in ads covering the sides, and

         10  the need to enter the stand through the front,

         11  eliminating more badly needed display and working

         12  space.  Every inch matters, and yards are

         13  disappearing.

         14                 What news dealers are also being

         15  deprived of, is the ability to respond to local

         16  conditions, their neighborhoods, and the sidewalks

         17  that they are on.  When I build stands for the

         18  Lighthouse for the Blind, many of these structures

         19  had to be made very differently, to conform to the

         20  needs and the desires of the operators.  Some people

         21  work with others, some alone.  Some carried very

         22  extensive inventories, and others, minimal stock.

         23  It was a hard business for everybody, with constant

         24  risk of thievery from both customers and suppliers.

         25  And the changing weather and other variable factors,
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          2  made conforming to some uniform standard, simply

          3  irrational.

          4                 If we want lively and beautiful

          5  streets, let us put up unique structures, that carry

          6  lots of local information about facilities,

          7  including directions to the closest public

          8  accessible toilet and free events.  We can even put

          9  some local advertising on them to pay expenses and

         10  provide some much needed income.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Steve?

         12                 MR. STOLLMAN: Why -- I am sorry, I am

         13  down to my last paragraph and I am the last speaker,

         14  so -- why force ourselves to swallow all of this

         15  liquor advertising, instead of a healthy diet of

         16  local art and attention to close by person- run

         17  enterprises that, like stands, can use the

         18  visibility?  These can be full fledged neighborhood

         19  information and transportation centers, too. Why not

         20  use stands as the rallying points for ride and car

         21  share plans?  How about a way to call a taxi?  Where

         22  there is a bus stop and lots of sidewalk space, it

         23  might even make sense to combine the functions and

         24  really create some benefits to the public.  There

         25  are 3,000 bus shelters, but 17,000 bus stops.  Can
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          2  we not do more to make this into a legitimate

          3  program for news dealers, for bus riders, for all of

          4  New York citizens?  We are all going to be exposed

          5  to the ugly mess we are inviting.

          6                 Thank you for attempting to correct

          7  this 20 year long blunder that we may be making.

          8  And helping news dealers maintain a measure of their

          9  independence and dignity, on our behalf, as

         10  custodians and potential developers of that precious

         11  but neglected and abused public asset, the sidewalk.

         12    Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  That

         14  closes the public hearing.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

         16  before the hearing is closed, I would like to

         17  publicly thank you for holding this hearing today,

         18  and also state, as a closing statement on my own

         19  behalf, as introducing this bill, that it was my

         20  sincere desire that the administration would come to

         21  the table and try to work out some of these concerns

         22  of the newsstand owners.  They did not hear my

         23  pleas, they did not hear the pleas of the newsstand

         24  owners.  I think it is unfortunate, and once again

         25  displays the disregard that this administration
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          2  continually displays for the small businesses in our

          3  City.  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, Council

          5  Member, since you made those remarks, personally I

          6  agree with the administration not being here because

          7  of the litigation.  And I do not think there is any

          8  unwillingness to resolve the underlying issue of

          9  making sure these newsstands stay where they are.  I

         10  mean, to me that is the issue.  Now, when we passed

         11  this legislation, concerns were raised by the

         12  industry, and we recognized that there seems to be a

         13  difference of opinion in terms of the -- how many

         14  newsstands may have to be moved?  I am sure the

         15  council still stands on its position, that if we are

         16  talking about a large number of them, we are not in

         17  favor of that.  However, we still -- the

         18  administration, and I think many of us feel that,

         19  that is not the case.  However, we will still

         20  continue to look at this issue --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Why, I

         22  appreciate your --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- To insure

         24  because --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Let me
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          2  also state that I have --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I finish?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Yes,

          5  absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I finish?

          7  Because it is in the best interest of this City to

          8  have the Street Furniture Bill move ahead, to pick a

          9  winner to the RFP.  And key to that proposal, is the

         10  advertising on the newsstands.  If we remove that

         11  part of the component, in my opinion, maybe it is

         12  not shared by everybody, as Chair of this Committee,

         13  you affect the entire viability of the Street

         14  Furniture Proposal, and I do not think that is an

         15  acceptable situation.

         16                 So, there are some issues.  We will

         17  certainly continue to look at them, because I do not

         18  think it is anybody's intention that there be a

         19  large number of newsstands that have to relocate, or

         20  go out of business.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Well, I am

         22  very happy to hear that you are also in agreement

         23  that none of us want to see the newsstands, a large

         24  number or percentage of them go out of business.

         25  Let me just reiterate that I have also reached out
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          2  to Dan Doctoroff's office myself personally, and

          3  still have not received a reply, with regards to

          4  these issues.

          5                 I am also in support in general

          6  terms, with regard to the Street Furniture

          7  Initiative, however, there should have been a vow to

          8  grandfather each and every one of these newsstand

          9  owners, and insure that we could have had a balance

         10  in having the advertising put in place, have the

         11  RFP, but at the same time, protect mom and pop shops

         12  that have been in business for many years, and

         13  provide a valuable service for our City.  Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: With that, I will

         16  close the public hearing on this item, and the

         17  committee is recessed to 1:00 at which time we will

         18  hear Greenpoint and Williamsburg.

         19                 The morning statement and then we are

         20  going to proceed with the presentation of the

         21  proposal by the administration.  Leading that of

         22  course, is Commissioner Amanda Burden, the

         23  Department of City Planning.

         24                 Today we begin the City Council's

         25  review of the City Planning Department's proposed
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          2  re- zoning of the Greenpoint- Williamsburg

          3  neighborhoods of Brooklyn.  In the 1990's, these

          4  communities saw more zoning variances for

          5  residential uses in manufacturing areas, than any

          6  other community district in the City. It was not

          7  uncommon to hear complaints that Community Board One

          8  in Brooklyn was undergoing zoning by variance.  In

          9  response to that phenomenon, and in an effort to

         10  encourage more housing development, the Department

         11  of City Planning has produced a comprehensive re

         12  zoning of approximately 184 blocks.

         13                 These six zoning maps, zoning text

         14  and City map actions that are before us, seek to

         15  allow new residential development, including

         16  affordable housing units, encourage compatible

         17  manufacturing uses where appropriate, and create a

         18  significant new 27 acre park on the waterfront.

         19  Like many of the area- wide re- zonings that have

         20  come before this committee, this matter has aroused

         21  passionate feelings on all sides of the issue.

         22                 Today's hearing will continue the

         23  dialog that began months ago.  In the past two weeks

         24  alone, for example, I have had numerous meetings

         25  with Council Members David Yassky and Diana Reyna,
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          2  property owners, business and community leaders, and

          3  Greenpoint and Williamsburg residents, about the

          4  issues involved in this re- zoning action.  Those

          5  discussions have clearly indicated a desire on

          6  everyone's part, to create affordable housing and

          7  open space, preserve a vibrant manufacturing base

          8  and while expanding housing opportunities for all

          9  New Yorkers through appropriate development,

         10  preserve the quality of life for those very

         11  residents who have made Greenpoint and Williamsburg

         12  desirable neighborhoods to reside and work in.

         13                 Our job, over the next few weeks, is

         14  to work together, the Department of City Planning,

         15  the City Council, and the community, to develop a

         16  balance between all of these sometime, competing

         17  issues, to create the best possible re- zoning

         18  proposal.

         19                 Our hearing today will begin with a

         20  presentation by Commissioner Amanda Burden, Chair of

         21  the City Planning Commission. We will then proceed

         22  to take testimony from alternating panels of those

         23  in favor, and those opposed.  Each speaker will have

         24  two minutes.  If necessary, we will continue the

         25  public hearing at our next scheduled meeting on
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          2  April 18th.  However, and I ask for your cooperation

          3  in this, we would very much like to get the public

          4  hearing in today.  And I say that from personal

          5  view, and from personal experience, that if we go to

          6  a second day, in my opinion, that cuts off a lot of

          7  the negotiations that we will have to have with the

          8  administration, because we will not have heard from

          9  everybody.  So, I am going to ask for everybody's

         10  cooperation, not only in the time constraints, but

         11  also in the fact, if you have heard somebody speak,

         12  and they said exactly what you want, it may not be

         13  necessary for you to say exactly the same thing.  We

         14  would be more than happy to enter your names into

         15  the record, without having to take time for each and

         16  every person, if you are saying the same thing.

         17                 Again, I ask for your cooperation in

         18  making this a productive hearing by keeping your

         19  remarks concise, and by adhering to the time limit.

         20  Your cooperation will help to insure that everyone

         21  will have an opportunity to speak.

         22                 I also ask for your cooperation and

         23  restraint, in not booing or cheering other speakers.

         24    And I intend to hold that a strict requirement.

         25  You will be ruled out of order, if you are
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          2  applauding somebody or you are booing somebody.

          3  This is your building, I ask you to act

          4  appropriately.  Because there are going to be people

          5  on both sides, again, this is a passionate issue.

          6  No applauding, no booing, because I will stop the

          7  proceedings, every time that happens.  We expect you

          8  to be respectful of other people's opinion, because

          9  after all, we are here to do the best thing for the

         10  City.  We may disagree on what that means, but we

         11  are all here to do the right thing.

         12                 Let me introduce the members of my

         13  committee first of all, and then the other members

         14  that have joined us.  Starting on my left, Council

         15  Member Larry Seabrook, in front, Council Members

         16  Christine Quinn, Eric Gioia on my right, Councilman

         17  Al Vann and Mike McMahon, and we are also joined by

         18  Council Members Robert Jackson, I am sorry and Erik

         19  Dilan, who is a member of the committee.  That is

         20  what you get for sitting up there, which by the way

         21  is the most uncomfortable seat in City Hall, so he

         22  is not going to stay up there too long.  And we are

         23  also joined by Council Member David Yassky, whose

         24  district encompasses maybe 80 percent of this

         25  district.  I am sure Diana Reyna will join us later.
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          2                 With that, I will ask Commissioner

          3  Burden to give us the presentation.

          4                 COMMISSIONER BURDEN: Thank you and

          5  thank you Chair Avella and Chair Katz, who is

          6  somewhere about, and members of the Zoning and

          7  Franchise Subcommittee, Council Member Yassky and I

          8  hope Council Member Reyna.

          9                 I am very pleased and proud to be

         10  presenting to you today, the administration's

         11  comprehensive proposal for Greenpoint and

         12  Williamsburg.  This proposal has been carefully

         13  crafted on a block by block basis, to reflect and

         14  enhance the unique character of these vibrant

         15  neighborhoods, while opening up a spectacular

         16  waterfront, that has been derelict and inaccessible

         17  for decades.

         18                 Today's presentation is divided into

         19  several sections.  After my introduction, Regina

         20  Myer, the director of the Department's Brooklyn

         21  office, will give you an overview, and detail the

         22  proposal for the Upland neighborhoods.  Then, Adrian

         23  Benepe, Commissioner of Parks and Recreation, will

         24  present one of the most defining components of the

         25  plan, the Parks and Open Space. Commissioner Benepe
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          2  will be followed again by Regina Myer, who will

          3  present and explain the waterfront development

          4  component of the project.

          5                 And then, most importantly, HPD

          6  Commissioner, Shaun Donovan, will present the

          7  proposal's aggressive and innovative Affordable

          8  Housing Plan.  And then, I will conclude.

          9                 So, let us begin.

         10                 Greenpoint- Williamsburg developed

         11  over 100 years ago.  It was at the heart of the

         12  nation's largest manufacturing center, which

         13  included ship building, oil refining, and the

         14  nation's largest rope manufacturer, with factories

         15  on the waterfront, and worker housing, inland.

         16  Since that time, there have been dramatic changes.

         17  Heavy industry has gone, and these two inland, mixed

         18  use, low rise neighborhoods, have become among the

         19  most vibrant, and sought after in the entire City.

         20  But meanwhile, two miles of East River waterfront,

         21  sits largely abandoned and degraded, and

         22  inaccessible to the public.  For years, because of

         23  outdated zoning, the communities of Greenpoint and

         24  Williamsburg have battled against noxious uses on

         25  this waterfront.
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          2                 Today, we are at a crossroads.  A

          3  once in a lifetime opportunity to reclaim over 100

          4  acres of neglected and deteriorating waterfront.

          5                 And finally, we connect these

          6  communities with their water's edge.  The

          7  Greenpoint- Williamsburg Re- zoning Plan builds upon

          8  years and years of work, by both the community and

          9  the City. It is just not a linear plan for the

         10  waterfront alone, but it brings the vitality of the

         11  community to the waterfront, insuring public use and

         12  enjoyment.  It provides opportunities for new

         13  housing, including affordable housing for a range of

         14  incomes, while respecting the scale and mixed use

         15  character that defines these vibrant neighborhoods.

         16                 I will now turn the presentation over

         17  to Regina Myer, who will give an overview and

         18  details of the Upland Proposal, as well as

         19  modifications to the plan, that have been made in

         20  response to suggestions by the community, by elected

         21  officials, and by advocacy groups.  Regina?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If I can

         23  interrupt for one second, I have to take care of

         24  some administrative business.  I would like to call,

         25  ask Counsel, to call the roll for those -- to call
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          2  the vote for those members that were not -- out of

          3  the room at the time we took the vote this morning,

          4  on the Bayside and Springfield Gardens re- zonings.

          5                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

          6  Member Dilan.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I vote aye on

          8  all.

          9                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         10  Member Gioia.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: Thank you Mr.

         12  Chair, and let me congratulate you on the hard work

         13  you did on the two re- zonings this morning.  I

         14  think that they are good for New York, they are good

         15  for Queens, and they are especially good for the two

         16  neighborhoods in question.  So thank you for your

         17  leadership and I vote yes, on both.

         18                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Council

         19  Member Vann.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: The vote

         22  stands at six in the affirmative, one abstention and

         23  no in the negative, and a refer to the full Land Use

         24  Committee.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.
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          2  Regina?

          3                 MS. MYER: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I see we have

          5  also now been joined by Council Member, Diana Reyna.

          6                 MS. MYER: The Greenpoint-

          7  Williamsburg re- zoning area encompasses 175 blocks

          8  north of the Williamsburg Bridge, and west of the

          9  McGuinness Boulevards and the Brooklyn Queens

         10  Expressway. Currently, existing zoning prohibits new

         11  construction in most of this area.  In the past

         12  decade, there has been a dramatic decrease in jobs

         13  in this area, with over two thirds of the

         14  manufacturing jobs lost.  At the same time, as you

         15  can see from this slide, there have been over 100

         16  loft conversions in the area, adding residences to

         17  nearly every block.  This results in mixed use areas

         18  surrounding the traditional neighborhood centers of

         19  Bedford Avenue in North Side Williamsburg, and

         20  Manhattan Avenue in Greenpoint.

         21                 With true manufacturing gone from the

         22  waterfront, recent as of right proposals have

         23  included waste transfer stations, large scale retail

         24  and power plants.  The local community board has

         25  successfully fought many of these proposals.  Their
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          2  principals regarding re- use of the waterfront, are

          3  embodied in their 197A Plans, adopted in 2002.  The

          4  major objectives of their plans would prohibit

          5  noxious uses along the waterfront, and to promote

          6  public access and housing.

          7                 The objectives of City Planning's

          8  proposal embrace the communities, and are to reclaim

          9  the waterfront for continuous access, create

         10  affordable housing, and protect existing

         11  neighborhood character.  The benefits of this plan

         12  include the creation of two miles of waterfront

         13  access be claimed with a 28 acre City Park and

         14  continuous esplanade, the production of nearly

         15  10,000 apartments with 23 percent of these

         16  affordable, using a ground breaking approach to

         17  affordable housing.

         18                 The economic benefits of this

         19  proposal include $1.6 billion dollars in private

         20  investment for construction, over 17,000 jobs and

         21  $388 million dollars in return to the City.

         22                 Our proposal, excuse me -- the

         23  existing character of North Side Williamsburg and

         24  Greenpoint consist of three to four story buildings,

         25  five to six story apartment houses or lofts, and a
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          2  good deal of vacant and unused land.  There are

          3  several sliver proposals right now in certain areas

          4  of the re- zoning, proposed at over 200 feet, being

          5  filed in certain areas as of right today. These

          6  projects truly threaten the very special quality of

          7  these communities.

          8                 Our proposal prohibits these sliver

          9  buildings in the neighborhoods, by applying a very

         10  detailed set of height limits, using contextual

         11  districts with height limits of 50 feet in the area

         12  shown here in yellow, and up to 70 feet in the area

         13  shown in orange.  So, as you can see from this map,

         14  our height limit proposal strongly responds to the

         15  desire to protect neighborhood character in North

         16  Side and in Greenpoint.

         17                 Further, the City Planning Commission

         18  made a modification in response to community

         19  concern, relative to height adjacent to the

         20  Greenpoint historic district, decreasing the height

         21  along Franklin Street to 50 feet.

         22                 Our Land Use Proposal recognizes the

         23  mixed use character of the are surrounding the

         24  neighborhood centers, as shown here in the blue.

         25  The mixed use proposal permits light industry,
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          2  residences, and commercial use, and finally

          3  establishes a context to legalize loft conversions.

          4                 We have been careful to maintain

          5  manufacturing in those areas where it still

          6  dominates, like the 22 block area just east of the

          7  Bushwick inlet, which contains Acme Smoked Fish, The

          8  Brooklyn Brewery, Rosenwach Tanks, Colonial Glass.

          9  Here of course is the Greenpoint Manufacturing and

         10  Design Center at the northern tip of Manhattan

         11  Avenue.

         12                 In response to concerns relative to

         13  manufacturing use in the neighborhood, the

         14  Commission further modified its proposal, to

         15  eliminate 13 blocks of the re- zoning area to

         16  further protect manufacturing jobs.

         17                 Now, Commissioner Benepe will discuss

         18  Parks and Open Space in the re- zoning.

         19                 COMMISSIONER BENEPE: Thank you,

         20  Regina, and thank you Chairman Avella, Chairman

         21  Katz, Council Members Yassky and Reyna, and all the

         22  council members on these committees.

         23                 If you go back 381 years ago when the

         24  Dutch East India Company first set up shop in New

         25  Amsterdam, since then the City's waterfront has been
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          2  used for business, and business alone. So, in the

          3  last 20 or 30 years that New Yorkers have been able

          4  to rediscover and use for the first time, their

          5  waterfront, for recreational purposes. And that is

          6  why this rezoning represents a unique opportunity to

          7  address the open space and recreational needs of

          8  Greenpoint and Williamsburg, and to make a

          9  significant contribution to our City's park system.

         10                 It also provides an opportunity to

         11  advance one of the highest priorities of the

         12  Bloomberg administration, which is the reclamation

         13  of New York's under utilized waterfront.  The

         14  communities of Greenpoint and Williamsburg lack

         15  sufficient open space.  Community members have

         16  clearly stated, time and again, that the creation of

         17  new park land and serving local residents, is a

         18  major priority.

         19                 We see this re- zoning as a chance to

         20  address their concerns and we have developed a plan

         21  that will create almost 50 acres of much needed open

         22  space, and create public access to one of the most

         23  impressive, yet least accessible stretches of New

         24  York City's waterfront.

         25                 Our existing neighborhood parks are
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          2  mainly located inland, you can see McCarren Park,

          3  and off to the side Monsignor McGolrick Park.  As

          4  residents can tell you, these parks are heavily

          5  used.  Fortunately, the Parks Department is already

          6  developing plans, for two additional sites, both on

          7  the waterfront, the former WNYC Transmitter site

          8  over here, and the Manhattan Avenue Street and Park

          9  right there, which will include a get down for

         10  getting down to the water, and a kayak launch.

         11                 The rezoning plan will allow us to

         12  take park development in these Brooklyn

         13  neighborhoods to the next level. Under the rezoning,

         14  we will reclaim 28 acres of once industrial

         15  waterfront property, for active recreation.  Now,

         16  just for a point of reference, people do not often

         17  understand what 28 acres is.  For comparison sake,

         18  that is twice the size of Carl Shurtz Park, which is

         19  the largest park on the Upper East Side, it is three

         20  times the size of Washington Square Park, and four

         21  times the useable acreage of Bryant Park.

         22                 The transformation of brown fields

         23  into parks is one of the ultimate services that

         24  government can provide for local communities.  Not

         25  only we will take a giant step forward toward
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          2  meeting the recreational needs of Greenpoint and

          3  Williamsburg, but we will help restore the

          4  environmental health of the area and the City.

          5                 Now this is the best of both worlds,

          6  improving the health of our environment by providing

          7  space to improve the health of our children.  The

          8  green of our urban landscape makes the City a more

          9  enjoyable place to live, and brings with it the

         10  innumerable health benefits such as improved air

         11  quality, and reduced incidents of asthma, and other

         12  respiratory illnesses, and the chance for children

         13  to get fit, and avoid obesity and its related

         14  diseases.

         15                 Upon approval of the rezoning, we

         16  will immediate begin taking the steps to acquire and

         17  re- mediate land around the Bushwick inlet and build

         18  a new 28 acre park.  This proposed park currently

         19  composed of four largely derelict, and under

         20  utilized sites, one of which is targeted by trans

         21  gas, as a site for a power plant, will become a

         22  magnificent, active use, recreation area with open

         23  access to the waterfront.

         24                 The investment in open space

         25  development goes beyond the public sector
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          2  contributions.  Under the provision of the City's

          3  waterfront zoning regulations, private developers

          4  along the waterfront, will be responsible for the

          5  creation and maintenance and operation of open

          6  space, as each site is redeveloped under the new

          7  zoning.  This will result in the creation of a

          8  continuous two mile waterfront esplanade, and a

          9  series of smaller parks, and publicly accessible

         10  open spaces, running from just north of Grand Ferry

         11  Park, all the way out to the Manhattan Avenue street

         12  end with a number of small pocket parks, and the

         13  large park right here around Bushwick Inlet.

         14                 The waterfront access plan

         15  establishes detailed requirements for continuous

         16  waterfront access.  It requires a 40 foot wide

         17  esplanade, that in some places will be as wide as

         18  100 feet, creating pocket parks along the esplanade.

         19    Again, by way of comparison, the Coney Island

         20  boardwalk is 80 feet wide.  Even at its narrowest

         21  width of 40 feet, it will still be four times wider

         22  than the esplanade that currently lines the FDR

         23  Drive on the Upper East Side of Manhattan, and will

         24  be comparable to the esplanade at the lower end of

         25  Battery Park City.  Where today the waterfront is
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          2  inaccessible to the public, this plan connects the

          3  neighborhoods to the waterfront at every block, the

          4  series of pedestrian friendly tree- lined streets,

          5  sidewalks and visual quarters.  So, at each of these

          6  entries, you will get the park like feeling going

          7  into the community.

          8                 As shown here, at the end of Green

          9  Street in Greenpoint at the waterfront access plan

         10  combines the zoning requirements for the esplanade,

         11  upland connections and supplemental areas to create

         12  seamless waterfront access that maximizes open

         13  space, utility and community benefit.  And in order

         14  to provide a uniform feel to the esplanade, the new

         15  plan includes design features selected by the

         16  community that will apply to all waterfront sites

         17  with attractive benches, lights, railings, plantings

         18  and other park furniture.

         19                 The plan also includes legal

         20  mechanisms.  These will insure that these spaces

         21  remain open to the public, and are maintained on an

         22  ongoing basis.  Each development will have to

         23  execute a maintenance and operations agreement with

         24  the Parks Department for the required open space.

         25  In addition, and in response to feedback from
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          2  numerous civic organizations, we have paved the way

          3  for the establishment of a shared entity, to oversee

          4  that maintenance and operations of the esplanade.

          5                 In summary, the creation of the

          6  Williamsburg and Greenpoint waterfront esplanade,

          7  will be one more example of this administration's

          8  aggressive reclamation and adaptive re- use of the

          9  waterfront.  Our accomplishments to date, include

         10  the creation of a continuous green way around

         11  Manhattan, nearly all of which is on the waterfront,

         12  and ongoing projects in waterfront neighborhoods

         13  ranging from Soundview, Hunts Point and Flushing to

         14  Red Hook, DUMBO, Auburn and the south shore of

         15  Staten Island.

         16                 New Yorkers will one day be able to

         17  enjoy the Greenpoint- Williamsburg waterfront

         18  esplanade and parks, in the same way they now use

         19  Gantry State Park, Hudson River Park and Grand Ferry

         20  Park, all of which can be seen in these images.

         21  These river and harbor side parks give New Yorkers

         22  an unprecedented opportunity to recreate and relax

         23  along the water, where 100 years ago, industry and

         24  commerce would have made such a notion, simply

         25  impossible.
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          2                 Through a judicious combination of

          3  public sector commitment and leveraging of private

          4  investment in the waterfront development, we must

          5  capitalize on the opportunity before us, to create

          6  these open spaces and public access to the water for

          7  the residents of Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  Thank

          8  you.  Regina?

          9                 MS. MYER: Our proposal for the

         10  waterfront development is derived from a thorough

         11  analysis, goals and constraints.  The goals for

         12  waterfront development are to be comprehensive and

         13  planned for the entire waterfront, rejecting a site

         14  by site model.  We need to achieve a continuous

         15  esplanade, as you have just seen, and produce

         16  housing at a moderate density, promoting affordable

         17  housing and addressing neighborhood scale.

         18                 We recognize that there are

         19  significant constraints to waterfront development in

         20  New York City.  Most of the locations on the

         21  Greenpoint- Williamsburg waterfront are privately

         22  held, and the waterfront access plan is only

         23  achievable through development. There are higher

         24  costs on the waterfront, taking into account varying

         25  edge conditions, the lack of infrastructure,
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          2  hazardous material conditions, high water table and

          3  the public access requirements themselves.

          4                 Our waterfront development principals

          5  are to finally reconnect this neighborhood with the

          6  waterfront.  We are requiring low rise buildings at

          7  the neighborhood edge along Kent Avenue and West

          8  Street, acknowledging that these streets are very

          9  narrow, and do not provide the wide street context

         10  of Riverside Drive in Manhattan.  We locate taller

         11  buildings away from the neighborhood, closer to the

         12  shore.  We want to create a compelling, varying

         13  skyline and avoid monotony with a pedestrian

         14  friendly street- scape, and waterborne

         15  transportation.

         16            The proposal contains a mix of moderate,

         17  of lower density R6 districts and moderate density

         18  R8 districts, locating the R6 at the neighborhood

         19  edge along West Street in Greenpoint, and here in

         20  Williamsburg.  The R8 districts are carefully

         21  located where towers can be located along the shore.

         22                 As you can see from this x on a

         23  metric, the low rise buildings would be located

         24  closest to the neighborhood, and then here the

         25  towers would be located closer to the shore.
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          2                 We have a number of urban design

          3  proposals that carefully lay this out to make sure

          4  that development is compatible with the existing

          5  neighborhood.

          6                 Here, to describe the height limits

          7  you can see that all the development, adjacent to

          8  the neighborhood would be capped at 65 feet.

          9  Elsewhere in the R6 districts, buildings could rise

         10  to 15 stories, or 150 feet.  And in the R8

         11  districts, buildings would rise to 250 feet, and on

         12  sites that are large enough for two towers, they

         13  could rise to 350 feet.  In all instances, no towers

         14  would be located within 30 feet of the shore public

         15  walkway.

         16                 In terms of commercial use, we

         17  certainly want to activate the waterfront, and one

         18  way we have done that is proposed commercial

         19  overlays along West Street and Kent Avenue.  We have

         20  also permitted small retail establishments on

         21  waterfront blocks. We think that this will promote

         22  further activation of the public access areas that

         23  it joins.  Docks for water taxis will be permitted

         24  all along the waterfront.

         25                 In terms of urban design, one area of
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          2  particular concern, was the development of above

          3  ground parking garages, given that there is such a

          4  high water table.  And we are proposing that all

          5  parking garages above ground be wrapped with use, so

          6  when you walk down the street, you will never see

          7  the parking garage and you can see here in this

          8  image, we are also requiring rooftop open spaces

          9  above these parking garages, to provide extra green

         10  space for building residents.

         11                 Lastly, in response to community

         12  concern, we have limited the orientation of towers,

         13  and as you can see here in this slide, we want to

         14  insure that there is light and air from all areas of

         15  the neighborhood, and that the towers do not block

         16  any waterfront views.

         17                 Now turn the presentation to HPD

         18  Commissioner, Shaun Donovan.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Thank you.

         20  Chair Avella, Chair Katz, Councilman Yassky,

         21  Councilwoman Reyna and other council members here

         22  today, thank you for having us.

         23                 Let me begin my discussion about

         24  affordable housing with the foundation of affordable

         25  housing in New York City today, which is the Mayor's
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          2  New Housing Market Place Plan.  Announced shortly

          3  after he came to office, the plan represents the

          4  most significant commitment to affordable housing

          5  that this City has had in two decades.  It is a five

          6  year, three billion dollar plan, to produce and

          7  preserve, 65,000 units of affordable housing.  And

          8  we are right on track with that plan.  At the end of

          9  this Fiscal Year, we expect to have more than

         10  26,000, or 40 percent of the units started.  And

         11  that is two years into the five year plan.

         12                 Not only does the plan dramatically

         13  increase the production and preservation of

         14  affordable housing in the City today, but it also

         15  recognizes that we are in a new market place, and

         16  that we must create new tools, to insure that given

         17  the real estate market today in New York, that we

         18  will continue to increase the amount of affordable

         19  housing available.  We have expanded home ownership

         20  opportunities as part of the plan.  We have

         21  dramatically increased our production of special

         22  needs and supportive housing. And perhaps most

         23  importantly, we have continued to search for new

         24  ways to find land for affordable housing

         25  development.  We have partnered closely with the
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          2  Housing Authority, with HUD and other government

          3  entities.  We are creating new tools for financing

          4  of affordable housing, to allow our traditional

          5  partners, non profits, and local neighborhood

          6  entrepreneurs to acquire new land, privately held

          7  land, in today's market place, whereas they used to

          8  be dependant only on government- owned land, which

          9  we are quickly running short of.

         10                 And finally, and most significantly,

         11  we have created a very strong partnership with the

         12  Department of City Planning, working on more than a

         13  dozen re- zonings around the City, that can add tens

         14  of thousands of units of housing to our stock.  We

         15  added more than 700, close to 700,000 people to this

         16  City last decade, and we continue to see dramatic

         17  increases in our population.  And we must find

         18  places for those New Yorkers to live, and the other

         19  New Yorkers that will come in the decades ahead.

         20  And we can only do that by finding and creating new

         21  land for affordable housing.

         22                 But in these re- zonings, it is not

         23  enough to just create new housing, we must create

         24  new affordable housing, as well. And so in each of

         25  these re- zonings, our first principal is to insure
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          2  the creation of affordable housing.  And to do that,

          3  we are mobilizing all the resources available to us.

          4    All of the housing development programs that I

          5  spoke about in the Mayor's plan, as well as State

          6  and Federal programs, are available.  And, for only

          7  the second time in the City's history, we are

          8  combining those affordable housing programs, with

          9  the incentives of inclusionary zoning, which I will

         10  talk more about in a moment.

         11                 And third, we are identifying all

         12  publicly available sites, publicly controlled sites,

         13  that are available in the re zoning areas, and

         14  dedicating those to affordable housing development.

         15                 Together with these three tools, we

         16  are aiming to create a comprehensive strategy that

         17  works not just today, but recognizes that the

         18  development in Greenpoint and Williamsburg, will

         19  happen over coming decades.  It must recognize

         20  varying market conditions, whether they be the low

         21  interest rates of today, or potentially higher

         22  interest rates, or lower rents in the future.      We

         23  are also making sure that whether a developer

         24  chooses to build condominiums or rentals on the

         25  waterfront or in the Upland area, that they will all
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          2  have incentives to create affordable housing.

          3                 And finally, because it is

          4  unacceptable for units to be affordable, and then to

          5  expire, threatening the residents who live in those

          6  units, we have specified that all of the units

          7  produced by the inclusionary program will be

          8  permanently affordable.

          9                 And finally, we want to make sure

         10  that we address all the different dimensions of

         11  affordability needed in the community of Greenpoint

         12  and Williamsburg.  We are providing affordability at

         13  a range of income levels, low, moderate and middle

         14  income households will all have units available.

         15  And because we have heard significant concerns about

         16  protecting existing residents from rent increase, we

         17  are creating a new preservation program to be

         18  targeted at the preservation of existing affordable

         19  housing in the neighborhood, by giving developers an

         20  incentive to buy, renovate and preserve affordable

         21  housing, as permanently affordable.

         22                 Finally, in all the programs,

         23  developments, where the City either is contributing,

         24  land or resources, we will set aside 50 percent of

         25  the units for local community residents.
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          2                 Let me return now to the inclusionary

          3  housing portion of our plan.  On the waterfront, as

          4  you can see in the diagram here, we are proposing an

          5  overall FAR, a blended floor area ratio of 4.0.  In

          6  response to concerns that we have heard from the

          7  community, from the council and others, we lowered

          8  that from the originally proposed density of 4.3

          9  floor area ratio, to increase the incentive to

         10  create affordable housing.  If a developer builds

         11  affordable housing, we will allow them to go up to a

         12  4.7 FAR.  That is an 18 percent density bonus.  And

         13  most importantly, that bonus will be for the most

         14  valuable unit, so it creates a significant incentive

         15  for developers to build affordable housing.  In

         16  exchange, they must provide between 15 and 25

         17  percent of all the floor area in their development,

         18  as affordable.  Given the combination of the housing

         19  programs which we are making available here, and the

         20  zoning incentives, we believe returns increase by

         21  about 25 percent, providing an extraordinary

         22  incentive for developers to take the bonus and

         23  provide affordable housing.

         24                 In the Upland areas, again in

         25  response to community and council concerns, we have
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          2  added an Upland inclusionary program. Given the

          3  context that Regina talked about earlier, and our

          4  sincere efforts to make sure that all of the

          5  community remains consistent with the current

          6  context, we are providing a bonus that is smaller,

          7  but still powerful, relative to the waterfront.  And

          8  most importantly, when a developer takes that bonus,

          9  they must build within the proposed height limits in

         10  those areas, so that the buildings will not be out

         11  of character with the surrounding neighborhoods.  In

         12  exchange for what will be between a ten and 20

         13  percent density bonus, developers provide affordable

         14  housing, in the ratio of one square foot of

         15  affordable housing for every two square feet of

         16  bonus that they receive.

         17                 Let me talk about some of the details

         18  of these, both the waterfront and the Upland area

         19  programs.  First of all, the waterfront program

         20  generates affordable units at three different income

         21  tiers, low, moderate and middle.  Fundamentally, it

         22  is aimed at insuring that from the very beginning of

         23  the creation of the waterfront community, that it is

         24  a mixed income community, and reflects the diversity

         25  of New York City.  However, given the neighborhood
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          2  and the needs within New York City and the

          3  Greenpoint Williamsburg community, all of the

          4  developers, whatever option they choose, must build

          5  some of their units for the lowest income families.

          6  And when we say low income, we mean below 80 percent

          7  of median, or for a family of four, about $50

          8  thousand dollars a year. But given the programs that

          9  will be used on the waterfront, our expectation is

         10  that the majority of those low income units would be

         11  targeted at families making about $30 thousand

         12  dollars a year, or 50 percent of median income.

         13                 In the Upland area, all of the units

         14  from the inclusionary program must be targeted to

         15  the lowest income families.  Again, given the range

         16  of programs available, we expect the majority of

         17  those units to be targeted at, for a family of four,

         18  below $31 thousand, four hundred dollars a year.  As

         19  I said earlier, we are making only for the second

         20  time, available all the City, State and Federal

         21  programs to be combined with the inclusionary zoning

         22  bonus, and we are providing a number of options for

         23  developers, flexibility that will make sure that

         24  they take the bonus and build affordable housing.

         25  They can do those units on site, as rentals, or of
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          2  site.  They can either do new construction or the

          3  preservation option, that I talked about earlier,

          4  either within the community district or within half

          5  a mile of their site, but always within the same

          6  borough.

          7                 The third portion of our plan is the

          8  dedication of public sites to affordable housing.

          9  With much work and partnership with other City

         10  agencies, we have identified thirteen sites within

         11  the re- zoning area, on which a total of 975 units

         12  could be built. We have committed that 800 of those,

         13  or over 80 percent, will be affordable, 430 of them

         14  will be on the waterfront and 370 in the Upland

         15  area.  Two thirds of all those affordable units will

         16  be targeted to families earning less than $31

         17  thousand, four hundred dollars a year.  And all of

         18  those affordable units will be permanently

         19  affordable.

         20                 In summary, let me highlight the most

         21  significant aspects of this plan.  First of all,

         22  this is the first time in the City's history, that

         23  we are offering inclusionary zoning outside of

         24  Manhattan.  It is also the first time in the City's

         25  history, that we are offering inclusionary zoning in
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          2  medium density areas, both landmark changes to the

          3  affordable housing programs.  As I mentioned

          4  earlier, this is only the second time that we have

          5  ever allowed the inclusionary zoning bonus to be

          6  combined with affordable housing programs, and

          7  affordable housing debt.

          8                 Third, we have dramatically expanded

          9  the flexibility of the inclusionary housing program

         10  to allow, not only on- site, off- site and

         11  preservation options that work, but also to allow

         12  mixed income at a range of tiers, but again, focused

         13  on the lowest income families.

         14                 We are committing all available

         15  public sites to affordable housing, and through this

         16  set of tools, we are creating 2300 units of

         17  permanently affordable housing, or 23 percent of the

         18  total.  This makes this a more substantial

         19  commitment to affordable housing, than any other

         20  City's inclusionary zoning program in the nation.

         21  And we believe will insure that Greenpoint and

         22  Williamsburg gets affordable housing that it needs.

         23  Thank you.

         24                 MS. MYER: I would like to close by

         25  stressing how critically important it is for the
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          2  City to capitalize on the opportunities for housing

          3  development in areas where we have large tracks of

          4  vacant and under utilized land, where development is

          5  possible on a substantial scale.

          6                 I would like to draw your attention

          7  on the screen, to the transformation of North Fourth

          8  Street, and you might note that there is a transfer

          9  station there.  With the City's population already

         10  well exceeding eight million residents, and

         11  continuing to grow and attract new residents, new

         12  housing, including affordable housing for a range of

         13  incomes, is absolutely vital to the City's future

         14  economic health and well being.  It is equally

         15  important that we reclaim this waterfront for public

         16  use.  The commitment to a new 28 acre park, and the

         17  detailed plan for two miles of continuous public

         18  access, will insure New Yorkers enjoyment of the

         19  East River, for generations to come.  Thank you, and

         20  we would be pleased to answer any questions that you

         21  may have.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you

         23  Commissioners.  We will, of course, have questions

         24  from Council Member Yassky and Diana Reyna and

         25  committee members, but as I started out by asking
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          2  the cooperation of everyone who signed up to speak,

          3  I will now ask the cooperation of my colleagues.

          4  Some of you who were here during the Hudson Yards

          5  debate, which was similar to this, I asked each of

          6  my colleagues to ask one question through our first

          7  round.  And actually that one question for each

          8  council member almost took an hour on to itself.

          9  So, I would ask that we do the same thing again, in

         10  the light of the fact that each of us has access to

         11  the Commissioners beyond this public hearing.  And

         12  the whole purpose of this, is to hear form the

         13  public.  I can tell you that just counting the

         14  speakers slips, we have 200 people signed up to

         15  speak. At two minutes each, that is over three

         16  hours.  So, I am going to ask my colleagues one

         17  question a piece.  I will call upon Council Members

         18  Yassky and Diana Reyna first.  Council Member

         19  Yassky.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         21  Chair Avella.  Let me start by saying I understand

         22  your, and absolutely think, I just want to applaud

         23  you, I think you handled another Hudson Yards

         24  hearing, and I am sure this to come, which the

         25  simple administrative task is very challenging, so I
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          2  understand and I will accept your suggestion.  I

          3  just want to assure the public, because I do think

          4  it is very important to have some probing debate,

          5  and I have several detailed questions.  What I would

          6  like to do, Commissioners, I guess, I will submit my

          7  questions to you in writing, and ask that you

          8  respond fairly promptly, in a few days, and I will

          9  post them on the website, on my website, so that the

         10  public can see the answer.  I have questions about

         11  many of the details from your proposals, and I hope

         12  that will be okay with you.

         13                 I just want to start, my colleagues,

         14  I want to address this to you, my colleagues, by

         15  saying that I do not support, I oppose the plan that

         16  is before us today.  And I would oppose anything

         17  close to this plan.  It is my hope that this

         18  committee and our colleagues in the full council

         19  will be able to craft a rezoning proposal that

         20  accomplishes the very legitimate goals of rezoning

         21  this area.  But it will have to be significantly

         22  different from what is before us today.  If not, I

         23  will be asking you, my colleagues, to join me in

         24  rejecting it and starting over.

         25                 Now, when I say that this needs
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          2  dramatic change, there are four areas in particular

          3  that I want to discuss.  Let me tell you what I see

          4  as my concerns about this plan.  It would allow

          5  buildings that are significantly taller as the

          6  presentation showed, the existing neighborhood has

          7  at the tallest, five to eight story buildings.  This

          8  would allow buildings that are much taller than

          9  that.  It would create very little affordable

         10  housing for the amount of new housing that is being

         11  created.  It would create some park land, but it

         12  would still leave this neighborhood, these

         13  neighborhoods and north Brooklyn, with far too

         14  little park space per resident, and much less than

         15  they should have, given what the rest of the City

         16  does.

         17                 And lastly, I am concerned about the

         18  impact on manufacturing jobs.  This rezoning will

         19  displace manufacturing jobs, and I do not think that

         20  would be an argument against it, if all the other

         21  changes were made.  At the very least, what we need

         22  to do is provide some retention assistance, and some

         23  dedicated space for manufacturing firms, to try and

         24  minimize the impact on jobs.

         25                 So, in short, my colleagues, I think
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          2  that this plan needs, not just a tune up or an oil

          3  change, I think we have to trade this in for a new

          4  model, and get a rezoning that works for the

          5  neighborhoods, and is not simply designed to allow

          6  the builders to build with maximum profitability.

          7                 My question for, and I will use my

          8  one question to focus on the affordability issue,

          9  which I see as paramount here. My fear,

         10  Commissioners, is that while your presentation

         11  projects 23 percent of the full build out to be

         12  affordable units, my fear is it will be much less

         13  than that.  And if I understand it, there are 800

         14  affordable apartments that will result from direct

         15  public construction or construction on public sites,

         16  or sites that can be acquired by the public.  I

         17  guess these are all currently publicly owned.  And

         18  then 1500 to be built by the private developers.

         19  With the 800, I do not at all doubt the good faith

         20  commitment.  I know from my experience and yours,

         21  that often times public projects take longer than

         22  one hopes, and that could be several years until

         23  they are built out.

         24                 But with the private sites, my fear

         25  is that very few, if any of the developers or the
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          2  private developers, will choose to do affordable

          3  housing, given what they will be entitled to, is a

          4  quite significant amount of development that they

          5  can do as of right, automatically, and simply market

          6  as all luxury housing.  And then they can ignore the

          7  affordable option all together.  The affordable

          8  option is voluntary.  It is really up to them to

          9  choose to do it.

         10                 At the City Planning Commission

         11  hearing, as you know I proposed simply requiring the

         12  private developers to include affordable housing, or

         13  at the very least, reducing that the amount that the

         14  private developers can build, if they are going to

         15  do all luxury.  So that a developer choosing to do

         16  all luxury housing, could build a fairly small

         17  building.  And only developers that are including

         18  affordable housing, could really take advantage of

         19  the zoning.

         20                 My question is, can you support that?

         21    Because it seems to me that if you truly do

         22  believe that all the developers will choose to take

         23  advantage of the zoning bonus, and build affordable

         24  housing, then you ought to be willing to reduce the

         25  amount that the non- compliant developers can build.
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          2    So, is that something that you can support?

          3                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: First of all

          4  Councilman, let me just address your initial point,

          5  which is the issue of, this is a voluntary program.

          6  And that is correct.  However, private development

          7  is always a voluntary act, whether you look at any

          8  program, a mandatory program, a voluntary program,

          9  it always depends on the incentives being correct

         10  for a developer to choose to develop under those

         11  scenarios.  And in fact, we have a great deal of

         12  experience with this.  As I mentioned at the

         13  beginning, the City has the most aggressive,

         14  affordable housing program it has had in decades.

         15  And our experience is, that with the incentives of

         16  those voluntary programs alone, just the subsidy

         17  programs that we offer through the New Housing

         18  Market Place Plan, we have far more people willing

         19  to develop than we could even supply under the

         20  vastly increased resources that we have supplied.

         21  We have 26,000 units that will be underway this

         22  year, and that only by the incentives in these

         23  voluntary programs.  What we are adding to the

         24  incentives of those voluntary programs, is the

         25  zoning bonus as well, and so here we have
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          2  dramatically increased that incentive. And so that

          3  is why we feel so sure that developers will take

          4  this bonus and will develop.

          5                 Now to the specifics of your question

          6  about lowering the density and providing more of an

          7  incentive.  In fact, as I mentioned in my proposal

          8  based on input from you from the community, and the

          9  rest of the council members, we have done that. We

         10  have lowered the density from originally proposed

         11  4.3 down to 4.0 floor area ratio.  But the balance

         12  that we have to strike is always to make sure that

         13  we get the development in the first place. If we

         14  lower the base density, and as I have heard from

         15  many folks, increase the requirements on developers

         16  as a result of that, the risk that we take is that

         17  we get no development at all.  And if we get no

         18  development, we get no affordable housing, we get no

         19  development of the esplanade, and that is the

         20  balance we must strike.  As I mentioned earlier in

         21  my presentation, the City added close to 700,000

         22  people in the last decade.  More than the entire

         23  City of Boston or Baltimore or Seattle, and we must

         24  find places for those and future New Yorkers to

         25  live.  And so, creating a program that balances the
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          2  need for more development with maximizing affordable

          3  housing, is what we have done here.  And we think we

          4  found the right balance at the densities that we are

          5  proposing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          7  Reyna?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you Chair

          9  Avella.  I just wanted to address the panel and

         10  first of all, thank the panel of experts that we

         11  depend on to be the driving force here.  We started

         12  our question, our community three years ago, four

         13  years ago now.  And it seems like it has been such a

         14  long road and finally the day has come when we can

         15  start working on making sure that the most important

         16  needs of our community are going to be met.  You

         17  have discussed affordable housing, you have

         18  discussed the creation of jobs and preserving jobs,

         19  as well as the open space and park land.  But I,

         20  too, have to stand and address the issue that there

         21  is a component here that we have been very adamant

         22  about, and that is the 40 percent affordable housing

         23  rate that we are seeking in our community.  When we

         24  start looking back at the Schaefer site, and many

         25  people have used this as an example, and perhaps so
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          2  many more say it is not fair.  And I understand why

          3  it is not fair due to the fact that it was City-

          4  owned land.  Due to the fact that there was re-

          5  mediation costs that the City took on.  Due to the

          6  fact that there was a developer who challenged the

          7  City and said, I will do it, I can do this.  And we

          8  commended those efforts, because it was a real

          9  partnership at the end.  And it has a 40 percent

         10  affordability rate.  I am trying to mimic that at

         11  all costs and in doing so, I just want to be able to

         12  say that we still have an opportunity here to reach

         13  that goal.

         14                 Therefore, the plan, as is, is not

         15  satisfactory to me as well, and we are trying to

         16  reach and strike that balance by furthering our

         17  efforts in trying to reach the 40 percent affordable

         18  housing rate that we set out ourselves, as a goal on

         19  behalf of our community.

         20                 My opportunity here is not for a

         21  question, but to advise our members in the audience,

         22  as well as my colleagues in government, that I

         23  cannot stand in good conscience and accept that we

         24  can -- our best in government is a 23 percent

         25  maximum level of affordable housing.  When there are
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          2  families coming to my district office, time and time

          3  again, who did not even qualify for the Schaefer

          4  site, because their median income is $18 thousand

          5  dollars. And we are not talking about one or two

          6  families, we are referring to dozens and dozens of

          7  hundreds of families, and I cannot sit to the

          8  sidelines and say that this is a great visual

          9  effect.  We are getting so much open space and

         10  people are being pushed out.  You know, there are so

         11  many studies out there that can truly say the

         12  affordability rate has to start where people are

         13  paying, you know, 50 percent of their income, into

         14  rent, and these skyrocketing rents are just pushing

         15  out communities.  And I have a duty in my district

         16  to preserve, protect, and serve the people in my

         17  district, and that is what I will do until the day

         18  that this plan is going to be voted down or up.  But

         19  it is going to be voted up, with the consideration

         20  that we have to meet this goal that we set out

         21  three, four years ago.

         22                 So, that I ask for your indulgence,

         23  as far as the committee is concerned, to keep an

         24  open mind, to consider the fact that when a family

         25  of four is earning $18 thousand dollars, but the
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          2  best we can do, we are claiming is, to give an

          3  affordability rate where a family has to earn $31

          4  thousand dollars, if not, they are going to be

          5  pushed out, is ridiculous, it is irresponsible and

          6  we have to see further than that.  And if we have to

          7  join together to create a plan of our own, I will be

          8  the first on line to do so.  I commend the

          9  administration for trying to do their best, because

         10  they started out with zero affordability rate.  And

         11  they saw that there was a commitment that they

         12  needed to make a commitment here. And I think they

         13  are half way there.  I think we still have a lot

         14  more to go.  Thank you Chairman Avella and committee

         15  members and to the administration.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         17  Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you

         19  Commissioners and for all the work that you do and

         20  we have about a month or so until this is final.  We

         21  look forward to working with you in the next month.

         22  But I do have a question -- there is one thing I

         23  just wanted to sort of explain for the record.  The

         24  50 percent that is being saved for the community, I

         25  am a little unclear on that and I think it may
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          2  deserve a little more explanation for the record.

          3  How does that work?  What type of affordable units

          4  are they?  How will the community get access to

          5  those units?  And things of that nature. Before you

          6  answer that question, there is only five or six

          7  developers on the waterfront, correct?  I assume and

          8  I think I pretty much know this, but just so

          9  everybody knows.  You have been in contact and

         10  negotiations with those developers and you have been

         11  discussing this plan with those developers and about

         12  the affordable housing component of this plan?

         13                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: We have been in

         14  contact and discussion with nearly all of them and

         15  have had quite a positive response from them so far

         16  about the program as proposed and they are

         17  interested in doing the affordable housing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, and they

         19  obviously would be willing to work to negotiate to

         20  raise the number of affordable housing units or

         21  whatever it is.  But they are in negotiations and

         22  they understand that they need this in order to

         23  develop.

         24                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: That is

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  Can you

          3  answer the question about the 50 percent for

          4  communities?  Because I do not remember that

          5  happening in the past and I just -- I do not quite

          6  understand how it happened.  So can you explain it?

          7                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: The way that

          8  works is that we will conduct a lottery for any

          9  affordable housing development where the City has

         10  some involvement, whether it be our land, our

         11  programs, et cetera.  We will set aside in the

         12  lottery, 50 percent of the units, at whatever income

         13  levels they may be for that particular development,

         14  whether it be targeted at low, moderate, middle, or

         15  whatever it may be.  We will take 50 percent of the

         16  units and set it aside for income qualified

         17  community residents, and they will have a preference

         18  for those 50 percent of the units when we do the

         19  lottery.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it is public

         21  or also the combined?  The public sites or also the

         22  combined sites?

         23                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: This would be

         24  on private sites as well --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: From private
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          2  sites, as well.

          3                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: -- Where the

          4  City has some involvement, that is right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, so let us

          6  just say you have the blended zone in the R6 and R8

          7  and the waterfront blended zoning, they decide to do

          8  the low income, as opposed to the moderate or median

          9  income.  That would mean that 50 percent of those

         10  units are for the community in the low income

         11  category.

         12                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: That is

         13  correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Is that how I am

         15  reading it?

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  And the

         18  same for median and moderate, obviously.  If the

         19  building decided to go with moderate, 50 percent

         20  would be open to the moderate zoning.  And what

         21  defines, in the community?

         22                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN:  It is within

         23  the community district.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The CD, you mean

         25  the Community Board.  Is that what you mean?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: That is right,

          3  That is correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  So as

          5  long as they live in the community board and they

          6  meet the standard and criteria, I think for low was

          7  $31 thousand five hundred dollars per family and

          8  below 50 percent would come from the neighborhood in

          9  a lottery?

         10                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Exactly.

         11  Whatever the income requirements are for that

         12  particular program, whether it be tax credits,

         13  bonds, whatever the program is.  If they meet the

         14  income requirements, 50 percent of the units would

         15  be set aside.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Have we done

         17  this other places?

         18                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: We have done it

         19  in other City developments, in Hudson Yards, that is

         20  exactly right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.  Alright.

         22  Thank you for clarification.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         24  Dilan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Thank you Mr.
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          2  Chair. And I also will promise to be brief.  I just

          3  want to say that I support my colleagues' effort for

          4  more affordable housing on the site.  But I want to

          5  just use my question to focus in on the

          6  manufacturing end of the plan.  I know one of the

          7  members of the panel did mention manufacturing in

          8  her testimony, but there was nothing specific to

          9  manufacturing in the presentation.  Could you, I

         10  guess for the appropriate member of the panel, just

         11  clarify in more detail, the protection for

         12  manufacturing, and include in your answer, what

         13  impact in the zonings current form that this plan

         14  will have on these manufacturing facilities?  The

         15  impact it will have on manufacturing jobs?  And your

         16  estimate as to how many jobs could be at risk if

         17  this plan were to be approved in its current form?

         18                 MS. MYER: In terms of the

         19  presentation, what I focused on was the fact that we

         20  are maintaining manufacturing -- I believe so, yes

         21   -- we are maintaining manufacturing designations in

         22  22 blocks along the East River.  That is the area

         23  where we found the highest concentration of jobs.

         24  If you remember also from the slides in the

         25  remaining manufacturing areas along the East River,
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          2  these areas we found incredibly high levels of

          3  residential use nearly on every block.  So the

          4  remainder of the waterfront area is truly mixed use

          5  already.  This is a very balanced plan.  We are not

          6  rezoning at all.  The other areas of Community

          7  District One where there are very strong levels of

          8  manufacturing use, especially in the area, such as

          9  East Williamsburg Industrial Park and the area

         10  adjacent to the Newtown Water Pollution Control

         11  Plant.  So in the large picture, I just wanted to

         12  point out that we were very, very careful not to

         13  undermine manufacturing in the areas where there was

         14  an incredibly high concentration of jobs.

         15                 In the area where we are proposing

         16  mixed use, there are jobs.  There are over 2,000

         17  jobs in that area.  We found the largest industrial

         18  users in that area to be in the construction trades

         19  and food distribution, and other smaller shops.  All

         20  of the loft industrial uses in that area have gone

         21  over the past decade. The Mayor announced Industrial

         22  Policy Strategy last month and the ombudsman

         23  services that are available through that office will

         24  be available in the mixed use areas.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I guess
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          2  specifically I think one of the questions we left

          3  open, how many jobs could be at risk?

          4                 MS. MYER: As I mentioned, there are

          5  over 2,000 jobs in the areas where the mixed use

          6  designation --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: It mentioned

          8  that, so should I take that, that means that 2,000

          9  jobs are at risk?  Or do you have no estimate?

         10                 MS. MYER: We do not believe so, and

         11  the fact that in the Hunters Point rezoning and the

         12  Port Morris rezoning for mixed use, we have found

         13  that there is a stable level of job concentration.

         14  I think the thing to remember is these areas are

         15  already functioning as mixed use areas.  There are

         16  many areas where there are jobs throughout the East

         17  River waterfront, better than residential uses.  So

         18  we believe that the balance will be maintained.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: So, I should

         20  take that to mean no jobs are at risk in this point?

         21                 MS. MYER: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay.  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         25  Jackson.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good

          3  afternoon and thank you for allowing me to sit in on

          4  this very, very important hearing. Obviously it is

          5  very important just by the number of people that are

          6  here this afternoon.  And in fact, I passed a couple

          7  hundred people standing outside the gate trying to

          8  get in, so obviously it is a very, very important

          9  issue to many people that are here.  And I thank

         10  everyone for coming and paying attention to this

         11  very important matter.

         12                 It is important for me as a member of

         13  this City council, in fact the council will be

         14  voting on this one way or the other before the

         15  deadline that is set by the regulations.  And so I

         16  am glad to hear my colleagues, Council Members Diana

         17  Reyna and Council Member David Yassky, communicate

         18  their feelings about the proposed rezoning, because

         19  they are the ones that actually represents the area

         20  and not me.  So it is important to hear from people

         21  that represent the area.  So I am happy to hear

         22  their points of view on it.

         23                 But let me just raise the issue as

         24  far as jobs are concerned and about good paying

         25  union jobs.  In fact, --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          3  Jackson --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Sure, I am

          5  sorry.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have to make

          7  sure that this does not get out of hand.  I started

          8  at the beginning by saying there will be no

          9  applause, there will be no booing, because this will

         10  easily get out of hand.  I will stop the meeting at

         11  every time this happens.  I asked for your

         12  cooperation.  Sorry Council Member Jackson.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That is okay,

         14  and in fact I agree with you wholeheartedly, Mr.

         15  Chair.  It is very, very important that this hearing

         16  run orderly, and all the information is put out

         17  there so everyone can clearly understand it, and it

         18  be as transparent as possible.

         19                 But I believe we need an economic

         20  development policy that works for all New Yorkers,

         21  and that is why I introduce, if you are not aware,

         22  Intro 605, which will require recipients of the 421A

         23  Tax Abatement in Greenpoint- Williamsburg to pay

         24  their building service workers the prevailing wage.

         25  There is deep support for this legislation, and the
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          2  council in fact, just on the first day, 23 members

          3  of the City Council signed up on this legislation,

          4  the proposed legislation.

          5                 And before we pass this rezoning, we

          6  need the administration to agree to this

          7  legislation.  And in fact, obviously the rezoning,

          8  we will either pass it, or not pass it.  We either

          9  vote it up, or vote it down.  And as I said before,

         10  many people will be looking at Melinda Katz, who is

         11  the Chair of the Land Use Committee.  They will be

         12  looking at Tony Avella, the Chair of this particular

         13  committee, Diana Reyna and David Yassky, more

         14  specifically for their leads, as far as which way

         15  they should go. But I ask you that the

         16  administration support Intro 605 for prevailing ways

         17  for the building service workers, that will

         18  hopefully be hundreds of workers in that area, that

         19  will be servicing the buildings.

         20                 I do not know if you are aware of the

         21  Pratt Institute study that just recently came out on

         22  this particular matter.  If not, I will be glad to

         23  send you one.  It basically talks about an analysis

         24  of the prevailing wage of hundreds of building

         25  service workers versus non- union jobs.  And I will
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          2  just say to you, I said to my colleagues when I

          3  talked about this on the floor at the last stated

          4  meeting, that if you look at a prevailing wage, a

          5  prevailing wage will help employees to support their

          6  families, to provide a decent living for their

          7  families and health insurance, and benefits.

          8  Whereas a job, and I took out my calculator, if you

          9  look at, if you take out a calculator and said,

         10  well, why should employees be paid a prevailing

         11  wage, if you take out a calculator, okay, and look

         12  at what eight dollars an hour will pay, or ten

         13  dollars an hour will pay, that is not enough to work

         14  in New York City, as you know, today.  So I ask the

         15  administration to support Intro 605 and I ask any of

         16  your comments on that particular matter, in relation

         17  to a decent wage for employees that are, will be

         18  working in these buildings.

         19                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Thank you,

         20  Council Member. And I want to first assure you that

         21  the administration absolutely supports the goal of

         22  wages with -- decent jobs with decent wages. Our

         23  concern about the bill is that by linking that

         24  requirement to the 421A program, which is a program

         25  used around the City to encourage affordable
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          2  housing, that it sets the precedent that only in

          3  affordable housing, would it be required.  And we

          4  are concerned that if applied in areas where the

          5  exclusion zone exists, what you would end up with is

          6  market rate developments, not having that

          7  requirement, whereas affordable housing developments

          8  would.  And we think it works against the stated

          9  purposes that you have heard here from your

         10  colleagues, and I know you share that concern as

         11  well, to maximize the amount of affordable housing

         12  that is created.  So that is really our concern with

         13  the legislation, is the mechanism that it uses to

         14  get to that end, and we would like to discuss that

         15  more with you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I look

         17  forward to working with you and the administration

         18  in trying to bring about a plan that has the maximum

         19  amount affordable housing, and opening up park land,

         20  and also paying workers a prevailing wage.  So I

         21  look forward to working with you.  Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         24  Quinn.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.  In
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          2  deference to the one vote rule, I would just like to

          3  be associated with the comments of Council Member

          4  Jackson.  What did I say?  Oh, one vote. I do come

          5  from Hell's Kitchen where they say you know, vote

          6  early, and often.  So, sorry about that.  In the one

          7  question rule, still would like to be associated

          8  with the comments of Council Member Jackson.

          9                 My question is really on affordable

         10  housing.  You know, Council Member Yassky

         11  referenced, how do we know it is mandatory?  And

         12  that was of course a huge concern for me, and for

         13  all of us in Hudson Yards, and I think there we

         14  achieved it in some creative ways, by changing the

         15  bonus structure and in fact, instead of having two

         16  separate bonuses commingling them into one, adding

         17  in 421A and everything else except for the kitchen

         18  sink to make it attractive to developers and you

         19  know, even then, afterwards, after we finish, I have

         20  still heard from some developers that, I do not

         21  think it screws up our numbers, but for them, it is

         22  still not enough.  Or not enough to switch from say

         23  condos to rentals.

         24                 So, I share Councilman Yassky's

         25  concern that the inclusionary zoning as it is
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          2  structured today in Williamsburg- Greenpoint, does

          3  not end up even being back door mandatory or

          4  something we could guarantee, or something we could

          5  count with the sense of assurance so we would know

          6  what happened.  Because in the end, it does not

          7  matter in my opinion if it is -- as long as it is

          8  going to happen, and we know it is going to happen,

          9  whatever it is called.  I think we achieved then

         10  Hudson Yards.  I do not think the present plan

         11  achieves that today.  Unfortunately, with

         12  Williamsburg- Greenpoint even before you get to the

         13  issue of the strong desire to go beyond 23 to 40.

         14                 What else are you, the

         15  administration, considering to really make the

         16  guarantee something that the neighborhood can really

         17  bank on?  Because the unfortunate thing with zoning

         18  is, it is not like, if it does not happen, somebody

         19  has broken the law. We cannot go back and say, you

         20  know, we thought you were going to do it, you did

         21  not, so now we want the density back.  So what else

         22  is being considered similar perhaps to what we did

         23  on Hudson Yards? Because I do not think the

         24  guarantee is there enough, at all, yet.

         25                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: First of all I
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          2  would say that recognizing I think Chairwoman Katz's

          3  statement, that there is a month that we will be

          4  working with the Council, and I think the example in

          5  Hudson Yards, we were able to work very

          6  cooperatively and collaboratively, and to be

          7  creative about how to increase that level of

          8  guarantee.  And we will certainly be doing that

          9  here, and I think it is fair to say looking at all

         10  the same mechanisms, where they are available.  The

         11  one you mentioned about the bonus structure, is not

         12  available here to us.  But, I think there are others

         13  that we can look at that are, that we can find

         14  similar ways. My only comment about that, and I

         15  think the council will hopefully will recognize,

         16  that this is a very different neighborhood that we

         17  are talking about.  It is not acceptable in this

         18  neighborhood to go up to the 12 FAR and the high

         19  density levels that we went to in Hudson Yards.  The

         20  rent structure is very different.  We expect rents

         21  of about 36 dollars a square foot on the waterfront,

         22  substantially lower than what we were expecting in

         23  Hudson Yards. So while we can use the similar tools,

         24  I think the outcomes we need to expect will be

         25  somewhat different here, and that has made us look
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          2  in other directions.

          3                 And let me just give you one example,

          4  I do not want to bore you with all of the things

          5  that we have been looking at, because we have been

          6  looking at a number of them.  But you mentioned

          7  condominiums and the concern there.  We have heard

          8  the same issue, and we want to make sure, as I said

          9  in my opening, that where a developer chooses to do

         10  condominiums, they will also do affordable, as well.

         11    And so we have introduced, or are in the process

         12  of introducing legislation in Albany, that would

         13  allow inclusionary condominiums, essentially to, in

         14  a market rate development, here on the waterfront,

         15  we would expect, that many will choose to do market

         16  rate condominiums, that we will be able to combine

         17  that with 20 percent affordable rental units,

         18  permanently affordable rental units, within the very

         19  same development.  And so that is just one example

         20  of how we are trying to add flexibility and options

         21  that get to exactly your concern.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.  I

         23  mean, obviously the having a month, and not having

         24  to vote tomorrow or something, is certainly a

         25  benefit.  I would like to just say in closing, some
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          2  of the things you pointed out which make

          3  Williamsburg- Greenpoint very different than the far

          4  West Side, are actually reasons that for me as a

          5  member of the Zoning Committee, I am even more

          6  concerned about getting to different mechanisms

          7  which would create a sense of a guarantee.  Because

          8  I think some of the dynamics of Williamsburg-

          9  Greenpoint, versus the far West Side of Manhattan

         10  and what is going on there, make it even more

         11  important that we actually get stronger guarantees

         12  here.

         13                 So, I look forward with the

         14  leadership of the local members and Chairperson

         15  Avella and Chairperson Katz, on moving towards those

         16  over the next month, because I think they are even

         17  perhaps more important here.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Last question

         19  now, Council Member Martinez.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chair.  I also want to associate myself with the

         22  comments made by my colleague, Diana Reyna and

         23  Council Member Yassky.  As a member of the Full Land

         24  Use Committee, which we will be voting on this

         25  issue, but also as a Chair of the Disposition
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          2  Committee, the Subcommittee and Land Use and

          3  Disposition, I just wanted to ask Commissioner HPD,

          4  you mentioned that we have 13 public sights out of

          5  which 975 units will be produced, affordable units.

          6  Do you have the mechanism in which we are going to

          7  do the disposition of these properties for the

          8  development?  Are they going to be through one of

          9  the HPD programs that, one of the successful

         10  programs that HPD, or one of the many programs that

         11  HPD utilizes are for development of affordable

         12  housing, is that going to be a mechanism use?  And

         13  of the 13 public sites, how many are there if any on

         14  the waterfront?

         15                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: To your first

         16  question, we have been looking at the programs to

         17  use with those specific sites. We have not finalized

         18  those plans and I think as we move through the next

         19  month with the council, there will be, we are very

         20  open to having discussion about what exactly the

         21  disposition of those sites should be, in terms of

         22  the mix of income ranges, and things like that.  So

         23  if there is input there, that would change the plans

         24  of which programs we would use.  Once we determine

         25  specifically which programs would be used, then we
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          2  would be able to determine how they would be

          3  disposed of, whether it is through our RFP's or

          4  RFQ's, whether they be competing for State or

          5  Federal resources and go through those processes.

          6  So at this point, we cannot answer definitively,

          7  exactly how the disposition programs, or disposition

          8  process would work for those 13 sites.

          9                 In terms of your question about the

         10  waterfront versus in the Upland area, 430 of the 800

         11  units, affordable, would be located on the

         12  waterfront.  So it is the majority of them, that

         13  would be on the waterfront.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: But those

         15  are public sites.

         16                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Yes, those are

         17  the affordable units on the public sites.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Alright.

         19  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I just want to again that is

         20  a very important piece of information to have in

         21  terms of the public site which are City owned

         22  property which we, as Council Members, have to vote

         23  on for the disposition of it, and already HPD has

         24  various programs, successful programming, in terms

         25  of the guarantee of affordable housing, and it will
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          2  be key for us to have that information that we do

          3  not have now, in terms of what program you are going

          4  to be utilizing for the disposition, and if any of

          5  these properties are pending any subsidies either

          6  from Federal government or sold for, so that is a

          7  very key piece of information, I am looking at David

          8  Yassky, but he is not looking at me, to have.  Thank

          9  you, Commissioner.

         10                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         12  Vann.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Thank you,

         14  Chairman Avella.  I would reserve that the

         15  administration's presentation to most of us Council

         16  Members was impressive and almost cutting edge and

         17  would seem to be very forward looking.  And then we

         18  heard from the Council Members who represent the

         19  area, and they raise serious concerns in terms of

         20  meeting the needs of the community.  I have only

         21  observed that there is at least, if not a tradition,

         22  an inclination for council members to be very, very

         23  supportive of the members' position around issues

         24  like these.  So I would hope that by the time we get

         25  to a vote, there will be a meeting of the minds
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          2  between the subject council members and the

          3  administration's proposals.

          4                 Having said that, I would represent

          5  primarily Community Board Three, which is just south

          6  of where this development is being proposed.  I was

          7  wondering if you could give me some idea of what the

          8  impact would be on Community Board Three, if this

          9  rezoning was to go forward?  Or maybe none.

         10                 MS. MYER: We have looked at impacts

         11  only within the study area defined by the rezoning

         12  area.  We do not believe that there will be any

         13  negative impact at all on Community District Three.

         14  Obviously, the benefits in terms of waterfront

         15  reclamation and waterfront open space, will be open

         16  to not just all Brooklynites (sic.), but all New

         17  Yorkers.  But there will not be any specific

         18  negative effect at all in the communities of Bedford

         19  Stuyvescent.

         20                 COMMISSIONER DONOVAN: The only

         21  addition I would make to that is that we believe

         22  this rezoning, like many of the other re- zonings

         23  that we are looking at, are absolutely critical in

         24  terms of increasing the stock of housing that we

         25  have throughout the City.  One of the reasons we
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          2  have a three percent vacancy rate, rents are rising

          3  in New York City, is the dramatic shortage of

          4  housing that we have.  And this is one of the best

          5  opportunities that we have in the entire City, to

          6  increase the amount of housing that we have, and the

          7  amount of affordable housing.  And I think that will

          8  lower the pressure, and help to reduce the

          9  affordability crisis in communities throughout the

         10  City.  And so I do think that, that is a benefit,

         11  not just in your district, but in districts

         12  throughout the City.

         13                 MS. MYER: Council Member Vann, the

         14  one thing I also do want to add is that in

         15  partnership with HPD, City Planning, as you know, is

         16  looking at the zoning and housing opportunities,

         17  especially along Fulton Street and Herkimer Street

         18  in your district.  And that is something that we

         19  look forward to, speaking with you as soon as our

         20  work is at a point where we could have those

         21  conversations.  So that is, although not directly an

         22  effect of Greenpoint- Williamsburg, it is certainly

         23  a part of our partnership.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Looking forward

         25  to it.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  We

          3  have also been joined by our Council Member Simcha

          4  Felder, who thankfully, does not have a question.

          5  Oh now he has to ask.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: I demand a

          7  public apology.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I want to thank

          9  the members of the panel, Commissioners, and the

         10  City's presentation.  I happen to think it was an

         11  excellent presentation.  And one of the things as I

         12  mentioned in my opening statement, it is going to be

         13  a balancing act.  The needs of the City, the needs

         14  of the community and how can we weigh the various

         15  competing forces?  Because as we all know, many of

         16  the interests of the community reduced density,

         17  reduced height, but at the same time, affordable

         18  housing, and you get one at the expense of the

         19  other.  So at some point we will have follow up

         20  conversations after today.  Hopefully we will get

         21  all the public testimony in today.  Of course, you

         22  will be gone, we will be here, probably until

         23  breakfast.  But we will begin those negotiations and

         24  I want to thank you for your testimony.

         25                 We will now take testimony from two
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          2  elected officials, and then we will take a five

          3  minute break, and then we will proceed with the rest

          4  of the public testimony.  I would like to call up

          5  Congresswoman Nydia Velazquez first.  And then I

          6  will be calling up Brooklyn Borough President, Marty

          7  Markowitz.

          8                 MS. VELAZQUEZ: Good afternoon,

          9  Chairwoman Katz, Chairman Avella, members of the

         10  Zoning and Franchise Subcommittee. I am glad to be

         11  here today and I thank you for the opportunity to

         12  address the council on this very important land use

         13  rezoning issue, that will have a tremendous long

         14  term impact on the waterfront communities of

         15  Williamsburg- Greenpoint.

         16                 In addition, I strongly feel that the

         17  decision made on this matter will have, Mr. Vann,

         18  you asked the question about how this will impact

         19  your community.  Not only I think it will have an

         20  impact on the bordering communities, but also it

         21  will have a ripple effect across the City.

         22  Therefore, I urge you today to amend the City

         23  Planning's rezoning proposal for the Greenpoint-

         24  Williamsburg area.  Amending the proposal will

         25  enable the community to realize it is more than 20
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          2  years of hard work to preserve and stabilize their

          3  neighborhood for working class people alone with

          4  more open space and industrial users.

          5                 I would like to borrow a phrase from

          6  my Republican colleagues in the United States House

          7  of Representatives.  They always lecture us about

          8  the communities know better.  And in this case, the

          9  community knows better.  The vocal opposition from

         10  Community Board One, Council Members David Yassky

         11  and Diana Reyna, they are not Brooklyn alliance.

         12  Borough President, Marty Markowitz, public advocate,

         13  Betsy Gatton (phonetic), all the elected officials

         14  and urban planners, clearly demonstrates that the

         15  plan does not meet, and does not address the needs

         16  of Greenpoint- Williamsburg.

         17                 As public servants, we know there is

         18  an affordable housing crisis in New York City.  The

         19  waiting list for public housing has close to 137,000

         20  families.  The City shelters are full of working, I

         21  repeat, working families who, due to rising rents,

         22  have no homes.  In addition, it is unfortunate that

         23  today's young generation is unable to afford even a

         24  studio apartment.  And even worse, is the fact that

         25  senior citizens who should be celebrating their
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          2  golden years, are worried about eviction.  This my

          3  fellow colleagues, it is unacceptable, and it is

          4  immoral.

          5                 In the area of housing, the Planning

          6  Commission's plan fails to use inclusionary zoning

          7  as an effective tool to insure affordable housing.

          8  In the Community Board One area, the median

          9  household income is $28 thousand dollars.  In times

         10  of skyrocketing rents and increasing gap between

         11  wages and rent, it is critical for the rezoning plan

         12  to guarantee that 40 percent of the new units

         13  created will be affordable housing.  It is important

         14  to point out that this area has become desirable for

         15  residential development, because of the commitment

         16  by residents to their neighborhoods.

         17                 In addition, the City should extend

         18  its 421A Tax Abatement Exclusion zone to the

         19  Williamsburg- Greenpoint community. By doing so,

         20  developers will then be required to develop

         21  affordable housing units, in order to qualify for

         22  this tax abatement.

         23                 The impact of this rezoning project

         24  will be long term and immense.  As such, it is

         25  important for the City to establish a Williamsburg-
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          2  Greenpoint Waterfront Housing Development

          3  Corporation that will consist of community stake

          4  holders, representatives from local government, and

          5  elected officials.  This entity will be empowered to

          6  monitor the development of affordable housing,

          7  insure that all community agreements are adhered to,

          8  and identified the necessary infrastructure

          9  investment and appropriate community benefits.

         10                 The City's plan, Mr. Chairman, also

         11  favors hi- rise development, some as tall as 40

         12  stories.  The scale and character of any new

         13  development, should be governed by sound urban

         14  design principals that we address based on City

         15  height and bulk, as well as variations in tower

         16  placement, in order to avoid a wall of buildings

         17  obstructing access to the waterfront and open space.

         18  There must be limits to compliment existing building

         19  heights. Rather than supporting the local economy

         20  and encouraging existing area businesses, the

         21  rezoning plan jeopardizes approximately 4,000 blue

         22  collared jobs in over 220 businesses.  These jobs

         23  are held by residents who walk to work and have

         24  developed a business network with other nearby

         25  entrepreneurs in similar fields.  This is the time
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          2  when our economy continues to struggle to replace

          3  the jobs that we lost.  Displacing businesses and

          4  losing jobs will do so much damage to the local

          5  economy.  It is this diverse, creative energy that

          6  exists among old and new businesses that has to

          7  contributed to the Williamsburg- Greenpoint niche in

          8  commercial revitalization.

          9                 The rezoning plan calls for public

         10  access to the waterfront and open space and park

         11  land.  However, the City's plan falls short, in

         12  providing adequate amounts of open space when

         13  compared to the projected population increase.

         14  Similar to the Hudson Yard rezoning in Manhattan,

         15  the City should allocate future capital funds for

         16  open space and other related needs.  Personally, I

         17  have already taken steps to make the waterfront

         18  accessible to the waterfront communities I

         19  represent, from Newtown Creek to Bayridge.

         20                 Recently, I was able to secure more

         21  than 25 million dollars in funding to create a

         22  waterfront green way that will stretch from

         23  Greenpoint, through Brooklyn Heights, and into

         24  Sunset Park.  Now the community needs your support

         25  so that they can enjoy it.
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          2                 This City, Mr. Chairman, cannot,

          3  cannot afford to have an economy solely dependant on

          4  the development of new height and residential

          5  development.  In the neighborhoods of Bayside,

          6  Throgs Neck and Bayridge, all middle class or

          7  better, mostly white community, this City has down

          8  zoned, due to concerns that over development was

          9  having on this neighborhood.  If it is good for

         10  those neighborhoods, it should be good for

         11  Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  The communities of

         12  Williamsburg and Greenpoint deserve, and must have,

         13  the same consideration and respect from this City.

         14                 Therefore, today, I urge you, and I

         15  encourage all the members of the City Council to

         16  oppose the rezoning plan and instead, amend it to

         17  insure that the residents of this community benefit

         18  from any plan.  Real prospect for affordable

         19  housing, good jobs and you need a written agreement

         20  about good jobs.  Open space, access to the

         21  waterfront, and a desirable neighborhood in which to

         22  continue to raise their family.

         23                 For more than 20 years, the concerned

         24  residents of Williamsburg- Greenpoint have worked on

         25  a community plan that provides a bottom mix of land
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          2  uses, which are responsive to the existing cultural

          3  heritage and unique manufacturing and environmental

          4  futures within the designated communities.  It will

          5  be a great disservice for the City Council to

          6  approve the Department of City Planning's proposal,

          7  without considering the communities proposal

          8  recommendation, and especially those that have been

          9  discussed and presented by the two City Council

         10  members from the area.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you do that

         12  again, I will ask you to leave.  I am serious about

         13  this.  You will respect each speaker, you will not

         14  applaud, you will not boo.  You are all fellow New

         15  Yorkers.  If you cannot control yourself, I will ask

         16  you to leave.  Because if I allow the people who

         17  applaud, then I have to allow the people who boo.

         18  Now conduct yourself appropriately. I have said this

         19  once, I am not going to say it again.

         20                 Thank you, Congresswoman.

         21                 MS. VELAZQUEZ: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chairman.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can we get a copy

         24  of your statement?

         25                 Borough President, Marty Markowitz,
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          2  after which we will take a five minute break.

          3                 MR. MARKOWITZ: Thank you very, very

          4  much for inviting me and allowing me to speak this

          5  afternoon with each and every one of you.  I

          6  especially want to thank the residents of our

          7  community that join us, as well.  Believe me, they

          8  took off from their work and families to be here,

          9  but it is worth it, it is their future, and it is

         10  the future of Brooklyn.

         11                 Today, the Greenpoint- Williamsburg

         12  waterfront is a treasure waiting discovery and re-

         13  discovery.  The plan before you will achieve new

         14  housing.  But what kind of housing?  And for whom?

         15  Not affordable housing for current residents of the

         16  area. Regarding the delicate balance between where

         17  to provide housing and where to preserve jobs, and

         18  support the burgeoning creative economy, I am

         19  pleased that the council is carefully revisiting

         20  this issue, rather than just adopting the

         21  recommendations of the City Planning Commission.

         22                 I know that you understand how

         23  important the area is to Brooklyn, and I know that

         24  you want to do the right thing, because I know just

         25  about every member of the City Council.
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          2                 I also know that this is not easy,

          3  that these are tough negotiations involved, and that

          4  you are trying to balance many competing interests.

          5                 As public officials, we all have an

          6  obligation to those we represent, to preserve what

          7  is especially unique about Brooklyn.  And that is,

          8  not only our ethnic diversity, but our income

          9  diversity.  What makes Brooklyn, Brooklyn, and so

         10  very special, is that we are big town, small town.

         11  And we want to preserve that quality for all the

         12  years to come.  And therefore I believe that

         13  affordable housing must be our first concern.

         14                 Today, long term residents of

         15  Williamsburg and Greenpoint, as you have heard

         16  already, are being priced out of their homes,

         17  including those whose contributions of sweat equity,

         18  created a vibrant community from one in decline.

         19                 You know, it is no secret that a lot

         20  of residents, some residents of Brooklyn, made an

         21  awful mistake and left Brooklyn, made a terrible

         22  mistake.  That is, the bottom line is that these

         23  folks that you see here today, are those that were

         24  wise before their times.  And they understood that

         25  Brooklyn was worth fighting for, and we are here to
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          2  say to them, that as we continue to move ahead and

          3  flourish and prosper, you will be, not only part of

          4  yesterday, but you will be part of today, and all

          5  the years to come.

          6                 What we are doing is protecting these

          7  residents who fought so hard to make sure that this

          8  neighborhood was going in the right direction.  And

          9  now that the Brooklyn real estate market is a hot

         10  commodity, should they be ignored, displaced and

         11  disrespected?  You know what my answer is.

         12  Absolutely not, and I know that you share that with

         13  me.

         14                 And that is why I urge you to

         15  incorporate it into the rezoning plan, the anti-

         16  harassment text recommended by Community Board

         17  Number One, and to ensure that 50 percent difference

         18  of affordable units reserved for current residents,

         19  is extended to those who become displaced after the

         20  zoning change.

         21                 Now we get to the heart of the

         22  matter, the need for more affordable housing.  Right

         23  now, the overwhelming majority of area residents, 86

         24  percent rent their homes.  Of these, almost all of

         25  them, 80 percent, pay less than $750 dollars a month
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          2  for their rent.  I do not have to tell you that the

          3  rents for the new apartments will be at least twice,

          4  twice?- quadruple the amount that I have just told

          5  you that most of us are paying.  In the best of all

          6  worlds, I would want an 80- 20 solution for housing,

          7  80- percent being affordable for Brooklyn residents.

          8                 And that is what it would be if the

          9  State and Federal government cared one bit about

         10  Brooklyn and New York City. However, I recognize

         11  that during this era in Washington and Albany, that

         12  is not about to change any time soon.  And the harsh

         13  economic reality's today, and that is why I have

         14  asked for a guaranteed minimum of 30 percent

         15  affordable housing, guaranteed.  The council should

         16  insist that the proposed voluntary bonus increase,

         17  as a proportion of the overall development reducing

         18  the amount of square feet that can be developed as

         19  of right.  However, even more should be done.  I

         20  urge you to set the following conditions for

         21  approval of the rezoning plan.

         22                 Development of the publicly

         23  controlled sites entirely for affordable housing.

         24                 Legislation to exclude the granting

         25  of 421A Tax Abatements for new residential.
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          2                 Development at Greenpoint-

          3  Williamsburg, unless the projects include affordable

          4  housing.

          5                 The fate of the Williamsburg-

          6  Greenpoint Waterfront Committee is in your hands.

          7                 I am optimistic that with your

          8  leadership, with the Brooklyn delegation to the City

          9  Council, and the outstanding leadership of our

         10  speaker, Gifford Miller, that the final plan will be

         11  won, that I will enthusiastically be able to

         12  support.

         13                 We have a clear choice.  We can

         14  gamble on some pie in the sky hope that incentives

         15  will generate affordable housing that the community

         16  needs.  Or we can carefully craft a plan that

         17  guarantees fairness, equity and the very best use

         18  and possible benefit and the greatest benefit, to

         19  the entire community.

         20                 This is valuable property in every

         21  sense of the word.  Congresswoman said something

         22  interesting outside.  For many of these developers,

         23  they did not even know that we had a Greenpoint-

         24  Williamsburg Community.  They did not even know

         25  where that bridge was.  And suddenly they see the
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          2  promise land that we Brooklynites always knew was

          3  there.  We want to keep it that way for all the

          4  generations to come.  It must be enjoyed not only by

          5  those who have been able to amass financial wealth,

          6  but by those whose wealth of spirit, family, faith

          7  and community, is invested in Brooklyn, and in our

          8  great City.

          9                 In deciding, I urge you to remember

         10  that most of us, and by the way, I hope you

         11  understand this, for sure, where all of us just

         12  about in this room, are working people.  Only a few

         13  paychecks away from displacement ourselves.

         14                 It is the responsibility of all

         15  elected officials to take the needs of all of our

         16  constituents into account.  I have no doubt that the

         17  council will.  I look to your leadership and I want

         18  to end it by saying, we have a chance right now,

         19  members of the council.  We can show the rest of

         20  urban America that we get it right here in Brooklyn,

         21  because we can make a statement with Williamsburg-

         22  Greenpoint that will be the blueprint for the rest

         23  of America.  Thank you very, very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you,

         25  Borough President.
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          2  We will now take a five minute break and then we

          3  will begin with the rest of the public hearing.

          4                 Once again I would appreciate

          5  everybody's cooperation.  This is going to be a long

          6  public hearing.  We will be here for at least three

          7  hours.  The faster and more concise your statements

          8  are, the more that you adhere to the time limit, the

          9  faster this will move along and insure that

         10  everybody gets an opportunity to speak.  And I will

         11  stay here as long as I have to. The one thing I do

         12  not want to have happen, is where at some point, it

         13  is so late that staff has to go home, the Sergeant-

         14  at- Arms has to go home and then I have to say to

         15  some people who have been the unfortunate ones to

         16  stay to the end, guess what, you are going to have

         17  to come back another day after waiting three or four

         18  hours. I do not want that situation to occur, so I

         19  want everybody's cooperation.  If after an hour and

         20  a half, some of you are sitting there and you have

         21  heard some of the things and you agree with them,

         22  and you just want to have your name entered into the

         23  record, go to the Seargent- at- Arms, we will do

         24  that.  Because I think, pretty much, and you may not

         25  agree with me, we pretty well know what the issues
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          2  are at this point.  I mean, I think the Council

          3  members, Diana Reyna, David Yassky, myself, Melinda

          4  Katz, the speaker's office, and the administration,

          5  we are all well aware of what the issues are.  So

          6  your presence here today, in and of itself, is a

          7  statement.

          8                 With that, I would like to clear the

          9  first row there.  Because once we get set up with

         10  the panels, we are going to do a panel in a favor,

         11  we are going to do a panel in opposition. As I call

         12  the panel that is speaking, I will then call the

         13  next panel so that they can start to move up and sit

         14  in the front row. So that we are not waiting for

         15  people to get out of their seat and move up, because

         16  that will take three to five minutes.  So we are

         17  going to keep calling panels.  The panel will speak.

         18    There will be the next panel seated in chairs.

         19  When the first panel clears, the next panel will

         20  sit.  I will then call the next one and we will have

         21  it in a continual motion.  Meanwhile, we have not

         22  figured out who the second panel is yet, but the

         23  first panel is Ken Fisher, Kathy Wylde and Don

         24  Elliott.  And Ken, do you want to go first?

         25                 And remember, everybody has two
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          2  minutes.

          3                 MR. FISHER: Thank you Mr. Chairman,

          4  members of the committee.  I have a more formal

          5  statement that I will ask the Seargent- at- Arms to

          6  distribute to you.

          7                 My name is Ken Fisher and for ten

          8  years I had the privilege of representing this

          9  district in the city council.  I think I have

         10  thought as much about the issues that are the

         11  subject of this hearing, as anyone in this room.  I

         12  have go the scars to show.  Some of the battles that

         13  this community has gone through, and I am here to

         14  ask you with all of the passion and logic that I can

         15  muster, to approve in substance, and in whole, this

         16  plan.  I know, better than most, that you will go

         17  through a deliberative process of the plans, the

         18  better plan that it was when the administration

         19  first started it, it will be a better plan when you

         20  are finished with it.  But please do not let the

         21  perfect veto the good.  We simply cannot afford to

         22  have acres of brown fields on the Brooklyn

         23  waterfront.  We simply cannot afford as a community,

         24  as Brooklyn, as a City, we simply cannot afford to

         25  have every environmental insult in the City piled up
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          2  on one neighborhood, on people who do not have the

          3  benefit of a residential zoning.

          4                 And quite frankly, this is a

          5  wonderful opportunity to create some waterfront

          6  parks, to create new housing, it is a balance plan,

          7  it emphasizes good design, I think it is one that

          8  deserves your respect.

          9                 I would be happy to answer any

         10  questions.  I know that time is limited, but you can

         11  imagine, I have a lot to say about this, having

         12  sponsored the 197A Plan, having created the first

         13  waterfront parks, having fought for the Schaefer

         14  Landing Project, which many people point to as a

         15  model, but which unfortunately they did not support

         16  when we first proposed it.  So, in sum, and with my

         17  nine seconds remaining, I would say to you that this

         18  is a terrific opportunity, and one that we simply

         19  cannot afford to let go by.

         20                 MS. WYLDE: Okay.  Kathy Wylde with

         21  the Partnership for New York City.  We are a

         22  business organization with City- wide interests in

         23  the economy, and also with a history of involvement

         24  with support of production of affordable housing and

         25  industrial retention in Greenpoint- Williamsburg.
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          2                 We strongly support the proposed

          3  rezoning resolution before you, and there are just a

          4  couple of points that I wanted to make that I think

          5  are particularly important in that regard.

          6                 First, that our current zoning

          7  resolution created in 1961 is obsolete.  It deals

          8  with smoke stack industries.  It assumes that

          9  manufacturing cannot co- exist with residential and

         10  commercial uses.  That has proved not to be correct.

         11    A great example is the Pfizer Project in East

         12  Williamsburg, where we built a strong residential

         13  community and integrated it with manufacturing

         14  tenant as an anchor.

         15                 Second concern is that after 40 years

         16  of protecting these zoning policies, we have to

         17  conclude that they have been ineffective in

         18  protecting manufacturing.  We have to take other

         19  steps.  We have to recognize that the character of

         20  our industrial housing stock, multi level industrial

         21  buildings, is not consistent with the needs of many

         22  manufacturers, and is often more appropriate for

         23  conversion.  I was personally involved in the

         24  seventies with the conversion of the old AMF

         25  building into Lutheran Medical Center.  Today, that
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          2  hospital provides 4700 jobs, and is the anchor of a

          3  residential rebirth in surrounding neighborhoods.

          4  So change is in use in our Brooklyn neighborhoods

          5  are not necessarily negative.  They can be very

          6  positive and re- use can be constructive.

          7                 And finally, I would like to say that

          8  the affordable housing proposal that is brought

          9  forward today is the first time the boroughs have

         10  been included, the other boroughs, beyond luxury

         11  areas of Manhattan, have been included in

         12  inclusionary zoning that supports affordable

         13  housing, provides cross subsidies.  This is a very

         14  important step forward.  A dozen years ago, it was

         15  impossible to think of a profit being generated to

         16  support cross subsidies and neighborhood amenities.

         17  This is important, and it is important that we move

         18  in a timely fashion to support this, while the

         19  market is working in our favor.  Thank you.

         20                 MR. ELLIOT: My name is Donald Elliot.

         21  I was Chairman of the Planning Commission for almost

         22  six years.  I am a resident of Brooklyn and I rise

         23  to support this plan.

         24                 I think what has happened here is

         25  extremely important first of all, procedural grounds
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          2  which I would like to at least touch on.  And that

          3  is, this is a plan which has gone through the ULURP

          4  Procedure, which has gone through the City process,

          5  which has not been delegated to the State over rule

          6  of local communities. And there are far too many

          7  where that has happened.

          8                 I think the plan is not perfect, but

          9  it is the result of a very careful, very useful

         10  process, that has gone on for a very long time.  And

         11  it is clear that essentially everybody agrees that

         12  the existing zoning is inappropriate.  And the great

         13  struggle, as I understand it now, is over how much

         14  affordable housing and how do we guarantee it?  This

         15  is not an easy matter and it is one on which

         16  everybody is looking for ways to increase the amount

         17  of affordable housing.

         18                 I believe that in the course of the

         19  negotiations that will go on with the council over

         20  the course of the next month, that a reasonable

         21  compromise on that will be reached.  And at that

         22  point, it is very clear that this plan should be

         23  passed.  This is an opportunity which is my two

         24  esteemed colleagues have pointed out.  We should not

         25  miss and if we do miss, it will be a very serious
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          2  detriment to the City of New York, as well as to the

          3  Borough of Brooklyn.

          4                 So, I urge you to make appropriate

          5  compromises that may be necessary, but at the end of

          6  the day, please pass this rezoning.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

          8  first panel in opposition will be Vincent Abate,

          9  Chair of Brooklyn One, Nina Englander, representing

         10  Assemblyman Vito Lopez, Loren Talbat from the

         11  Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance and Richard Mazur,

         12  from the North Brooklyn Alliance.

         13                 I know the community had submitted a

         14  list of possible panels.  However, the slips that we

         15  have do not match up with the panels, so I am going

         16  to have to do the best that I can to figure this

         17  out, and call organizations and elected officials

         18  first.

         19                 There should be four people, why are

         20  there four -- okay.

         21                 MR. ABATE: Good afternoon.  My name

         22  is Vinvent V. Abate, Chairman of Community Board

         23  Number One, Brooklyn.

         24                 When the Brooklyn Queens -- okay,

         25  thank you.
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          2                 Good afternoon, I will repeat it.

          3  Good afternoon, my name is Vincent V. Abate,

          4  Chairman of Community Board Number One, Brooklyn.

          5                 When the Brooklyn Queens Expressway

          6  tore through our community, we got together and

          7  rebuilt our two and three family homes around it,

          8  and survived.

          9                 When the waste transfer stations

         10  deemed us their capital, we fought back and won.

         11                 When the power plants tried to

         12  invade, we conquered one, and are in the process of

         13  defeating another.

         14                 But this battle far exceeds the

         15  mortar and brick much talked about in the press.

         16  The continuance of this community as we know it, and

         17  the allowance of its tenured stakeholders to remain

         18  domiciled here, is now at stake.

         19                 I have lived in this community for

         20  almost 87 years and have seen the many faces and

         21  colors of our people.  Where can they go when these

         22  rents are raised three fold?  Which developer will

         23  be the first to offer up affordable housing?

         24                 How many residents have already been

         25  gentrified out of the community and how many jobs
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          2  will be lost to the wrecking ball of so called

          3  progress?

          4                 The administration has offered up a

          5  plan that fails to meet the basic needs of our

          6  community.  We are counting on the compassion of

          7  this body to save our community.

          8                 You are about to hear the cold facts

          9  from learned members of my community, why this plan

         10  should be rejected as proposed, or approved as

         11  modified.

         12                 The fate of my community is in your

         13  hands and I sincerely thank you for your

         14  consideration.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         16  speaker.  And I also appreciate the fact that you

         17  actually finished before the two minutes were up.

         18                 MS. ENGLANDER: Good afternoon.  My

         19  name is Nina Englander.  I am here representing

         20  Assemblyman Lopez. Unfortunately the Assemblyman is

         21  in Albany, but I am happy to be here to speak on his

         22  behalf.

         23                 I am here to voice Assemblyman

         24  Lopez's strong opposition to the current rezoning

         25  proposal.  Our concerns are centered around the
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          2  essential issues of displacement and affordable

          3  housing.  Unless the council can make significant

          4  improvements to the affordable housing component of

          5  the plan, we urge you to reject rezoning proposal.

          6                 The plan introduces thousands of new

          7  luxury units into the poor and working class

          8  neighborhoods in Williamsburg and Greenpoint.

          9  Without protection from displacement and the

         10  creation of new affordable units, community members

         11  will be displaced, and the character of their

         12  neighborhood will be overwhelmingly altered.

         13                 The rezoning proposal provides no

         14  real guarantee that a sufficient percentage of the

         15  new housing will be affordable to community

         16  residents.  It is essential that this proposal

         17  create a real guarantee that at least 40 percent of

         18  all 10,000 newly constructed units are affordable to

         19  community residents.  The 40 percent should comprise

         20  25 percent affordable units on the waterfront, 15

         21  percent affordable units Upland, and an additional

         22  1500 on public land.

         23                 This threshhold can be met in a

         24  number of ways. First, it is essential to create a

         25  421A Tax Abatement Exclusionary. And Assemblyman
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          2  Lopez has introduced such legislation into the

          3  assembly, A6878, and that mandates that developers

          4  can receive that exclusion, only if they build at

          5  least 20 percent of their on site units affordable.

          6  We are asking the council to support this

          7  legislation with the resolution.

          8                 Secondly, we stand with the community

          9  in demanding that the base FAR is lowered from 4.0

         10  to 3.0, in order to create a substantial density

         11  bonus.  And it is also incredibly important that a

         12  significant number of the units are built on site.

         13  We do not want to exclude the low and moderate

         14  income people from the waterfront, and it is

         15  essential to have well integrated market rate and

         16  affordable units throughout the rezoning area.

         17                 In conclusion, I have submitted

         18  remarks that are more in depth, but we are also

         19  advocating for the creation of a Waterfront Housing

         20  Development Corporation, to oversee the development

         21  of the affordable units, and we reiterate that if

         22  significant improvements to the affordable housing

         23  piece are not made, we urge the council to reject

         24  this proposal.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next speaker.

                                                            211

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  Thank you.

          3                 MR. MAZUR: Thank you.  Good

          4  afternoon, Chairwoman Katz, Chairman Avella and

          5  honorable friends and members of the City Council.

          6  My name is Richard Mazur and I am speaking today on

          7  behalf of the North Brooklyn Alliance, which is a

          8  coalition of 43 community organizations and

          9  religious institutions, that join together to insure

         10  that the City's rezoning proposal for Greenpoint-

         11  Williamsburg, truly benefits the people who live and

         12  work in our community.

         13                 In response to unrelenting pressure

         14  from our community and its elected officials, the

         15  Department of City Planning has made some changes to

         16  its original plan.  But unfortunately, these changes

         17  have not gone quite far enough to meet our basic

         18  community needs on several crucial fronts.  For this

         19  reason, the North Brooklyn Alliance strongly

         20  recommends that the City Council modify the

         21  Department of City Planning's rezoning proposal for

         22  Greenpoint- Williamsburg, in order to achieve the

         23  community's long standing in fundamental community

         24  development goals.  The City Council approved plan

         25  must guarantee 40 percent affordable housing, create
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          2  additional waterfront park land, and immediately

          3  develop continuous public waterfront esplanade,

          4  preserve thousands, at least 4,000, local

          5  industrial, commercial and artisanal jobs, and limit

          6  the height of the waterfront towers to 15 to 20

          7  stories.

          8                 These principals have universal

          9  support and are based on the recommendations of the

         10  Greenpoint and Williamsburg 197A plans, which have

         11  already been approved by City Planning and City

         12  Council, as well as, Brooklyn Community Board One's

         13  unanimously approved response to the City's rezoning

         14  proposal, and the Brooklyn Borough president who you

         15  heard, recommended modifications submitted to the

         16  City Planning Commission.  Taking together these

         17  four principals, will lay the foundation for

         18  integrating the under utilized North Brooklyn

         19  Waterfront back into the Upland neighborhoods for

         20  the benefit of the entire community, maintain the

         21  unique mixed use and mixed income character of

         22  Greenpoint and Williamsburg, and actually meet Mayor

         23  Bloomberg's stated affordable housing economic

         24  development waterfront revitalization goals, and

         25  simply create a better plan.
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          2                 The council has unique and historic

          3  opportunity to create a better rezoning plan that

          4  benefits all the people of Greenpoint and

          5  Williamsburg.  This plan will also serve as a model

          6  for the City in transition, a blueprint for

          7  initiating public access, that not only stimulate

          8  private development, but also levers this

          9  development to create affordable housing.  This is

         10  the very essence of what has made the City great in

         11  the past, maintaining our neighborhoods.  And we can

         12  keep the City great in the future maintaining a

         13  viable attractive and liveable City for all

         14  residents and visitors alike.  The future of North

         15  Brooklyn, New York City is now in your hands.  On

         16  behalf of the North Brooklyn Alliance, I thank you.

         17                 MR. ALAHOSKY (phonetic): Chris

         18  Alahosky, Chairman of the Rezoning Task plus

         19  Community Board One over the last two years,

         20  presently at HUD Committee for Rezoning.  I have

         21  submitted some -- Oh, I am sorry, I thought you did.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I do not believe

         23  I called you. Will you please take a seat?

         24                 MR. ALAHOSKY: Christopher Alahosky,

         25  Chairman of the rezoning Task Force?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No, I did not

          3  call you, sir.

          4                 MR. ALAHOSKY: Okay.  That came with

          5  the chair.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please take a

          7  seat.

          8                 If I allow that to happen, then

          9  anybody can walk up -- no, sorry.  Is there a -- I

         10  called a Loren -- Okay, that is why there was --

         11                 MS. TALBAT: Good afternoon.  My name

         12  is Loren Talbat and I am an East River advocate for

         13  the Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance, which is a

         14  project of the Municipal Arts Society.

         15                 Like Commissioner Benepe and

         16  Commissioner Burden said, this rezoning represents

         17  one of the first opportunities for Brooklyn

         18  residents to reconnect with the long neglected

         19  waterfront. However I echo with my colleagues at

         20  this table and at the Municipal Arts Society, and

         21  the elected officials which spoke before me, that

         22  this proposal needs drastic improvement before being

         23  adopted.

         24                 We believe that a public management

         25  strategy of the waterfront open space is critical,
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          2  to ensure our truly public park system.  City

          3  Planning recently amended the zoning text to allow

          4  for the creation of community organization to

          5  oversee the management of a shore public walkway.

          6  We applaud them for this action, and believe that

          7  the effort should begin now to create a park

          8  conservancy, to insure public management on this two

          9  mile esplanade.

         10                 Greenpoint and Williamsburg have not

         11  been given their fair share of water uses.  Directly

         12  across from these communities, lie the East River

         13  Park, and the Stuy Cove Park, with plans for fishing

         14  area, a continuous bike path, and an education

         15  center in a nearby marina.

         16                 We believe that the rezoning proposal

         17  should include innovative opportunities for

         18  increasing the water amenities designed for these

         19  communities, and through capital funding and public

         20  ownership.

         21                 Additionally, insuring that

         22  neighborhood streets extend to the esplanade,

         23  guarantees the publicly accessible waterfront, as

         24  well as provide an access for park vehicles. Without

         25  plans for extending the street grid, access can be

                                                            216

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  largely prohibited to Upland communities.

          3                 We strongly believe that this entity

          4  be created as soon as possible, and that we insure

          5  that their truly public access can be allowed for

          6  these communities.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          8  panel in favor is Frank Braconi from the Citizens

          9  Housing and Planning Council, Bill Frey from the

         10  Enterprise Foundation and Bernie Carr.

         11                 While they are being seated, the next

         12  panel in opposition which I would appreciate sitting

         13  in the front row, Adam Friedman, Siri Wilson, Eve

         14  Sibley, and Phil DePaolo.  Sir?

         15                 I have to tell you, it is amazing how

         16  everybody wants to go first.  It is not happening.

         17                 MR. FREY: Good afternoon.  My name is

         18  Bill Frey.  I am senior Vice President of the

         19  Enterprise Foundation, a national non- profit

         20  organization that invests in, and works with,

         21  community- based developers to build and preserve

         22  affordable housing.  We opened an office in 1987,

         23  and since that time have invested more than a

         24  billion dollars in equity loans and grants towards

         25  the creation of over 18,000 units of affordable
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          2  housing. Enterprise has offices in 16 cities around

          3  the country and there is no better example of what

          4  can, and should be done, to develop affordable

          5  housing, than the public private partnership

          6  exemplified in New York City.  Enterprise has always

          7  had a terrific working relationship with HPD dating

          8  back to 1987, with the implementation of what was

          9  initially the Koch administration's ten year housing

         10  plan.  The City of New York was then, and continues

         11  to be, a national leader and innovator in its

         12  commitment to affordable housing.  At one point HPD

         13  had over 100,000 units of City- owned housing.  Now

         14  there are less than 3500 units.  This was

         15  accomplished over the last 17 years through the

         16  City's investment of $6.3 billion dollars leveraging

         17  at least an additional 6.3 billion of private

         18  investment, in the development of hundreds of

         19  thousands of affordable homes.

         20                 Over the last three years, the

         21  Bloomberg administration has continued to

         22  demonstrate its commitment to housing, specifically

         23  through its promise to develop 65,000 units of

         24  housing, including 12,000 units of supportive

         25  housing, and through continued re- investment of New
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          2  York City neighborhoods.  As a result of the City's

          3  commitment, Enterprise New York has pledged to

          4  invest a billion dollars by 2009, to help the City

          5  build and preserve 15,000 of those units,

          6  specifically, the affordable units.

          7                 We recognize that the City's success

          8  in redeveloping and disposing of its property, has

          9  helped revitalize neighborhoods, and also rekindled

         10  the investment in the interest of the private sector

         11  and market to these neighborhoods.  Construction of

         12  housing in our outer boroughs has dramatically

         13  increased with building permits being at their

         14  highest levels in 32 years.  There has been an

         15  increase in land values by as much as 40 percent in

         16  one year.

         17                 The challenges to develop affordable

         18  housing with strong real estate market continue, and

         19  therefore the innovations and resources are

         20  critical.  Mayor Bloomberg's support for continued

         21  Federal funding is important, Section 8 vouchers,

         22  CDBG and HUD funds are being threatened, and the

         23  administration strongly oppose any of these

         24  cutbacks.

         25                 Housing advocates have played a
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          2  critical role in the remarkable revitalization that

          3  has taken place in all five boroughs over the past

          4  20 years.  The rezoning of Greenpoint- Williamsburg

          5  will provide an unprecedented opportunity for much

          6  needed affordable housing in the City.  Targeting

          7  incentives and inclusionary zoning for Greenpoint-

          8  Williamsburg and the Hudson Yards development is a

          9  critical opportunity to maximize affordable housing

         10  opportunities in these neighborhoods.  Opportunities

         11  like this do not come along very often, which is why

         12  it is so critically important to take advantage of

         13  it, with a comprehensive and far reaching plan.  I

         14  want to commend the City for its continued

         15  leadership to provide affordable housing.

         16                 MR. CARR: Good afternoon.  My name is

         17  Bernie Carr. I am the Executive Director of the New

         18  York State Association for Affordable Housing.

         19  Thank you for the opportunity to testify here this

         20  afternoon.

         21                 NYSAFAH is a state- wide organization

         22  of developers and others involved in the financing

         23  and building of affordable housing.  The bulk of our

         24  250 members, work throughout New York City's five

         25  boroughs, and are collectively responsible for most
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          2  of the housing built here with the City, State or

          3  Federal subsidies. Since we are developers and not

          4  policy people, it is difficult for us to judge the

          5  optimal number of affordable units that an

          6  inclusionary zoning program should provide.  But to

          7  be effective, an inclusionary plan must offer

          8  sufficient incentives to developers, while at the

          9  same time remaining flexible enough to adapt to New

         10  York's ever changing housing market.  A program that

         11  only works during a strong market, such as we are

         12  experiencing today, could actually serve as a

         13  disincentive to development when the market takes an

         14  inevitable down turn.

         15                 The inclusionary program outlined in

         16  the rezoning plan, is broad enough to meet varying

         17  market conditions.  At the same time we strongly

         18  believe that the plan, which allows developers to

         19  incorporate existing housing subsidy programs with

         20  the zoning bonus, contains sufficient incentives for

         21  developers to use it.  In fact, several of our

         22  members have long history of affordable housing

         23  development are in conversation right now regarding

         24  waterfront sites.

         25                 One important aspect of the plan will
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          2  allow the developers to provide the affordable

          3  units, by building new, or preserving existing units

          4  off site, within the community.  This will give

          5  market rate developers an incentive to work with

          6  experienced affordable housing developers and

          7  managers, both for profit, and not for profit, to

          8  provide the affordable units. Involving responsible

          9  members of the affordable housing industry, will

         10  ensure that these units are not merely an after

         11  thought to the market development.

         12                 Finally, as I have testified here

         13  before, affordable housing typically operates on

         14  very slim profit margins, and the developments

         15  envisioned under this plan, is no exception to that

         16  rule.  I urge the council not to pass legislation

         17  that would require prevailing wages for either the

         18  construction or operation of affordable

         19  developments, which would have the effect of

         20  discouraging exactly what this program is trying to

         21  encourage.

         22                 MR. BRACONI: Thank you.  I have

         23  prepared comments but I will just submit them and

         24  cut right to the chase.

         25                 We like this proposal quite a bit.

                                                            222

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  There have certainly been improvements in it since

          3  it was first initiated, but we think they have come

          4  a long way.  It is very important to do these kind

          5  of re- zonings of unutilized land, and create new

          6  residential opportunities here in the City.  Very

          7  important for the City's future to do so.

          8                 We are very gratified that the City

          9  is moved toward inclusionary housing.  These are a

         10  number of firsts that I heard Kathy Wylde

         11  mentioning, and she is quite right.  It serves as a

         12  precedent hopefully of our future more aggressive

         13  and wider use of inclusionary housing throughout the

         14  City, and in that regard, we are very encouraged

         15  that the City has come, agencies have come along to

         16  where they are.

         17                 We hope now that, you know there is a

         18  little fear that we snatched on defeat from the jaws

         19  of victory in this rezoning, and tried to over

         20  reach.  I do think that the projections that the

         21  City is talking about in terms of affordable

         22  housing, will be realized on a voluntary basis.  And

         23  I caution against pressing too hard and we wind up

         24  with nothing, rather than 2300 units of affordable

         25  housing.
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          2                 Just two other items.  One is on the

          3  density issue, in terms of lowering the density

          4  further.  We know that has been done once already.

          5  We would fear for the future of inclusionary housing

          6  if it becomes a tool to reduce underlying densities

          7  below what is truly appropriate from the community's

          8  benefit, as a negotiating tool, rather than as a

          9  planning tool.

         10                 The other concern that we would have

         11  going forth in the future, is on the expansion of

         12  the 421 exclusion zone.  It might be appropriate

         13  giving 30 years have passed, market conditions have

         14  changed, to look at 421A, again is geographic

         15  provisions.  But we do not think it is appropriate

         16  to be extending the 421A exclusion zones site by

         17  site, development by development, in order to

         18  advance strategic negotiations with particular

         19  developers.  We are to look at the 421A

         20  comprehensively, decide what areas no longer need

         21  tax incentives, and which ones still do, and

         22  legislate on that basis.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  As I

         24  say the next panel in opposition Adam Friedman, Phil

         25  DePaolo, Siri Wilson and Eve Sibley.  Are we missing
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          2  somebody?

          3                 While they are getting seated, the

          4  next panel which would come up in favor, Andrea

          5  Odezynska, John Tapper and Brad Anderson.  Please

          6  take your seat in the front row.

          7                 MS. SIBLEY: Hi, my name is Eve

          8  Sibley.  I am briefly speaking to you today as a

          9  Williamsburg artist, co- founder of the Williamsburg

         10  Warriors and a local condominium owner.

         11                 I am invested in this community in

         12  more than the value of my own condominium.  I am

         13  very much invested in the value of my community.

         14                 Over the last 20 years, Williamsburg

         15  has seen a decline in crime and abuse to its economy

         16  and creative culture. These are the pretty sides of

         17  the gentrification.  But if this said process of

         18  gentrification was able to run its full course, as

         19  it would be encouraged to do under the current

         20  rezoning plan, our community's greatest resources

         21  would be at stake.  We have hands down, one of the

         22  most culturally diverse demographics sustainable

         23  small business economies and inspired creative

         24  community, City wide, country- wide and I would say

         25  world- wide.  And we are very proud of it.
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          2                 But 40 story towers with private

          3  waterfront access will cast a devastating shadow on

          4  our typically three story neighborhood.  This

          5  darkening of our open sky would squander our

          6  wonderfully soulful community's inspiration and its

          7  pride.  A lack of affordable housing would wipe out

          8  our neighborhood's diversity, and any excess

          9  inflated real estate speculation would cause the

         10  already sky rocketing rents to de- stabilize our

         11  small businesses and our artists.

         12                 Our neighborhood is a very unique

         13  place, as I am sure each neighborhood and every

         14  borough probably is, and each should be treated as

         15  such.  We are not Manhattan, and we have a different

         16  type of charm.  Williamsburg and Greenpoint deserve

         17  the balanced rezoning that the 421A plans originally

         18  called for.  The MAS study proves the feasibility of

         19  satisfying each of our community demands.

         20                 You guys are in a position to make

         21  history with this rezoning.  I am asking you to

         22  please consider setting a new precedent for the

         23  development in Brooklyn.  This precedent would be to

         24  stop gentrification mid stream.  Keep the good part

         25  and block out the bad part.  Please acknowledge the
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          2  value of our harmoniously diverse culture, our small

          3  business driven economy, and our inspired creative

          4  community and originality.  And please see that

          5  drastic changes are made to the current rezoning

          6  plan which would nurture the type of growth we have

          7  already set forth by the people who live here.

          8                 Please value our values.  Thank you.

          9                 MS. WILSON: Hello.  My name is Siri

         10  Wilson and I am a fashion designer and also a co-

         11  founder of the Williamsburg Warriors.  I want to

         12  thank you, I want to thank you for this rezoning

         13  proposal.  I want to thank you for opening my eyes

         14  and helping me see how much I value the community of

         15  Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  I want to thank you

         16  for forcing this dialogue and for bringing together

         17  our community, in shock, in awe, in anger, in

         18  protest.  I have met so many beautiful people that

         19  were not part of my daily experience.  Oh no.  A

         20  tapestry of faces, a sing- song of languages,

         21  willing to fight for this neighborhood we call home.

         22  The people of this land are precious and worth

         23  protecting.  Thank you for making me realize that

         24  they are the true commodity.  And I do not blame you

         25  for this plan in front of you.  How could you know?
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          2  You do not live in our shoes and fear the darkening

          3  of our sky, like we do.  The gaited community

          4  looming over our few playgrounds.  The developers

          5  dictating our view of the water and the smell of our

          6  air.  Our children already have asthma.  Oil spills

          7  and sewage fill our ground.  The firehouse is no

          8  longer here to protect us.  The lack of taxes these

          9  buildings would bring us seem so much less than

         10  sound.  How can you see?  How out of context these

         11  buildings would be without visiting and trying to

         12  fathom, how could it be?

         13                 We are a small community.  Ten story

         14  buildings are considered grand.  We are full of

         15  small mom and pop businesses. The last thing we want

         16  or need is a mall crushing them down.  We are a

         17  small ecosystem, thriving in its diversity.  Please

         18  do not let them coop our culture and our creativity.

         19    The waterfront needs development.  The industrial

         20  era is over and the docks and warehouses have long

         21  since decayed.  Let us usher in a new kind of

         22  development.  Let us use this community's original

         23  plan.  Let us build a legacy we can all be proud of.

         24    Let us build something that will make the whole

         25  world smile and say, New York sure is a model City
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          2  and yet again, follow our lead.  Let us build

          3  stunning parks and gardens, bring museums, bring

          4  back the McCarren Pool.  House those people most in

          5  need.  Let us join together and build monuments of

          6  beauty and of strength, no heartless steel and glass

          7  monstrosities to block our view of liberty and of

          8  justice.

          9                 To build them, the developers plan to

         10   --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I need you to

         12  start summing up.

         13                 MS. WILSON: Okay, I just have two

         14  more -- yes, sorry.  -- To double dip from our

         15  pockets -- To build them the developers plan to

         16  double dip from our pockets, making promises

         17  history, tell us they most likely will not keep.

         18  Let us take this miraculous neighborhood and instead

         19  of crushing it, help it rise above again.

         20                 Please come join us.  Come over to

         21  our side.  This community is the true commodity.

         22  Help us keep our dreams alive. New York is nothing

         23  without its magic.  Do not let it vanish.  It is not

         24  too late.  Thank you, Warrior on.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Alright- this is
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          2  the last warning.  It is absolutely my last warning.

          3    No applauding, no booing.  Those people who are

          4  applauding, then I can allow the people to boo.  If

          5  you insist on doing this, I am going to ask the

          6  Seargent- at- Arms to have you leave the building.

          7  If you cannot conduct yourselves and respect each

          8  others opinions, then shame on you.  You will be

          9  asked to leave, this is the last warning. Because as

         10  you applaud at somebody who is willing to boo, raise

         11  his hand and he is absolutely right.

         12                 MR. DEPAOLO:  Good afternoon,

         13  Councilman Avella. Before I start, I would like to

         14  briefly thank you for overseeing this committee, and

         15  also your open door policy during the week to many

         16  residents of our community who are for the first

         17  time, going through this political process.  The

         18  open door policy of your staff and yourself, has

         19  been very enlightening to our community, and I thank

         20  you for that.

         21                 Good afternoon, my name is Philip

         22  DePaolo and I am a community liaison for the

         23  People's Firehouse, a community organization that

         24  has served the communities of Brooklyn for 30 years.

         25    I am also a member of the Community Board One
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          2  Public Safety Committee and I am also a 26 year home

          3  owner in Williamsburg.

          4                 Greenpoint and Williamsburg currently

          5  home to 22 Toxic Release Inventory facilities and

          6  211 Right To Know facilities, Radiac, the Newtown

          7  Creek Sewage Treatment Plant, the 17 million gallon

          8  Mobil Oil spill, the flammable jet fuel Buckeye

          9  Pipeline, and one third of the bulk petroleum

         10  storage in New York City.  The need for fire

         11  protection, in light of this industrial burden, plus

         12  the influx of new residents is overwhelming.

         13  Remember the 22 towers plan for Williamsburg and

         14  Greenpoint are all in former Engine 212's coverage

         15  area.

         16                 The final EIS assertion that police

         17  and fire departments routinely evaluate the need for

         18  changes in personnel, equipment or facilities, based

         19  on population, response time, crime levels, or other

         20  local factors, is not adequate to protect our

         21  community, is nothing more than a political punt.

         22                 To not include a study of police and

         23  fire services, disregards our public safety and is

         24  not acceptable.  There has to be an independent

         25  study on the net population increase and its

                                                            231

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  projected effect on fire response times and crime

          3  levels.  We do not have adequate fire protection

          4  now, let alone with all the upcoming development.

          5  How are we supposed to trust anyone at Metro Tech to

          6  determine the fire fighting needs of our community,

          7  when all I have ever seen at any fire safety

          8  hearings held in this very room, is the twisting of

          9  facts and the lies that only serve fire Commissioner

         10  Scopetta and Mayor Bloomberg?

         11                 The final EIS recognizes that

         12  residential development would bring an increased

         13  demand on community services, such as public

         14  schools, libraries and day care centers.  However,

         15  it fails to consider the impacts on emergency

         16  services, police and fire stations.

         17                 Mitigation for inadequate fire

         18  protection --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Phil, please sum

         20  up.

         21                 MR. DEPAOLO: I am on the last

         22  paragraph, Tony. Mitigation for inadequate fire

         23  protection as a result of the proposed action,

         24  should include construction of a new firehouse, or

         25  the immediate reopening of the existing Engine 212.
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          2                 Why are we even debating this?  It is

          3  a mystery.

          4                 In closing, you, the council, must

          5  ask itself if it wants to be part of the solution,

          6  or part of the problem.  I thank you.

          7                 MR. FRIEDMAN: Thank you very much.  I

          8  am Adam Friedman from the Industrial Retention

          9  Network and I just want to start by echoing -- it is

         10  supposed to be on -- can you hear me now?

         11  Okay, thank you very much.  I wanted to echo how

         12  tremendously appreciative of how accessible everyone

         13  has been over the past couple of weeks on this

         14  issue.  I am submitting written testimony and I just

         15  want to try and respond to the questions that you

         16  all have already raised this morning.

         17                 First of all, Council Member Dilan's

         18  question about what protection is afforded

         19  industrial jobs in the area.  And the answer is, in

         20  MX zoning, none.  You know, I do not think any

         21  planner, I do not think any real estate developer at

         22  this point, envisions that the MX zoning is going to

         23  lead to anymore industrial development or protect

         24  what is there. MX allows industrial uses, but it

         25  removes all the balancing mechanisms that exist in
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          2  current zoning, that have made it such a creative

          3  vibrant thriving community.  The answer is to reduce

          4  the size of the area being rezoned, at least in

          5  part.

          6                 Second, Council Member Vann asked

          7  about the impact on his Community Board and the

          8  answer is, of course it is going to have an impact,

          9  City- wide.  This is one of six re- zonings of

         10  industrial areas.  We estimate that in aggregate,

         11  they are going to dislocate more than 14,000 jobs.

         12  Those 14,000 jobs consume over five million square

         13  feet of space.  Who holds those jobs?  More than 80

         14  percent of the work force is composed of people of

         15  color, the production work force in New York City,

         16  and two thirds of the work force is immigrant.  And

         17  that is going to have a tremendous impact.

         18                 We agree with City Planning that

         19  there are very few jobs on the waterfront, and it is

         20  safe to rezone those areas without threatening jobs.

         21    However, Upland, there is very, very little vacant

         22  industrial space throughout the City.  In the

         23  Greenpoint Manufacturing and Design Center, in the

         24  Army Terminal, in the Navy Yard, in the privately

         25  owned buildings in the industrial parks, there is a
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          2  very low vacancy rate.  Only where there is

          3  speculation about change, and speculation is driving

          4  rents, do we see vacant industrial space.

          5                 This summer we did a door to door

          6  survey of the area being rezoned.  And you can see

          7  on the maps, the dense concentrations of industrial

          8  jobs in some areas.  We appreciate the changes that

          9  City Planning has made to remove those areas, we

         10  think there should be additional blocks removed.

         11                 Finally, we think a new fund should

         12  be set up for not for profit development, which

         13  mirrors the infrastructure that affordable housing

         14  has gone through, and would create a new means to

         15  promote the diversity and stabilize those

         16  communities, and allow a whole mix of users,

         17  artists, artist and production, and light

         18  manufacturing.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

         20  next panel in favor, Andrea, John and Brad.  While

         21  they are being seated, the next panel in opposition

         22  which I would like to take a seat in the front row,

         23  Anna Zak from Senator Dilan's office, Kyle Bragg

         24  from Local 32VJ, Robert Pirani from the Regional

         25  Plan Association, and Rayna Huber Erlich.
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          2                      MS. ODEZYNSKA: Is this on?  Good

          3  afternoon, my name is Andrea Odezynska.  I have

          4  lived in Greenpoint since 1997. I rented an

          5  apartment for two years, then purchased a home to

          6  over six years ago.  I am married.  Both myself and

          7  my husband are first generation Americans.  Our

          8  parents are immigrants from Ukraine.

          9                 About three years ago, my life

         10  changed completely. I had twins and as they became

         11  mobile in Greenpoint, I started experiencing

         12  Greenpoint in a whole new way.  Every day I would

         13  wheel my twins to a tiny little park playground at

         14  the end of my block, and you do not know who to

         15  chase first.  You grab one twin as they are

         16  attempting to pick up pieces of broken glass, in the

         17  oral phase, putting everything in their mouth, while

         18  the other one is negotiating a hypodermic needle

         19  which, that is where usually people throw those

         20  under slides, under the kiddie slides.  Each week

         21  during the twins' year long oral phase, I helped

         22  them dodge everything, discarded condoms, all

         23  manners of garbage, dog poop. The fumes from

         24  improperly vented local businesses, factories, I do

         25  not know what they are, make it so difficult to
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          2  breath on certain days, that I would simply put them

          3  back in our stroller and go hide in our house.  In

          4  despair, I would repeatedly call 311 to complain of

          5  an acrid plastic smell that burns our eyes and

          6  throat, and the person at the other end of the line

          7  would tell me, well, if you could just walk around

          8  the neighborhood and identify the exact address as

          9  to where the fumes are coming from.  Obviously, she

         10  did not have twins.  These daily insults to one's

         11  senses is so uncivilized and so dangerous for

         12  children, that right now for family time on the week

         13  ends, we actually leave Greenpoint, and we go over

         14  to Long Island City to Gantry State Park, or we get

         15  down to Park Slope or we go to the esplanade at

         16  Brooklyn Heights.  We cannot use our own

         17  neighborhood, and we have been there for almost a

         18  decade.

         19                 And by needing to go and get into a

         20  van and drive around on the weekends, that is

         21  exactly what we did not want.  We did not want to

         22  live the suburban way.  We believe in Brooklyn, we

         23  love Greenpoint.  I urge you to please not keep us

         24  in stases, to rezone.  I know it is not perfect, but

         25  please, please, please, this is a historic
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          2  opportunity and please do this.  And we are also

          3  very against the power plant.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          5  speaker?

          6                 MR. TAPPER: Yes.  My name is John

          7  Tapper.  I have lived in the neighborhood almost --

          8  in Greenpoint, for almost 40 years.  I have had a

          9  business for almost 30 years, and I also have two

         10  twins that are two years old and you know, I have

         11  seen the waterfront in the past 40 years, actually

         12  get worse.  And I would like to see some change in

         13  my lifetime, and I urge the City Council to really

         14  work something out within this one month, and really

         15  vote for this, for the waterfront.  I mean I wish

         16  the City, the Mayor would be so daring and

         17  revolutionary to, let us say, zone most of the

         18  waterfront, a park.  And like somebody, I have seen

         19  a flyer here, an aquarium of 20 percent or

         20  something.  That would be really truly wonderful,

         21  but I know the money runs the City, and that is

         22  probably impossible, but I really would like to see

         23  rezoning happen so my kids could really enjoy some

         24  open space, park and waterfront and I really agree

         25  with a lot of things.  The parks that we have right
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          2  now are almost unusable, and as a family, I also go

          3  out of the neighborhood to find something better and

          4  that is all I can say.  This is it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          6  speaker.

          7                 MR. ANDERSON: Hello.  My name is Brad

          8  Anderson.  I have lived in Greenpoint for 16 years.

          9  My story is the story of most of the other people

         10  that have come to Greenpoint.  I arrived there

         11  because it was a nice place, it was close to the

         12  City, and it was convenient.  I soon found that I

         13  liked the neighborhood.  I made bonds with the

         14  neighborhood.  It had everything that I possibly

         15  wanted from good people, grocery stores, good

         16  infrastructure and subway service.  I could not ask

         17  for more.

         18                 But that whole time there was one 600

         19  pound grill that was sitting there, and that was the

         20  waterfront.  Every time when I would walk to the end

         21  of my street and look at it, it would just bring

         22  tears to my eyes, that this was a resource that was

         23  just being wasted.  And I live by that same park,

         24  American Park, that you do.  That is our park.

         25  There is not one piece of grass in that park.  It is
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          2  all asphalt.  So we have a nice little asphalt park

          3  that is full of drug dealers and other activities

          4  that I do not want to talk about.  And the police do

          5  make sweeps through  every once in awhile and chase

          6  the people out, but it is still not some place that

          7  I can bring my child, and sit in that park.

          8                 We want more park space, and when I

          9  saw this plan today, and this is the first time I

         10  have seen it laid out completely, I was really

         11  impressed.  This looks like something that was

         12  actually, something that I could be proud of,

         13  something that I could use in the neighborhood.  And

         14  I know it is not perfect, and there is never going

         15  to be a perfect plan that everybody in this room is

         16  going to be happy with.  However, I think that we do

         17  need the rezoning, and we do need to have to look at

         18  it and everybody is going to have to give on each

         19  side, to make the whole plan better for the people

         20  that live in the community.

         21                 And I just want to say that we have

         22  to rezone, the question is, exactly what that model

         23  is going to be, how much affordable housing we are

         24  going to have and everything, that is negotiable.

         25  Let us get the problem solved first, then work on
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          2  the details.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          4  panel in opposition, Anna, Kyle, Robert and Rayna.

          5  And while they are being seated, the next panel

          6  could you come up in front, in favor, George Klein,

          7  Jeff Levine and Ron Moelis from L & M Equity

          8  Partners.

          9                 MS. ZAK: I gave them in already.  Hi.

         10  My name is Anna Zak and I am the public relations

         11  representative for State Senator Martin Malave

         12  Dilan, who unfortunately is in Albany because Senate

         13  is in session today and could not be here in person.

         14    But I am very happy to have this opportunity to

         15  voice his strong opposition to the current rezoning

         16  plan.

         17                 Senator Dilan's main concern is that

         18  the plan does not represent the great need for

         19  affordable housing in Greenpoint and Williamsburg

         20  area.  Senator Dilan believes that the proposal

         21  should be appropriately revised to create a

         22  sufficient amount of affordable housing, by

         23  mandating a 40 percent affordability on all the

         24  developers.

         25                 Furthermore, the proposal should set
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          2  a standard for affordability according to the

          3  appropriate income median, which reflects the fact

          4  that north Brooklyn families' median income is $11

          5  thousand dollars less than the City median, City-

          6  wide median.             The proposal should also

          7  put forth a strong plan to prepare the community to

          8  handle the population influx this rezoning will

          9  bring, by implementing sufficient park and open

         10  space, hospitals, schools and mass transit.  And

         11  unless the plan is sufficiently changed, Senator

         12  Dilan cannot and will not support it, and urges the

         13  committee and the City Council as a whole, to do the

         14  same.

         15                 I submitted a detailed statement from

         16  the Senator and to save time, that is all that I

         17  would say.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. BRAGG: Councilman, my name is

         19  Kyle Bragg.  I am Vice President of SEIU Local 32VJ.

         20    On behalf of the 70,000 members, I would like to

         21  thank Chairman Avella and the members of this

         22  committee for the opportunity to testify today in

         23  support of Intro 605.

         24                 The proposed rezoning of Greenpoint-

         25  Williamsburg provides us with a rare opportunity to
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          2  dramatically revitalize this area, by building as

          3  many as 10,000 units of housing, including

          4  affordable housing units, and creating as many as

          5  500 new, permanent jobs.  Because the City is being

          6  asked to make substantial public investment in this

          7  development, we believe it must be done in a

          8  responsible manner.  So all New Yorkers share in

          9  this benefit.  We support the goals of, local

         10  communities and the elected officials that encourage

         11  substantial affordable housing development along the

         12  waterfront and throughout the area.

         13                 We also support good jobs for New

         14  Yorkers. Residential development on such a large

         15  scale, eclipsed only by the proposed Hudson Yards

         16  development, will create as many as 500 permanent

         17  building service jobs.  Local 32BJ represents more

         18  than 80 percent of the building service workers in

         19  New York City, not just in Manhattan, but also in

         20  Queens, Brooklyn, Staten Island, they receive good

         21  wages and benefits.  The projected 500 building

         22  service workers should receive quality wages and

         23  benefits that are in par with the vast majority of

         24  building service workers in New York City.

         25                 Therefore, Local 32BJ support Intro
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          2  605, introduce by Councilman Robert Jackson.  This

          3  legislation is sponsored by 27 other councilmen.

          4  This legislation require recipients of collectively

          5  more than 200 million in 421 tax abatements to pay

          6  their building service workers prevailing wage and

          7  benefits.

          8                 Finally, let me respond to an

          9  unfounded criticism against Intro 605.  On Friday,

         10  The Pratt institute Center for Community and

         11  Environmental Development released a study analyzing

         12  the physical impact of intro 605.  This study found

         13  that regardless of whether and how much affordable

         14  housing is built, the fiscal impact of intro 605 on

         15  developer profit is negligible.  We believe that the

         16  Pratt report demonstrates that the developers can

         17  build affordable housing, pay the prevailing wage to

         18  building service workers and still make very healthy

         19  profits on their investment.

         20                 Intro 605 will make tremendous

         21  difference to local communities of future building

         22  service workers will have an insignificant impact on

         23  developers bottom line.

         24                 We ask this committee and City

         25  Council to make passing Intro 605 a main issue in
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          2  your negotiations with the City on the Greenpoint-

          3  Williamsburg rezoning.

          4                 In light of the time that is here, we

          5  had two other speakers, and I just want to recognize

          6  them.  We are going to not speak today to make time

          7  for other people.  Shelika Shad (phonetic) and

          8  Richard Grande, two people who live in that

          9  community are here, and they are going to cede their

         10  time so that others can speak. And I also want to

         11  make note that we are not in favor or opposed to the

         12  revitalization, but we know that there must be

         13  changes to what is going on, but recognize that

         14  there are jobs to be had, and that they need to be

         15  good, well providing jobs for those people in the

         16  community.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRMAN AVELLA: Thank you and I

         18  appreciate the fact that your two members behind you

         19  have waived their time.  I hope everybody else

         20  recognizes that.

         21                 Next speaker?

         22                 MR. PIRANI: Good afternoon.  My name

         23  is Rob Pirani. I am the Environmental Director with

         24  Regional Plan Association, a non profit planning and

         25  advocacy group here in New York City.
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          2                 First of all, I would like to thank

          3  you for this opportunity to testify, and more

          4  importantly, for the hard work of you, the Chairman

          5  and the rest of your colleagues on this rezoning.

          6  The Department of City Planning and the communities

          7  of Greenpoint Williamsburg have been hard at work

          8  for many, many years.  I look forward to seeing the

          9  council weigh in, in a substantial way, on this

         10  rezoning proposal.

         11                 I am here to talk about open space,

         12  and the parks and public spaces that will be created

         13  along the waterfront under this rezoning.  We, at

         14  Regional Plan Association, together with a number of

         15  other civic and community groups, are concerned that

         16  the quality of these spaces are not going to measure

         17  up to the promise of the waterfront, for a place for

         18  kids to play, for a place to enjoy the sunset, for

         19  the kind of park space that really makes a community

         20  a community.

         21                 We ask you, City Council, to take a

         22  look at the rezoning and take the following steps to

         23  improve it, and these are reccomendations that come

         24  again from Regional Plan Association, and we have

         25  been working with a group of folks from Community
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          2  Board one, The Greenpoint Waterfront Association for

          3  Parks and planning, Municipal Arts Society, and a

          4  number of other organizations, as well, and you will

          5  be hearing directly from them, I am sure, during the

          6  course of the afternoon.

          7                 First of all, we ask that the City

          8  Council add to acquire and develop approximately 16

          9  acres of additional park spaces in Greenpoint, and

         10  build the Brooklyn Waterfront Greenway along West

         11  and River Street.  And be their open spaces that

         12  will help the community meet just the bare minimum,

         13  of what is considered adequate for park spacing,

         14  park spaces not just for the existing residents, but

         15  for the thousands of new residents.

         16                 We also ask that you insure that the

         17  ownership of the -- insure public ownership of the

         18  waterfront walkway and open spaces that are going to

         19  be built as a result of this rezoning. Right now,

         20  under the current zone planning, those spaces will

         21  be built by the private developers and then owned

         22  and managed by them. That is not going to result in

         23  a quality environment, public environment.  The

         24  lessons of Midtown Manhattan, the lessons across the

         25  river in New Jersey, are those sites despite the
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          2  best intentions of some of those developers, are a

          3  mixed bag at best.

          4                 We suggest the following ways of

          5  improving that. First of all, create a Greenpoint-

          6  Williamsburg waterfront front, to provide an

          7  incentive for the developers to turn the property

          8  over to the City once they are done building it, and

          9  to address gap sites along the waterfront, where the

         10  developers are not going to move forward in an

         11  expeditious manner, to ensure some continuity.

         12                 Secondly, to create a Greenpoint-

         13  Williamsburg Parks Conservancy to help manage those

         14  public spaces, over see their construction, provide

         15  for other financial means of creating those spaces

         16  and their management.

         17                 We believe the cost of this could be

         18  about $100 million dollars.  There are details in

         19  the testimony I have attached and thank you very

         20  much for this opportunity to testify.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you, next

         22  speaker?

         23                 MS. HUBER ERLICH: Sorry, my name is

         24  Rayna Huber Erlich.  I am a former member of The

         25  Brooklyn Community Board One and the Rezoning Task
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          2  Force.

          3                 My testimony is intended to be part

          4  of a larger panel and heighten both issues, bringing

          5  several of the issues to your attention.  I am going

          6  to speak about a particular urban design element

          7  that we feel is important to decrease the impact of

          8  the over scaled development on the waterfront

          9  itself.  This issue is called The Buffer, and this

         10  issue also perhaps piggy backs on Mr. Pirani's

         11  testimony.  You may ask, what is The Buffer and why

         12  do we need it?  The Buffer is a physical zone of

         13  transition between the public and the private areas

         14  at the waterfront.  Under the current Bloomberg

         15  proposal, the tower bases are permitted to sit

         16  directly adjacent to the esplanade, thereby creating

         17  a situation similar to, but worse than, what you see

         18  in these photographs, they are on the board and in

         19  your packet, taken in Jersey City a few weeks ago.

         20  The photo on the left and on the bottom right are

         21  taken in Jersey City.  As you can see, the scheme

         22  results in an esplanade that is effectively the

         23  private backyards of the new development. This is

         24  not quite the dream we have all been waiting for.

         25  What we need is a 30 to 40 foot buffer between the
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          2  esplanade and the tower bases set aside now, so that

          3  in the future, it can be used as a street for biking

          4  or skating or roller-blading or slow moving traffic

          5  or all non-negotiable demarkation between the public

          6  and private areas.  Substantially decrease the

          7  impact of the over scaled buildings, and enable

          8  restaurants, galleries, bike shops and other retail

          9  to thrive on the waterside of the development,

         10  insuring the public nature of the waterfront.

         11                 Although you have heard our pleas,

         12  and Rob Pirani just second them, for the public

         13  development and management of the waterfront public

         14  spaces, we need this buffer under either a private

         15  or public scheme.

         16                 With this buffer, we can ensure that

         17  once the waterfront is built, the waterfront itself

         18  will be a true public amenity, open to the public

         19  for July 4th fireworks, daytime jogging, nighttime

         20  strolling, and whatever else it is that people do

         21  when they enjoy the East River.

         22                 The Bloomberg Proposal is

         23  irresponsible and will disfigure our neighborhoods

         24  forever.  We ask you, the City Council, to reduce

         25  the density substantially, change the urban design
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          2  to reflect the community's character, and make this

          3  a balanced rezoning we can all be proud of.  Thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          6  panel in favor Ron, who should be there, George,

          7  Jeff and also I will call up Steven Spinola as part

          8  of that panel.

          9                 And while they are getting seated,

         10  the next opposition panel, which should take a seat

         11  in the front row, Richard Velasquez, Julie Lawrence,

         12  Ward Dennis and Naomi Chappelle.

         13                 MR. SPINOLA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         14  Steve Spinola, President of Real Estate Board of New

         15  York.  I represent more than 9,000 members who are

         16  interested in the real estate interest of the City.

         17                 I am here to support this plan, it is

         18  creative, it is well thought out, it will bring

         19  jobs, organized labor jobs to this part of Brooklyn,

         20  which does not see them as often as it should.  And

         21  this is the kind of project that will bring housing.The

         22  developers, all of which, three of which are sitting

         23  beside me here, I want to correct something the

         24  Borough President said earlier.  They all started

         25  and continued to operate in the boroughs of this
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          2  City, all five boroughs, some of them, most of them

          3  started in Brooklyn and Queens, and most of them

          4  have built, spent a great deal of their experience,

          5  building affordable housing in this City of New

          6  York.

          7                 This is what we want to do.  We want

          8  to change this neighborhood.  We want to bring jobs,

          9  and we want to provide housing for the residents of

         10  the City.  And this City should be very proud of the

         11  aggressive, affordable housing incentive programs

         12  that it puts forward.  Nothing else in the country

         13  compares to the goals and the accomplishments of New

         14  York City, when it comes to affordable housing.

         15  People talk about mandatory programs around the

         16  country, it is usually five percent, it is eight

         17  percent, it is 10 percent, and it is tied to some

         18  other conditions.  This City basically has

         19  objectives of 20- 30 percent in almost every

         20  neighborhood that it is doing this, and this part of

         21  Greenpoint Williamsburg is no exception.

         22                 This plan is not perfect from the

         23  developers point of view.  I would have liked to

         24  have seen greater density.  All of the problems

         25  identified here by previous speakers or by council

                                                            252

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  members, can be solved with one simple thing, money.

          3    Well, the City of New York does not have all the

          4  money to do it, the developers sitting at this table

          5  and others do not have all of the money to do it,

          6  but what we can do is begin towards solving those

          7  problems by letting them do what the market permits

          8  them to do, which is build housing and create jobs.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 MR. KLEIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         11  Good afternoon. My name is George Klein.  I grew up

         12  in Brooklyn.  I have built in Brooklyn.  I was

         13  responsible for the first Urban Renewal in Downtown

         14  Brooklyn, and I employed during the period of the

         15  70's, 80's, over 1,000 employees in Downtown

         16  Brooklyn.  I am the chairman of Park Tower Group.

         17  We have been in the real estate business in New York

         18  City, for over 30 years and we have built our

         19  reputation, developing projects of high quality,

         20  including as I mentioned, the redevelopment of

         21  Downtown Brooklyn.

         22                 We are proud of the fact that all of

         23  our projects were built by union labor, which has --

         24  We are proud of the fact that all of our projects

         25  were built by union labor, which has assured their
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          2  success and we intend, if we have the privilege, to

          3  build in Greenpoint- Williamsburg, to use union

          4  labor.

          5                 In Greenpoint, we control 19 acres

          6  along the East River from Green Street north, toward

          7  Box Street, west of West and Commercial Streets.

          8                 I would like to speak in favor of

          9  this rezoning and remind everyone of what presently

         10  exists along the waterfront today.  What has been

         11  there for more than 100 years, and would could

         12  potentially be there if this plan is adopted.  For

         13  the first time in generations, the residents of

         14  Greenpoint- Williamsburg will have access to their

         15  waterfront, with a continuous 40 foot wide

         16  esplanade, public piers, taxis, and parks, along

         17  with affordable housing, which will include

         18  affordable projects for seniors.

         19                 This can only be achieved if there is

         20  a balance in realistic rezoning, which provides

         21  adequate incentives, considering the high cost of

         22  construction and rising interest rates.

         23                 Waterfront construction presents its

         24  own special problems.  High water table makes

         25  foundation construction difficult and costly.  The
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          2  years of industrial uses have left most of these

          3  sites with environmental issues, and there is no

          4  basic infrastructure such as roads and utilities.

          5  The area is dilapidated and is replete with

          6  warehouses, derelict piers with no public access to

          7  the waterfront.  The plan presented by City Planning

          8  and HPD provides for a reasonable density, and an

          9  incentive bonus along, and support to develop

         10  affordable housing, which we intend to build.  These

         11  components will assure that development will happen

         12  if the waterfront will be open --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you could sum

         14  up please.

         15                 MR. KLEIN: -- And quality.  We thank

         16  you for your time and look forward to continuing to

         17  work with the City, and with the council on this

         18  rezoning.

         19                 MR. LEVINE: How are you doing?  My

         20  name is Jeff Levine.  My partners and I own two

         21  waterfront blocks in the residential rezoning area.

         22  A third waterfront site that we own, is being mapped

         23  as park land, as part of rezoning to be added to the

         24  existing park land, between 7th and 9th.

         25                 The Greenpoint- Williamsburg rezoning
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          2  is an opportunity for this City to recapture a two

          3  mile stretch of river front, with expenses largely

          4  being paid by the private sector.  I would like to

          5  commend the Department of City Planning for issuing

          6  a plan that will encourage a new standard of design

          7  and community amenities.

          8                 On my site alone, there will be

          9  50,000 square feet of landscaped, open space,

         10  including a new reconstructed pier, and as much as

         11  100,000 square feet of retail space, which will

         12  provide neighborhood services.  Over 1,000

         13  apartments, both market rate and affordable, will be

         14  developed, while cleaning an environmental brown

         15  field.  Over 250 permanent jobs will be created,

         16  between the retail space and building operations.

         17                 These are complex sites to develop,

         18  compared to an average development site in the City,

         19  waterfront sites have unique issues, such as

         20  reconstruction of piers and bulk heads, and issues

         21  during constructions due to tides and water tables.

         22  Bedrock along the river can often be 100 feet below

         23  grade, which means that an expensive pile foundation

         24  must be constructed.  These sites also lack the

         25  required infrastructure found on an average site,
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          2  including utilities, water and sewer lines.  Because

          3  of the complexities of these projects, these sites

          4  will be built with experienced labor.  Union labor

          5  has the experience to build high mid rise buildings

          6  safely and with the quality that developers require.

          7  On my site, there will be an average of 270 jobs

          8  annual during each construction year.  For the

          9  waterfront of the whole, there will be 1250 jobs

         10  created annually.

         11                 As I have done with great success in

         12  the past, I will work with trade unions to focus on

         13  community- based hiring.  We will be focusing on job

         14  training.  Union sponsored programs, such as

         15  Construction Skills 2000, Helmets to Hard Hats, and

         16  Non Traditional Employment for Women, have taught

         17  skilled trades to thousands of people.

         18                 I see I am running out of time, so I

         19  will say it quickly.  HPD and City Planning have

         20  correctly balanced the realities of the economics of

         21  developing affordable housing with the demands

         22  associated with waterfront development.  I have

         23  worked with HPD for over 20 years, and have

         24  developed thousands of units of affordable housing

         25  under almost every program in the City, including
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          2  the inclusionary zoning bonus program.  I understand

          3  as well as anybody, the importance, as well as the

          4  difficult economics of creating affordable housing.

          5                 I look forward to working with this

          6  City, and this council, in getting that done.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 MR. MOELIS: Thank you for the

          9  opportunity to speak. My name is Ron Moelis.  I am

         10  involved in the waterfront site between North 5th

         11  and North 4th, and North 5th Street.  I have been

         12  developing affordable housing in New York City for

         13  over 20 years. And to date, have developed over

         14  8,000 units of affordable housing, included in that,

         15  are three inclusionary housing developments in New

         16  York City.

         17                 One of the reasons I got involved in

         18  this project, was because of the excitement of

         19  integrating affordable housing and market housing,

         20  and really changing the nature of what is there now,

         21  which is, I think a waste management dump site.

         22                 The current City proposal provides a

         23  broad range of affordable housing, all in Community

         24  Board One.  It calls for a large amount of low

         25  moderate and middle income housing.  It will be
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          2  integrated throughout the Community Board, both on

          3  site and off. The plan also calls for a preservation

          4  option.  It is somewhat unique in the City, and it

          5  will help curtail displacement that seems to be a

          6  growing problem in Williamsburg.

          7                 After analyzing the perimeters of the

          8  current proposal, I am convinced, and we have

          9  committed to include inclusionary housing as part of

         10  our development, and a large part of it, on site.

         11                 It is my view that the economic

         12  consenters will insure that all of the developers in

         13  the rezoned area, will build the affordable units,

         14  in order to get the bonus density.

         15                 This is the first time inclusionary

         16  housing has been utilized outside Manhattan.  The

         17  concept is laudable, and the amount of affordable

         18  housing that will be produced to this program, is

         19  significant.  It is one of many benefits that will

         20  result from the rezoning, and take in its entirety,

         21  the goals of both the administration, HPD City

         22  Planning, and even the community and the council,

         23  are ambitious, but realistic.  This includes not

         24  only thousands of affordable housing units

         25  integrated in the community, but also public
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          2  waterfront access, open space, environmental re

          3  mediation, job creation.  It is important for the

          4  future of the City, and for affordable housing in

          5  general, that this ambitious plan is implemented,

          6  and done so, in a manner that ensures that the

          7  private sector, us, can accomplish a lot of this

          8  goal, both financially, and development- wise.

          9  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

         11  next panel --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- Should be in

         14  front, Richard, Julie, Ward and Naomi.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair, I

         16  have questions for the panel.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am just going

         18  to get to that. Gentlemen, please.  I have asked for

         19  the cooperation of my colleagues, because I know

         20  some of you are interested in why questions are not

         21  being asked.  If we start to allow questions, we

         22  will be here until tomorrow morning.  I know you all

         23  want to see your council members, you know, actively

         24  engage some of these people who are giving

         25  testimony, but before you know it, we can have
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          2  people going back and forth on each side.  In order

          3  to get through this, and in order to hear from you,

          4  because that is what this is all about, this is not

          5  for us to question the speakers. This is to hear

          6  from you.  That is what a public hearing is all

          7  about.  I am asking for the cooperation, and I know

          8  I have gotten it from most of the members, not to

          9  ask questions.  And again, I ask that, that occur,

         10  because otherwise, we will never get through this.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: With all due

         12  respect Mr. Chair, those four people that just

         13  testified are probably the largest developers, and

         14  own the most property on the waterfront. One of them

         15  testified that they were going to use the

         16  inclusionary bonus to build affordable housing.  He

         17  committed to building affordable housing on the

         18  record.  That is one of the key elements that every

         19  single person in this room today, has testified to.

         20  What I wanted to do, was put the other developers on

         21  the record, to make sure that they also would commit

         22  to building affordable housing.  But I will also do

         23  that in private with them.  Thank you.

         24                 MR. VELASQUEZ: Good afternoon, Mr.

         25  Chair, and the members of the committee.  My name is
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          2  Richard Velasquez and today I speak as a

          3  representative of Brooklyn Unidos, a coalition of

          4  over 300 Latino community leaders form North

          5  Brooklyn.

          6                 I am here to voice our collective

          7  opposition to the current Williamsburg plan.  In its

          8  current form, I believe that this plan will have a

          9  catastrophic impact on the communities of

         10  Williamsburg, Greenpoint, and all of North Brooklyn,

         11  and I urge the council to reject this proposal.

         12                 As director of the Ridgewood Bushwick

         13  Housing and Legal Assistance office, and a long time

         14  resident of Williamsburg, I have witnessed, first

         15  hand, the massive displacement of poor and working

         16  class families from this neighborhood.  Senior

         17  citizens, working parents, and young families are

         18  being priced out of the neighborhood, that they have

         19  called home for generations.

         20                 The affordable housing crisis in New

         21  York City is pervasive throughout the City, but the

         22  impact of this crisis is felt most profoundly in

         23  poor and working class neighborhoods, such as those

         24  in North Brooklyn.  By introducing thousands of new

         25  luxury units into the communities of Williamsburg
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          2  and Greenpoint, the rezoning plan will severely

          3  exacerbate the already desperate problem of

          4  residential displacement.

          5                 Today, I stand with members of the

          6  community in demanding drastic changes in the

          7  rezoning plan.  If these changes cannot be met, I

          8  ask that the proposal be rejected or withdrawn.

          9                 First, it is essential that a minimum

         10  of 40 percent of the new units are guaranteed

         11  affordable.  The City's current inclusionary zoning

         12  program, provides weak incentives for developers to

         13  build 15 to 25 percent of their units as affordable.

         14  But does not go nearly far enough.  The percentage

         15  of units fall short of the communities demand of 40

         16  percent, and the income brackets targeted, do not

         17  reflect the economic needs and realities of

         18  residents of our community.

         19                 The program must increase a

         20  percentage of affordable housing units to 40

         21  percent, and also drastically lower the targeted

         22  income brackets.  The City should provide an

         23  additional 1500 units of affordable housing.

         24                 In addition, the City's plans for

         25  parks and open space, falls far short of the
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          2  community's vision.  Children from North Brooklyn

          3  suffer asthma at remarkably higher rates than

          4  anywhere else in the City.  The children and

          5  residents of North Brooklyn need and deserve access

          6  to open space.  The community's plan proposes an

          7  additional 30 additional acres of park land, and

          8  also a waterfront esplanade to be publicly financed

          9  in order to encourage equal access to this resource.

         10    Moreover the issue of transportation and other

         11  infrastructure concerns are already extremely

         12  programmatic.  The plan does not provide for

         13  improved train service, or additional infrastructure

         14  investments, to accommodate the impact of thousands

         15  of new residents in this community.

         16                 In sum, unless drastic changes can be

         17  made with regards to the issues of affordable

         18  housing, open space and transportation, I urge the

         19  council to reject this proposal.  Thank you for

         20  hearing my testimony and taking our matters into

         21  consideration.

         22                 MR. DENNIS: Good afternoon, Council

         23  members.  My name is Ward Dennis.  I am here this

         24  afternoon with my fellow representatives of the

         25  Height and Bulk Subcommittee of Community Board
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          2  One's Rezoning task force.  I would like to thank

          3  you for the opportunity to speak, and thank you in

          4  advance for help in making this a good rezoning

          5  plan.  I have copies of my testimony here, as well

          6  as some images, if you would like to see them later.

          7                 For the past 15 years, our community

          8  has recognized the need for a rezoning plan.  A plan

          9  that works for the neighborhood, works for the City,

         10  and works for development. Unfortunately, we are now

         11  learning the meaning of the adage, be careful what

         12  you wish for.

         13                 Our subcommittee's focus from the

         14  start has been on two critical areas, density and

         15  neighborhood context.  Our neighborhoods consist

         16  largely of three and four story residential

         17  buildings, interspersed with larger manufacturing

         18  buildings and vacant lots.  Within the rezoning

         19  areas, we have many fine examples of 19th century

         20  and early 20th century industrial and residential

         21  architecture.

         22                 In the Upland areas, the City's plan

         23  is too much. The current plan ignores the impact of

         24  rezoning on the existing context.  It ignores

         25  historic resources, it ignores the existing scale.
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          2  In short, it assumes that our neighborhoods have no

          3  context.

          4                 At the waterfront, the City's plan is

          5  too much. With one exception, all the buildings

          6  within the rezoning area are under 10 stories.  We

          7  need a zoning plan that makes the waterfront part of

          8  our neighborhood.  We have a fantastic opportunity

          9  for good urban design.  Let us not waste it on

         10  towers that are too tall, by half.

         11                 In terms of density, the City's plan

         12  is way too much.  Before voting on this plan, I urge

         13  you to spend a couple of mornings at the Bedford

         14  Avenue stop on the L line, where it is not uncommon

         15  to wait for two or three trains, before there is

         16  room to board in the morning.  Our infrastructure

         17  cannot handle the people we have now, how can it

         18  handle 20,000 more people?

         19                 Over the course of the afternoon, my

         20  fellow committee members will present to you the

         21  outlines of the plan that Community Board One

         22  unanimously endorsed.  In looking at the City's

         23  plan, versus Community's plan, I urge you to focus

         24  on density and context.  If you do so, you will

         25  understand why our position is not, do not do it,
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          2  but rather our position is, do it right.  Thank you.

          3                 MS. LAWRENCE: Good afternoon.  I am

          4  Julie Lawrence, a member of Community Board One, the

          5  rezoning task force and chair of the board's

          6  waterfront committee which completed our two 197A

          7  plans about three years ago.  I have been a resident

          8  for over 16 years.  I thank each and every council

          9  member, particularly Mr. Avella, Ms. Katz and of

         10  course our own council people, David Yassky and

         11  Diana Reyna for being here, and for taking the time

         12  to listen carefully to all of us who will speak this

         13  afternoon.

         14                 My colleagues, including Reyna who

         15  spoke previously, Ward and some other people who

         16  will come after me, have spoken on the technical

         17  issues pertaining to height and density.  I will

         18  address the more human side of the equation of this

         19  particular topic.

         20                 New York City is full of unique

         21  communities, but they are disappearing fast.

         22  Greenpoint and Williamsburg have always been

         23  diverse, changing working class neighborhoods that

         24  have drawn immigrants, entrepreneurs and artists.

         25  Its low slung buildings, proximity to the
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          2  waterfront, and easy access to Manhattan, have made

          3  it a magnet for well over 100 years.  In fact, my

          4  grandmother grew up just twelve blocks from where I

          5  live, her parents, immigrants from Poland and

          6  Austria- Hungary.

          7                 This neighborhood should be for

          8  everyone, to the self made billionaires, socialites

          9  and hipsters who now flock to our neighborhood, we

         10  welcome you, but on our terms.  When many of us came

         11  here, we were new, but we proved to lifetime

         12  residents like Josie, Rose, Phyllis and Leo Reyes,

         13  that we were here to help preserve the place that

         14  was home to them.  We were side by side with them,

         15  and long time activists, many of whom are here

         16  today, like Marty Needelman, Richard Mazur, Felice

         17  Kirby, Rabbi Niederman, Bill and Marie Chambers,

         18  Irene Klementowicz and David Pagan, on a host of

         19  environmental issues.  We want to honor the memory

         20  of our friends, like Willie the Barber, who just

         21  wanted a place to fish.

         22                 But we do not just react.  We act.

         23  We spent over fifteen years studying building

         24  consensus and creating our own community paced

         25  plans, our own community based 197A plans, with
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          2  Regina Myer who worked very hard, and is sitting

          3  behind us.

          4                 These plans reflect the participation

          5  of hundreds of people from every corner of the

          6  community, and many thousands of hours on the part

          7  of professionals and citizen planners alike, to

          8  reclaim those things so dear to us, our parks, our

          9  waterfront our jobs and our homes.

         10                 Our newer friends, Eve, Siri, Beka

         11  and Lilah, recognize and support our work, and have

         12  jumped in with renewed energy to prove its time

         13  tested value.

         14                 The City's plan, based on its mammoth

         15  height and density above all, will simply overwhelm

         16  and destroy this historically diverse mixed income,

         17  mixed use community, by bowing to the cries of

         18  developers whose sole purpose in most instances, is

         19  to make windfall profits on lands purchased at hyper

         20  inflated values.

         21                 The community has a plan and has had

         22  one for years. It is not the City's plan.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Would you please

         24  sum up?

         25                 MS. LAWRENCE: We created our own plan
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          2  for development long before the City was willing to

          3  entertain redevelopment on our waterfront.  Now it

          4  is time for you and your wisdom as City Council

          5  members, to respect the painstaking and professional

          6  work we have done.  We have the numbers and the

          7  solid base of community leadership and City- wide

          8  support to show that the community's plan is

          9  possible.

         10                 MS. CHAPPELLE: Good afternoon. My

         11  name is Naomi Chappelle and I am a member, I am

         12  going to be short and brief.  I am a member, an

         13  executive member of the Mitchell- Lama resident's

         14  coalition and also member of the Mitchell- Lama task

         15  force, that is in Brooklyn and in Manhattan.

         16                 My only concern is I am listening to

         17  everyone saying that 40 percent for affordable

         18  housing.  But I would like to know what happened to,

         19  from since 1970, we have not even built another

         20  Mitchell- Lama, which is 100 percent affordable

         21  housing?  I would like that to be answered, why has

         22  not another one been built?  That is it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         24  panel in favor, Louis Coletti, Paul Fernandes and

         25  Mike McGuire.
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          2                 And while they are getting seated,

          3  the next panel in opposition which should take seats

          4  in the front, Kevin Sullivan, Daniel Rivera,

          5  Ricardo, I cannot make out the last name from Saint

          6  Nicholas, and Frederica Sayles from Saint Nicholas,

          7  as well.

          8                 I cannot make it out.  Let us see if

          9  she --

         10                 MR. COLETTI: Can we start?  Okay.

         11  Thank you Mr. Chairman and members of the committee.

         12    My name is Louis Coletti and I am President of the

         13  Building Trades Employers' Association, representing

         14  over 1500 contractors, and employing over 100,000

         15  members of the Building and Construction Trades

         16  Council.

         17                 We are here to urge you to support

         18  the rezoning proposal before you.  The economic

         19  benefits which will accrue to people in all five

         20  boroughs, you have the numbers, I am not going to go

         21  over those numbers.

         22                 What I would like to do is point to

         23  something that I think is very important, in terms

         24  of why this is important to Brooklyn residents

         25  today.  Over a year ago, under the leadership of
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          2  Brooklyn Borough President, Marty Markowitz, over

          3  200 private, public and civic leaders came together,

          4  to create what was called The Initiative for A

          5  Competitive Brooklyn.  They recently released a

          6  report that showed why and how the following state

          7  of the Brooklyn economy would be dramatically

          8  improved with the adoption of these rezoning

          9  proposals.

         10                 First of all, while the two and a

         11  half million residents of Brooklyn make it the most

         12  populous borough in New York City, only 13 percent

         13  of New York City's employment can be found within

         14  its borders.  When you look at payroll statistics

         15  from Brooklyn companies, it comprises only seven

         16  percent of the City's total, indicating that

         17  Brooklyn employers hire fewer workers and pay lower

         18  wages than the City's average.

         19                 In addition, unemployment has

         20  averaged eight and a half percent or one and a half

         21  times higher than the national average, over the

         22  last three years.

         23                 And in terms of manufacturing jobs,

         24  which were once the staple for Brooklyn's working

         25  class, they have declined seven and a half percent a
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          2  year, from 1998 to 2002, and have been substituted

          3  with an influx of lower paying service jobs.

          4                 This report identifies real estate,

          5  construction and development as a cluster on which

          6  to focus public policies to improve the economic

          7  status of Brooklyn residents.  And approving these

          8  rezoning changes, will be an important first step in

          9  turning this hope into a reality.

         10                 In closing, what I would like to do

         11  is to first thank, I have heard several members of

         12  the council before talk about creating prevailing

         13  wage jobs and prevailing jobs that had significant

         14  and decent paying wages.  I would ask you to do,

         15  send a message that you sent to Walmart, and send

         16  the message that you sent to BJ's.  These jobs need

         17  to be built with union contractors and hire

         18  organized labor to build them.  Because we can build

         19  as many affordable housing units as we want, if

         20  people do not have good enough jobs, they will never

         21  be able to afford them.  Thank you.

         22                 MR. FERNANDES: Good afternoon, Mr.

         23  Chairman.   My name is Paul Fernandez with the

         24  Building and Construction Trades Council.  The

         25  organization represents the bulk of the construction

                                                            273

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  unions in New York City, representing more than

          3  100,000 workers.

          4                 In the interest of time, I will keep

          5  my remarks brief and ask that the written remarks be

          6  entered into the record.

          7                 The important thing about the

          8  rezoning for our industry and for the City at large,

          9  is that in the next two decades, 25 percent of our

         10  work force will retire.  Now we can only create new

         11  opportunities for people who want to become new

         12  members of our industry, if in fact we create jobs

         13  for them, and the reason we are supportive of the

         14  Williamsburg- Greenpoint rezoning, is because it

         15  does just that.  It creates 11,000 construction

         16  jobs, as well as thousands more permanent jobs.

         17                 And on the subject of prevailing

         18  wages, I have heard a lot of people talk about

         19  affordable housing.  I would remind people in this

         20  room, that the only requirement under affordable

         21  housing construction programs in New York City and

         22  New York State, is that you pay the minimum wage.

         23  And that is a disgrace, and we think working men and

         24  women ought to be afforded the opportunity, be paid

         25  for prevailing wages.  I heard a previous panel
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          2  comment that, that would be a disincentive to the

          3  construction of affordable housing.  That is

          4  nonsense.  And you heard the previous panel, many of

          5  whom built a number of affordable housing units in

          6  the City, comment that they can in fact, build it

          7  with union labor and union wages.  And we would ask

          8  for the council's support in that.  Thank you.

          9                 MR. MCGUIRE: Good afternoon Mr.

         10  Chairman, Mike McGuire representing Mason Tenders'

         11  District Council.  I am also going to go away from

         12  my written testimony.  You have heard it all here

         13  today.

         14                 I just want to point out that from

         15  our point of view, this proposal is sensible, it is

         16  well thought out and it plans for North Brooklyn's

         17  future.  It modifies waterfront zoning in

         18  Greenpoint- Williamsburg, to prohibit heavy

         19  industrial uses, such as power plants, and waste

         20  transfer stations, that are not people friendly and

         21  it encourages residential and open space

         22  development. The rezoning was created in response to

         23  the 197A plans, where the community set forth their

         24  goals and objectives for land use, and the City and

         25  its agencies have been working with the elected
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          2  officials, community groups, and local leaders to

          3  further improve the rezoning in a way that reflects

          4  the communities interest.

          5                 Now speaking in this community, we

          6  see a lot of people here in the community that are

          7  opposed to this today.  I have with me, Paulo Guchez

          8  (phonetic) who is a business agent of Local 78, who

          9  lives in the Greenpoint community, and earlier in

         10  the day, he had seven of his members with him from

         11  Greenpoint.  But luckily, five of them had to leave

         12  to go to work.  They have jobs, you know, not

         13  everybody is working, but they represent some 1,000

         14  members of local 78 who live in the Greenpoint-

         15  Williamsburg area and they are, Local 78 is fully in

         16  support of the rezoning.

         17                 The only other thing I want to touch

         18  on is, we are not opposed to affordable housing, not

         19  opposed to affordable housing in high numbers.  But

         20  we all, everybody here has to understand, affordable

         21  housing and low density, are mutually exclusive.

         22  You want affordable housing?  That is fine.  We will

         23  build affordable housing, but then you are looking

         24  at 50- 60 story towers.  And that is the reality of

         25  life.  And that is it.  Thank you, sir.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel, which

          3  should be right in front, Kevin, Daniel, Ricardo and

          4  Frederica.

          5                 Then the next panel which should be

          6  taking seats in the front in favor, Fred Harris,

          7  Bill Traylor, Steve Hindy and Emily Caslow.  And we

          8  just took a -- I appreciate the cooperation of

          9  everybody moving quickly and speaking under the time

         10  limit. Just to let you know, there are still over

         11  130 speakers, so let us, I want to make sure we hear

         12  from everybody.

         13                 MR. SULLIVAN: Thank you, Chair

         14  Avella, members of the city council.  My name is

         15  Kevin, my name is Kevin Sullivan.  I am the advocacy

         16  director for Habitat for Humanity of New York City.

         17  Habitat for humanity is a faith- based housing

         18  organization that is committed to the elimination of

         19  substandard housing here in New York City and around

         20  the world.  Habitat is among the largest not for

         21  profit housing developers in the United States, with

         22  affiliates in all 50 states and in 100 countries

         23  around the world.

         24                 I am here today to speak on behalf of

         25  the campaign for inclusionary zoning, which is made
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          2  up of 70 other housing, public policy, and faith and

          3  social service organizations representing the

          4  diversity of New York City's neighborhoods.  The

          5  campaign for inclusionary zoning supports the

          6  community's call for a guarantee that 40 percent of

          7  the new housing created by the rezoning, be

          8  affordable to the community.

          9                 The current proposal by the

         10  administration falls far short of this goal, and

         11  there is no guarantee that any meaningful percentage

         12  of units will be affordable.  After initially

         13  proposing this rezoning with no plan for affordable

         14  housing at all, the administration has offered some

         15  incentives for developers to create affordable

         16  units.  However, the incentives in the current plan

         17  are far too small, and many developers will

         18  therefore probably simply choose to build market

         19  rate units.  The reason for this is that the density

         20  bonus is too small, far smaller than in the Hudson

         21  Yards rezoning, and developers are allowed to build

         22  too much market rate as of right housing.  The City

         23  is currently planning to give away more than 200

         24  million in property tax exemptions, under the 421A

         25  program.  Even the developers that build only market
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          2  rate housing.            We urge the City council to

          3  insist that the plan is dramatically improved, or

          4  else vote no, on the rezoning.

          5                 The campaign for inclusionary zoning

          6  was formed as a City- wide coalition to support the

          7  interest of local communities. We believe that

          8  zoning is a tool for not only creating affordable

          9  housing, but also strong mixed income and

         10  sustainable neighborhoods.  And that includes the

         11  creation of good jobs, and the construction and

         12  maintenance of these buildings.  We do not believe

         13  that there is a necessary trade off between good

         14  paying jobs and affordable housing.

         15                 We urge the City council to reject

         16  this zoning and send it back for more affordable

         17  housing.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. RIVERA: Thank you council members

         19  for the opportunity to testify today on the rezoning

         20  proposal for Greenpoint- Williamsburg.  My name is

         21  Daniel Rivera and I am the Director of the People's

         22  Firehouse, a housing and community- based

         23  organization, which is the civilian advocacy

         24  organization for New York City fire fighters and

         25  related services.
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          2                 We have been located in the north

          3  side Williamsburg, Brooklyn for three decades.  As

          4  many of you know, the Peoples Firehouse, along with

          5  other community organizations, has been working to

          6  reopen Engine Company 212 and other Engine

          7  Companies, which were closed by the Bloomberg

          8  administration, nearly two years ago.  As we

          9  predicted then, response times increased by 53

         10  seconds, in Engine Company 212's coverage area, and

         11  tragically, we suffered multiple fatalities in 2004,

         12  compared to only one in 2003, when EC 212 was

         13  operational, resulting is the loss of over 162

         14  apartments in EC 212's coverage area.

         15                 During the past decade, thousands of

         16  new residences and businesses have into Brooklyn

         17  Community Board One.  While this influx of new

         18  residents has stimulated commercial concerns,

         19  improvement and employment picture has, and has

         20  rehabilitated long vacant property, it has some down

         21  side effects, as well.  These down side effects

         22  include over crowding of existing aging stock, along

         23  with the superficial conversion of 19th century

         24  commercial and residential space, creating a serious

         25  potential for fire, such as bad wiring, illegal or
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          2  shoddy construction work, and at the same time, EC

          3  212 was closed down.  Now thousands of new housing

          4  units are proposed for the development along the

          5  waterfront through the rezoning plan.  This plan, as

          6  presented by the Department of City Planning was

          7  turned down by Community Board One, and the Brooklyn

          8  Borough President's office, since it does not

          9  include a provision for mandatory affordable

         10  housing.

         11                 Voluntary incentives to developers

         12  will not guarantee that they will build desperately

         13  needed affordable housing.  In addition, the

         14  administration has not presented any plan for the

         15  fire protection of these thousands of new residents,

         16  and continues to refuse to open Engine Company 212,

         17  and other close fire engine companies.

         18                 Finally, until there is an adequate

         19  fire protection plan for this neighborhood, the

         20  Peoples Firehouse cannot recommend that the City

         21  Council accept this rezoning plan.

         22                 MS. SAYLES: Good afternoon.  One of

         23  the speakers is not here, sorry.  Thank you.  One of

         24  the speakers is not here, his name would be Carlo.

         25  He just left.  Okay.
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          2                 My name is Fredrica Sayles and I have

          3  two kids and we do live in Williamsburg.  I am going

          4  to make it brief.  I went to school in the area for

          5  many, many years and now I live on Gary Street in

          6  Williamsburg, for three and a half years.  And my

          7  question is, at this time, I need to know what is

          8  affordable for me and for my kids, because at this

          9  time, I do understand that people need jobs, yes we

         10  do, we need jobs, and I do think about that.  But at

         11  this time, where are we going to live in the future?

         12    We need to know that.  Because at this time, we do

         13  not need to wait at the last minute to know where we

         14  are going to be in the future.  That is what we need

         15  to know.  We are the people and we need somewhere to

         16  live.  And it has to be affordable for us, not just

         17  for the rich.  Because we do live there now.  We do

         18  not need to sit there and have the rich come in just

         19  throw us to the side.  It does not work that way.

         20  We need to know.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you for

         22  probably the best testimony of the day.

         23                 Next panel, Fred, Bill, Steve and

         24  Emily.

         25                 And while they are being seated, the
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          2  next opposition panel which take a seat in the front

          3  row, Phyllis Yampolsky, I hope I pronounced it

          4  right, Paige Sayle, Scott Sommer and Dave Herman.

          5                 MR. HARRIS: My name is Fred Harris.

          6  I am the Vice President for Avalon Bay Communities

          7  which is a national real estate company and I am in

          8  charge of their New York region.

          9                 We have no real estate interest at

         10  this time in Brooklyn or in the area affected by the

         11  rezoning, but as a national company, we have made an

         12  enormous commitment to New York, and are now

         13  constructing 1700 new apartment homes in the City.

         14                 I am here to speak in favor of the

         15  proposal because we believe, as a company, that

         16  mixed income incentives and specifically, the

         17  inclusionary zoning proposal before you, will work

         18  and that they do work.  Affordable, mixed income,

         19  affordable housing, and market rate projects, have

         20  been the cornerstone of our corporate development

         21  strategy throughout the northeast, and have enabled

         22  us to build nationwide, over 40,000 apartment homes.

         23    We are publicly owned, many of you probably own

         24  shares of our company indirectly through your

         25  pension plans.  We are viewed as a careful and
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          2  analytical steward of the funds that are entrusted

          3  to us by investors.  And in looking at this

          4  proposal, we think that this is likely to be highly

          5  successful, and that rental housing developers such

          6  as ourselves, would be almost required to build the

          7  inclusionary, that would be offered by the proposal,

          8  because it would be so advantageous for their

          9  projects.

         10                 Lastly, I just wanted to say that in

         11  our experience, we think that voluntary incentives

         12  are often more effective than mandatory ones,

         13  because they permit developers who are more

         14  attracted to these incentives to come, and those who

         15  will use the incentives will actually generally be

         16  willing to make a greater investment, to win control

         17  of the sites where the inclusionary zoning or other

         18  incentives for low market housing are offered. Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. TRAYLOR: My name is Bill Traylor.

         21    I am the President of Richman Housing Resources,

         22  which is a developer, an investor in affordable

         23  housing.  As a result, we are the 13th largest

         24  residential property owner in the United States.

         25  Ninety seven percent of what we own is affordable
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          2  housing.

          3                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          4  testify.  I believe that the proposed rezoning needs

          5  to, and I believe it does, following a proud City

          6  tradition begun in 1937 with the opening

          7  Williamsburg houses, and continued by and through

          8  the Mitchell- Lama program and Mayor Koch's 10 year

          9  plan.  The rezoning. Like its predecessor efforts,

         10  encourages developers to create housing for a wide

         11  range of New Yorkers, for home owners and renters,

         12  for low, moderate and middle income families.

         13                 My analysis of the rezoning effort

         14  which I have shared with Council staff, indicates

         15  that the proposed rezoning provides sufficient

         16  height and density to encourage the intended

         17  development, and provide the public amenities of

         18  public open space and affordable housing.

         19                 However, I should also note that the

         20  margin between public incentive and private costs is

         21  very tight.  As a current market moderates, that is,

         22  as interest rates rise and costs continue to rise,

         23  development will become more difficult to

         24  accomplish.  Therefore the imposition of additional

         25  requirements, such as extending the 421A exclusion
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          2  zone, would likely depress and slow development, and

          3  may make development impossible at points, as a

          4  residential market changes over time.

          5                 The proposed rezoning provides an

          6  incentive for developers to create mixed income

          7  communities.  And that is wise. The proposed zoning

          8  bonus, coupled with available extended 421A

          9  benefits, and the ability to us public subsidies to

         10  defray the cost of affordable housing creates

         11  greater developer profitability. Developers will

         12  make more profit by creating mixed income projects,

         13  than by creating market rate units alone.  While

         14  this additional profit is by no means a windfall,

         15  profit nonetheless, is a powerful incentive for

         16  developers.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. HINDY: I am Steve Hindy.  I am

         18  President of Brooklyn Brewery.  We employ 35 people

         19  in Williamsburg.  We have been there 13 years.  We

         20  do about 25 percent of our brewing in Brooklyn, the

         21  rest we do in Upstate New York, in Utica, New York.

         22  Our company is growing by about 25 percent a year.

         23  Right now we are at capacity in Brooklyn.  All of

         24  the jobs created by that growth are in Utica.  We

         25  would like to expand in Brooklyn, but none of our
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          2  neighbors will sell to us at a reasonable price.

          3  They are looking for $140 dollars a build- able

          4  foot, or prices like that. You cannot make money

          5  brewing beer, if you paid that price for your land.

          6                 I think it is very important that you

          7  rezone Greenpoint and Williamsburg, and I think this

          8  plan does protect existing industry that wants to

          9  stay in the area.   I think it also buffers nicely

         10  with the mixed use between the residential areas and

         11  the industrial areas.

         12                 I do not think you will ever please

         13  everyone in this room, but if you delay, I think we

         14  all lose.  Thank you.

         15                 MS. CASLOW: Good afternoon.  I want

         16  to thank the City council for allowing me to speak.

         17  My name is Emily Caslow and I am pleased and proud

         18  to be here on behalf of my family's company, Acme

         19  Smoked Fish Corporation of 30 Gem Street in

         20  Greenpoint Brooklyn.  For more than 50 years, four

         21  generations of my family have dedicated themselves

         22  to operating our family business in Greenpoint.  In

         23  doing so, Acme has contributed to the economic

         24  strength of New York City, served as a local

         25  employer to many, and is a responsible member of our
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          2  community.

          3                 We appreciate the efforts of the City

          4  Planning Commission for supporting our request to

          5  keep our property zoned as M3, and bringing to you a

          6  zoning plan that recognizes our company's needs.

          7  This continued zoning designation will allow us to

          8  keep our commitment to Greenpoint and New York City.

          9

         10                 Acme has made substantial investments

         11  in its Greenpoint facility in recent years.  Despite

         12  generous efforts, offers, to relocate from economic

         13  development corporations in New Jersey and empire

         14  development zones in other areas of New York State.

         15  We turned down these offers and instead, increased

         16  our investment in Greenpoint, spending millions of

         17  dollars upgrading our facilities, which increased

         18  the plant's capacity.  This, in turn, produced more

         19  jobs, and we have increased the company's work force

         20  by nearly 50 percent in the last several years.  We

         21  presently employ about 150 people at our Greenpoint

         22  home.  You might be surprised to learn that 100 of

         23  these employees walk to work daily from surrounding

         24  neighborhoods of Greenpoint, Williamsburg and

         25  Bushwick.
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          2                 Acme is a long standing employee in

          3  the community. We provide good jobs at a decent

          4  living wage for generations of local residents.

          5                 Acme's Greenpoint plant has been an

          6  important part of my life since I was a little girl.

          7    I can tell you stories about visiting  the plant

          8  as a child and reaching my entire arm into a big

          9  barrel of herring, completely soaking my pink puffy

         10  snowsuit. But this is not about my memories.  It is

         11  about the future of our company, and the futures of

         12  the many families and lives that depend on Acme for

         13  their livelihood.  It is also about preserving a

         14  heritage of a family owned company that makes

         15  traditional New York style smoked salmon right here

         16  in New York City.

         17                 In closing, I want to ask for your

         18  support to keep our property zoned as M3, as

         19  submitted and approved by Amanda Burden and the City

         20  Planning Commission.  Doing so, will enable us to

         21  keep our business growing in Greenpoint, and to

         22  continue serving the local economy as an employer

         23  and a taxpayer.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

         25  next panel which should be seated in the front row,
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          2  Phyllis, Paige, Scott, Dave. And while they are

          3  being seated, the next panel in support who should

          4  take a seat in the front row, Carl Hum, Rick Bell,

          5  Frank and Ethel Sheffer.

          6                 MS. SAYLE: Good afternoon.  My name

          7  is Paige Sayle and I am here on behalf of the

          8  Partnership for the Homeless.  The Partnership has

          9  provided a broad range of services to homeless New

         10  Yorkers over the past 20 years.  I am here today

         11  because nearly 36,000 men, women and children spent

         12  the night in a homeless shelter last night.  New

         13  York City's massive shelter system is the largest in

         14  the country, and it has expanded at a staggering

         15  rate, doubling in size over four years.  Why is this

         16  problem getting so out of hand?  The answer is

         17  simple.  There is not enough affordable housing.

         18  And when I say affordable housing for this group, I

         19  am referring to housing that is affordable to the

         20  1.5 million or 20 percent of all New York City

         21  residents that live at, or below the poverty line,

         22  which as we heard from Council Member Reyna earlier,

         23  is $18 thousand six hundred dollars for a family of

         24  four.

         25                 Today the opportunity for this family

                                                            290

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  to find housing and climb out of poverty is nearly

          3  impossible.  In New York City, a full time worker

          4  must earn over $20 dollars an hour. Almost three

          5  times the minimum wage to afford a modest one

          6  bedroom apartment in a non gentrified community.

          7  And on top of the general lack of affordable housing

          8  options, single homeless adults and homeless

          9  families, have no access to Section 8, because there

         10  are no available Section 8's in New York City this

         11  year, and the current administration has removed

         12  priority for the homeless population to receive

         13  Section 8.  We are running out of options to house

         14  the homeless.  We need a solution.

         15                 I am here today to strongly support

         16  the use of mandatory inclusionary zoning, to ensure

         17  the development of affordable housing for the

         18  homeless and New Yorkers who live on extremely low

         19  incomes.  We support the community's call for a

         20  guarantee that 40 percent of the new housing created

         21  by the rezoning in Greenpoint- Williamsburg, be

         22  affordable.  And by affordable, I do not mean just

         23  for people making less than 80 percent of the area

         24  median income, or $50 thousand two hundred dollars a

         25  year.
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          2                 When I say affordable, I am referring

          3  to the families living on $18 thousand six hundred

          4  dollars a year.  Yet an overwhelming number of new

          5  units created by the proposed rezoning will only be

          6  affordable to people earning over $100 thousand

          7  dollars a year.  With the Department of City

          8  Planning's own environmental impact statement,

          9  estimating that over 2,500 low income residents of

         10  the community could be displaced as a result of

         11  proposed rezoning actions by raising rents.  These

         12  community residents may become the next wave of

         13  homeless men, women and children in City shelters.

         14                 An in closing, I would just like to

         15  ask for your support for mandatory inclusionary

         16  zoning in the Greenpoint Williamsburg rezoning

         17  effort.  Thank you.

         18                 MR. SOMMER: Good afternoon.  My name

         19  is Scott Sommer.  I am a Brooklyn native and

         20  resident and a member of the State Executive

         21  Committee of the Working Families Party and I am

         22  here testifying on behalf of the Working Families

         23  Party today.  And we urge the council to vote no, on

         24  the proposed rezoning of Greenpoint- Williamsburg.

         25  We believe that this rezoning proposal places over
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          2  4,000 good jobs for working New Yorkers at risk.  It

          3  fails to create enough affordable housing for the

          4  existing community, as contrary to the

          5  democratically expressed wishes of the community.

          6                 Greenpoint and Williamsburg residents

          7  have worked hard to build a consensus, and they have

          8  been able to come up with their plans, their 197A

          9  plans, which have been approved by the City Planning

         10  Commission.  And we feel that those plans should be

         11  respected.

         12                 We also feel that the Community Board

         13  One voting no in the ULURP action, should also be

         14  respective as well.  The written testimony goes into

         15  greater detail, I do not want to take up all your

         16  time here.

         17                 4,000 jobs could be rezoned out of

         18  existence, as part of the plan that is before you

         19  today.  These are good jobs and preserving these

         20  jobs and in similar industrial districts throughout

         21  the City, we believe is very important.  We also

         22  believe that the zoning of blocks as MX, which would

         23  pit housing against, residential development,

         24  against industrial zoning, means that the industrial

         25  jobs will disappear and is detrimental in the I
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          2  believe, 42 block area that is zoned where most of

          3  the industrial work is, should be taken out of the

          4  MX zoning.

          5                 Greenpoint- Williamsburg is also a

          6  working class neighborhood where half, more than

          7  half the community's residents earn less than $30

          8  thousand dollars a year.  The housing that is being

          9  talked about being built here, would be affordable

         10  to people over $100 thousand a year, as Paige from

         11  the Partnership for the Homeless said, we feel that

         12  is not the development of housing that New York City

         13  needs, not the development of housing that this City

         14  needs.  And the EIS statement of the Department of

         15  Planning, as stated earlier, would take 2500 people

         16  and displace them.  That would not be acceptable.

         17                 Finally, in conclusion, we believe

         18  the council should vote no, because the only way you

         19  will have any leverage to get this corrected and

         20  turned around and be serving the people of the

         21  community, is to reject the City council's plan and

         22  make them come back to the bargaining table and to

         23  use the leverage of the council, to make this plan

         24  affordable for housing, and also preserve good jobs.

         25    Thank you.
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          2                 MR. HERMAN: Good afternoon, Council

          3  members and fellow citizens.  I am Dave Herman.  I

          4  share my allegiances with the North Brooklyn

          5  Alliance, Creative Industry Coalition, Community

          6  Board One, and most importantly, my neighbors of

          7  Williamsburg, Brooklyn.  I am proud to be the

          8  president of the City Reliquary, a community museum

          9  and civic organization based in Williamsburg.  The

         10  City Reliquary was founded with a mission to

         11  preserve the rich history of the five boroughs, and

         12  to promote a sense of civic pride, as inspiration

         13  for the improvement of our City's future.

         14                 The museum feeds into and thrives off

         15  of the great diversity which Williamsburg and

         16  Brooklyn is famous for.  Being an organization so

         17  dedicated to the enrichment of our community, we are

         18  deeply concerned by the rezoning of this

         19  neighborhood and the vision of its future as

         20  prepared by the Department of City Planning.  While

         21  it is necessary to restructure zoning laws in order

         22  to promote future growth and vitality along our

         23  waterfront, the original plan from City Hall is

         24  greatly inadequate, and addresses only a select few

         25  of the many topics which will have irrevocable
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          2  impact on our sense of Brooklyn neighborhood, pride

          3  and quality of life.

          4                 I insist that a more responsible and

          5  thorough investigation is still necessary to protect

          6  our existing community. I ask that the new plan be

          7  created, which places more emphasis on the following

          8  topics.  In my written statement I have included

          9  just a couple of the topics that have already been

         10  gone over countless times today, so I just want to

         11  take a moment to say that the community that we

         12  represent is known very well for its great

         13  diversity.  And I think that our representatives

         14  have done a wonderful job of presenting our case on

         15  behalf of the people of Brooklyn.  And I want to

         16  encourage the council to please listen closely to

         17  our representatives which we have elected, Like

         18  Diana Reyna and David Yassky.  Also of course, our

         19  Borough President, Marty Markowitz and our

         20  Congresswoman, Naydia Velasquez.

         21                 If we do obviously all here have a

         22  sense of importance in this democratic process, then

         23  I urge you to listen to them closely.  They

         24  represent our opinions very well.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. YAMPOLSKY: Good afternoon
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          2  honorable members of the City council.  Am I

          3  speaking correctly into this?  My name is Phyllis

          4  Yampolsky, the President of McCarren Park

          5  Conservancy, fighting 17 years to restore McCarren

          6  Pool, an historic and architectural masterpiece,

          7  much as the monument we are sitting in today.

          8                 I have written a three minute

          9  statement, but since I only have two minutes, I will

         10  try to give you the essence, and hope you will enjoy

         11  reading it later.

         12                 Into this issue, I introduce the

         13  context of new millennium consciousness and old time

         14  zone people, who unbeknownst to themselves, are

         15  carrying the burden of old fashioned value systems

         16  that are dying, because they no longer work.

         17  Prominent among them, is the profit above all

         18  motive.  New time zone people, here represented by

         19  the Greenpoint- Williams community and I trust by

         20  yourselves, are characterized by the growing and

         21  inevitable power of grassroots participatory

         22  systems, so prevalent a process everywhere, it is

         23  becoming a global cliche.  Robert Thurman, Uma

         24  Thurman's father, sums it up, future systems will

         25  operate by the individual's consciousness of the
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          2  whole, and the consciousness of the whole for the

          3  individual.

          4                 You can think of the Greenpoint-

          5  Williams (sic.) Community as urban NGO's, willing to

          6  work with the City and developers if they will

          7  understand, that four story people are as valuable

          8  as forty story people.  40,000 people coming into

          9  our town makes a new town.  And a new town needs a

         10  new infrastructure.

         11                 You have heard the lists.  Protection

         12  for our residents housing for their jobs and

         13  businesses.  Protection from the criminal air we are

         14  given here to breathe.  Increased education systems,

         15  redesigned traffic and transportation systems,

         16  increased fire and police protection, and last,

         17  because it is the most misunderstood, parks and open

         18  space.  Trees and grass are not amenities.  Yes,

         19  they afford a respite from life along a line of grey

         20  asphalt.  For many urbanites, they are the only

         21  reminder of the natural world given them.  They are

         22  places to refresh the spirit.  They are gathering

         23  spots for friends and lovers, but above all, they

         24  are a matter of life and breath.  That is to say

         25  they are a matter of life and death.  Remember your
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          2  school days?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please sum up.

          4  Please sum up.

          5                 MS. YAMPOLSKY: Trees purify our dirty

          6  air.  One sentence more.

          7                 Last year Councilman Yassky gave $500

          8  thousand dollars to McCarren Park, the areas only

          9  substantial park for a new soccer field, but

         10  McCarren Park is so overused, the soccer team is not

         11  even permitted to play out its allotted hours.

         12  Without adding 40,000 people to the community,

         13  simple research will tell us the proportion of

         14  public parks space and public open space that is

         15  needed for real breathing space.  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  I had

         17  called the next panel, I do not see anybody sitting

         18  in the front row.  Carl Hum, Rick Bell, Frank

         19  Giallorenzo, Ethel Sheffer, are they here? Otherwise

         20  we will pass them.  Okay.

         21                 Stewart Wendell, Jack Kittle,

         22  actually just gave us a letter of support, so he is

         23  not here, Doctor Florin Merovici, George Ugden and

         24  Bill Chambers.  Are they here?  Just one?  And you

         25  are, sir, so I just know -- if the others are not
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          2  here, I will go on to more of those who are in

          3  support.  Ron D'Addario, is that person here?  Mark

          4  Grilli?  I hate to say this, but this is good.

          5  Louise Favier?  We got one more.  Sir, your name?  I

          6  am sorry, we did not hear that.  How about Amy

          7  Warden?  Jack, are you back?  Do you want to --  you

          8  did not get out of the building fast enough. Is Amy

          9  Warden here?  Erik Stueben?  Stueben?  Jeff Harris?

         10  Alright, we will do this panel and then we will go

         11  on.  Jack.

         12                 MR. KITTLE: Thank you.  I was just

         13  giving up on you, Tony.  Chair Avella, members of

         14  the committee, Council Members Yassky and Reyna.

         15  Good afternoon.  My name is Jack Kittle and I am

         16  here today representing business manager Sandy

         17  Vagelatos and the 10,000 working men and women of

         18  District Council 9 of the International Union of

         19  Painters and Allied Trades.  Our union represents a

         20  number of trades, including painters, decorators,

         21  wall paper hangers, glaziers, metal polishers, dry

         22  wall finishers and structural steel painters.

         23                 District Council 9 supports the

         24  Greenpoint Williamsburg rezoning plan and the

         25  thousands of construction jobs that it will create.
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          2  We have suffered some lean times in the last three

          3  years, and do not have the luxury of sitting back,

          4  where there is an opportunity to create jobs to our

          5  members.

          6                 I am here today to make sure that our

          7  message is heard by this committee.  Vote yes, on

          8  the rezoning.  While we need to be in support of

          9  projects that create jobs, we are not automatically

         10  in favor of all development, but when the project

         11  represents responsible development, we will be loud

         12  and clear in our support.  New York City has an

         13  incredible and under- used natural resource in our

         14  waterfront areas.  Every other waterfront City in

         15  the world, uses their waterfront as a center piece.

         16  We allow ours to sit largely vacant and desolate.

         17  We have a unique opportunity to create a truly great

         18  neighborhood here.  Please do not allow this

         19  opportunity to create jobs, housing, private

         20  investment and economic development, to pass us by.

         21  We have a chance to do something big here.  This is

         22  New York City.  This is a type of project that this

         23  City should be embracing.

         24                 The members of District Council 9,

         25  thank you for helping to put us to work.  To us,
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          2  this is more than just construction jobs.  The

          3  development of large buildings creates thousands of

          4  maintenance jobs for decades to come.  Thank you for

          5  your time.

          6                 MR. BOGDAN: Thank you for this

          7  opportunity.  My name is George Bogdan.  I was born

          8  in Greenpoint, and on and off, I have lived there

          9  all my life.  My parents were Polish immigrants who

         10  settled in there in the 1950's.  My mom is still

         11  alive and has lived in the area continuously.  I now

         12  practice law there as a solo attorney.

         13                 I know that people in Greenpoint-

         14  Williamsburg have hoped for better uses of the

         15  waterfront for decades, and while I have some

         16  objections to the plan, proposed by City Planning,

         17  in general, I support it, and I think it is

         18  necessary.

         19                 My main complaint is with the level

         20  of density of development proposed.  The City

         21  Planning proposal is flawed in its assumption

         22  concerning the infrastructure investments needed in

         23  this area.  If you are planning to increase our

         24  population by approximately 20 percent, you do have

         25  to invest in social infrastructure for schools,
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          2  fire, police, libraries and transportation.

          3                 I do not mean to criticize the

          4  Bloomberg administration.  I think every

          5  administration in my lifetime has given short shrift

          6  to this area, in terms of its services.  That is

          7  certainly true of the MTA, which has really not been

          8  a friend of the G train for as long as I have lived

          9  there.  So, if you want to increase the population

         10  by 20 percent, you really need to make the proper

         11  investment.  And I am quite distrustful and

         12  skeptical that investment will be made.

         13                 That is really the main reason I

         14  would argue for a lower density of development.

         15  Other speakers have spoken in terms of the details.

         16  I would just argue for much lower building heights

         17  on the waterfront, and support what other people

         18  have said in terms of parks and open spaces.

         19                 I thank you very much for your time.

         20                 MR. CHAMBERS: Good evening ladies and

         21  gentlemen.  I think it is evening now.  Right?  My

         22  name is Bill Chambers.  I am a mystery writer and a

         23  lifelong resident of Greenpoint Brooklyn. As far as

         24  I know, I think I am Greenpoint's only mystery

         25  writer at this time.  And unlike my literary
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          2  colleagues, I do not intend to move across the East

          3  River here to Manhattan.  My wife, Marie, was born

          4  and raised in Greenpoint, as I was.  We are

          5  homeowners and former business owners.  From 1983 to

          6  1989, we owned a bar and restaurant in Greenpoint

          7  known as Chamber's Pub.  We both have been community

          8  activists devoting thirteen years of our life

          9  working on the creation of 197A Waterfront

         10  Development Plan.

         11                 My wife and I devoted all those years

         12  of service to the Waterfront Renewal Plan, because

         13  we have lived long enough in Greenpoint to remember

         14  when commerce thrived on the waterfront, and we

         15  remember when it stopped.  From the late 60's to the

         16  early 70's, the piers fell to waste.  Greenpoint's

         17  waterfront with its magnificent harbor scene of the

         18  Manhattan skyline, crumbled to the point that the

         19  residents could not enjoy this panoramic view,

         20  without risking life and limb.

         21                 Now it seems that this rezoning could

         22  rectify this dismal situation.  I understand there

         23  are concerns regarding the percentages of affordable

         24  housing being offered.  My hope is that a just

         25  compromise can be reached between the needs of the
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          2  people, and the realities of the market place.

          3                 From my part, I would like to

          4  emphasize the importance of parks and open spaces,

          5  especially in North Greenpoint where most of the hi-

          6  rises will be built.  At the moment, we have a

          7  scarcity of green space and an abundant of

          8  contaminants.  Newtown Creek is probably the most

          9  polluted body of water in America, and we in North

         10  Greenpoint can claim it for our own.  The Mobil oil

         11  spill is larger than the Exxon Valdez, and we in

         12  North Greenpoint can claim that for our own.  Forty

         13  percent of the City- s garbage comes from North

         14  Greenpoint's transfer stations.  We are home to the

         15  largest pollution plant on the east coast.

         16                 I believe, we residents of North

         17  Greenpoint, have served the City well, by accepting

         18  more than our share of toxic burdens.  Now we

         19  deserve to be rewarded with the amenities of a new

         20  and revitalized waterfront, with parks and green

         21  space for our adults and children, and access to

         22  what could become the most breathtaking river view

         23  in New York City.  Thank you.

         24                 MR. PUGLIESE: Do not start the clock

         25  yet.  Mr. Chairman, members of the City council,
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          2  good afternoon, good evening.  My name is Anthony

          3  Pugliese.  I am an organizer for the New York City

          4  District Council of Carpenters.  I have been a

          5  carpenter for 32 years and a Brooklyn resident my

          6  whole life.

          7                 Change, it may only be an unassuming

          8  six letter word, but it is the scariest word in the

          9  English language, when you talk about rezoning in

         10  New York City.  People hate change.  Even if that

         11  change will bring in environmental clean up of

         12  under- used commercial sites, bring access to the

         13  waterfront, and create new parks, bring in thousands

         14  of affordable units of housing and thousands of jobs

         15  to the hard working people of Brooklyn and New York.

         16    Not all change is good, but certainly in this

         17  instance, there are substantial reasons and benefits

         18  to the types of changes being proposed in the

         19  rezoning plan.

         20                 Today, I am sure that you are going

         21  to hear testimony that is either the best or the

         22  worst project ever proposed.  I am not going to

         23  claim either side, but I can tell you that we have

         24  some promising discussions.

         25                 Over the past few months we, the
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          2  Carpenter's Union, as well as a number of other

          3  trades of the building trades, have met in

          4  discussion with the administration and some of the

          5  larger property owners within the rezoning, about

          6  the issues of jobs, construction jobs.  This

          7  discussion was not only about if the project would

          8  go forward, but how it would be done.  Would these

          9  developers take the low road and use contractors

         10  that do not train their workers or pay the

         11  prevailing wage?  Or would they take the high road

         12  and use qualified contractors that pay their workers

         13  the prevailing rate of pay?

         14                 So far these talks have been frank,

         15  honest and on real concrete terms.  While we have

         16  not yet reached an agreement, we are encouraged by

         17  their common dialogue.

         18                 I am here today to show my support

         19  for the Greenpoint- Williamsburg rezoning project.

         20  This project will create jobs, revitalize the

         21  neighborhood, and boost economic development, and

         22  provide much needed housing.  This project will

         23  bring in $1.6 billion dollars in private investment

         24  for the construction in the proposed rezoned area.

         25                 I want to thank you for this
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          2  opportunity.  But on a final note, listening to

          3  testimony today sir, a reference was made to another

          4  project in Brooklyn, the Schaefer Brewery, which is

          5  a non union project, where workers are being

          6  exploited, where workers cannot make that minimum

          7  wage that so called being asked to make to buy these

          8  affordable units.  And I have seen in the past, so,

          9  in reference to Schaefer Brewery being used as a

         10  witness for some of the people in the City council,

         11  I think they should re- look at for future

         12  opportunities of dealing with contractors.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         14  panel in, which is in opposition, Heather Roslund,

         15  Chris Olechowski, I hope I pronounced that right,

         16  Doris Diether, sorry Doris that you have been

         17  waiting here so long, and Cathy Wassylenko.  Are

         18  those other people here?  Okay.

         19                 While they are coming up, the next

         20  panel in favor which I would appreciate your taking

         21  a seat in the front row so I know who is here, Lisa

         22  Deveraux, Daniel Edrei, Adam Perlmutter and John

         23  Kaufmann.

         24                 MS. DIETHER: Okay.  My name is Doris

         25  Diether and I am here today to urge you to reject

                                                            308

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  the City Planning Commission proposal for rezoning

          3  this area.  I represent a number of manufacturing

          4  and residential tenants in the area.

          5                 Early last year, a friend and I

          6  worked with some of the people in the area to draft

          7  a rezoning plan for the area, which was favorably

          8  accepted by a number of people there.  The plan

          9  mandated affordable housing, had height limits for

         10  new construction or additions to existing buildings,

         11  preference for the housing to be given to existing

         12  residents, but primarily the plan was to preserve

         13  the existing manufacturing in the area.

         14                 As far as we can see, this community

         15  plan that was drafted by this group of people in the

         16  area, was completely ignored by the City Planning

         17  Commission.  The manufacturing is a very important

         18  component in this area, and people seem to think

         19  that you can just move a manufacturing plant, like

         20  you can move a resident from one place to another.

         21  Many of the manufacturing plants have equipment that

         22  was built into the plant when they took their space,

         23  they had the equipment built into it, and this

         24  equipment cannot be moved very easily.  And most of

         25  the time, if a manufacturer has to move out of the
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          2  space, he goes out of business, because it costs him

          3  so much to move, it is not worth it.

          4                 The City Planning Commission plan has

          5  higher height limits and higher FAR than the

          6  residents and people in the area requested.  If you

          7  look at the zoning carefully, you will find that the

          8  zoning would actually permit, in an R8 zone that

          9  went in with the inclusionary housing, buildings 360

         10  feet tall and with a 40 foot mezzanine on the top,

         11  40 foot addition on the top, which would be a 400

         12  foot building, or 40 stories tall.  And this is

         13  along the waterfront in the R8 districts.

         14                 The new zoning also weighs the

         15  setback regulations. Already?  The inclusionary

         16  housing, I just want to say a word about the

         17  inclusionary housing.  When they re- wrote it, they

         18  re- wrote the whole section, so that it does not

         19  include what we usually think of inclusionary

         20  housing, low income.  It has middle income and what

         21  they call moderate income housing.  And there is no

         22  verification of the income required, and there is no

         23  definition actually of lower income housing.  I

         24  know, I had my statement actually -- and it also not

         25  even necessary to rent at the required rents because
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          2  if they do a good faith marketing advertising thing,

          3  they do not even have to rent at those rents, they

          4  can just say, well we could not find any tenants.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Doris, you are

          6  going to be the first person I cut off.  Thanks.

          7  Next speaker.

          8                 MS. ROSLUND: Good afternoon. I am

          9  Heather Roslund, Brooklyn Community Board One

         10  member, Chair of the Height and Bulk Committee of

         11  CB1's rezoning task force, and I have an

         12  architectural practice in the north side of

         13  Williamsburg.

         14                 We believe a lesser build

         15  holistically developed option, embraces the strategy

         16  for sustainable growth for Greenpoint- Williamsburg,

         17  while complimenting its most desirable qualities.

         18  So these are just things that you have heard over

         19  and over again, this idea of holistic development.

         20                 Density and diversity are the keys.

         21  We need less density and more diversity.  Our demand

         22  for a maximum FAR in the range of 3.4 to 3.7 on the

         23  waterfront, will maintain a relative consistency of

         24  bulk throughout the rezoning, will encourage a

         25  variety of building envelopes, will ensure that new
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          2  developments better meld with our surrounding

          3  fabric, and will provide significantly better views

          4  and access to the East River.  It is imperative that

          5  the rezoning accommodate the community needs without

          6  sacrificing existing context.

          7                 The Upland will also be transformed

          8  by this rezoning.  We look for new Upland

          9  development to emulate the vibrant mix of scales and

         10  building topology found throughout North Brooklyn,

         11  avoiding the wholesale transformation of our

         12  community into a medium density residential district

         13  uniform in building height and bulk.

         14                 We firmly advocate an R6 mapping over

         15  R6A, not only in that it results in less density,

         16  but allows a greater flexibility of massing,

         17  multiple street wall permutations, and the potential

         18  for adaptive re- use of existing low rise buildings.

         19    This R6, coupled with a mixed use designation

         20  which has a 110 foot height limit, would discourage

         21  large lot assemblages, which tend to accelerate the

         22  demolition of smaller structures and displacement of

         23  businesses, long time businesses, and residences.

         24                 We advocate expanding the City's

         25  proposed R6B designations in areas with strong
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          2  residential fabric, adjacent to the Greenpoint

          3  historic district, as well as mapping it on blocks

          4  facing McCarren Park, as these are particularly

          5  sensitive precious resources and light and air must

          6  be maximized.  We implore the City council to reduce

          7  the density and revise the urban design, to reflect

          8  that which makes our neighborhood a special place.

          9  We know that together we can make this a truly

         10  balanced rezoning.  Thank you.

         11                 MS. WASSYLENKO: My name is Cathy

         12  Wassylenko.  I am a preservationist, artist and

         13  professional set painter, and I have resided in

         14  Brooklyn for over 20 years.

         15                 Mayor Bloomberg has identified the

         16  film industry and tourism as the two most important

         17  industries in New York. Unfortunately his unbridled

         18  support for large and ill conceived development,

         19  threatens to destroy both.  Clearly, tourists are

         20  not drawn to Brooklyn by skyscrapers and shopping

         21  malls.  The true wealth of Brooklyn lies in its

         22  historic housing stock, and its magnificent old

         23  warehouse buildings on the waterfront.  Tourists are

         24  drawn by cozy cafes and charming gourmet restaurants

         25  nestled in historic enclaves.  They are drawn by

                                                            313

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  amazing waterfront vistas and art galleries in

          3  rustic old warehouse spaces.  They are drawn by a

          4  multi layered, cultural and creative community,

          5  unlike any other in the world.

          6                 As for the film industry, I can tell

          7  you as a working member, that suitable movie

          8  locations are becoming ever harder to find.  Why

          9  would one choose to film in New York, if not for a

         10  location, when indoor sets can be built anywhere

         11  more cheaply?  Locations also have the added value

         12  of becoming tourist attractions for years to come.

         13                 Most of Williamsburg and Greenpoint

         14  has not been land- marked due to City's convoluted

         15  and ineffective designation process.  And much

         16  damage has already been done.  Inappropriate

         17  rezoning could be devastating to these communities.

         18  The zoning must be compatible with the existing

         19  built environment, so as to compliment, rather than

         20  to overwhelm its historic character. Adaptive reuse

         21  of industrial buildings is essential and should be

         22  mandated.

         23                 We also urge City council to expedite

         24  the bill before you that would require historic

         25  review of all buildings 50 years or older.  The
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          2  waterfront is precious and belongs to all New

          3  Yorkers and visitors alike.  We have enjoyed its raw

          4  beauty and its wild flowers and the views of

          5  Manhattan skyline.

          6                 Although we have lost many of our

          7  waterfront buildings in a frenzy of demolition, an

          8  effort should be made to rebuild in proportion and

          9  scale that honors the historic character and

         10  original street grid.

         11                 Recent upzoning of Fourth Avenue --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please sum up.

         13                 MS. WASSYLENKO: Okay.  The upzoning

         14  of Fourth Avenue in Brooklyn has proved disastrous.

         15  One building after another is being toppled and

         16  cheaply and hurriedly constructed.  Eyesores are

         17  taking the place.

         18                 In the words of Jackie Kennedy, greed

         19  devours New York bit by bit.  We ask you to vote no,

         20  on this rezoning plan.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         22  panel, and while they are being seated, I have a

         23  number of speakers from the Municipal Arts Society,

         24  I will try to call them as one panel. Jasper

         25  Goldman, Kimberly Miller, Eve Baron and Frank
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          2  Sanchis.  If they would come and sit up in the front

          3  row.

          4                 MR. PERLMUTTER: Chairman Avella, my

          5  name is Adam Perlmutter.  I am a Greenpoint resident

          6  for eight years, President of the Noble Street

          7  Synagogue, a member of Community Board One, a member

          8  and Founder of the Greenpoint Waterfront Association

          9  for Parks and Planning, counsel to the community to

         10  stop power plants and save firehouses, and counsel

         11  to Greenpoint Land Use Associates to stop the Trans

         12  Gas Power Plant, a proposed 1100 mega watt power

         13  plant in the middle of the rezoning area.  Most

         14  importantly, I am a husband and if anybody will tell

         15  you, the father of the most beautiful two year old

         16  in the world.

         17                 I want to tell you two brief stories

         18  about Trans Gas and why it is relevant for the

         19  rezoning.  The first occurred about a year ago when

         20  State agencies filed post hearing briefs opposing

         21  the Trans Gas project.  I called their staffs and

         22  asked them why they decided to take the community's

         23  side in this important fight. And they said that

         24  they imagined coming to New York in 15 years,

         25  looking at our waterfront and only seeing a power
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          2  plant.  In their words, they could not play a role

          3  in making that legacy.  Without rezoning, that will

          4  be your legacy.  Without rezoning the Trans Gas

          5  project will most likely be approved, and we will

          6  lose for generations, the opportunity revitalizing

          7  this unique waterfront. And it is unique, because it

          8  is the only one that Robert Moses did not cut off

          9  from the local community with a highway.

         10                 The other story is about three days

         11  in my life, 9 11, 9- 12, and 9- 13.  9- 11 for the

         12  reasons we well remember, 9- 12 because of a

         13  conversation I had with a lawyer from California,

         14  who told me that I should move out of New York out

         15  of 9- 11.  And I told him that I would not, because

         16  we New Yorkers rebuild and reinvent our City every

         17  day, and that our waterfront was the prime example

         18  of being able to do that.  And that is what we want

         19  to do here.  We want to make New York a continually

         20  vital place, and we can do that by revitalizing our

         21  waterfront.  9- 13, sir, because that is the day

         22  that Trans Gas filed its pre- application to build

         23  its power plant. While we were still searching for

         24  our loved ones, this energy company came in, and in

         25  a second attack on our neighborhood, filed their
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          2  pre- application to build this power plant.

          3                 Please pass the rezoning.  The City's

          4  plan needs improvement.  There are particularly

          5  great opportunities for additional open space in

          6  Greenpoint that you can take advantage of.         The

          7  New York Times said on August 1st, that the Mayor's

          8  plan is a smart one and deserves support.  The New

          9  York Post also agrees that it is a good plan.  I

         10  submit to you that if the Times and the Post agree,

         11  there has got to be something here. Please join us

         12  in making a good legacy for New York City, sir.  I

         13  know that we can do it.  I know that you will do it.

         14  Our legacy should not be a power plant.  It should

         15  be a beautiful waterfront, and I hope you will be a

         16  part of making that happen. Thank you.

         17                 MR. KAUFMANN: Thank you for inviting

         18  me.  My name is John Kauffmann.  I have lived in

         19  Greenpoint for the past ten years and I am raising

         20  two children there.

         21                 Most of what I have to say has been

         22  said much better by people who have already spoken,

         23  and who know more about the issues than I do.  In

         24  particular, I commend Ken Fisher for his description

         25  of the problem, the perfect should not veto the
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          2  good. There is a story in Don Quixote about a donkey

          3  that starved to death between two bales of hay.  It

          4  starved because it could not decide which bale to

          5  eat.  We are in danger of becoming that donkey.

          6                 The plan is not perfect.  That comes

          7  with the territory.  When you divide a pie between

          8  parties with independent interests, it is not

          9  possible to give everyone everything they want.

         10  Having said that, it is very good.  The elephant in

         11  the room that has not been discussed enough here, is

         12  the fact that we really need this plan.  Large

         13  portions of North Brooklyn are a toxic waste dump.

         14  My own son, my own son has asthma, most likely

         15  caused by environmental factors.  Heavy

         16  manufacturing of the type for which the neighborhood

         17  is currently zoned, is no longer appropriate. Most

         18  importantly, we are sitting on a phenomenal

         19  resource, ie., our waterfront.

         20                 The waterfront and the harbor are

         21  what have always made New York great.  You have a

         22  once in a lifetime opportunity to help us realize

         23  this, and I hope that you do not squander it.

         24                 I am sure you have heard of the game

         25  called a Prisoner's Dilemma.  Two prisoners who are
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          2  told to compete for a limited amount of wealth, say

          3  $20 dollars.  How they score points is not important

          4  for purposes of this example.  If prisoner one does

          5  not cooperate, he will have a final score of plus

          6  five and prisoner two will have a final score of

          7  negative five.  The reverse is true if prisoner two

          8  cheats, and prisoner one obeys the rules. If neither

          9  cooperate, both lose five dollars  If both work

         10  together, they share the prize of $20 dollars

         11  equally.  However, the game gets interesting because

         12  there is no way for prisoner one to confirm that

         13  prisoner two will cooperate.  I think you get the

         14  picture, ie., is a small relative game more

         15  attractive, even if it lessens total good for the

         16  community.

         17                 What we have here is a Prisoner's

         18  Dilemma.  You, the City council, have the

         19  opportunity to benefit our neighborhood expediently,

         20  in a way that only appears once in a generation.  In

         21  order to do this, we need to work together and yes,

         22  compromise.  If we do that, we will all end up much

         23  better off.  If we do not, we run the risk of

         24  starving to death between two bales of hay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel,

                                                            320

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  please take your seats.

          3                 Next panel in support, and I will ask

          4  you to take seats in the front, Mieszko Kalita,

          5  Carola Burroughs, Carl Vollmer, John Anderson.  And

          6  just so everybody knows, we probably have a hundred

          7  to go yet.

          8                 MS. BARON: Good evening.  My name is

          9  Eve Baron and I am here with the Municipal Arts

         10  Society and several of my colleagues.  This rezoning

         11  proposal before you is the result of years of hard

         12  work.  It embodies enormous efforts on the part of

         13  the Department of City Planning, particularly the

         14  Brooklyn office, the Community Board, residents,

         15  developers, civic leaders and advocates.  It is

         16  probably one of the most collaborative rezoning

         17  efforts achieved, to date, in New York City.

         18                 The borough President recommendation

         19  and the Community Board recommendation is indication

         20  that this collaboration did not succeed fully.  The

         21  proposal has yet to satisfactory outline ways to

         22  achieve the right balance of the community's goals

         23  and the City's goals.

         24                 This moment is an opportunity for the

         25  council to show its commitment to the City Charter's
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          2  197A process.  The Greenpoint 197A Plan and the

          3  Williamsburg Waterfront 197A Plan, both adopted in

          4  2002, embody the community's visions.  They have

          5  been hailed as some of the most creative planning

          6  efforts in New York City.  The City's rezoning

          7  proposal now needs to be reconciled against these

          8  two adopted plans.  And the City council can provide

          9  that oversight rule.

         10                 Other speakers will, from MAS, will

         11  explain the recommendations of the Municipal Arts

         12  Society for revising this proposal.

         13                 I just want to make two brief points.

         14  Do not price people out of their own neighborhoods.

         15  We ask that you make sure that everyone has the

         16  opportunity to take care of the housing, take

         17  advantage of the housing being built here.  The

         18  proposed residential density bonus 0.7, is not

         19  sufficient to guarantee that developers will build

         20  the levels of affordable housing units needed by the

         21  community.  Council needs to work on increasing the

         22  spread between the base and the ceiling to make the

         23  bonus more of an inducement.

         24                 We ask that you, on the note of

         25  manufacturing, we ask that you do not allow this
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          2  rezoning to undercut the commitment that the City

          3  has finally chosen to make towards manufacturers.

          4                 MX zones do not retain manufacturing

          5  jobs.  They put manufacturing jobs at risk, and we

          6  ask you to follow the recommendations of the New

          7  York Industrial Retention Network. Thank you.

          8                 MS. MILLER: Thank you.  I am Kimberly

          9  Miller the Director of Planning Issues for the

         10  Municipal Art Society.  And the issue that I will

         11  speak about today is the open space planning for

         12  Greenpoint and Williamsburg.

         13                 The City and the community have

         14  worked together to provide what we believe to be

         15  both an innovative and an ambitious plan.  The issue

         16  that we wanted to address, and that we have been

         17  looking at in cooperation with Community Board One,

         18  with the Brooklyn Greenways Initiative, with the

         19  Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance, New Yorkers for

         20  Parks, RPA and Trust for Public land, is this.  It

         21  is the issue that has come up over and over in

         22  Council Member Avella's discussion, in comments

         23  provided by Shaun Donovan and Regina Myer, Marty

         24  Markowitz is the assured balance.  And the way that

         25  we are looking at the issue of balance with respect

                                                            323

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  to open space, is in three particular themes.

          3                 First is investing capital funds up

          4  front in the development process.  In other words,

          5  putting public development, public funds into the

          6  waterfront and to other open space.  At this point,

          7  the distribution of park space in total, is not

          8  equal between Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  That is

          9  something that we would like to see more investment

         10  in.

         11                 In terms of the waterfront itself,

         12  there is a 1.6 mile stretch of waterfront that would

         13  be under this plan, private at this point.  We would

         14  like to ask the council to work with the community,

         15  work with City Planning to encourage public

         16  ownership of the waterfront.  That is something that

         17  this City's waterfront zoning allows for.  The

         18  developers may actually transfer their land to the

         19  City, and that is something that the council could

         20  take leadership on.

         21                 Finally, something that City Planning

         22  has done which is an innovative step, is to allow

         23  for the creation of a conservancy, or some sort of

         24  management organization, that would ensure that the

         25  oversight of the waterfront planning is actually
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          2  done in a way that is coherent and coordinated, and

          3  can implement a real vision for the whole waterfront

          4  of Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  Thank you, and my

          5  colleague Jasper Goldman is next.

          6                 MR. GOLDMAN: Thank you very much for

          7  the opportunity to testify.  My name is Jasper

          8  Goldman and I am here because the MAS gave technical

          9  assistance to the community in an effort to help

         10  them refine the urban design response to the City's

         11  proposal.

         12                 Today, we strongly support their

         13  final recommendations.  We believe the zoning text

         14  should be amended in the following way.  To acquire

         15  variation of tower locations to prevent a wall of

         16  towers.   To acquire more diversity in the heights

         17  of the base buildings to ensure neighborhood

         18  character extends to the water.  To require a

         19  waterfront buffer to clearly demarcate between the

         20  private development and the public esplanade, and

         21  insure a genuinely public waterfront.

         22                 Most importantly, we support the

         23  community's proposed maximum density for the

         24  waterfront, presuming a maximum ratio affordable

         25  housing is included.  The City's proposed density,
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          2  and 400 foot towers is badly out of context with the

          3  neighborhood, incompatible with the community's 197A

          4  plans, and unnecessary for allowing sufficient

          5  affordable housing and acceptable returns for

          6  developers.

          7                 The last point is the most important.

          8    Our financial analysis performed by a conservative

          9  developer utilizing conservative assumptions, showed

         10  that a significant proportion of affordable housing

         11  can be generated without use of HPD programs under

         12  the community's density, while allowing for generous

         13  return for developers.

         14                 Finally, our study demonstrated the

         15  following critical things.

         16                 Number one, that the 0.7 density

         17  bonus alone proposed by the City would be

         18  insufficient to induce developers to build

         19  affordable housing.  That the City's proposal relies

         20  on developers use of HPD programs.  There can be no

         21  guarantee that these programs will be available in

         22  the future.  This will jeopardize the production of

         23  affordable housing.  We therefore recommend that an

         24  affordable housing requirement be attached to the

         25  density bonus alone, with use of subsidies requiring
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          2  additional affordable housing.

          3                 We urge the council to amend the plan

          4  to make it work for the community and make this a

          5  rezoning the City and the community can be proud of.

          6    Thank you.

          7                 MR. SANCHIS: Good afternoon.  I am

          8  Frank Sanchis. I am Senior Vice President of the

          9  Municipal Art Society.  And I would like to speak

         10  about historic preservation.  The Greenpoint

         11  Williamsburg EIS identifies only 18 historic

         12  buildings and one historic district in the rezoning

         13  area.  And of those resources, seven of the

         14  buildings in the district are already designated by

         15  the Landmark's Preservation Commission.  That leaves

         16  11 new buildings.

         17                 Given the large size of the rezoning

         18  area which is 184 blocks, and the neighborhood's

         19  rich history which stretches back to 1660, this is

         20  clearly insufficient.  Furthermore, of those

         21  buildings included in the EIS, there is little or no

         22  historic information included about them.  With this

         23  limited amount of information, it is not possible to

         24  adequately access the impact of the proposed

         25  rezoning on the historic resources, nor the
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          2  appropriate mitigation measures.

          3                 The Greenpoint terminal market for

          4  buildings, for example, which have been found

          5  eligible for listing in the State and National

          6  Register, and are identified in the EIS, are shown

          7  on the plan as a development site, rather than being

          8  integrated into the new waterfront development.

          9                 With assistance from Columbia

         10  University and the Historic District's Council and

         11  members of the community, we conducted a preliminary

         12  survey of the area.  We came up with 44 more

         13  buildings in two historic districts, that appear to

         14  be eligible for the National Register.  We intend to

         15  do more survey and we are happy to share with you

         16  the results, with giving you the list of the 44 that

         17  we have identified so far.

         18                 The EIS does identify 100 sites of

         19  archeological sensitivity in the area.  But

         20  according to the EIS, none of those sites would be

         21  mitigated.  We urge you to return this plan to the

         22  City Planning Commission and require them to do

         23  additional comprehensive and serious analysis of

         24  historic resources, and we stand ready to help.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

          3  next panel, sir. I called four people, I see there

          4  is only one person, so I am going to call some more.

          5    This is a panel in favor, Sandy Stillman, is Sandy

          6  here?  Yes?  No?  Come on down.  Just like the

          7  television show.  Aaron Yassin?  Is Aaron here?

          8  Come on up.  Come on down. Emily Caslow?  I think I

          9  called that one name before.  Emily?  Not here?

         10  Norman Brodsky?  Norman left?  Fotinos Panagakos?  I

         11  got it right, finally.  Is Fotinos here?  George

         12  Nikolakakos?  George.  We will start with this

         13  panel.

         14                 The next panel which will speak in

         15  opposition if they can take a seat in front, I am

         16  calling as a group, Paul Parkhill, Martina

         17  Salisbury, Dawn Ladd, is it?  Sara McCormack,

         18  Stephanie Greenwood, if they are here.  Otherwise,

         19  it is going to be a quick panel.  Gentlemen.

         20                 MR. YASSIN: Yes, first I would like

         21  to thank you for allowing me to speak before you

         22  today.  My name is Aaron Yassin. I am an artist and

         23  also one of the owners of 58 North 3rd Street in

         24  Williamsburg.  As you can imagine, I am in favor and

         25  have been anticipating the rezoning and the positive
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          2  change it will bring to the neighborhood and the

          3  waterfront.

          4                 When I read through the borough

          5  President's recommendations, I was encouraged to see

          6  emphasis placed on the issues of affordable housing,

          7  green space and public access to the waterfront, for

          8  example.  But when I came to find that my block was

          9  in an area that was deleted from the mixed use

         10  zoning, because of concern over loss of jobs in the

         11   "virgining (sic.) Creative economy", I was puzzled.

         12    My initial reaction, was that this seemed like a

         13  reasonable idea because preserving jobs is

         14  important, but I wondered why this particular area

         15  was chosen for deletion.  With my first hand

         16  knowledge of the neighborhood, I know that these

         17  blocks have a significant number of existing

         18  residential properties, and that there are other

         19  blocks that seem more suited to this recommendation.

         20    After discussing this with some of my neighbors,

         21  who are here, and working with an architect in the

         22  area, Ralph Meyer, who is also here, we did research

         23  to determine the total number of jobs in the area.

         24  We took a look at what is currently happening with

         25  the buildings and came to the conclusion that these
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          2  blocks must have been deleted by mistake, because

          3  the reason for the deletion is not consistent with

          4  what is actually the case for the area.

          5                 Take for example, the block where my

          6  building is, block 2357.  There are not only an

          7  existing number of residential properties on the

          8  block, but there is one directly adjacent to my

          9  property.  There are currently a limited number of

         10  businesses operating on the block with jobs in the

         11  creative economy.  And it is unlikely any of these

         12  jobs will be lost.  In addition, almost everyone on

         13  the block is in favor of the rezoning.

         14                 So I am here to ask you to review the

         15  actual facts of this area at which time I believe it

         16  will be clear, that this is the wrong area for the

         17  deletion.  Thank you very much.

         18                 MR. VOLLMER: Mr. Chairman, my name is

         19  Carl Vollmer. I am a local real estate broker, and I

         20  have very little to add to what has already been

         21  said, except they have not got it right yet. They

         22  took out 13 blocks without consideration.  The fact

         23  that those blocks are vacant and are going to stay

         24  vacant, part of them, and the rest of them are going

         25  to be illegal residential.  It will never go back to
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          2  real estate, industrial type.  It will only go back

          3  to minor considerations.  I sold the last factory

          4  that was in the area, myself, my factory.  I closed

          5  it, because it is not amenable to industrial.  There

          6  is nothing left.  There is one, maybe two companies

          7  partially left.

          8                 And I admire you for staying here and

          9  listening to all of this. I am listened out.  So, I

         10  have nothing to add.  I concede my time.

         11                 MR. STILLMAN: My name is Sandy

         12  Stillman.  I own Relish, a restaurant on Wythe and

         13  North 3rd, which is in a five block area in

         14  Williamsburg which was recently excluded from the

         15  rezoning.  I grew up in Brooklyn, my Dad grew up in

         16  Brooklyn, my grandfather made pickles in Brooklyn

         17  and bought supplies for Old Dutch Mustard around the

         18  corner from Relish.  I am not a developer. I am

         19  small business owner.  I believe it is a mistake to

         20  choose five blocks to be zoned solely for

         21  manufacturing, if they are floating in a sea of

         22  residential property.

         23                 My block is surrounded on all four

         24  sides by residential housing.  When I bought the

         25  diner in 97, every fire hydrant near it had been
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          2  knocked over as a result of heavy truck traffic.

          3  Eighteen wheelers came down Wythe Avenue, a narrow

          4  one way street, turned down North 3rd, drove up on

          5  my sidewalk and smacked down the fire hydrant.  This

          6  happened so many times the DEP agreed to move the

          7  hydrant further up the block.

          8                 Relish has a patio with a rose garden

          9  and a lawn. Moms and Dads who live in the area,

         10  bring young children to eat and play there.  My

         11  greatest worry is that these huge trucks cannot see

         12  young kids walking or being pushed in strollers,

         13  just as they do not see fire hydrants.  I have seen

         14  these trucks driving fast, the wrong way down one

         15  way streets near Relish, and I have seen a truck

         16  driver lose control on Wythe Avenue and rip the

         17  sides off an entire block of cars.  These five

         18  blocks are truck traffic.  And with 35 story

         19  buildings going up two blocks away, there will be

         20  more young families crossing the street.

         21                 I am afraid the method used to

         22  exclude us from the rezoning was based on tax roles

         23  from 02 and 03, or from a source which is not

         24  current.  For example, the largest employer on my

         25  block, STJ Trading with 40 jobs, went out of
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          2  business two weeks ago.  And the only other

          3  substantial employer, Ideal Fire Control, is moving

          4  soon.

          5                 Please look at the method used to

          6  remove these blocks from the rezoning, and please

          7  consult with those of us who live and or run

          8  businesses there.  I serve the residents of my

          9  neighborhood literally, and I would like to do it in

         10  the safest possible environment for them.  I want

         11  this small area to be put back and included in the

         12  rezoning.  Thanks.

         13                 MR. BRODSKY: Mr. Chairman,

         14  councilmen, my name is Norman Brodsky.  I am the

         15  owner of eight acres on the water which is going to

         16  be turned into a beautiful park.  I also am the

         17  person who sold the two blocks to the State for

         18  their park.  I moved here, my business here with ten

         19  employees in 1993.  Those ten employees now are 425

         20  employees, on that property that the City wants to

         21  turn in.  So as far as the misconceptions of no jobs

         22  will be lost, there is no room anywhere in the five

         23  boroughs to build my business.  I would have to move

         24  to Jersey where everybody else is being moved.

         25                 As far as getting the park areas, our
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          2  attorneys tell us that they would have to pay close

          3  to $120 million dollars to take our property.  We

          4  have already invested over $75 million dollars.  We

          5  spent in the last ten years in payroll, $10 million

          6  dollars and are continuing to spend at the rate $15

          7  million dollars a year in payroll.

          8                 As I see it, this zoning should be

          9  divided into two different things.  The first thing

         10  being the inland.  With a little bit of tweaking,

         11  most of the community will be met.  As far as the

         12  waterfront, and you have heard that time and time

         13  again, there are problems.  I do not think that the

         14  council can even change it to meet those problems.

         15  The buildings are too tall.  Jobs are being

         16  affected.  Affordable housing is not guaranteed.

         17  And there is not enough parks.

         18                 Not to take up too much time, there

         19  is a need for more open space and if you disprove

         20  the waterfront, just vote against the waterfront

         21  part of it.  The Trust Republic Land has met with

         22  us.  We have helped finance a study that they have

         23  done, that they can open that two blocks

         24  immediately.  And as far as Councilwoman Katz's

         25  question, we are in the alternative.  And if we were
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          2  to be rezoned, I would guarantee a minimum of 30

          3  percent to 35 percent of affordable housing, as all

          4  the builders should, at a 4.7.  Thank you for

          5  listening.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

          7  panel.

          8                 And while they are taking their

          9  seats, then the next panel in favor and I appreciate

         10  it if they come up and sit in the front row so we

         11  know they are here, Jeffrey Henick, Ed Wilton,

         12  Gerald Connolly, Reinaldo Torres.  He passed?  Okay,

         13  then Bernard Wyatt.  Gentlemen, gentlemen.

         14                 MR. PARKHILL: Is this on?  Good

         15  evening, Mr. Chairman, council members.  My name is

         16  Paul Parkhill.  I am the Director of Planning and

         17  Development for the Greenpoint Manufacturing and

         18  Design Center, the City's first non- profit

         19  industrial real estate developer.  During the last

         20  decade or so, GMDC has redeveloped about 600,000

         21  square feet of industrial space and five buildings

         22  around North Brooklyn.  We currently own and manage

         23  four of these buildings which are occupied by small

         24  and mid size wood workers, custom finishers, display

         25  fabricators, metal spinners, food manufacturers and
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          2  garment makers, as well as a variety of artisans and

          3  artists.

          4                 The North Brooklyn rezoning

          5  represents an important precedent for many

          6  industrial and mixed use neighborhoods around the

          7  City.  As such, it is critical that the City council

          8  uses this opportunity to think creatively about how

          9  to solidify and strengthen New York's blue collar

         10  jobs.

         11                 The proposed MX zoning on the Upland

         12  blocks, threatens to drive out the viable creative

         13  businesses that have been a critical part of North

         14  Brooklyn's revival, and which remain a central part

         15  of its identity.  Hundreds of small industries,

         16  artisans, and creative sector businesses currently

         17  exist in the Upland blocks the City wants to rezone

         18  for as of right, residential development.  Most of

         19  these businesses will be priced out of the area or

         20  the City altogether, if there are not provisions for

         21  preserving affordable, commercial and industrial

         22  space, in the face of a speculative residential real

         23  estate market.

         24                 We recommend two mitigation measures

         25  specifically. First, the Department of City Planning
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          2  recently recommended the removal of seven full and

          3  six partial blocks of the plan, from the plan,

          4  sorry.  Although we feel that a significant number

          5  of additional blocks should be removed, DCP's

          6  actions represent a clear acknowledgment that

          7  rezoning these thirteen blocks to MX, will undermine

          8  viable, industrial and artisanal jobs.  The removal

          9  of blocks from the plan and approached which was

         10  endorsed by the borough President on a much broader

         11  scale, will not only help protect many in place

         12  businesses, but will ensure that there will be space

         13  for new productive and creative industries to grow

         14  within the community.  We strongly urge you to

         15  support DCP's proposal to keep these blocks out of

         16  the rezoning area.

         17                 Secondly, the overheated real estate

         18  market of recent years has placed profound price

         19  pressures on manufacturing buildings throughout New

         20  York City.  And I will summarize since I have

         21  another page.  Basically, we also propose that you

         22  seriously consider the Acquisition Write Down

         23  Program, the details of which we have submitted

         24  already.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. LADD: Hello.  My name is Dawn
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          2  Ladd.  I own a company called Aurora Lampworks in

          3  Williamsburg.  And just so that you really know the

          4  effect of this, that this whole rezoning is

          5  extremely threatening to small businesses like my

          6  own.  As a group, we decided to close down our shop

          7  today and twelve people came to this hearing.  That

          8  is how concerned we are about it.

          9                 Now I would like to read my

         10  statement.

         11                 I am speaking on behalf of the

         12  artist, craft people and industries of Greenpoint

         13  and Williamsburg.  We are the people who make the

         14  art and the theater props, manufacture the museum

         15  displays, and restore and conserve New York's

         16  historic buildings. The lamps you see right here in

         17  City Hall Park, were either made or restored by

         18  Aurora Lampworks in our workshop.

         19                 We are part of a creative network

         20  that makes New York the world's greatest City.  Most

         21  of you know all about, most of us know all about the

         22  planned towers on the waterfront.  What is much less

         23  well known, is what the City's plans would do to the

         24  inland areas of the neighborhood.  The mixed use

         25  neighborhood we know, love, and work in, will be
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          2  given a zoning designation that will change it into

          3  purely residential area.  Every business and every

          4  employee inside the industrial buildings, could soon

          5  be gone. As the leases come up, the landlords will

          6  not renew them, because they will now be free to

          7  convert all of our galleries, performance spaces,

          8  jewelry studios, woodworking shops, and bakeries

          9  into yet, more luxury condos.

         10                 This would easily affect 4,000 jobs

         11  and careers.  It will not only break down the

         12  network we have created, but it will hamper, if not

         13  destroy, our ability to do business.  It will also

         14  greatly reduce the diversity of our neighborhood.

         15  By decimating whole categories of business, it will

         16  weaken the fragile economy of our City, which many

         17  would agree is already far too dependant upon the

         18  boom and bust businesses of the finance and real

         19  estate markets.

         20                 Our City council's job is to create

         21  plans that work for the greatest number of people

         22  for the long term, not just for a handful of

         23  developers who want immediate windfalls.  What kind

         24  of City council would vote to make 4,000 good jobs

         25  and hundreds of thriving businesses disappear?
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          2  Certainly not one that deserves our votes.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 MS. SALISBURY: Hi. My name is Martina

          5  Salisbury.  I am a resident of Williamsburg and I

          6  work together with my husband, Franco Gerti

          7  (phonetic) for Twoseven, Incorporated.  It is a

          8  window display company located at 37 Greenpoint

          9  Avenue.  Franco was also signed up to speak, but in

         10  the interest of time, we have just submitted our

         11  written testimony and visuals, there are pictures.

         12  Like I said, we do window display, we design,

         13  manufacture and install store window and showroom

         14  displays for leading international fashion and

         15  cosmetics companies.  If you have ever taken a walk

         16  through Midtown or Soho, it is likely you have seen

         17  some of our work.  We also export window display

         18  props to other cities, and also to Japan and Europe,

         19  in some stores.

         20                 We are located in a manufacturing

         21  building on the corner of Greenpoint Avenue and West

         22  Street.  Ours is one of the 40 blocks that Brooklyn

         23  Borough President, Marty Markowitz, the New York

         24  Industrial Retention Network and the North Brooklyn

         25  Alliance had recommended that City Planning
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          2  Commission take out of the rezoning map.  It is

          3  currently zoned M1, but would be rezoned to MX.

          4                 Last year our building was sold to a

          5  real estate developer.  Naturally this causes us and

          6  the other businesses in our building, great concern,

          7  since we all rent our spaces.  We fear what will

          8  happen when our leases come up for renewal, how much

          9  our rents will increase, and if we will be displaced

         10  if the building is zoned MX.

         11                 There are over 240 manufacturing jobs

         12  on our block and about 50 small businesses, most of

         13  whom rent their spaces, like we do.  In our

         14  building, there are several other wood shops,

         15  furniture makers, designers, and artist studios.

         16  Our company alone employs over 20 people, most of

         17  whom are local residents who walk or ride their

         18  bikes to work.

         19                 There are no protections for existing

         20  small businesses and jobs in the City's plan.  The

         21  City needs to help preserve existing businesses and

         22  jobs and encourage the expansion of this growing

         23  creative economy, not rezone it out of existence.

         24  Thank you for your time.

         25                 MS MCCORMACK: Hi.  My name is Sara
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          2  McCormack and I am a small business owner in

          3  Williamsburg.  And I am speaking on behalf of many

          4  small business owners in Williamsburg.  And I just

          5  want to say that I think just about all of us that

          6  own small businesses in the neighborhood have a

          7  similar story.  And that is, that we have worked

          8  really hard in the neighborhood, to establish a

          9  small business like our own.  And we all support

         10  each other, and that is basically how we have become

         11  what we are.

         12                 I just want to say that New York,

         13  this is an opportunity to finally maintain a

         14  balanced community and to not sell out to the

         15  highest bidder, and to allow us to continue living

         16  among such an amazing diverse community.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         18  panel.

         19                 And while they are being seated, the

         20  next panel in opposition Steven Weinberger, Tony

         21  Rafael, For the Williamsburg Waterfront Aquarium,

         22  Joe Vance and Monica Hunkin.  Gentlemen.

         23                 MR. TORRES: Yes, good evening.  Mr.

         24  Chairman and council members, my name is Reinaldo

         25  Torres and I am a member of Sheet Metal Workers
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          2  Local Union 28.  Local Union 28 is an HVAC Local.

          3  We are a mechanical trade.  And we are in support of

          4  the rezoning of Greenport (sic.) And Williamsburg,

          5  but what we would like to see is an amendment for

          6  the M3 heavy industrial to remain at the site of the

          7  Trans Gas Energy, where the Trans Gas Energy site

          8  would be.  And the reason why we want that to remain

          9  there, is that is an opportunity for our membership

         10  to have jobs.  Right now with this proposal we are

         11  talking about the affordable housing, although it is

         12  a lot of work, it is not that much work for our

         13  trade.  But if we are talking about constructing an

         14  energy power plant, then that is a substantial

         15  amount of work for our membership.  And we have over

         16  800 members and their families that live in Brooklyn

         17  and in the Greenpoint- Williamsburg section, as

         18  well, that includes, it is included in that area,

         19  and they want to work in the neighborhood.  They do

         20  not want to go out elsewhere to make a living, and

         21  they are asking us to work on this, and try to bring

         22  this construction project to light, so our members

         23  could work in their own neighborhood.  Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 MR. WYATT: Good evening, Mr. Chairman
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          2  and council members.  My name is Bernard Wyatt.  I

          3  am also a member of Local 28 of the Sheet Metal

          4  Workers.  I am also in favor of the rezoning with

          5  the provision that the Trans Gas site is used for a

          6  power plant.  I am also hoping that the council will

          7  consider building a power plant in every

          8  neighborhood, since we need a power infrastructure

          9  for the 21st century.  Maybe the technology and all

         10  those things that is involved in the new power

         11  sourcing will be technology that is susceptible to

         12  the health and welfare of children in communities.

         13  These things have to be looked at because without

         14  power, how do we operate all these elevators,

         15  machineries, whatever?

         16                 I am also in power of the point that

         17  my opposition has about community density, community

         18  affordable housing.  I am a 50 year member of, 50

         19  year of living in Brooklyn and I am also quite aware

         20  that my community among black males have 49 percent

         21  unemployment.  I am only, I am about change, because

         22  change might create opportunity and jobs that this

         23  unemployment in these circumstances might change,

         24  the equations might go down, we might have more

         25  employment, more opportunity.
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          2                 So I am in favor a vital, a growing,

          3  a changing, a positive Brooklyn.  And I hope that

          4  you can resolve these issues so that most of us will

          5  get some satisfaction.  Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. CONNOLLY: Mr. Chairman, members

          7  of the committee, my name is Jerry Connolly.  I am

          8  the business manager of Boiler Makers Local 5.

          9  Obviously, I am agreeing with these gentlemen here

         10  about that particular site, the M3 designation for

         11  the Bayside fuel, as far as Trans Gas is concerned.

         12                 Now a speaker earlier today mentioned

         13  that the population in the City of New York has

         14  increased by approximately 750,000 over the past

         15  decade.  This has put a tremendous strain on our

         16  ability to deliver reliable, cheap electricity to

         17  the people in the City of New York.  Many events

         18  have occurred over the past couple of years that I

         19  do not have to explain to you.

         20                 Trans Gas has proposed a new facility

         21  to be built underground, not to offend the

         22  neighborhood, going to supply a park on top of it,

         23  is willing to put up $50 million dollars, that is 50

         24  million, for support of affordable housing in the

         25  neighborhood. How many other projects have come up
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          2  with these kind of incentives? As you throw

          3  something at this group, they keep coming back with

          4  new and more innovative ideas.  They have been able

          5  to dodge the bullet, many, many times, because they

          6  know what they are doing and they know what the City

          7  needs. It is not often that the City gets a

          8  comprehensive development plan to be funded by

          9  private dollars, which would simultaneously prove

         10  vital infrastructure, and allow for public access to

         11  a brand new, privately financed park.  The project

         12  would improve infrastructure, create jobs, provide

         13  new open spaces, help improve the housing stock of

         14  the neighborhood.

         15                 If we use this process to white out

         16  Trans Gas, I think it would be a travesty.  There

         17  are individuals that came here today, particularly

         18  spoke on that.  Get them out of the picture. I do

         19  not believe that the City council should take

         20  anything out of the picture.  I think that all

         21  options should be on the table and if you are well

         22  aware of the situation we have as far as power in

         23  this City, then you realize that we have got to get

         24  rid of the old plants, and we have to build new

         25  plants.  There are not many places left.  Thank you
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          2  very much for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  The

          4  next panel to be seated.

          5                 And while they are being seated, the

          6  next panel in favor will take a seat in the front

          7  row, John Incontrera, Patrick Dolan, Freddy

          8  Delligatti, Frank Stanton.

          9                 MR. WEINBERGER: My name is Steven

         10  Weinberger,  I was born and raised in Brooklyn and I

         11  am here today to provide testimony on behalf of my

         12  father- in- law, Paul Santich, who is also in

         13  attendance and is the principal of the Old Dutch

         14  Mustard company.

         15                 We are the owners of nearly a full

         16  City block located on Metropolitan Avenue at North

         17  First Street between Wythe and Kent.  I respectfully

         18  request that our property be reinserted into the

         19  rezoning classification, that would allow for mixed

         20  use development, including a component for

         21  affordable housing.  We applaud the committee's work

         22  toward upgrading the Williamsburg area, as well as

         23  your recognition for the need for affordable housing

         24  units, and we look forward to participating in that

         25  process.

                                                            348

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 I should inform the committee that

          3  Mr. Santich has owned his property for over 50

          4  years, and I venture to guess that he is one of the

          5  longest standing property owners of Williamsburg, in

          6  the room today.  We are not real estate speculators

          7  looking to make a fast buck.  Rather, we have a

          8  demonstrative commitment to the area, which we hope

          9  to maintain for generations to come.

         10                 To give you an historical

         11  perspective, from the 1940's to the early 1980's,

         12  the Old Dutch Mustard Company manufactured mustard

         13  and vinegar on site.  However, manufacturing

         14  operations ceased 25 years ago and since that time,

         15  our property has remained virtually empty.  The

         16  committee must understand that there are no

         17  manufacturing jobs on our site, nor have their been

         18  for the past 25 years.

         19                 We have enjoyed the opportunity to

         20  meet with some of the members of the committee over

         21  the past few weeks.  The balance of the committee

         22  should know that this is our first appearance at a

         23  public hearing.  Not because we are not interested

         24  in the future plans for Williamsburg, but rather

         25  because our property was part of the original
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          2  rezoning plan, and we felt comfortable that our

          3  plans for development could be realized.

          4            Once we recently learned that our property

          5  was taken out of the rezoning district, and that our

          6  long term plans for redevelopment may be

          7  jeopardized, we began to understand the importance

          8  of letting you know about our situation, and the

          9  mutual benefits for granting our request, to be

         10  placed back into the rezoning district.

         11                 In sum, we are long term property

         12  owners who have been solid corporate citizens for

         13  over 50 years, and own a nearly 50,000 square foot

         14  parcel of developable property.  There are no

         15  manufacturing jobs on site, nor have their been for

         16  the past 25 years.  We have a valuable resource and

         17  we want to be part of the rebirth.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Please sum up.

         19                 MR. WEINBERGER: We respectfully

         20  request your support for our request to have our

         21  property reinserted into the rezoning district, to

         22  allow for mixed use development and we appreciate

         23  your kind consideration on our behalf.

         24                 MR. VANCE: Good afternoon.  My name

         25  is Joe Vance. I am Co- Chair of the Greenpoint
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          2  Waterfront Association for Parks and Planning.  We

          3  represent 42 organizations in Greenpoint and

          4  Williamsburg.  I am also a member of the Community

          5  Board One rezoning task force.

          6                 For 18 months now, my organization,

          7  along with the Trust Republic Land, has conducted a

          8  $100 thousand dollar study of the open space needs

          9  for our communities.  Particularly, how this

         10  rezoning impacts our open space needs.  Earlier

         11  today, Parks Commissioner Benepe, testified that

         12  ours is one of the most under served parks

         13  communities in the City.  He is absolutely correct.

         14  Unfortunately, the rezoning plan, as it is right

         15  now, does not help the situation.  The City talks

         16  about the new 28 acre park they are giving us,

         17  however what you have to remember is, that this

         18  rezoning, if only 80 percent of the waterfront is

         19  built out, and if only 50 percent of Upland is built

         20  out that is allowed by this rezoning, you will have

         21  a population increase of 40,000 people.  So 40,000

         22  people will be using that new 28 acre park.  And in

         23  the end, it will look just like McCarren Park does

         24  now, a massive dust bowl or mud bowl, depending on

         25  when you look at it.
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          2                 Right now in the City of New York,

          3  for every person, there is the amount of parks and

          4  open space, equivalent to approximately a New York

          5  City living room.  The Department of City Planning's

          6  own planning guidelines will provide amount of parks

          7  and open space equivalent to the typical bedroom.

          8  This plan, at the very end, when you account for the

          9  population increase, gives us less than two thirds

         10  of a bathroom.  That is all we are getting, and

         11  once the waterfront is rezoned, there is literally

         12  not one more square inch of property that can ever

         13  become a park.  We are stuck.  You know the

         14  population will always increase, but there will

         15  never be more park land.  We absolutely, positively

         16  must have more park land in this rezoning.  Thank

         17  you.

         18                 MR. RUFFEN: I agree.  My name is Tony

         19  Ruffen.  I am a small business owner, an aquarium

         20  shop in Brooklyn for the past nine years.  I have

         21  got 25 years in the aquarium industry, and that is

         22  what I really know.

         23                 It has been my dream since I moved to

         24  Williamsburg in '96, to create a world class

         25  aquarium on the Williamsburg waterfront which would
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          2  be unique in its equal conscience approach. Because

          3  we have a limited amount of time, I would like to

          4  briefly go over some of the many reasons why it

          5  would be a beneficial investment for our City and

          6  community.

          7                 The aquarium would be a symbol of

          8  hope for New York and the world.  The design of the

          9  building, inspired by a coral reef, would literally

         10  grow upon the regional historic buildings or the old

         11  ironworks built on the Williamsburg waterfront at

         12  the turn of the century.  Like a coral reef, the

         13  aquarium would encrust and preserve the other

         14  historic landmarks, just as a coral reef relies and

         15  grows upon existing structures in nature.

         16                 The aquarium would be environmentally

         17  friendly and interactive.   Large tanks of water

         18  will be submerged underneath the public park and act

         19  as an enormous filtering system, purifying these

         20  rivers' water and feeding the aquarium with clean

         21  water.  And after use in the aquarium, this clean

         22  water will feed back into the East River, recreating

         23  natural niches such as clam beds, shoreline plants

         24  and habitats for small fish and crustaceans, thus

         25  restoring the natural East River habitat to whatever
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          2  it was like before the industrial revolution.  It

          3  would also use a multitude of alternative energy

          4  sources, a solar energy, a thermal, among many

          5  others.

          6                 Let us see, not only will, not only

          7  will the aquarium be an educational resource for New

          8  York and a living laboratory for the solutions to

          9  water pollution, this eco- friendly aquarium would

         10  be an icon of hope for our community in

         11  Williamsburg, bringing tourism and jobs to

         12  Williamsburg shoreline. For example, a Baltimore

         13  aquarium pulls in a million plus visitors in a year,

         14  the same with New England.  Chattanooga Tennessee

         15  does the same.  The size of this aquarium would just

         16  blow all of those out of the water.

         17                 The other thing I would say, seven

         18  seconds left, imagine this, three blocks by 60 foot

         19  tall and you can see it from Manhattan and it is

         20  just fish swimming by.  I thought I would do

         21  something a little different.  Thank you, that is

         22  it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, next panel.

         24                 MS. HUNKEN: Good evening, my name is

         25  Monica Hunken.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Oh, you are

          3  Monica?

          4                 MS. HUNKEN: We were on the last

          5  panel, but there was not room for us.  My name is

          6  Monica Hunken.  I am joined by Derrick McGinty and

          7  Leah Ferrel (phonetic).  We represent the Creative

          8  Industries Coalition.  And as artists from Brooklyn,

          9  we have a vested interest in preserving the creative

         10  spirit and vibrant diversity of the Greenpoint-

         11  Williamsburg neighborhoods.

         12            We would like to present our testimony in

         13  the best way we know how, with a singing telegram.

         14                 CHAIRMAN AVELLA: You have got two

         15  minutes.  I heard they are good.

         16                 (singing.)

         17                 MS. HUNKEN, MR. MCGINTY AND MS.

         18  FERELL: Five, six, seven eight ... City council,

         19  bring us a dream.  Make our rezoning, the best ever

         20  seen.  Local jobs, bike paths and parks, skyscraper

         21  shadows leave us in the dark.

         22                 City council, we are so scared.

         23  Bloomberg's rezoning more than we can bare.  Fat

         24  cats driving rents so high, raising condos up to the

         25  sky.
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          2                 City council, please understand,

          3  chain stores encroaching, please hold our hand.

          4  This pace is magic, it has lots of charm.  The whole

          5  community is up in arms.

          6                 City council, we are so scared.

          7  Bloomberg's rezoning more than we can bare.  Fat

          8  cats driving rents so high, raising condos up to the

          9  sky.  Do not let our community die.  You can do it.

         10  You have got to try.  You have got to try.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Go ahead, you can

         12  applaud that. That will be the only thing that gets

         13  applause.

         14                 Next panel please take a seat.

         15                 While they are taking their seat, the

         16  next panel in opposition which should sit in front,

         17  remember, I still have a whole bunch here, Derrick

         18  McGinty, Kelie Bowman, Philip Anderson, Savitri

         19  Durkee, I was actually trying to get the first name

         20  pronounced.

         21                 Remember, if you are here, and you do

         22  not necessarily have to speak, and if you just want

         23  your name entered into the record, we will do that.

         24  Please let the Seargent- at- Arms know.  We are

         25  still trying to get all of this in, and I still have
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          2  quite a pile here.

          3                      MR. DOLAN: Good evening,

          4  Council.  My name is Patrick Dolan.  I represent the

          5  Steam Fitters of Local 638, 6,000 members.  As many

          6  Steam Fitters that live in the Greenpoint

          7  Williamsburg area, my members and I are in favor of

          8  this rezoning of Greenpoint- Williamsburg area.  It

          9  gives the community opportunity to reclaim the two

         10  miles of Brooklyn waterfront for public use.  It

         11  creates much needed housing for all affordable

         12  levels.  I believe the City also has to show us the

         13  commitment of the affordable housing that is needed.

         14    It also gives a unique opportunity for my members,

         15  both men and women, of all races, to actually build

         16  these homes, and hopefully, eventually purchase

         17  these homes.

         18                 I do, however feel, on North 12th

         19  Street, we should keep that site an M3 area.  Trans

         20  Gas has agreed to use their own money to clean that

         21  contaminated site, thus building their plant

         22  underground.  Also, as far as the company giving 15

         23  million for the housing for that area.

         24                 In this whole City, how can anyone

         25  support new development without having a necessary
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          2  means of power for these areas?

          3                 I urge the City council to make this

          4  great project not a dream, but a reality.  Allow the

          5  hard working men and women of the building trades,

          6  to develop this great site.

          7                 As you know, many unions of the

          8  building trades contribute to many functions in the

          9  City.  We have the Homeless to Hard Hat Program, we

         10  also have the Joint Constructionship (sic.)

         11  Partnership Program, where many young children go to

         12  school and have them have the opportunity to come

         13  into a trade union to better themselves and for

         14  their families.

         15                 I believe that this is a win

         16  situation for everyone, and I would like to thank

         17  you for the opportunity to speak to the council

         18  today.

         19                 MR. DELLIGATTI: I myself do not have

         20  a song and a dance but I have a hope and prayer.

         21                 Good evening, my name is Freddy

         22  Delligatti.  I would like to thank Chairman Avella

         23  and the rest of the council members here for

         24  allowing me to speak before you today.  I represent

         25  Plumber's Local Union Number One, and its roughly
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          2  6,000 members.

          3                 We are in favor of the rezoning of

          4  Greenpoint- Williamsburg area.  We are also in favor

          5  of leaving the area on North 12th Street as it is,

          6  zoned M3 for Trans Gas Energy.  Without it, it seems

          7  we are trying to build a machine without an engine

          8  that actually will run it effectively and

          9  efficiently.

         10                 Local One has many members in this

         11  area, that live in Greenpoint and Williamsburg.  And

         12  rezoning is critical for them, as well as others

         13  that reside in this great area.  Although it is

         14  apparent that a number of trades men and women will

         15  benefit from jobs due to the rezoning, a greater

         16  number of residents of Greenpoint- Williamsburg will

         17  benefit from economic growth.

         18                 Due to, but not limited to, the

         19  350,000 square feet of retail space that will also

         20  produce jobs.  Not to mention the affordable housing

         21  the area desperately needs.  And roughly the $4

         22  hundred million dollars in tax revenue over the next

         23  20 years or so, we as a City, so desperately need.

         24                 I once again thank you and hope you

         25  will pass the rezoning of Greenpoint- Williamsburg
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          2  area and the Trans Gas project. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I also, it is

          4  nice to know that somebody listens.  Morgan Roddick

          5  has just asked that his name be put in the record in

          6  opposition.  I would hope that other people would

          7  consider that, as well.

          8                 MS. DURKEE: Thank you very much.  My

          9  name is Savitir Durkee and I am a long time Brooklyn

         10  resident.  And I would urge you not to approve the

         11  City's plan.  Their representation of blissful

         12  affluence and modernity is an affront to the truly

         13  rich communities that have defined themselves by

         14  their complexity, diversity and their own visionary

         15  rezoning plan.

         16                 Reject the City plan, please.  And if

         17  you cannot do that, please limit the height of the

         18  City's planned development. Those of you who live in

         19  Brooklyn know the low scale of the building, is

         20  essential to its character and quality of life.

         21  Context matters.

         22                 Secondly, please do not privatize the

         23  waterfront. The river is a public resource and must

         24  be developed as such.  The rich should not get the

         25  river.
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          2                 Chairman, earlier you stressed the

          3  difficulty of balancing this negotiation between the

          4  City and the community. With all due respect, the

          5  City is the community and as a public servant, that

          6  must be your primary concern.

          7                 We are here in force today.  We left

          8  our jobs to come.  We need your help.  Please.  The

          9  City's plan is not our plan, and should not be

         10  approved.

         11                 The City's utopian vision of

         12  Williamsburg and Greenpoint is a false promise, that

         13  will undermine the diversity that thrives there.  I

         14  have heard dramatic expression today about needles

         15  and drug dealers blight in Brownfields.  I do not

         16  resist that testimony, there are good reasons for a

         17  rezone.  But the City plan is not the solution.

         18  Many of those in favor admit the City plan is not

         19  perfect.  I agree, it is not perfect.  It is not

         20  good. And it is certainly not reflective of the

         21  community's needs.

         22                 Earlier I heard the developer, Mr.

         23  Klein and his colleagues speak about the hardship of

         24  developing these areas. What they failed to mention

         25  is the tens of million dollars they stand to gain on

                                                            361

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  each building.

          3                 So exercise your sympathies

          4  carefully, please.  And I am pretty sure Mr.

          5  Levine's excitement about developing his properties

          6  at North 4th and 5th, has much less to do with

          7  affordable housing or environmental reclamation,

          8  than with luxury profits on luxury condos.

          9                 Council members, you and your votes

         10  are all that stand between the people and the greed

         11  of these developers.  I hope you do the right thing.

         12    Thank you.

         13                 MR. ANDERSON: Hello, my name is

         14  Philip Anderson.  I am also representing the

         15  Creative Industries Coalition, though I am a film

         16  maker and I will not sing as a public service.

         17                 My name is Philip Anderson.  I am the

         18  Director of Bunker Film, a film and video collector

         19  in South Williamsburg.  And unlike a number of

         20  individuals who spoke in favor of the City's plan, I

         21  actually live in the neighborhood and work in the

         22  neighborhood.

         23                 Bunker Film produced a short film and

         24  video, as well as exhibits the works of others in

         25  venues throughout the neighborhood.  Let me say that
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          2  my colleagues and I consider ourselves most

          3  fortunate to have the opportunity to both live and

          4  work in Williamsburg.  It is a wonderfully and

          5  vibrant and creative community.  There exists a

          6  delicate balance of creative professionals, long

          7  time residents, small businesses and manufacturers

          8  that exist really nowhere else in this City.  That

          9  unique mix is threatened by the adoption of the

         10  City's rezoning plan.  A plan that I believe, will

         11  destroy the neighborhoods low rise architectural

         12  character, its wonderfully heterogeneous mix of

         13  ethnicities (sic.) And faiths and its burgeoning

         14  community of artisans.

         15                 The three things that trouble me most

         16  about the City's plan for rezoning the Williamsburg-

         17  Greenpoint neighborhood are as follows.  The first

         18  is the allowable development of 40 story high rises

         19  along the waterfront, thereby casting our

         20  neighborhood in a permanent shadow.  As you may know

         21  our neighborhood has used its location for numerous

         22  feature film and episodic television shoots.

         23  Allowing the construction of such behemoth on our

         24  waterfront, will ensure that many of these

         25  productions and the jobs that they provide for film
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          2  professionals in our community, will move elsewhere.

          3    The community's plan to limit the height and bulk

          4  of these structures is far superior than the plan

          5  proposed by the City.

          6                 The second problem I see with the

          7  plan, is the lack of protection for existing light

          8  manufacturing and an environmentally sound

          9  businesses in our neighborhood.  One of the great

         10  things about working in film in Williamsburg, is the

         11  proximity to set builders, designers, carpenters,

         12  metal smiths, et cetera.  Our community affords a

         13  kind on one stop shopping in regards to many

         14  materials and skills required of any film or video

         15  production.  To lose these skilled professions and

         16  the goods and services they provide, would be

         17  profound.  Thank you.

         18       CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next panel in

         19  favor and I will ask you to raise your hand, because

         20  there are more slips here than there are people,

         21  obviously, in the room.  Annie Kurtin?  Come on up.

         22  Bernard Carr?  Bernard is not here.  Allison Farina?

         23  Nope. Catherine Conley?  Laura Hofmann?  These are

         24  people who are in favor, I guess, could not hang

         25  around.  I can certainly understand that.  Trina
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          2  Mckeever?  If I called your name sit up at the --

          3  okay.

          4                 And while they are being seated, the

          5  next panel in opposition, if you will take a seat in

          6  the front row.  Olga Mazurkiewicz?  I am terrible at

          7  this, Mazurkiewicz?  Oh, she sang. Jeremy Pake?

          8  Cannot make that signature out.  Elana Levin?

          9  Yvonne Olivas?  Tianna Kennedy?  Here?  Not here?

         10  Reed Anderson?  Did we do him?  That sounds

         11  familiar.  He is not here?  You have got to let me

         12  know if you are here at this point.  Okay, come on

         13  down. Heather Troy?

         14                 MS. CONLEY: Hi.  My name is Catherine

         15  Conley and I used to live in Greenpoint with my

         16  fiance.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Speak into the

         18  mic, we cannot hear you.

         19                 MS. CONLEY: I am sorry.  We can no

         20  longer afford to live -- My name is Catherine

         21  Conley, I am sorry, I am nervous.  I used to live in

         22  Greenpoint with my fiance.  We can no longer afford

         23  to live there since the rent is out of control.  I

         24  still care about Greenpoint, I serve as an umpire

         25  for Barge Park Pals Kids Softball Tournament, which
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          2  is run at Newtown Barge Terminal Playground.  I am

          3  speaking on behalf of Barge Park Kids Softball

          4  Tournament today.

          5                 Our organization has struggled to

          6  provide healthy activities for the neighborhood's

          7  children, while working towards an expanded park

          8  with waterfront access and a park house with toilet.

          9                 Now that this rezoning is happening,

         10  it seems that the City officials are not thinking of

         11  our neighborhood children. Our community is

         12  desperate for active park land.  Children play

         13  football on Manhattan Avenue and they play soccer in

         14  the sewage treatment facilities, because there is no

         15  place to play.  Kids get into trouble and start

         16  taking drugs when they have no healthy activities to

         17  keep them occupied.

         18                 When development occurs and all the

         19  new residents move, where are we going to play?  As

         20  it is, there is not enough space.  You must provide

         21  more activities, park land in North Greenpoint, as

         22  part of this rezoning.  Please do not force our kids

         23  to play in the street.

         24                 Barge Park Pals supports the Monitor

         25  Museum and their position, that the City respects
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          2  the donated property by not condemning it.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 MS. KURTIN: Good evening.  My name is

          5  Annie Kurtin. I am here on behalf of the AIA New

          6  York Chapter, the founding chapter of the American

          7  Institute of Architects representing 3900

          8  architects, professional affiliates and public

          9  members.  I am also speaking on behalf of Rick Bell,

         10  the executive director who was called earlier, but

         11  had to leave.

         12                 The AIA New York Chapter has reviewed

         13  and strongly supports the proposed Greenpoint-

         14  Williamsburg Land use and Waterfront Plan, that you

         15  have in front of you today, while making suggestion

         16  of how this excellent work could be improved.  The

         17  Greenpoint- Williamsburg plan is a much needed

         18  effort, well justified in terms of its regional and

         19  City- wide, as well as local importance.  The need

         20  for both market and affordable housing units is a

         21  City- wide, as well as a local issue, and where

         22  there is existing demand due to amenities or

         23  location, the City needs to take advantage of those

         24  economic forces.  The plan therefore allows for new

         25  residential development for a variety of income
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          2  groups.  It proposes leveraging this economic

          3  potential and to a mechanism for creating waterfront

          4  amenities and housing subsidies, and it places an

          5  admirable emphasis on urban design and open space

          6  design that will attract new residential and

          7  commercial development, and improve the quality of

          8  life for existing and new residents and workers.

          9                 This urban design zoning approach is

         10  carefully conceived and skillfully detailed, placing

         11  high rise towers on the waterfront is a reasonable

         12  gesture in the context of the bigger scale afforded

         13  river front location.  New development will

         14  transcend the immediate neighborhood and participate

         15  in the City wide skyline.  We particularly like the

         16  concern for local context, street frontage, and

         17  building articulation.  Suggestions for improvement

         18  include limiting the tower width facing the East

         19  River to 100 feet, avoiding creation of a wall

         20  effect along the water as well as consideration for

         21  slightly lower tower heights and base 4.0 FAR, and

         22  greater variations street wall heights.

         23                 Flexibility in tower location should

         24  be encouraged moving towers inland to announce the

         25  inner section of parallel roads such as West Street
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          2  with major perpendicular corridors -- I will finish

          3  this sentence -- is an especially critical gesture.

          4  And I will end there, submitted my testimony, hard

          5  copy.  Thanks.

          6                 MS. MCKEEVER: My name is Trina

          7  Mckeever and I am testifying on behalf of North

          8  Brooklyn Alliance on the subject of parks and open

          9  space.  Although the City's proposal includes a new

         10  waterfront park, it provides no net increase in the

         11  amount of open space per person, given the projected

         12  population increase.  This particularly affects

         13  Greenpoint where the bulk of the new development

         14  will occur.  It would also create a patchwork

         15  waterfront promenade that is privately controlled

         16  and can take decades to link together.

         17                 Also, once the waterfront is

         18  developed, there will be no space to add new parks

         19  in the future.  To that end, the North Brooklyn

         20  Alliance recommends that the City council modify the

         21  City's proposal in the following ways.

         22                 Number one, create 16 acres of park

         23  land in Greenpoint in addition to what is proposed

         24  by DCP.  To achieve this important goal, parcels of

         25  land between K Street and the inlet must be removed
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          2  from the zoning action.

          3                 In addition, remove one of the

          4  following from the zoning action, either the parcel

          5  between Quay and Cayler Street on the East River,

          6  the site where the Civil War Iron Clad monitor was

          7  built and launched from, or the two blocks between

          8  Kent Street and India Street on the East River.  The

          9  City then must initiate an immediate follow up

         10  corrective action to take these properties through a

         11  condemnation, and map them as park land.

         12                 Number two, create additional and

         13  much needed park land at the MTA lot on Commercial

         14  Street in North Greenpoint.  This site is currently

         15  owned by the City and leased to the MTA for bus

         16  repairs.  It is an undervalued use, and is not water

         17  dependant, hence the City must remove this parcel

         18  from rezoning and initiate a follow up action to map

         19  it as City park.

         20                 Number three, enlarge the Newtown

         21  Creek Barge Park Playground to become a significant

         22  active use park in Northern Greenpoint.  The City

         23  owned MTA lot should be swapped with the adjacent

         24  lot 100, owned by the Greenpoint Lumber Exchange.

         25  This will create a new 8 acre continuous active park

                                                            370

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  where the majority of the new residential

          3  construction is proposed.

          4                 I am just going to read the forth

          5  one.  The proposed public shore walk should be

          6  funded and built with capital funding so it is truly

          7  a public amenity that is realized in a period of one

          8  to three years, instead of being built over 23 years

          9  by private developers.

         10                 MS. HOFMANN: Hello, my name is Laura

         11  Hofmann.  I was parks and open space subcommittee

         12  chair for the rezoning task force.  I am a lifelong

         13  resident of Greenpoint, mother of six and a

         14  grandmother.  I am active in the community and have

         15  worked with Amanda Burden and her staff on open

         16  space issues.

         17                 I respect the work of DCP and I want

         18  a rezoning to happen, but it has to happen right.

         19  The plan is not yet acceptable.  The creation of

         20  park land in North Greenpoint is absolutely

         21  necessary to this plan.  In running yearly softball

         22  tournaments at Newtown Barge Playground, I found

         23  that there is only one ball field in North

         24  Greenpoint.  The children are starved for play

         25  space.  Kids play football on Manhattan Avenue,
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          2  dodging buses and trucks.  They play in dangerous

          3  construction areas or wherever there is space.  Park

          4  Tower plans to build residential towers on both

          5  sides of Newtown Barge Playground.  The City intends

          6  to change the park to passive use, that is, creating

          7  a plaza for the new development.  This is a huge

          8  problem.  Certainly the new waterfront residents

          9  will bring additional children.  Where will all

         10  these children play?  It is not fair to this

         11  community nor is it good planning, to bring so many

         12  people here, without providing an adequate amount of

         13  play space.  The City must not expect families to

         14  walk to Williamsburg ball field to get a ball game

         15  going.  Not creating park land in North Greenpoint,

         16  poses new environmental problems, as well.  Our

         17  community continues to have a severe lack of tree

         18  canopy cover, and we will continue to have the

         19  largest waste water pollution control plant in New

         20  York City.  The plant is being expanded.  When it is

         21  complete, DEP is expecting exceedences (sic.) of

         22  chloroform, acrolein and other chemicals.  The City

         23  must create more park land to ensure enough tree

         24  canopy cover to filter the emissions for our growing

         25  population, that the shore walk will not provide.
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          2                 I live in an apartment only blocks

          3  away from the future Park Tower development.  I am

          4  the third person there to have Lupus.  My children

          5  suffer from other combinations of environmental

          6  conditions and syndromes, such as asthma and

          7  allergy.  That in itself, is an environmental

          8  statement.

          9                 Remember that if you pass this plan

         10  knowing that you have not properly considered our

         11  environment and your health, and our health, you

         12  will share the responsibility for any illnesses that

         13  occur.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         15  panel, please take your seats.

         16                 While they are doing that, the next

         17  panel in favor should sit in the front.  Alfreda

         18  Radzicki?  Rick Bell?  Well, Rick Bell already left.

         19  Sam Kel?  Okay.  John Conaty?  Is John here? Yes?

         20  No?  Steven Glazer?  Okay.

         21                      MR. ANDERSON: Hello, my name is

         22  Reed Anderson. I am a local artist represented by

         23  Pierogi Gallery on North 9th in Williamsburg.  I am

         24  here as part of the Creative Industries Coalition.

         25  I am a property owner on Grand Street between Barry
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          2  and Wythe, and as of this July, I will be a father

          3  looking to raise his child in a community with the

          4  kind of diversity and integrity, I have come to know

          5  and expect of Williamsburg, Brooklyn.  I am not here

          6  to try and stop the change, I am here to make my

          7  voice heard that I might help form the change that

          8  is inevitable.  That at this point, the possibility

          9  still exists to make the right actions, for once we

         10  begin it, will be far harder, I dare say impossible,

         11  to turn back.  I am here with the hope that in the

         12  future, my family will walk through a truly public

         13  City park, run by a City park alliance, that is

         14  built with capital funding, rather than money from

         15  private developers.  It is essential that the park

         16  space we create, be a thoughtful use of space, an

         17  adequate amount of space, not only for the people

         18  that are currently living in Greenpoint

         19  Williamsburg, but an adequate area for the thousands

         20  of new people that will come with this development.

         21                 I believe that creating high rise

         22  buildings will detract from the character of our

         23  neighborhood, and that the restrictions must be

         24  placed on height and variation of building

         25  placement.  Without this, we will not only lose our
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          2  view, but also lose it to a wall of monotonous

          3  towers.  It would also be foolish not to ensure

          4  variety of building types in Upland development

          5  areas, so that current trends of click and drag, and

          6  cookie cutter architecture, could be avoided, and

          7  that the renovation of existing structures is made

          8  possible.

          9                 I was born in Manhattan and have

         10  lived in Williamsburg for eight years now.  I feel

         11  strongly that a rush of over zealous real estate

         12  development at a time of rising interest rates, and

         13  historic economic debt, has the potential of

         14  disastrous results.  It is the type of development

         15  that will ultimately push out the artistic community

         16  on which the neighborhood thrives, and is largely

         17  characterized by.  This is not the time for real

         18  estate boom, luxury condominiums, and local tax

         19  hikes.  This is a time to put thought behind our

         20  every move.  This is a time to create affordable

         21  housing.  This is a time to create a new and public

         22  City park.  It is a time to save local jobs,

         23  employing local people, and preserve integrity in

         24  the creative community.  Thank you.

         25                 MS. TROY: Hi.  My name is Heather
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          2  Troy and I am opposed to the plan, and I had a

          3  really cute speech, but I am just going to hand it

          4  in and instead, point out something about today that

          5  I thought was interesting.  And that, even people

          6  that were in favor of the plan would talk about

          7  incredible miscalculations and ill conceived

          8  designs.  And this is not about a trifling issue, we

          9  are talking about people's lives and businesses that

         10  are hard to relocate.  So, I wonder why we are still

         11  even considering this plan and clearly, we need to

         12  think about a new way to work on this issue.  And

         13  that is all I want to talk about.

         14                 MS. LEVIN: My name is Elana Levin and

         15  I am with Creative Initiatives Coalition.  I lived

         16  in Williamsburg for about four years and have been

         17  involved in community organizing.  I am speaking to

         18  support the four demands of the North Brooklyn

         19  Alliance and specifically, about CB 1's, 197A.

         20                 What is happening here is happening

         21  all over the City.  The things that make our

         22  neighborhoods unique and New York y, are being

         23  killed by speculators who want to turn our City into

         24  a shopping mall and play land for the super rich.

         25                 If New York becomes exclusively
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          2  residential, with a few corporate headquarters

          3  thrown in, then we cease to be a City. People do not

          4  come here for homogeneity.  People do not move to

          5  New York City, live somewhere that has Starbucks and

          6  other wage slave jobs, but no unique culture to

          7  speak of.  Plus frankly, the developers have not

          8  been using union labor to construct our buildings.

          9  If you come to Williamsburg, you will see that.

         10                 When CB1 brought people together to

         11  write a 197A plan, it was visionary.  And that was

         12  democracy in action.  But City Planning has ignored

         13  it.  New York should be encouraged to participate in

         14  our own self governance, by writing 197A's.

         15                 And bravo to the City council for

         16  passing that legislation.  But you must fulfill your

         17  half of the bargain and do what our plans recommend.

         18    There are lots of hearings, but people are not

         19  listening to us.  We have been very clear about what

         20  we want in this rezoning, but the administration is

         21  tuning us out.

         22                 This was the City's chance to engage

         23  in a truly participatory democracy.  The City is so

         24  lucky to have dedicated, creative community members

         25  participating in its governance.  Listen to our
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          2  ideas of what is possible.

          3                 The Municipal Arts Society study

          4  proves the developers can make a huge profit without

          5  killing the spirit of New York with cookie cutter

          6  towers and the de- facto racial segregation, of a

          7  waterfront, with no guaranteed affordable housing.

          8  Show us that the City government is wise enough to

          9  know why this is the best City on earth in the first

         10  place.

         11                 MS. OLIVAS: Hello.  My name is Yvonne

         12  Olivas and I am part of the Creative Industries

         13  Coalition.  I have lived in Williamsburg since I

         14  moved here from Chicago in September 2000.

         15                 If you do not come and visit, and

         16  especially if You do not live in Greenpoint or

         17  Williamsburg, I think it is difficult to understand

         18  how many people here live and thrive in a very local

         19  and independent way.  I work in Williamsburg for a

         20  local craftsman, and I have worked for a custom

         21  builder, an accessories designer and a furniture

         22  designer, all in the neighborhood.  Each of these

         23  people began their businesses in Williamsburg.  Each

         24  of these people still have their businesses there,

         25  and each of these people patronize other local
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          2  businesses and employ locals in the community.  I

          3  know there are many others like me, who live and

          4  work locally, as well.

          5                 I do not understand how the loss of

          6  local industry is an advantage.  The repercussions

          7  are like, would be like cataclysms, because even

          8  small scale local industry and skills can be

          9  displaced overseas.  We have to support the local

         10  light industry.  It is people who begin businesses

         11  like these, that keep artisan, crafts and skills

         12  alive, here in Greenpoint, in Williamsburg.  I am

         13  talking about welding, gilding, hand finishing wood,

         14  joinery, knitting, glass blowing, carving stucco,

         15  restoring furniture, making furniture, clothes and

         16  jewelry, this is not to mention all the sculptures,

         17  painters, ceramicists, dancers, theaters,

         18  photography studios and the material and maintenance

         19  suppliers to all these people who all rely on

         20  commercial leases. You cannot rezone them all and

         21  still believe you are making progress.  You will

         22  provoke the undoing of a vital, vibrant, creative

         23  and diverse community and economy.  This creative

         24  community is known around the world.  Your

         25  dismantling will have no small impact.
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          2                 Small scale industry and businesses

          3  have networks in place that rely on being close to

          4  the City, and close to one another.  Rezoning will

          5  cut through the fabric of our local economy

          6  dismantling it, and the repercussions will be felt

          7  far and wide. These businesses, builders, and

          8  artisans rely on their local small scale industrial

          9  and commercial spaces.

         10                 The community has a plan to preserve

         11  the fabric and network of our community.  Not only

         12  that, it gives back to the community, with added

         13  affordable housing, park space, lower building

         14  height, and incentives for keeping industry in the

         15  community.  I am almost done.

         16                 Why do you not help us?  We have

         17  survived and thrived despite the super fund sites,

         18  and all our polluted air. We have a real opportunity

         19  to show the world our commitment to the democratic

         20  process where residents decide the fate, and promote

         21  the life of their own community.  Please do not make

         22  the mistake of supplanting our neighborhood with

         23  your notions of progress. Bloomberg's rezoning plan

         24  will reek havoc with the fabric of our community.

         25  We, I, do not support it.  I support the community
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          2  plan.  We all deserve access to light, air and green

          3  spaces.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Let us, let us,

          5  okay.  Thank you.

          6                 Next panel please take your seat.

          7                 And the next panel would be in

          8  opposition.  I have an Ana Saldamando and a Margaret

          9  Wiatcowski who are just saying, putting in the

         10  record that they are in opposition and I appreciate

         11  that.  I wish more people would do that, since I

         12  think, at this point, we are repeating ourselves

         13  over and over again.

         14                 Michael McCanne, is Michael here?

         15  Kathleen O'Boyle? Kathleen?  Shelley Marlow?  And

         16  anybody who wants to say just their name in the

         17  record, would be helpful.  Norman Siegel, I do not

         18  think I see Norman Siegel here.  Yes.  Wiley

         19  Norvell?  And Kelly Webb.  Kelly Webb?  Going once,

         20  twice, three times.  Nancy Bonavede?  Ellen Rand?

         21  Cindy Fuqua?  Christopher Zucker?  Okay.

         22                 MR. CONATY: Hello.  My name is John

         23  Conaty.  I am a member of the rezoning task force,

         24  an 18 year resident of Williamsburg, and I also have

         25  my architectural office there, too.
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          2                 I am going to speak about the

          3  waterfront towers and the street wall.  The

          4  Bloomberg proposal for the rezoning of the

          5  waterfront, would result in approximately 30 towers,

          6  ranging from 250 up to 400 feet with an average

          7  height of 320 feet.  These towers hideously out of

          8  scale for the neighborhood, will visually overwhelm

          9  and overshadow the low rise community.  The only

         10  immediate comparison, is the Williamsburg Bridge at

         11  310 feet, and the Queens West at 300 feet.

         12                 Our modifications would limit the

         13  towers from 150 feet to 200 feet in height, require

         14  varied locations of the towers, and orient towers

         15  narrow dimensions, towards the waterfront.

         16                 We ask that the City council support

         17  our modifications and demand the towers to be

         18  lowered, to a scale that is supported by our 197A

         19  plans, and more appropriate, to our neighborhood

         20  scale.

         21                 Looking toward the East River from

         22  the Upland, much of the view of these new

         23  developments will be of its base or street wall.

         24  The Bloomberg proposal will allow the street wall a

         25  55 to 65 feet along the waterfront parcels,
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          2  resulting in a huge wall completely cutting off the

          3  Upland community from its waterfront. Keep in mind

          4  that a majority of waterfront development sites are

          5  full City blocks, and these buildings will be

          6  continuous, stretching down the entire waterfront

          7  without any relief or break.

          8                 We have looked at our surroundings

          9  and feel it is crucial that the new rezoning respect

         10  and reflect this amazing organic medley of our

         11  neighborhood.  Our modifications not only reduce the

         12  height of the tower on the waterfront, but also

         13  require a lower and more variegated street wall.

         14                 Again, we ask City council to support

         15  our modifications and demand the street wall to be

         16  modified to be more contextual with our neighborhood

         17  character.  The result, the overall result of these

         18  modifications on the waterfront development, is

         19  significantly less density, height and bulk,  and

         20  significantly better views and access to our

         21  waterfront.

         22                 MR. GLAZER: Hi.  My name is Steve

         23  Glazer.  I would like to thank all of the members of

         24  the council for opening their doors for a small

         25  group of people.  And I know they know who they are.
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          3                 I am a resident and an owner of a

          4  business in Williamsburg for over 40 years.  I am

          5  the third generation.  Before that we were in

          6  Manhattan for 40 years.  We are for the rezoning,

          7  but for some reason or another, our block, which has

          8  approximately 12 jobs on it, was carved out, and it

          9  was left out of the rezoning. We just think that

         10  something, we do not know what the rational was. We

         11  would just like to try to get it put back in, and

         12  thank you.

         13                 MR. KEL: Hi.  My name is Sam Kel and

         14  I am a relatively recent New York resident.  I have

         15  lived here for five years after going to college,

         16  and I lived in Williamsburg for three years.  And

         17  although I am for the eventual rezoning, I want many

         18  things to be changed.  I want there to be a height

         19  ordinance.  I want more parks and open spaces, the

         20  red band would indicate that.

         21                 What I want you to really understand

         22  is that people all over New York love Williamsburg.

         23  It is not just our community. People come to

         24  Williamsburg to shop at these businesses.  People

         25  come here because we have a great art scene, because
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          2  we have a great music scene.  People all over the

          3  world, I am on the internet all the time and people

          4  all over the world find out that I am from

          5  Williamsburg, and they know about Williamsburg.

          6  They know about the bands that come out of

          7  Williamsburg that are able to have loft parties and

          8  are able to have, because of the low cost of

          9  Williamsburg.  And that is why I want it to stay the

         10  same.  College kids all over New York come here to

         11  shop.  It brings in tons of money the way that it is

         12  right now.  So please, please if you listen to one

         13  thing that I have just said, listen to the fact that

         14  the way it is now, brings in money.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And then I would

         16  like to call up the next panel in favor to take the

         17  seat in front, Oliver Lyons, Richard Grainbar

         18  (phonetic), and Kyle Raith (phonetic).  Are they

         19  here?  Any of them?  Not here.  Please.

         20                 MR. NORVELL: My name is Wiley

         21  Norvell.  I live, work and vote in Williamsburg.  I

         22  want to speak to you about our neighborhood's

         23  architectural, sorry.  My name is Wiley Norvell.  I

         24  both live and work in Williamsburg.  I want to speak

         25  to you about our architectural heritage.  By
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          2  virtually every measure, we are neglected an

          3  impoverish neighborhood.  We do not have the

          4  residential, the commercial, the ecclesiastical

          5  heritage that most of Brooklyn and Manhattan enjoy.

          6  The last time anyone invested seriously in building,

          7  was about 100 years ago.  What we do have is one of

          8  the last century old industrial areas in the entire

          9  City, one that has not yet been completely eroded by

         10  illegal loft conversion, and malign neglect.  These

         11  buildings, like the Austin Nicholas and Company

         12  Warehouse define the Williamsburg skyline. They give

         13  us a skyline of smoke stacks and water towers.  They

         14  are our only landmarks, our only points of

         15  orientation in the entire neighborhood.  And by many

         16  standards, they are unique in the entire City.

         17                 Looking at the City planning's

         18  renderings of the new waterfront, most of them

         19  destined for demolition.  I would ask you to force

         20  developers to be creative and innovative, establish

         21  these buildings as landmarks, not just preserve

         22  individual buildings, but to preserve one of New

         23  York's last Victorian industrial landscapes, set

         24  height restrictions of ten stories or slightly more

         25  along the waterfront, creating an incentive to work
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          2  with what is already there, adopt zoning that

          3  preserves manufacturing uses on lower floors of

          4  buildings.  We have no shortage of lousy, cheap,

          5  speculative development in our neighborhood right

          6  now.  But we do have a few examples of very

          7  sensitive development that does not clear cut 100

          8  years of history, for the sake of a quick one time

          9  cash windfall.

         10                 If you follow the recommendations of

         11  City Planning, you are going to give us a legacy of

         12  mediocrity, that we are going to have to live with

         13  for the indefinite future.

         14                 MS. MARLOW: Hi.  My name is Shelley

         15  Marlow.  I am a fiction writer and an old time

         16  resident of Williamsburg, and I edited my speech, as

         17  a writer.

         18                 Of course no one wants to lose their

         19  views.  What kind of effect would such tall

         20  buildings have on air quality and other

         21  environmental issues, on an already overly toxic

         22  environment such as Williamsburg- Greenpoint?

         23                 Let me focus on the waterfront.  I

         24  attended an amazing party in an abandoned building

         25  on the waterfront in 1989. Fully tapped into
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          2  electricity, Karen Black played that night.

          3  Countless other parties and performances followed.

          4  A sinking ship next to the waterfront was the sight

          5  of a midnight underwater tea party.

          6                 After abandoned buildings were torn

          7  down, friends planted gardens, built a stone

          8  barbecue, and staged literary readings after

          9  cleaning up the rubble.  The hungry marching band

         10  snaked around, uplifting everyone's mood.  In those

         11  early days, police stopped by, amused, impressed and

         12  even supportive of the creative use of that

         13  abandoned waterfront.

         14                 In more recent years, the waterfront

         15  has functioned as something of a town square.  On 9-

         16  11, various communities gathered on the waterfront

         17  to see what was going on, to see each other, and to

         18  make sure their neighbors were all right.

         19                 The night of the summer blackout a

         20  few years later, people again, congregated on the

         21  Williamsburg- Greenpoint waterfront, to check in

         22  with each other.  Relieved after recognizing we were

         23  not under attack, and that we could survive

         24  peacefully together without electricity, a

         25  waterfront celebration, fireworks, and all ensued.
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          2                 I think anything else I have to say

          3  has been said, but I do wish you will listen to the

          4  community board.

          5                 MR. McCANNE: My name is Michael

          6  McCanne.  I live in Williamsburg, Brooklyn and in

          7  the interest of time, I am just going to speak to

          8  you directly.

          9                 All day we have heard the interest of

         10  profit versus the interest of community.  And your

         11  decision about this rezoning will reflect how the

         12  City of New York, the values of the City of New

         13  York.  And I am just going to read the point from my

         14  speech.

         15                 The Bloomberg plan sets a precedent

         16  that the shape of a neighborhood, its values, its

         17  makeup, can be dictated and imposed from above, by

         18  real estate corporations, who have no interest in

         19  developing the kind of unique and healthy

         20  communities that form the whole, that is New York.

         21  The Bloomberg plan is a message that local and small

         22  businesses, artists, church groups and neighbors who

         23  fifteen years ago developed their own plan for

         24  rezoning, are not important in the face of real

         25  estate and money. As you make this decision, it will
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          2  reflect the community values of the City of New

          3  York.

          4                      MR. ZUCKER: Hi.  My name is

          5  Christopher Zucker. I live in Williamsburg for about

          6  three years now, born and raised in Brooklyn.

          7                 I was ready to cede my time a couple

          8  of hours ago, because I thought it had all been

          9  said.  And I sort of wish I did, because I am cranky

         10  and hungry.  But what I noticed was a real failure

         11  of language here, in terms of this for and against

         12  business.  I heard a lot of the residents that were

         13  speaking for the development, saying the same things

         14  that we are.  They want a development that serves

         15  the community, their children, they do not want

         16  their twins playing in parks with used condoms and

         17  syringes. We do not want that either.

         18                 The only people I heard really

         19  speaking in favor of the development, as it stands

         20  now, were developers, were people who stand to make

         21  millions of dollars, and people who are threatening

         22  us with 50 to 60 stories, in exchange for 40 percent

         23  housing.

         24                 So, in closing, I think that we are

         25  all really on the same page in the community, and it
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          2  is not some of us who want development, and some of

          3  us who do not.  It is all of us who want a sound

          4  development.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel in

          6  opposition, Aidan McKeever, I appreciate the fact

          7  that you have been sitting around a long time,

          8  Aidan.  Oliver Byrd, is he here?  Emilie Frohlich?

          9  Is she here?  Robin Perl?  Nicole Pilar?  This looks

         10  like Sheehan V. M., unless it is V. M. Sheehan and

         11  they wrote the last name first. Left.  Charles Kim?

         12  Linda Daniels?  The last name is Kim, Jongoon Kim?

         13  Kate Zidar?  Okay.

         14                 MR. LIONS: Hi. My name is Oliver

         15  Lyons.  I am an artist.  I live in Bushwick, and I

         16  am also one of the owners of the buildings in the

         17  area that you are proposing to take out of the

         18  rezoning.  I own a building at 58 North 3rd.  It is

         19  a 2400 square foot raw commercial space that we

         20  purchased in February of 2004.

         21                 I would like to make a few points

         22  about why I am opposed to taking these blocks out.

         23  First of all, our building is in the middle of the

         24  block that currently has nearly 70,000 square feet

         25  of legally occupied by residential tenants.  This is
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          2  made up of four, three story residential homes

          3  adjacent to our building on the east, and are forced

          4  into a converted commercial building across the

          5  street, which takes up two thirds of the block, and

          6  is mainly comprised of 45 large live work loft

          7  spaces.  Statistically, that is 80 percent of our

          8  blocks total square footage, and 80 percent of its

          9  approximately 250 daily occupants.

         10                 I understand and appreciate the

         11  intention of this recommendation to preserve

         12  existing manufacturing businesses.  But a question

         13  arises here, would not the preservation of an area

         14  where the majority is not presently residential,

         15  make a lot more sense? I would think they would

         16  agree.

         17                 Adding to this, we finally found a

         18  commercial tenant last November.  Before this, our

         19  building had been 100 percent vacant since March of

         20  the year 2000.  Our tenant signed a ten year lease

         21  to create a video exhibition space that will create

         22  several jobs, and act as I feel, an excellent

         23  example of the potential to create" the expansion of

         24  a virgining (sic.) Creative economy" that is

         25  encouraged and maintained, rather than threatened by
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          2  a large residential presence.

          3                 Thanks for your time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel up,

          5  please.  Take your seats.

          6                 In the meantime, the next panel Mark

          7  Ejuck (phonetic)?  Mark?  Is Mark here?  Erika

          8  Jakubassa?  Alison Cordeau?  I am sorry.  James

          9  Trimarco?  Is James here?  Stephanie Eisenberg?

         10  David Braunstein?  Is David here?  Habiba Alcindor?

         11  I get it right usually by the second or third time.

         12  Not here.  Alice Rich?  Franco Gotte?  He is gone?

         13  James Tadic?  Is James here? Peter Dolack?  Peter?

         14  Okay, Aidan, you are on.

         15                 MR. MCKEEVER: My name is Aidan

         16  McKeever and I am ten years old and I live on Oak

         17  Street, Greenpoint.  I am speaking on behalf of the

         18  kids on Oak Street.  I live two blocks away from the

         19  East River.  On most days I grab my baseball mitt

         20  and run to play outside.  On my block of Oak Street

         21  alone, there are 36 kids under the age of 15.  My

         22  friends and I like to play catch and running bases

         23  in the street.  Obstacles include parked cars,

         24  building windows and pedestrians.  The biggest and

         25  most dangerous obstacle, is speeding cars that whiz
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          2  around the corner.  One of the game participants

          3  always has to watch vehicles and yell "car".  It

          4  would be much safer and nicer if we had a park.

          5                 For the four past years, I have

          6  played in the Greenpoint Little League.  Although

          7  the fields are green and equipped like any other

          8  Little League, the surroundings are not like any

          9  other.  The fields are on the other side of the BQU,

         10  on the edge of Bushwick, on land owned by KeySpan.

         11  If you look past the outfield you see factories with

         12  plumes of flame and smoke. Garbage trucks loiter in

         13  the narrow parking lot waiting to get to the nearby

         14  transfer station.  The smell of gas and smoke is

         15  ever present.  But the smell of garbage makes us

         16  gag.

         17                 I understand that the waterfront is

         18  going to be developed and that empty lots and

         19  rotting factories along the river, will be cleared

         20  to make way for change.  But, unless chunks of this

         21  land are reserved for parks and open space, the kids

         22  of North Brooklyn will continue to play in the

         23  street.

         24                 A hundred and fifty years ago, the

         25  City planners had the smart idea to reserve land for
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          2  Central Park.  New York City now has a similar

          3  opportunity in my neighborhood.  Soon, tall

          4  apartment towers will line the river.  Please

          5  reserve the needed space for parks, and do not make

          6  me play in the street.

          7                 MS. ZIDAR: Thank you.  That is a hard

          8  act to follow. My name is Kate Zidar.  I am an

          9  environmental educator in the Lower East Side

         10  Ecology Center on the East River. I am also an urban

         11  planner and a Greenpoint resident.

         12                 As a teacher on the East River, I

         13  spend a lot of time trying to get my kids to wash

         14  their hands.  I talk to them bout safety at the

         15  water's edge, and I teach them about CSO's, combined

         16  sewer overflows.  I tell them that CSO's release

         17  untreated waste water that storm water and sewage

         18  combined, into area waterways like the East River.

         19  I tell them that what happens on land, affects what

         20  happens in the water.

         21                 As an urban planner, I look for

         22  solutions to CSO, and so I appreciate the inclusion

         23  of CSO language in the final environmental impact

         24  statement for his rezoning.  I commend the City

         25  council members and the organizations like River
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          2  Keeper, who pursued this topic and got it in there.

          3                 This is an issue of caring capacity

          4  and it belongs in this discussion.  There are two

          5  points I will raise here and I will follow with

          6  written comments.

          7                 The FEIS states that although the

          8  rezoning will increase both the volume and frequency

          9  of CSO events, these effects are deemed to be not

         10  significant.  Currently we are bound by Consent a

         11  Creed and the Clean Water Act, to find a solution to

         12  this problem, not to let it slide further out of our

         13  control.  If the current situation is unacceptable,

         14  any increase in combined sewer overflow is

         15  significant.

         16                 My second point pertains to the

         17  stated mitigation of CSO's, through the net

         18  increases and open space.  Although open space can

         19  and should be utilized to manage storm water, it is

         20  not enough to say, more open space equals less storm

         21  water.  It is also my understanding that the open

         22  space that they are talking about is not even

         23  connected to the drainage area, and is not part of

         24  the problem to begin with.  But if you have been to

         25  Barge Park you know that open space is not always
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          2  green, so.

          3                 In conclusion, this mitigation needs

          4  to be put into terms of permeable and impervious

          5  surfaces, should be talking about configuration of

          6  open space.  It should not be limited to open space,

          7  but also extended to transportation and building

          8  surfaces. What I am talking about here is a

          9  sustainable development.  It is also called

         10  ecological infrastructure.

         11                 Finally, as a resident of Greenpoint,

         12  I support waterfront access but look for more of a

         13  balance, as with all the advocates in this room,

         14  between development and community health. Thank you.

         15                 MR. KIM: My name is Kim, Jongoon Kim.

         16    I am the owner of the building, block number 2342,

         17  lot number 1, which is a 4 story loft building with

         18  a basement and 15, lot number 15 and 31, which is

         19  vacant land.

         20                 I bought this building 1982, April,

         21  so which is now over 23 years ago, for my own

         22  business, for distributing business. This building

         23  is, I saw two weeks ago, the Planning Board, City

         24  Planning map, which was taken out from the rezoning,

         25  is a real shock to me.  This building is the only
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          2  building, and also what make me, surprised me, this

          3  building is the only one on this entire block that

          4  was taken out of the rezoning.  We are surrounded to

          5  the east, west and south by the building that will

          6  be rezoned to mixed use.  Additionally we have a

          7  highest vacancy rate which is about 80 percent of

          8  vacant on the loft space, and then we have a ground

          9  floor, we are occupying as a food business of 25

         10  jobs.  It is our intention to convert this loft

         11  floor to the building to the highest and best use,

         12  which is residential, while remaining ground floor

         13  and basement as my food business.

         14                 This area it used to be garment

         15  manufacturing, mostly garment manufacturing.  But we

         16  have a problem with this area.  We got a BSA

         17  variance in 2003, January.  I am sorry.  On the

         18  fourth floor, we got the variance on 2003.  I waited

         19  two years to get the rezoning because the City

         20  announced, but suddenly in two weeks, I have this

         21  kind of problem, so --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think we, you

         23  know, I hate to cut you off but I think you have

         24  gone over the two minutes and I think your son is

         25  going to speak next.  We are well aware of the
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          2  situation, so.

          3                 MR. KIM: Councilman, since you are

          4  aware of the situation, I just wanted to remind the

          5  public of the FEIS Project Description.  Part of the

          6  purpose of the proposed action is to create

          7  flexibility for residential and mixed use

          8  developments, as well as more flexible home

          9  occupation provisions in the areas existing zoning.

         10  The purpose and need section for the states, the

         11  mixed use districts propose in certain areas, would

         12  permit the continuation of light industrial uses, as

         13  well as a residential re use of under utilized and

         14  vacant land.

         15                 And just to sum up, this exactly

         16  describes our buildings need to be included in this

         17  round of mixed use.  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         19  panel, if you will take your seat.

         20                 In the meantime, let me know if you

         21  are here, and you should come up and sit up in the

         22  front.  Irving Gotbaum?  Come on down.  Ralf Mayer?

         23  Ralph?  Mr. Wong?  Yes?  No?  Carolyn, I heard a

         24  here, and we just said Carolyn.  Jay Kim?  Aaron

         25  Tyrnauer? San Gee?  That is all there is here.
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          2  Okay?  Tisham Hsu?  Paul Santich?  Yes?  No?  Bill

          3  Jensen?  Last name is Semko, cannot make out the

          4  first name at all.  Okay.  David Meltz?  Looks like

          5  Meltz. Okay.  Please, somebody, anybody.

          6                 MS. CORDERO: I guess it is now good

          7  evening, Chair Avella and members of the committee,

          8  Councilman Yassky.  I am Alison Cordero, the Deputy

          9  Director for Community Preservation at Saint

         10  Nicholas Neighborhood Preservation Corporation,

         11  where I have worked as a community organizer and

         12  planner for the last 20 years, and a member of

         13  Community Board One's Rezoning Committee.

         14                 I guess it is now you have heard from

         15  community members why this plan needs to guarantee

         16  40 percent affordable housing.  You have not heard

         17  as much as I thought you would about stronger

         18  protections against harassment and demolition.  And

         19  you have heard from housing development experts how

         20  those things can be done.  So I am going to talk

         21  mostly about displacement and the harassment issue.

         22                 The need for affordable housing is a

         23  City- wide problem, but it is particularly acute in

         24  Williamsburg- Greenpoint. And I am just going to

         25  skip quickly to some figures.
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          2                 Williamsburg- Greenpoint had one of

          3  the sharpest rises in median monthly rent, jumping

          4  by 66.7 percent between 1990 and 2000, which

          5  compares to a grade of 9.8 in Brooklyn, 20.8 in

          6  Manhattan and 10.7 in the City as a whole.  I am

          7  saying this because I think everybody realizes the

          8  City- wide problem with affordable housing, but I am

          9  not sure that people realize that what is driving

         10  the urgency of our demand for 40 percent and our

         11  demand for a guarantee, is the acuteness of the

         12  problem in Williamsburg and Greenpoint.  And

         13  unfortunately a lot of the people who have suffered

         14  individual situations, there are still a couple of

         15  them here.  But we regularly receive more than a

         16  dozen calls and letters from families or individuals

         17  each week who are facing eviction, because they

         18  cannot afford a dramatic rent increase, or being

         19  harassed to leave, because the landlord can get

         20  higher rent from a new tenant.

         21                 And that is why we think that we

         22  really need those anti- harassment, anti- demolition

         23  and anti- eviction protections in the zoning

         24  language, as well as the guarantee for 40 percent.

         25  Thank you.

                                                            401

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MS. EISENBERG: Hi.  I am Stephanie

          3  Eisenberg and I am a local manufacturer, I am a

          4  local manufacturer, closer yet, I am a local

          5  manufacturer and we have heard that a group may want

          6  to bring in an aquarium, and we already have sharks

          7  circling our community waters.  They have been out

          8  there for quite a period of time, ever since the

          9  City planning announced the rezoning.  The degree of

         10  speculation has forced a lot of businesses to close,

         11  and more will follow.  The problem with the plan is,

         12  that about 60 percent of your manufacturing base is

         13  reduced.  The MX again, will become purely

         14  residential because of the dollars involved.  We

         15  stand to lose about 4,000 jobs, many of them union.

         16  The unions here today seem to feel that their jobs,

         17  their union jobs are somehow or other, deserve more

         18  attention.  They said they will have 1250

         19  manufacturing jobs for construction, we are going to

         20  lose 4,000.  The numbers do not work.  They are

         21  going to replace them by approximately 1,000

         22  permanent jobs.  A doorman at the newly developed

         23  Gretsch Building, I met the other day, is just

         24  started at ten dollars an hour.  That is it.  A

         25  union job, they are not high wage jobs that they are
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          2  touting or coming into this neighborhood. We had a

          3  better plan, which is basically to keep them

          4  existing manufacturing base, allow the manufacturers

          5  who have different requirements as per profit, and

          6  create affordable housing, build low density up to

          7  60 feet on top of the existing manufacturing bases

          8  or re- do the buildings.  But guarantee the

          9  industrial base for future generations.

         10                 And we are willing, voluntarily, to

         11  provide 40 percent affordable housing.  For

         12  manufacturers to exist in this neighborhood, you

         13  have to have people who can work.  It is a

         14  tremendous burden when your workers are doubled and

         15  tripled up in a house, because they cannot afford

         16  the rents. So we are going to lose anyway, if we do

         17  no have affordable housing.

         18                 MR. GILLESPIE: My name is Peter

         19  Gillespie.  I am the Executive Director of NAG,

         20  which is a community planning organization based in

         21  the north side section of Williamsburg since 1994.

         22  We strongly recommend that the City council change

         23  the City's rezoning proposal, by adopting the

         24  Comprehensive Community Alternative Plan, which is

         25  outlined in the submitted material.  I would like to
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          2  address one of the many flavorant (sic.) Oversights

          3  to the City's plan.  The City proposes upzoning most

          4  of the manufacturing areas in, and adjacent to, the

          5  special north side mixed use district to a zoning

          6  designation that would allow as of right market rate

          7  residential development, thereby serving as a

          8  transitional zone, that will result in destruction

          9  of the vibrant industrial artisanal base.  This is

         10  not a plan, it is a radical urban experiment, that

         11  will rip apart the community fabric, and undermine

         12  the unique balance of uses and incomes that

         13  organically evolved over generations.

         14                 The City admits as much.  In the

         15  executive summary of its proposal, the City reports

         16  that a million square feet of industrial split

         17  space, and close to 1,000 industrial jobs who have

         18  lost, which we estimate as a low ball figure, if

         19  their proposal is adopted.  The City then discloses

         20  in a revealing statement that, "they are no policies

         21  or recommendations that directly protect the

         22  businesses that are expected to be displaced" and

         23  concludes that a detailed assessment of these

         24  impacts is simply unnecessary.  It is therefore,

         25  left to the City council, to create these programs
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          2  and policies.  The City supports this decision on

          3  the obvious decline of traditional heavy

          4  manufacturing, particularly water dependent

          5  industries, and certain sectors such as garment, and

          6  textile manufacturing.  But the City fails to

          7  recognize that there are still over 4,000 industrial

          8  jobs in the rezoning study area, that certain

          9  sectors have stabilized, like food processing, and

         10  that a unique and growing artisanal sector has

         11  emerged, including furniture makers, art handlers

         12  and specialty fabricators, that contribute an

         13  essential element to the neighborhood and continues

         14  a long and rich history of inculpating industries in

         15  North Brooklyn, provides good jobs and runs counter

         16  to the declining trends in the older manufacturing

         17  sector.

         18                 And if I might, just to address one

         19  issue that has come up again and again.  We strongly

         20  recommend that you keep the 13 blocks that City

         21  Planning recently removed from the rezoning area,

         22  and remove additional Upland manufacturing blocks

         23  with jobs, with high concentration of employment.

         24  Property owners in those blocks that are proposed

         25  for the removal from that rezoning, have argued
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          2  today that this would arbitrarily penalize them in a

          3  speculative residential real estate market.  But

          4  coupling the removal of blocks, with the industrial

          5  development fund, a very generous industrial

          6  development fund remedies the situation --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Sir, your point

          8  has been made, your point has been made.  Thanks.

          9                 MS. RICH: Good evening council

         10  members and thank you for your stamina and

         11  opportunity to justify.  My name is Alice Rich.  I

         12  am a resident of Greenpoint.  I support the

         13  community plan and I consider myself a historic

         14  preservationist.

         15                 I am concerned that Williamsburg and

         16  Greenpoint's historic buildings will be endangered

         17  by the current rezoning plan and the influx of

         18  thousands of new residents.  The look and adaptive

         19  re- use of old buildings, is clearly one of the

         20  qualities that has made and will make the

         21  neighborhood attractive to new residents, tourists

         22  and developers.  I would like to echo the sentiments

         23  of the Municipal Art Society's Frank Sanchez, and

         24  also add that Grand Street and South 2nd Street from

         25  Kent Avenue to Fillmore Place in Williamsburg, are
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          2  blocks that should be protected from out of context

          3  development by land marking.

          4                 Only this can prevent the building of

          5  seven story rooftop additions and the like, from

          6  burying these 19th century structures.  In

          7  Greenpoint, various study groups have proposed

          8  extending the boundaries of the Greenpoint historic

          9  district, and I encourage this, as well.  It is also

         10  important to pay homage to the industrial heritage

         11  of the neighborhood.

         12                 I urge the City's historic

         13  designation of industrial buildings, such as the

         14  Greenpoint Terminal Market and the Austin Nicholas

         15  and Company Warehouse.  These buildings dating from

         16  the 19th century are irreplaceable.  They provide

         17  our residents and future visitors with the unique

         18  perspective of how the neighborhood looked in the

         19  past.  Before the potential economic pressure

         20  threatens their survival, these places should be

         21  made permanent assets to the City.  Please protect

         22  them by initiating the process of a land marking as

         23  soon as possible.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.  Next

         25  panel, if you would take your seats.
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          2                 And in the meantime I will call some

          3  other people to see if they are here, Dana

          4  Schwister?  Not here.  Mara Haseltine? Mara, are you

          5  here?  Ian MacTaggart?  Ian, are you here?  Beka

          6  Economopoulos?  I am sure I messed up that name.

          7  Paul Leussing? Marisa Bowe?  Gino Maldonado?  Lilah

          8  Wilson?  I just got two people for Lilah Wilson.  It

          9  is Lilah.  And who is the other person that raised

         10  their hand?  There are two people with the same --

         11  oh, okay. Please.

         12                 MR. GOTBAUM: Chairman Avella,

         13  honorable councilmen. My name is Irving Gotbaum. I

         14  am a member of the firm of Freidman and Gotbaum. We

         15  are representing a group of property owners in

         16  Williamsburg.  These owners live and/or work in

         17  Williamsburg, and they have owned their properties,

         18  some for as many as 60 years. Most of them are

         19  operating businesses on their properties and intend

         20  to continue those businesses as long as they are

         21  economically viable.

         22                 We are speaking in opposition, but we

         23  actually support the rezoning.  This is not a matter

         24  of NIMBY, but we say PIMBY, particularly we want

         25  this in our backyard.
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          2                 These property owners were originally

          3  included in the rezoning but at the 11th hour, their

          4  properties were removed. They want mixed use zoning

          5  originally proposed by City planning.

          6                 They were removed supposedly to

          7  retain industrial jobs, however we believe that the

          8  job retention assumptions are over stated, and we

          9  will put on the record, facts that support that.

         10  These blocks have been removed but others with --

         11  these blocks, the six blocks that we are talking

         12  about, contain about 167 jobs.  Where as one block

         13  contains over 200 jobs, and we wondered what the --

         14  if the policy reason is job retention, why was that

         15  parcel kept and these parcels removed?  It is from

         16  over substance.

         17                 We urge you to modify the rezoning to

         18  include these blocks as they were originally

         19  proposed to be in, and we thank you for your

         20  consideration.

         21                 MS. MENNA: Thank you Chairman,

         22  Avella.  I appreciate this opportunity.  I am a

         23  property owner on Kent and Metropolitan Avenues.  My

         24  family business has been owned and operated for 45

         25  years in this neighborhood.  Caroline Menna, and
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          2  since we have been in the neighborhood for 45 years,

          3  we intend to stay there and conduct our business as

          4  usual.  And we just want the same opportunity that

          5  other property owners will be afforded under the

          6  mixed zone plan.

          7                 I just am a little confused that we

          8  were absolutely arbitrarily excluded from the

          9  rezoning.  We would like your help in being put back

         10  into the rezoning effort.  Thank you so very much.

         11                 MS. MAYER: My name is Ralf Mayer.  I

         12  am a local architect.  I am here to speak because of

         13  the recommendation of Marty Markowitz.  I think it

         14  was a very, very good call from Marty Markowitz to

         15  make this recommendation to take blocks out of the

         16  rezoning area.  The City made a move where they

         17  really tried to justify, really tried to find a good

         18  reason as to take blocks out of the rezoning.

         19                 I just believe that the blocks which

         20  were removed in rezoning are not the right ones.  I

         21  am not sure if it makes sense, and we heard this

         22  before from Martina Salisbury.  If there is a block

         23  on Greenpoint Avenue between Franklin Street and

         24  West Street which has right now, 240 jobs,

         25  manufacturing jobs, carpentry jobs, well paid
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          2  manufacturing jobs, this stays in the rezoning,

          3  while others like Steven Glazer was talking before,

          4  every single owner of the property ruins his own

          5  business out of this, out of these properties.  This

          6  is the perfect example to lead next year, because

          7  the people can make their own decision if they are

          8  going to run their businesses, and keep their

          9  businesses there, and going to go with residential.

         10                 Steven Weinberg who was here about

         11  the Old Dutch Mustard.  If you look at the land use

         12  map, the existing one from City planning, it is not

         13  reflecting what is there right now.  You also see

         14  area photographs which show that there is properties

         15  and buildings drawn in, which are non existing on

         16  the property.

         17                 There is more to say to that.  If you

         18  run the businesses, it is strictly for residential

         19  development.  You can be sure if the zoning takes

         20  place as it is, these people are going to get

         21  displaced.  On other properties, we believe that the

         22  numbers of jobs which are provided to this

         23  committee, is not right.  And that is the reason why

         24  we tried to get you these maps.

         25                 Secondly, I would like to talk about
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          2  my visionary quick.  I see Central Park on the

          3  waterfront, and I see various towers, it does not

          4  matter how high they are.  Little ugly buildings,

          5  are much worse than high beautiful buildings.

          6                 And also I did not hear anything

          7  about Green building incentives.  This is 2005,

          8  should be mandatory and should be for every single

          9  building.  And we support the low income housing

         10  very, very much.  Thank you.

         11                 MR. MOLTZ: Good evening.  My name is

         12  David Moltz. I just wanted to quickly say, coming

         13  here, this room is so gorgeous.  It is so old and

         14  ornate, well, and that is what I was going to say.

         15  It is really gorgeous, and I would hope that you

         16  really hold it sacred, you know.  But if you look at

         17  the ceiling, it is cracked all over the ceiling, you

         18  know.  Well, Williamsburg is this ornate, gorgeous

         19  neighborhood that artists, that local people that

         20  live there, have made so gorgeous.  And I do not

         21  think you would want to knock down this court house

         22  and this room to have an ugly white building with

         23  like a communion Starbucks in the bottom.  And you

         24  know, we do not want to do that with Williamsburg,

         25  so I would hope that you really do not support that.
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          2    Thanks.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE: Mr. Chair,

          4  I have a commitment in there and I am going to have

          5  to excuse myself, but I thank you very much for your

          6  conduct to be here.

          7                 MR. SEMKO: Okay, I would like to

          8  speak for the army of displaced people already from

          9  Williamsburg and Greenpoint -- my name is Ryszard

         10  Semko, for the record -- and for the people who are

         11  about to be displaced.

         12                 Together with my wife and son, we had

         13  been residents of North Brooklyn, we had been for 15

         14  years.  Last year I was evicted from my place and

         15  had to transfer to Ridgewood, New York because I

         16  could not find an apartment in my neighborhood, I

         17  could afford.  Here is what happened shortly.

         18                 We settled in Northside in 1998 where

         19  I was working as an artist.  We were living in a

         20  loft apartment in a four family house.  The place

         21  was raw, so I did renovate, build a bathroom and a

         22  bedroom for my son, and was able to pay $800 dollars

         23  demanded for the rent.

         24                 Last year, however, my landlord sent

         25  me a note that my rent was being hiked to 1450 a
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          2  month.  To make the long story short, I could not

          3  afford it anymore.  We started to then look for

          4  another apartment very hard, but all we could offer

          5  was 1100 for it.  We visited several brokers, sent

          6  messages to our friends, read every ad in local

          7  papers, but the cheapest one bedroom apartment

          8  started with $13 hundred dollars.

          9                 The brokers told us, forget about

         10  this neighborhood, you can maybe find a studio for

         11  this kind of money.  We had to go, joining the

         12  growing masses from Greenpoint and Williamsburg

         13  being uprooted from our neighborhood of many years.

         14  We kept questioning why we had to go from our place,

         15  our school, our soccer league, and library and from

         16  our friendly grocer around the corner.  That was our

         17  home for 15 years.  We had made it already.  And

         18  yet, now we feel like being immigrants again.

         19                 Today, in ever growing numbers,

         20  Greenpoint and Williamsburg lose the very people who

         21  have helped to build this neighborhood.  Many of

         22  them are being pushed out even when they live in

         23  rent stabilized apartments.  There is no tool today

         24  that the City has at their disposal to reduce this

         25  wave of displacement.
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          2                 The City's rezoning proposal as it

          3  stands, falls short of guaranteeing a significant

          4  number of the future apartments to be affordable,

          5  and that is why, as it is, should be rejected.

          6                 I have gone to another neighborhood

          7  already but there will be an army of people in the

          8  same predicament, if the proposal does not

          9  seriously, does not address the biggest concern of

         10  the residents here, a mechanism that would insure

         11  affordable housing units for the about to be

         12  displaced, and one that would significantly diminish

         13  harassment and other methods of legal and illegal

         14  push outs in the affected district.

         15                 I am asking you to help us, ensuring

         16  just that. Thank you.

         17                 MS. BOWE: Is this on?  Yes.  My name

         18  is Marisa Bowe. I am a member of the Brooklyn

         19  Community Board One rezoning task force and a member

         20  of its Economic Development Subcommittee.

         21                 The recent highly publicized steady

         22  loss of white collar American jobs to lower salary

         23  countries like India and Pakistan, should serve as

         24  an alarm bell, warning of the urgent need to

         25  carefully study the conditions and possibilities of
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          2  the creative sector.  Because it represents jobs

          3  that are locally, culturally specific and physically

          4  actually need to be in the neighborhood, so they are

          5  not easily, if at all, exportable elsewhere.

          6                 It is our belief that the City has

          7  not given adequate, sustained, sophisticated

          8  consideration to the economic issues at stake,

          9  resulting from Greenpoint- Williamsburg's stature as

         10  an international center of creative work.  Many of

         11  the creative industry businesses, combined design

         12  with fabrication, whether for custom made products,

         13  or they make prototypes, for example, and they need

         14  manufacturing space.

         15                 The current MX language gives no

         16  protection to industrial spaces from residential

         17  conversion.  When you add up the current and

         18  potential jobs, these businesses represent in

         19  aggregate, and add in the ripple effect they have on

         20  other businesses, then consider the magnetic

         21  effects, such vibrant creative enclaves have, on

         22  well educated economically desirable knowledge

         23  workers.  You begin to get an idea of the tremendous

         24  economic impact of the area's creative economy in

         25  New York City.
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          2                 In an acknowledge of this impact, the

          3  City has wisely recognized the immense benefits of

          4  an exciting performing arts center like BAM, and has

          5  designated BAM as an LDC.  But BAM represents the

          6  retail aspect of the creative process, a place where

          7  cultural is consumed.

          8                 Greenpoint- Williamsburg is a

          9  thriving petri dish of working artists and

         10  performers who produce culture.  Other American

         11  cities, lacking the precious natural resource, pay

         12  consultants lots of money to advise them on how they

         13  can try to attract the kinds of people that we

         14  already have at Greenpoint- Williamsburg.

         15                 Well, let us see, cut to the chase.

         16  I think the EDC should do a sophisticated, detailed,

         17  thorough study of the creative community, to

         18  ascertain the scope of current economic activity,

         19  and how they could actually nurture it, rather than

         20  allowing the current plan to disappear all these

         21  jobs and businesses.  Thank you.

         22                 MS. WILSON: My name is Lilah Wilson

         23  and I am a resident and an owner of The Lucky Cat,

         24  small coffee house lounge, located on the south side

         25  of Williamsburg, that is a part of the Creative
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          2  Industries Coalition.  I have lived in Williamsburg

          3  for almost seven years.  Three years ago, I decided

          4  to open a small business, that would compliment the

          5  diverse community of Williamsburg and Greenpoint.

          6  From its Puerto Rican and Dominican residents of the

          7  south side, to its Italian and Polish residents of

          8  North Brooklyn, to the artist and professionals who

          9  are chosen to rehabilitate abandoned warehouses,

         10  store fronts and industrial spaces that were ignored

         11  before into homes and creative work spaces and

         12  galleries.  The DCP's proposal does not compliment

         13  the current Williamsburg- Greenpoint committee who

         14  have struggled in the area proposed to be developed,

         15  through economic pressures and high crime rates in

         16  the 1970's and 1980's, through recent recession and

         17  subsequent jobless recovery that occurs right now,

         18  and all over New York City.

         19                 I support all of the community in

         20  North Brooklyn Alliance demands, requesting for 40

         21  percent of affordable income housing, the height and

         22  bulk restrictions, open space and the thousands of

         23  jobs that are threatened to be lost.

         24                 The DCP proposal will disenfranchise

         25  the current community.  But not only excluding us as
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          2  residents and small business owners from

          3  participating in the waterfront development with its

          4  plan to build only luxury buildings and massive

          5  unaffordable store fronts suited for only franchise

          6  operations and boutiques, it will also dwarf our

          7  current low rise neighborhood and not respect the

          8  distinctive and historic architecture and urban

          9  space that is unique to the neighborhood.  The DCP

         10  proposal will not only threaten thousands of

         11  manufacturing servicing jobs, but will also threaten

         12  the job security of all residents who work in a

         13  local small businesses, that thrive or just survive

         14  in this neighborhood, because we will all eventually

         15  be priced out.

         16                 Development should closely involve

         17  the current neighborhood, and work to ensure that

         18  the neighborhood is supported with the plan.  Right

         19  now, grass cannot even grow, real grass cannot even

         20  grow in our parks.  Where sexual assault is on the

         21  rise, crime is on the rise, and in the

         22  infrastructures, subways do not even work on

         23  weekends and on other times.  We need something that

         24  will work and meanicate (sic.) with our community as

         25  it is. Thank you.
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          2                 MS. ECONOMOPOULOS: Thank you for

          3  sticking around so long.  My name is Beka

          4  Economopoulos.  I have a gallery in Williamsburg

          5  called The Change You Want To See on Havemeyer

          6  Street. Obviously, concerned about Williamsburg-

          7  Greenpoint, meeting the fate of SoHo, you do not see

          8  any galleries there anymore, really.

          9                 I am representing the Creative

         10  Industries Coalition, as well.  The Creative

         11  Industries Coalition is comprised of nearly 100 arts

         12  collectives, performance groups, event spaces,

         13  galleries, businesses, and light industry

         14  manufacturing companies that are united to promote

         15  the very best possible rezoning plan for your area.

         16  We want to underscore that we are not against

         17  development. The waterfront is under utilized at

         18  this point, but there is good development, and there

         19  is bad development, and the Bloomberg plan really

         20  does not adequately address community concerns.

         21                 The Creative Industry Coalition and

         22  creative community, turned out in mass today.  A lot

         23  of folks who were not able to make it inside, and a

         24  lot of folks obviously are now just slips on a piece

         25  of paper.  But I think we probably had at least 150-
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          2  200 people who took the day off work, because they

          3  felt so strongly about that.  I want to let you know

          4  that, just in doing door to door canvasing, I have

          5  been an activist and organizer for some time, it

          6  probably was the easiest experience I have ever had

          7  going out in a community, that it was hard pressed

          8  to find anybody who was not really concerned about

          9  the plan as it stands.  And especially concerned

         10  about getting a balance rezoning.  So I know that

         11  there is very vocal constituencies that are

         12  expressing concerns.  And I want to be sure that you

         13  do recognize that going out into the streets, one of

         14  the main concerns people have also, is about over

         15  development in our area.  And that is represented as

         16  really tall buildings.  We have a very charming low

         17  rise neighborhood that averages about three to five

         18  stories.  We do not want to be dwarfs.  We do not

         19  want our sunlight taken away, and we do not want

         20  that going to luxury condominium high rises,

         21  especially when Bedford Avenue, our main strip, is

         22  only three blocks from the waterfront.

         23                 I also obviously, want to just touch

         24  upon parks and let you know that is really important

         25  to us, too.
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          2                 So I want to thank you for advocating

          3  on our behalf, and let you know that we will do what

          4  we can after today, to encourage the City Planning

          5  Commission to revise what we feel is currently a

          6  catastrophic rezoning.

          7                 MR. LEUSSING: Good evening.  My name

          8  is Paul Leussing.  I am here as a representative of

          9  the company Box Art Inc. In Williamsburg, Brooklyn.

         10                 We employ more than 30 people,

         11  providing our employees with excellent wages,

         12  benefits, including health care and retirement

         13  plans.  The current rezoning proposal will destroy

         14  our company and the neighborhoods industry, as a

         15  whole.  We currently lease a 20,000 square foot

         16  facility which provides crating, packing and

         17  shipping services to all the neighborhoods, New York

         18  City's major museums, galleries and art

         19  institutions.  We manufacture crates to safely ship

         20  art to museums worldwide for traveling exhibitions.

         21  Our location in Williamsburg is a perfect

         22  transportation cross roads for the Tri- state

         23  region, including the international airports.  The

         24  high quality of our products and service are

         25  critical to its success of New York's cultural
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          2  institutions.

          3                 We urge that you modify the proposed

          4  rezoning plan. The success of our company is due in

          5  large part, to the high quality of the craftsmen who

          6  reside in the Williamsburg- Greenpoint area.  The

          7  majority of our employees reside in the

          8  neighborhood. Many of our employees are either

          9  artists and musicians who have lived and worked in

         10  Williamsburg for years.  Many employees including

         11  myself, are raising families within the community.

         12                 The destruction of high waged

         13  manufacturing jobs in Williamsburg offers few long

         14  term options for our employees and the

         15  neighborhood's working classes.  Mayor Bloomberg's

         16  rezoning proposal will only create service sector

         17  jobs, such as housekeepers, dog walkers or latte

         18  surfers, for the new residents of the planned luxury

         19  high rise condos.  We cannot provide for our

         20  families on a Starbuck's salary.

         21                 The creative diversity of our

         22  community -- thank you.  In conclusion, our

         23  businesses need affordable manufacturing zones to

         24  stay in the neighborhood.  If we have to compete

         25  with luxury housing for mixed use space, we will
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          2  never survive.

          3                 We ask the City council to save both

          4  our jobs and in doing so, save our neighborhood.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          7                 Next bunch, I am going to ask you to

          8  fill up the table and then we will just fill up the

          9  first row.  Teresa Toro? Is she still here?  Teresa?

         10    Okay.  Catherine Herman?  Catherine are you still

         11  here?  Brad Lander?  Left.  Okay.  Susan Albrecht?

         12  Susan?  Left.  Ronald Shiffman?  Ron left a long

         13  time ago.  Metro K?  Is that a name?  I am sorry.  I

         14  guess not.  Gloria Sukenide? Leah Archibald?  Is

         15  Leah here?  No.  Leah is not here.  Milton Puryear?

         16  Milton is not here.  David Greenberg?  David is not

         17  here. Jennifer Weber?  Jennifer?  Seth Lambert?

         18  Seth is here.  Ashley Ley?  Ashley?  Marie Sheehan?

         19  I think I have read this name twice already.

         20  Katherine Thompson?  Is there a Katherine?  No.

         21  Felice Kurby?  Felice?  Amy Abeady?  Nora Bornstein?

         22  Lauren Bilianko?  Do not say yea, there is still a

         23  bunch here.  Sarah Porter?  Is Sarah here?  Debra

         24  Medina?  Debra?  Raul Botero?  Gone?  Manuela

         25  Butler? Okay.  Veronica Velasquez?  Velasquez?  Ina
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          2  Howard?  Neal Sheehan? Julio Herrara?  Joann Gass?

          3  Okay.  That will get us started.

          4                 MS. TORO: Good evening, Chairman

          5  Avella and thank you for continuing this hearing.  I

          6  am Teresa Toro, New York City coordinator for the

          7  Tri State Transportation Campaign.  I am also the

          8  Transportation Committee Chair for Brooklyn CB One,

          9  and a proud Brooklyn native.

         10                 The Department of City Planning's

         11  rezoning proposal does not fully take into account

         12  the transportation -- I am sorry, yes?  I did.  I

         13  would be happy to.

         14                 My name is Teresa Toro and I am the

         15  New York City coordinator for Tri State.  I am also

         16  the Transportation Committee Chair for Brooklyn CB1.

         17                 The Department of City Planning's

         18  rezoning proposal does not fully take into account

         19  the transportation impacts from recent rapid

         20  development that has already taken place on a site

         21  by site basis.  Every rezoning variance has

         22  converted former industrial spaces into residential

         23  properties, leading to a noticeable population

         24  surge, that is evident everywhere, perhaps most

         25  tangibly during rush hour on the L subway line which
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          2  has become a nightmare, as commuters experience.

          3                 We have not seen any evidence of any

          4  real collaboration between the City and MTA New York

          5  City Transit to accommodate the increased number of

          6  riders, traveling both within, and out of the area.

          7  The proposal does not acknowledge severe MTA's

          8  budget shortfalls, which deeply affect us.  We stand

          9  to lose two local bus lines by next year, and there

         10  are no subway cars on order, or planned, for the G

         11  or L subway lines.

         12                 The rezoning plan does not adequately

         13  estimate or address increases in vehicular traffic,

         14  likely to arise from new development, and it relies

         15  excessively on additional parking supply to

         16  accommodate the travel demand growth it does

         17  produce.

         18                 City planning officials have said

         19  truck traffic will not be a problem, because

         20  industrial activity has largely left the CB1

         21  community.  That may be true, but all available data

         22  shows a minimum of a 50 percent increase in New York

         23  City truck traffic volumes over the next 15 years.

         24  A waterfront promenade is much less attractive and

         25  much less safe, when one realizes it will lie on the
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          2  other side of a heavily used truck route, with

          3  nothing but a few extra traffic signals to protect

          4  pedestrians and cyclists. Can I go on?  I had to

          5  restart.

          6                 The current proposal does not address

          7  our current transportation conditions, let alone the

          8  inevitable worsening when development accelerates.

          9  A comprehensive study that creates transit and

         10  traffic projections and policy and project

         11  recommendations using the rezoning build out

         12  scenario as a starting point, can provide a clearer

         13  picture as a mass transit street and parking issues

         14  that will need to come to grips with in the future.We

         15  urge the City council to require a transportation

         16  study similar in scope and purpose to the Downtown

         17  Brooklyn Transportation blueprint.

         18                 In conclusion, since the City council

         19  has this power, we really require, ask you to

         20  require, City Planning to work with City DOT to

         21  adopt more stringent traffic management options.

         22  These agencies must make a strenuous effort to get

         23  residents out of their cars and into mass transit

         24  where ever possible, and develop a district- wide

         25  traffic calming plan and pedestrian safety strategy.
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          2  We do not understand why a planning department that

          3  claims in some instances to be --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay, you have

          5  gone well beyond. I am cutting you off.  I am

          6  cutting you off.

          7                 MS. TORO: Bummer.  The first of the

          8  day.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I try and let

         10  people go on, and I try and indicate to them, please

         11  sum up.

         12                 MS. TORO: I appreciate that, Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You know, because

         15  it does take away time from everybody else that have

         16  been sitting around for hours.  Next speaker.

         17                 MS. TORO: I thought you would be

         18  entertained by the transportation portions of the

         19  rezoning.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next speaker.

         21                 MS. HERMAN: Hi.  My name is Cathy

         22  Herman.  I am Director of Planning and Development

         23  at Los Sunes, Southside United in Williamsburg.  And

         24  I appreciate your staying so long and the other

         25  staff people here.  I mainly stayed, not because we
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          2  will never have a chance to speak or that I have not

          3  spoken before, but I wanted to represent the bus

          4  load of people that came down from the Southside,

          5  and had to leave by five o'clock when the bus left.

          6  That is the problem with buses.

          7                 But I wanted to also say some things

          8  that maybe had not been said too often yet, at least

          9  I hope.

         10                 We are basically, at Los Sures and

         11  part of mobilization, against displacement,

         12  supporting really the old fashioned mandatory

         13  inclusionary zoning.  We think the proposal we have

         14  right now is really exclusionary zoning, and in the

         15  City's own consolidated plan, that is one of the

         16  things they site is something that causes more

         17  segregation in the City, and we think this plan

         18  certainly will.  The Latino and African American

         19  population has already declined over the last ten

         20  years and certainly declining rapidly now, replaced

         21  obviously, by a wealthier white population.

         22                 Median income in the Southside is

         23  17,000 and their people will certainly not benefit

         24  from the new luxury development. The way we see the

         25  mandatory working, is the way it has in, I do not
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          2  know whether it is 20 or 40 other municipalities, at

          3  this point, in both this country and abroad, where

          4  there is just a requirement.  It is uniform, every

          5  developer knows about it, they factor it in.  It may

          6  not be the full 40 percent we are talking about, but

          7  even if you started with 20 percent, it would be 20

          8  percent we would have.  I think the 23 percent, or

          9  whatever the number is the City presented, and I

         10  work with those people all the time, they are

         11  fabulous, but I think they are promoting a plan that

         12  is more of a press release, at this point.

         13                 So I think that should be strongly

         14  considered.  I realize it is out of scope, that was

         15  the City's decision to make it out of scope.  This

         16  is something we have talked about for years in

         17  writing.  Officially, the Community Board

         18  unanimously approved it. I think that what I would

         19  propose is that they start tomorrow on a parallel

         20  ULURP action that would require a base mandatory

         21  program. On top of that, we would have the

         22  incentives that come from using all the City

         23  programs.  I will just leave it like that.  Thank

         24  you.

         25                 MR. LAMBERT: Hi.  I am Seth Lambert.
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          2  I am a four year resident of Williamsburg.  I am

          3  also a realtor.

          4                 I just wanted to add that as somebody

          5  was saying earlier, I think our community is known

          6  world- wide as a source of inspiration, and a home

          7  for many of those in the art, music, fashion and

          8  entertainment industries that contribute so much to

          9  New York City's economy and vitality.  From a real

         10  estate perspective, I think there is a danger, that

         11  if all these new units get built at the same time,

         12  there could be a glut of new units coming out to the

         13  market all at once.  And a danger of a bubble that

         14  gets burst.  And it is kind of a lose- lose

         15  situation for everybody.

         16                 Williamsburg is not Jersey City.  It

         17  is not Hoboken. It is not Battery Park City.  It is

         18  a special place that I and many people in this

         19  community, hold dear and cherish, and it is not for

         20  sale on a wholesale basis.

         21                 MS. BILANKO: Hi.  My name is Lauren

         22  Bilanko.  I am a free lance photographer and as

         23  well, I agree with what he said. And I am friends

         24  with a lot of musicians and artists in the

         25  neighborhood.
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          2                 But I also agree with the Community

          3  Plan.  I feel that the plan that is on the table

          4  right now, is for the short term growth of

          5  Williamsburg.  And I do want to see Williamsburg and

          6  Greenpoint and Bushwick grow, and it already is

          7  growing.  But, if towers are put on the waterfront,

          8  it will stop the growth at Bedford Avenue.  Where,

          9  if we keep that a park, I think it will allow for

         10  more growth to spread further out into Brooklyn and

         11  allow a better community for everybody, as far as --

         12    Thank you.  And thank you very much for listening.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: While they are

         14  doing that, a Dewey Thompson has asked that his

         15  position be put into the record. He will not speak.

         16  He is in favor, with modifications.

         17                 MS. HOWARD: My name is Ina Howard.  I

         18  am a journalist and a communications consultant.

         19  Most of my projects are just aimed at introducing

         20  diverse ideas and information into a dangerously

         21  single minded, thanks, national media landscape and

         22  which I think threatens our democracy.  New York

         23  City has always been the best place to do this work

         24  from, because of its economic, political, and

         25  cultural diversity.  It is the richest in the United
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          2  States and arguable, in the world.  More than

          3  anywhere else, it is where the ideas, experiences,

          4  talents and energies of people from around the

          5  globe, and from every walk of life, combine to

          6  create innovative solutions to the challenges we

          7  face as a society.

          8                 I am deeply concerned that the

          9  diversity and inclusiveness that has made this

         10  dynamic mix possible, is rapidly being erased in the

         11  name of so called development, a trend that actually

         12  means the pricing out of all but the top economic

         13  strata of citizens and institutions and the

         14  detrimental homogenization of New York City's

         15  cultural and political heritage.  Artists, film

         16  makers, writers and the venues that present their

         17  work to the public, have already been pushed out of

         18  Manhattan and many parts of Brooklyn.  Blue collar

         19  workers and small manufacturers can no longer afford

         20  to stay in the neighborhoods that their families and

         21  businesses developed over generations.  Journalists,

         22  political organizers and non profit organizations

         23  struggle to survive in the very City they have

         24  dedicated themselves to improving.

         25                 Now the DCP's rezoning scheme
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          2  threatens to push thousands of non wealthy artists,

          3  media makers, activists, thinkers and cultural

          4  venues out of one of the last communities available

          5  to them.  Turning one of New York City's richest

          6  incubators for innovative ideas and cultural

          7  leadership, into just another bedroom community for

          8  the wealthy, dotted with chain stores, is not

          9  development.  It is the destruction of what makes

         10  New York City great.

         11                 I strongly support Community Board

         12  One's 197A plan that would develop Williamsburg-

         13  Greenpoint waterfront in a manner consistent with

         14  the needs of the local community, and New York

         15  City's long term project, prospects.

         16                 On the grounds of affordable housing,

         17  job retention and green space, I am also a

         18  representative of the Creative Industries Coalition,

         19  a partner of Beka Economopoulis' in the gallery, and

         20  am a resident of Williamsburg whose grandparents

         21  were married just a few blocks from where I live

         22  now.  I would like to be able to stay in our

         23  community and continue to enrich the cultural life

         24  in New York City.

         25                 MS. VELASQUEZ: Hi.  My name is
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          2  Veronica Velasquez and I guess the reason why I am

          3  coming to testify today is because I have lived in

          4  Williamsburg for three years.  My father grew up in

          5  Brooklyn.  I grew up in South America and came to

          6  this country with four hundred dollars in my pocket

          7  and worked my way up.  I am going to school and I am

          8  working at night.

          9                 The only reason why I can still stay

         10  in New York, is because I can afford to live in

         11  Williamsburg.  It is a community full of artists.

         12  It is a community full of young business owners and

         13  there are many possibilities that have been built

         14  there by those people.  There is a strong Latin

         15  community, there is a strong Polish community and

         16  there is a strong young artist community.   I am

         17  talking on behalf of tenants, young tenants like

         18  myself, that work to pay their own rent, their own

         19  phone bill, their own transportation.  And I work in

         20  the area, as well.  I am a bartender, so my job

         21  depends on people coming into the area, and

         22  investing in the area, and spending in the area.

         23                 I definitely want development.  I do

         24  not want a dangerous place where no one wants to

         25  come out at night, because then I will not make any
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          2  money.  I want a place that is developed right, that

          3  has an attraction to people.  It is not the type of

          4  community that you can define by the average stores,

          5  like it is smaller shops, it is unique little places

          6  that have been built, like I said before, by the

          7  business owners, that have grown their two cents

          8  into a dollar in this area.  I feel like that is why

          9  other people come to this area, because it is

         10  different, and because it is unique, and because it

         11  has a lot to offer in its own character.  If we lose

         12  that to a gentrified, stale, cookie cutter

         13  community, which can afford to take a water taxi

         14  over to their Wall Street jobs, people are not going

         15  to come to the bar where I work in anymore.  Because

         16  it is not going to be attractive, because they find

         17  that in the City.

         18                 So I feel like we have to preserve

         19  the character of this place and the type of people

         20  that live there, which are humble people, young

         21  people, and different people.  Thank you.

         22                 MS. PORTER: Very nice.  Hi.  My name

         23  is Sarah Porter and I am a resident of Williamsburg

         24  for the past ten years and I am raising my family

         25  there.  And I am speaking on behalf of Friends of
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          2  the Northside, which is a local community group that

          3  tries to advocate for responsible development within

          4    our neighborhood.  And I am also speaking as a

          5  landscape architect.

          6                 And as you know, the City Planning's

          7  proposal does not do anything to increase the amount

          8  of square footage per parks per person in our

          9  neighborhood where drastically undisturbed.  We are

         10  47 out of 57 community districts in the City and we

         11  do not have the density of Manhattan.  So that means

         12  that we have very little square footage.  And in

         13  fact, Brooklyn has the least amount of open space

         14  per person in the whole Brooklyn, Kings County has

         15  the least amount of open space per person in the

         16  whole of New York State.  So if we were to, if you

         17  were to pass City Planning's proposal, you would be

         18  adding insult to injury to our drastic situation in

         19  terms of open space.

         20                 In fact, City Planning's own proposal

         21  would have -- their typical guidelines call for 100

         22  square foot per person, that is ten feet by ten

         23  feet, which if you go out here, keep going, keep

         24  going, that is ten feet, okay.  Either you are going

         25  there, or you are going up there to ten feet.  That
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          2  is a ten by ten square, okay?

          3  Okay, that is the amount per person that City

          4  Planning normally advocates for a community.  Our

          5  community unfortunately has right now, five feet,

          6  one inch square, like 26, sorry, 26 square feet from

          7  here to here, okay?  That is not, you know, that is

          8  enough, I can sit down with my baby in there, okay?

          9  Now under their current guidelines with the influx

         10  of residents and the supposed parks that they are

         11  going to provide, they are giving us, guess what?

         12  Five more inches, to a five foot six or thirty

         13  square feet.  So we think that is drastically not

         14  serving our needs.

         15                 And I just wanted to make another

         16  point that, you know, we would not be here without

         17  the community.  This community has worked really

         18  hard.  It was a waste transfer station that we shut

         19  down.  Giuliani administration wanted to put it on

         20  our waterfront.  The community got rid of it, and

         21  that is why we are here.  And we do not want this to

         22  be a slap in the face because if you look up, it is

         23  a government of the people, by the people, for the

         24  people.  It is a slap in the face if it just becomes

         25  a government by Dan Doctoroff.  Thank you.

                                                            438

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 MS. VOGEL: Please support the

          3  community's plan.

          4                 MS. PORTER: Abbie is also a Friend of

          5  the Northside.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am to the end.

          7  Pat McDonnell? Pat?  Do not know if it is a man or a

          8  woman.  Not here?  Then there is a whole bunch of

          9  speaker slips from Trans Gas, do we have speakers?

         10  One?  Many?  There are like six of them here.

         11                 MS. THAYER: I am Stephanie Thayer.  I

         12  am a Williamsburg homeowner and a representative of

         13  the Bulk and Height Committee with the North

         14  Brooklyn Alliance, which is an umbrella group of

         15  about 50 different neighborhood organizations.  The

         16  North Brooklyn Alliance and the Creative Coalition

         17  have collected literally thousands of signatures

         18  against this rezoning plan.  We stood beneath images

         19  of the rezoning plan, downloaded directly from City

         20  Planning's website, sorry guys, but.  I watched

         21  people stop dead in their tracks in shock and awe at

         22  the images of the towers, the height, the bulk, the

         23  density, and everybody from twenty something year

         24  old hipsters, to little old Polish ladies, just

         25  swarmed around the table, five people deep.  I mean,
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          2  I have done petitioning for political candidates.  I

          3  have never seen anything like this.

          4                 We need your help to change this

          5  plan.  Please lower the height.  Please lower the

          6  density of our waterfront development.  The

          7  waterfront is truly part of our community and unlike

          8  Manhattan, where it is separated from the community

          9  by a six lane highway, we just have a two way road

         10  that, we just have a mere two way road and our

         11  waterfront is just three blocks from a commercial

         12  street, so it is really part of our community.

         13                 And I wanted to emphasize that our

         14  community, in its 197A plans, in the community

         15  board's rezoning task force, in the joint

         16  recommendations of the many groups of the North

         17  Brooklyn Alliance, have called for a balanced plan.

         18  We have asked that we limit the height of the

         19  waterfront towers to 20 stories, while fulfilling

         20  the needs for affordable housing for our community,

         21  and limit the waterfront FAR to a maximum of 3.7.

         22  The difference between the community's plan and

         23  Bloomberg's plan for the waterfront, is a difference

         24  of about ten to fifteen stories on each of 30

         25  buildings across the waterfront.
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          2                 In closing, I just want to say that

          3  the 50 organizations of the North Brooklyn Alliance,

          4  are united as representatives of our community with

          5  the same common concern.  And that is to preserve

          6  the character of our community, as we expand it for

          7  others to enjoy.  We would like to preserve our

          8  local jobs, provide us with parks to play in, give

          9  us homes we can afford, in buildings that fit the

         10  character of our community.  Thank you very much for

         11  your time, for your patience, for you endurance.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: While the

         13  representative Trans Gas is coming up, I would like

         14  to compliment Greenpoint and Williamsburg community.

         15  You have really put together quite a presentation

         16  and the fact that you spent hours and hours hanging

         17  around here, you know, says something.  You can

         18  applaud yourselves. You can applaud yourselves.  I

         19  will let you applaud now.

         20                 You know, we will obviously take into

         21  account everything that has been said here.  We did

         22  manage to get it in, although I may be the only one

         23  left here, but it is important, I felt, to get this

         24  public hearing in tonight, so that the real

         25  negotiations with the administration can continue.
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          2                 My personal feeling is that we need

          3  to do something on that site.  We need to have, and

          4  at the same time, balance all the concerns that you

          5  brought forward.  But the worst thing that can

          6  happen, in my opinion, is to do nothing.  That would

          7  be the worst thing.  So let us all work together and

          8  see what we can come up with to make it a better

          9  plan, than currently exists.

         10                 With that, Trans Gas?  Who is

         11  speaking?

         12                 MR. PATTON: Hello.  My name is Ken

         13  Patton, I am the Dean of the Real Estate Institute

         14  at --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Who is your name?

         16    What is your name, I am sorry, it is kind of late.

         17    Because we have all these, who are you?

         18                 MR. PATTON: Ken Patton, the Dean of

         19  the Real Estate Institute at New York University.

         20  Incidently, I was the first person to be the Deputy

         21  Mayor for Economic Development for New York City.

         22  It may have turned yellow, I turned it in at 8:00

         23  this morning.  D. K., yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Go ahead.

         25                 MR. PATTON: Do you want me to start
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          2  over?  Okay.  My name is Ken Patton.  I am the Dean

          3  of the Real Estate Institute, New York University.

          4  I was the first Deputy Mayor for Economic

          5  Development in New York City.  And incidently, as I

          6  see the community people, I was the founding

          7  chairman of the Brownstone Revival Committee of New

          8  York, so I have been on various sides of these

          9  issues.

         10                 New York City has changed

         11  dramatically in the last 14 years, in ways that are

         12  somewhat obvious, but to a degree that I do not

         13  think we realize.  If you look at page two of my

         14  handout, you will see the reason for it.

         15                 In 1985, New York office workers

         16  produced roughly the same amount of output in terms

         17  of dollars, as the rest of the country.  Slightly

         18  higher, we have always been the Big Apple.  But

         19  today we produce 200 percent more output per worker

         20  in the office sector, than any other City, and the

         21  country as a whole.

         22                 New York City, Manhattan and the

         23  inner hub of our City, represents over 50 percent of

         24  the income generated in our 21 county regions

         25  surrounding us.  This, as we find out when we have a
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          2  dip in income or a dip in employment, is the engine

          3  that drives the fiscal well being, and the economic

          4  well being of our entire region.  If you are

          5  responsible for an enterprise of this sort, you

          6  would manage risk to the infinite degree so you

          7  would have zero defects, six sigma control, you know

          8  the downside of failure is enormous.

          9                 What we are doing now is to risk the

         10  performance of our region because we are certain to

         11  have more power failures in the next four years,

         12  according to the NYISO, the Independent Systems

         13  Operator officially for New York State, who predict

         14  power outages with a shortage of 500 mega watts by

         15  the year 2009.

         16                 The consequences are greater than

         17  ever --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think I need

         19  you to sum up because you have already gone over the

         20  two minutes, so could you please make the point.

         21                 MR. PATTON: I spent 30 seconds re-

         22  introducing myself.

         23                 All right, there is only one solution

         24  to this.  First of all, 500 of those mega watts

         25  depend on the availability of steam in Manhattan.
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          2  The only site available to produce this steam and to

          3  provide electricity within the inner core of our

          4  region, is in Greenpoint.

          5                 What I am here to say is it would be

          6  the height of risk taking if we were not to keep

          7  open the option of producing power needed to meet

          8  this need, in this area.  We have seen the outage

          9  before 9- 11, we had a one week brown out in New

         10  York.  After 9- 11, we had three days of

         11  interruption, not due to 9- 11, but due to the

         12  failure of our system.  Last year we had a blackout,

         13  and last month we had a failure in A and C lines.

         14  We are beginning to see lost confidence in these

         15  highly productive industries, high value added

         16  people that cannot function if they are not given a

         17  first rate system to function with.  So every job

         18  that we have, in the arts, and all of the wonderful

         19  things that we do, and I do not diminish them in any

         20  way, hinges upon the reliability and predictability

         21  of our infrastructure and transportation of power

         22  systems.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Can I ask you to

         24  get to the point.  What has this have to do with the

         25  actual site? Specifically, what are you saying?
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          2  Because I have not heard that yet.

          3                 MR. PATTON: I will repeat.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I mean, it is a

          5  very simple question.

          6                 MR. PATTON: The site is the only site

          7  available that can --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: You want it in

          9  the plan?  You want it out of the plan?  What do you

         10  want?  I think we all understand the issue of power

         11  consumption.  What is it that you are saying?

         12                 MR. PATTON:  I say that the most

         13  proximate efficient, effective and safe site, lies

         14  on the Brooklyn waterfront across from the Midtown

         15  area.  And the site that was the famous Bayside

         16  petroleum site, is the site that can produce both

         17  steam and electric for our core areas.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: So you are saying

         19  what, in terms of the plan?

         20                 MR. PATTON: I say omit it from the

         21  rezoning --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That is all we

         23  want to know.

         24                 MR. PATTON: -- So that you have, so

         25  that you keep your options open to make future
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          2  decisions.  That is all, it would be a shame to

          3  close, foreclose the option.

          4                 MR. VICTOR: My name is Adam Victor.

          5  I am President of Trans Gas.  Specifically, we

          6  support the rezoning with the exception of the

          7  Bayside site, that is not currently scheduled to be

          8  rezoned, or proposed to be rezoned, but they plan to

          9  map it as a park.  And for that reason, we think

         10  that this site should not be mapped as a park,

         11  because it could hinder Trans gas.

         12                 And why is that important?  I have

         13  sat here today, I guess, for ten hours, and I have

         14  heard three things, affordable housing, parks and

         15  fire and safety.  These three things all come from

         16  Trans Gas.  Trans Gas has offered $50 million

         17  dollars to developers to build affordable housing.

         18  Only one developer, only one, has taken us up on

         19  that offer and that is Mr. Brodsky, who

         20  unfortunately is not in the primary rezoning plan.

         21                 Secondly, this book here, is the

         22  environmental phase two, this was a $275 thousand

         23  dollar study that we did at the Bayside site.  This

         24  shows that in order to put park, power plants,

         25  whatever you want over there, it is going to cost
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          2  $330 million dollars to remediate, because you have

          3  to go 120 feet down.  This could be mapped as a

          4  park, wished as park, what have you, but the fact of

          5  the matter is, only a $2 billion dollar power plant

          6  is going to pay for a park.

          7                 So in addition to giving the

          8  community $50 million dollars for affordable

          9  housing, we are giving them an amenity of worth $300

         10  to $350 million dollars in terms of a park.

         11                 Finally, we are prepared through our

         12  bunker, to allow an easement for a sewage sludge

         13  line.  No one has brought this up today, but one of

         14  the large parcels is 19 acres on the northern part

         15  of Brooklyn, which is scheduled to be rezoned for

         16  height, density housing is bisected by an 18 inch

         17  sewage sludge line from Newtown Creek.  The City,

         18  working with that developer, is now intending to

         19  spend upwards of $100 to $150 million dollars to

         20  build a forced sewage sludge line through the entire

         21  borough of Queens, to deliver sludge to Wards

         22  Island.  Because this line that bisects this

         23  property, ends up in a boat.  And this boat picks up

         24  sludge twice a day, every day, 800,000 gallons a day

         25  of sewage, takes it up to Wards Island.  They tried
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          2  to relocate this line down in the Bushwick Inlet, we

          3  stopped them from bringing that line down to the

          4  Bushwick Inlet initially, when we were an above

          5  ground facility.  And we now find that they have

          6  hired Hazen and Sawyer and they are going to spend

          7  probably close to $150 million dollars of taxpayer

          8  money, to benefit one developer.

          9                 In addition to that, I do not know

         10  who is from Queens over here, but I do not think you

         11  have ever, well, have they told you that they are

         12  going to run a line that is going to have the same

         13  odors as Newtown Creek, and is going to go eight

         14  miles through the borough because this is for

         15  sludge?  By using the Trans Gas facility, we would

         16  allow that line to come through our, a surface line

         17  for probably a million and a half dollars, to go

         18  through our facility, to off flow the sludge there,

         19  so that could be developed.

         20                 And finally, you might want to

         21  consider swapping the sites that have the site that

         22  has this $150 million dollar sewer line.  That maybe

         23  should be park land, and Mr. Brodsky's site, if you

         24  see those buildings over there, that is not the

         25  power plant, that is Mr. Brodsky's site.  That area,
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          2  we think would be housing. And that the park land

          3  could be up in the northern part that is bisected by

          4  this line that is going to cost taxpayers $150

          5  million dollars, and go through the borough of

          6  Queens.  That is what Trans Gas can offer.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If I can sort of

          8  ask a couple of questions, but all of the scenarios

          9  that you are suggesting, are contingent upon you

         10  getting permission to build the power plant.

         11                 MR. VICTOR: That is correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         13                 MR. VICTOR: And that comes from the

         14  Article 10, State agency.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         16                 MR. VICTOR: You are welcome.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am able to say,

         18  that closes the public hearing on this item.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 5:45 p.m.)
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